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PRE-LISTING STATEMENT

The definitions and interpretations contained on page 14 of this Pre-Listing Statement apply to this entire document, including this cover 
page, unless otherwise stated or the context clearly indicates otherwise.

This Pre-Listing Statement relates to offers for subscription in Revego, subject to certain conditions which will be made by way of 
separate private placements (i) to selected persons in South Africa (a) who fall within one of the specified categories listed in section 
96(1)(a) of the Companies Act or (b) who, acting as principal, are acquiring Shares for a total acquisition cost of R1 000 000 or more, 
as contemplated in section 96(1)(b) of the Companies Act and (ii) to selected persons outside the United States who are not US 
Persons, in reliance on Regulation S, to whom the Offer will specifically be addressed, and only by whom the Offer will be capable of 
acceptance, of up to 151,941,442 Shares in Revego, comprising 100% of the total issued Shares of Revego at Listing and resulting in a 
stated capital of R1,505 million. In connection with the Offer, the Stabilisation Manager will be permitted to purchase up to 2,000,000 
Shares in the market comprising up to approximately 1.3% of the total number of Offer Shares. Any such Shares purchased will be 
sold to Investec at the Offer Price, which Investec will hold together with the Shares acquired by it as part of its investment as a 
Cornerstone Shareholder. The Offer and the relevant information that pertains to such Offer in respect of each class of South African 
Qualifying Investor is combined in this Pre-Listing Statement for the sake of convenience only.

The Cornerstone Shareholders have committed to subscribe for up to 172,500,000 Offer Shares in aggregate at the Offer Price.

The gross proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares receivable by Revego are estimated to be c.R1,519 million. The net proceeds from 
the issue of the Offer Shares receivable by Revego are estimated to be c.R1,424 million after deducting fees and estimated expenses 
payable by Revego, which are expected to amount to c.R91 million and R4 million cash that will be retained by Revego for reasonable 
foreseeable operating expenses.

This Pre-Listing Statement is not and shall not constitute an offer to the public, or an invitation to, or solicitation 
of the public to acquire Offer Shares or other securities of the Company in terms of the Companies Act in South 
Africa or in any other jurisdiction and is being issued in compliance with the Listings Requirements for the purpose 
of providing information with regard to the Company.

The price at which the Offer Shares will be offered for subscription will be R10 per Offer Share.

The Offer Shares will be issued in dematerialised form only and, accordingly, no documents of title will be delivered to successful applicants. 
No fractions of Shares will be issued.

The Offer Shares issued pursuant to the Offer will rank pari passu with all other Shares in issue in all respects including dividends and will 
have no conversion or redemption rights.

Subject to certain conditions, as detailed in paragraph 27 of this Pre-Listing Statement, a primary listing of all of the Company’s issued 
Shares has been granted by the JSE in the “Closed End Investments” sector on the main board of the exchange operated by the JSE 
under the abbreviated name “Revego”, JSE code “RVG” and ISIN ZAE000296513 with effect from the commencement of trade on Friday, 
23 April 2021. The Company will list as an investment entity in terms of section 15 of the Listings Requirements.

The Offer is, among other conditions as detailed in paragraph 27 of this Pre-Listing Statement,, subject to a minimum free float requirement. 
Pursuant to this requirement, once the Offer is completed, Revego will have a minimum of 20% of the Shares held by the public (as defined 
in the Listings Requirements). The Listing will not proceed if the minimum free float is not achieved, and any acceptance of the Offer 
shall not take effect and no person shall have any claim whatsoever against Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager, their respective 
representatives or advisors or any other person as a result of the failure in meeting this or any other condition.

On the Listing Date, the stated capital of the Company will comprise one class of ordinary no par value shares, of which (assuming the 
Offer Shares are fully taken up) there shall be 151,941,452 Shares in issue. No other class of shares exist in the stated capital of the 
Company. The authorised shares of the Company comprises 5,000,000,000 Shares.

The Company’s expected issued Shares on the Listing Date is set out in Part H: “Stated Capital and Shareholding”. None of the Shares 
will be held in treasury on the Listing Date.

The Directors, whose names are given on page 22 of this Pre-Listing Statement, collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the 
accuracy of the information contained herein and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been 
omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and 
that this Pre-Listing Statement contains all information required by the Listings Requirements.
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In South Africa, the Offer will only be made by way of separate private placements (on the same terms) to South African Qualifying Investors, and this Pre-Listing 
Statement is only being made available to such South African Qualifying Investors. Accordingly: (i) the Offer is not an offer to the public as contemplated in the 
Companies Act; (ii) this Pre-Listing Statement does not, nor does it intend to, constitute a “registered prospectus”, as contemplated by the Companies Act; and (iii) 
no prospectus has been filed with the CIPC in respect of the Offer. As a result, this Pre-Listing Statement does not comply with the substance and form requirements 
for a prospectus set out in the Companies Act and the Companies Regulations, and has not been approved by, and/or registered with, the CIPC. This Pre-Listing 
Statement has been approved by the JSE and the Authorised Dealer has reviewed and approved paragraph 33 and Part J of this Pre-Listing Statement, but it has not 
been approved by any other South African regulatory authority.

The Offer Shares are being offered and sold outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S. The Offer Shares have not been and will not be registered under 
the US Securities Act or under any securities law or regulation of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States and may not be offered, or sold, within the 
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, US Persons. For a description of these and certain further restrictions on offers, sales and transfers of the Offer 
Shares and the distribution of this document, see Part I: “Selling and Transfer Restrictions”.

The distribution of this Pre-Listing Statement and the Offer in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. No action has been or will be taken to permit a public 
offering of the Offer Shares in any jurisdiction. No action has been or will be taken to permit the possession or distribution of this Pre-Listing Statement (or any 
other offering or publicity materials or application form(s) relating to the Offer Shares) in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose may be required or doing 
so is restricted by law. Accordingly, neither this Pre-Listing Statement, nor any advertisement, nor any other offering material may be distributed or published in 
any jurisdiction except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this Pre-Listing 
Statement comes should inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the 
laws or regulations of certain jurisdictions. Further information with regard to the restrictions on the distribution of this Pre-Listing Statement and the Offer is set 
out in Part I: “Selling and Transfer Restrictions”.

None of Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager, the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner or any of their respective representatives or advisors, is making any 
representation to any offeree or subscriber of the Offer Shares regarding the legality of an investment in the Offer Shares by such offeree or subscriber under the 
law applicable to such offeree or subscriber. The contents of this Pre-Listing Statement should not be construed as legal, financial or tax advice. Each prospective 
Shareholder should consult its own legal, financial or tax advisor as to the legal, financial, business, tax and related aspects of a subscription for Offer Shares.

No document or information that appears on Revego’s website shall be, or deemed to be, incorporated into this Pre-Listing Statement.

The Financial Advisor and Bookrunner and the Sponsor are acting exclusively for Revego and no one else in connection with the Offer.  They will not regard any other 
person (whether or not a recipient of this document) as their client in relation to the Offer and will not be responsible to anyone other than Revego for providing 
the protections afforded to their clients nor for giving advice in relation to the Offer or any transaction or arrangement referred to in this Pre-Listing Statement and 
apart from the responsibilities and liabilities (if any) imposed on them by the FSCA, JSE or any applicable South African regulatory authority, any liability therefor is 
expressly disclaimed.

No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made by any person other than Revego as to the accuracy, completeness or verification of the information set 
out in this Pre-Listing Statement, and nothing contained in this Pre-Listing Statement is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation in this respect, whether 
as to the past or the future. No person other than Revego assumes responsibility for this Pre-Listing Statement’s accuracy, completeness or verification and all other 
persons accordingly disclaim, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, any and all liability whether arising in delict (tort) contract or otherwise 
that they might otherwise be found to have in respect of this document or any such statement.

Any person applying for or accepting an Offer of Offer Shares shall be deemed to have represented to Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Financial 
Advisor and Bookrunner (including their representatives and advisors) that: (i) they have not relied on Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager or the Financial 
Advisor and Bookrunner (including their representatives and advisors) or any person affiliated with Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager or the Financial 
Advisor and Bookrunner (including their representatives and advisors) in connection with any investigation of the accuracy of any information contained in this 
Pre-Listing Statement or their investment decision; (ii) they have relied only on the information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement; and (iii) no person has been 
authorised to give any information or to make any representation concerning Revego, the Fund or its Project Companies, the Investment Manager or the Offer Shares 
(other than as expressly contained in this Pre-Listing Statement) and, if any such information or representation is given or made by a person, such other information 
or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner 
(including their representatives and advisors).

The Shares are subject to the restrictions on transferability and resale set out in Part I “Selling and Transfer Restrictions” and may not be transferred or resold except 
as permitted under applicable laws and regulations. Shareholders should be aware that they may be required to bear the financial risks of their investment in the 
Shares for an indefinite period of time.

In connection with the Offer, Investec and any of its affiliates, acting as an investor for its own account, may take up Offer Shares in the Offer and in that capacity may 
retain, purchase or sell for its own account such securities and any Shares or related investments and may offer or sell such Shares or other investments otherwise 
than in connection with the Offer.  Accordingly, references in this Pre-Listing Statement to Shares being offered or placed should be read as including any offering or 
placement of Shares to Investec or any of its affiliates. In addition, Investec or its affiliates may enter into financing arrangements (including swaps) with investors in 
connection with which Investec or its affiliates may from time to time acquire, hold or dispose of Shares. Investec does not intend to disclose the extent of any such 
investment or transactions otherwise than in accordance with any legal or regulatory obligation to do so.

The Independent Auditor and Independent Reporting Accountant, whose reports are contained in this Pre-Listing Statement, has given and has not, prior to the date 
of this Pre-Listing Statement, withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its reports in the form and context in which they appear in this Pre-Listing Statement. 
The transfer secretaries, legal advisors, the Independent Auditor and Independent Reporting Accountant, the Sponsor, and the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner 
named in this Pre-Listing Statement have consented in writing to act in those capacities as stated in this Pre-Listing Statement, and to their names being stated in this 
Pre-Listing Statement, and have not withdrawn their consent prior to the publication of this Pre-Listing Statement.

This Pre-Listing Statement is only available in English. Copies of this Pre-Listing Statement may be obtained during normal business hours from the registered office 
of the Company and the offices of the Sponsor at their respective addresses set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Pre-Listing Statement from the 
date of issue hereof until 20 April 2021. This Pre-Listing Statement will also be available on Revego’s website at https://revegoenergy.com.  An abridged version of this 
Pre-Listing Statement will be released on SENS on 31 March 2021 and published in the press on 1 April 2021.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered Address
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(PO Box 785700, Sandton, 2146)

Company Secretary

Investec Group Data Limited
c/o Company Secretarial Investec Limited
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION

GENERAL NOTE

The distribution of this Pre-Listing Statement in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. No action has been taken or 
will be taken to permit the possession or distribution of this document (or any other offering or publicity materials relating 
to the Shares) in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose may be required or doing so is restricted or prohibited 
by law. Accordingly, neither this document, nor any advertisement, nor any other offering material may be distributed, 
transmitted or published except under circumstances that will not result in a breach of, or a requirement to comply with, 
any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this document comes should inform themselves about 
and observe any such restrictions. Any failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of the securities 
laws of any such jurisdiction. This document does not constitute an offer or an invitation or solicitation of an offer to 
subscribe for securities in any jurisdiction.

Investors should not treat the contents of this Pre-Listing Statement as advice relating to legal, taxation, investment or any 
other matters and should consult their own professional advisors concerning the consequences of their subscribing for, 
acquiring, holding or disposing of Shares at any point in time. Investors should inform themselves as to:

• the legal requirements within their own jurisdictions for the purchase, holding, transfer or disposal of Shares;

• any foreign exchange restrictions applicable to the purchase, holding, transfer or disposal of Shares which they might 
encounter; and

• the income and other tax consequences which may apply to them as a result of the subscription, purchase, holding, 
transfer or disposal of Shares. Investors must rely upon their own representatives, including their own legal advisors 
and accountants, and not those of the Company, as to legal, tax, investment or any other related matters concerning 
the Company and an investment therein.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS IN SOUTH AFRICA

In South Africa, the Offer will only be made by way of separate private placements to South African Qualifying Investors, 
and this Pre-Listing Statement is only being made available to such South African Qualifying Investors. Accordingly, this 
Pre-Listing Statement does not constitute an offer or invitation to the public or any person for the sale of or subscription 
for, or an advertisement or the solicitation of an offer to buy and/or subscribe for, securities (as defined in the Companies 
Act) of the Company or otherwise and will not be distributed to any person in South Africa in any manner which could be 
construed as an offer or invitation to the public in terms of the Companies Act. Furthermore, this Pre-Listing Statement 
does not, nor is it intended to, constitute an advertisement or a prospectus registered and/or issued under the Companies 
Act.

The information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement constitutes factual information as contemplated in section 1(3)(a)  
of the South African Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act, No. 37 of 2002 (“FAIS”) and should not be 
construed as an express or implied recommendation, guidance or proposal that any particular transaction in respect 
of the Shares is appropriate to the particular investment objective, financial situation or need of a prospective investor. 
Accordingly, nothing in these materials should be viewed or construed as “advice” as that term is used in the Financial 
Markets Act and/or the FAIS.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

In the United Kingdom, the Offer will only be made to and directed at persons: (i) who fall within Article 19(5) of 
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “FPO”); (ii) who fall within Article 49(2)
(a) to (d) of the FPO; or (iii) to whom this Pre-Listing Statement may otherwise be lawfully made available to or directed 
at, provided that such persons are also qualified investors in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Article 2(e) 
of the Prospectus Regulation (Regulation 2017/1129/EU) as it forms part of retained European Union law by virtue of 
the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018, all such persons together being referred to as “Relevant Persons”. The 
investments and investment activity to which this communication relates are available to, and will only be engaged in with, 
Relevant Persons. No other person should act or rely on it. For the avoidance of doubt, this Pre-Listing Statement has not 
been approved for the purposes of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (“FSMA”) and does not 
constitute an offer to the public in accordance with section 85 of the FSMA.
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The Offer Shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold 
or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). For these purposes, a 
retail investor means a person who is: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU  
(as amended, MiFID); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC, where that customer would not 
qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined 
in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No. 1286/2014 
(as amended, the “PRIIPS Regulation”) for offering or selling the Offer Shares or otherwise making them available to 
retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Offer Shares or otherwise making them 
available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.

STABILISATION

In connection with the Offer, the Stabilisation Manager may effect transactions which may support the market price of 
the Shares at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period after the Listing Date. However, 
there is no assurance that the Stabilisation Manager will undertake any such actions and there is no obligation on the 
Stabilisation Manager to do so. Such actions may be effected on the JSE, and will be carried out in accordance with the 
Listings Requirements and other applicable law. Such Stabilisation, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time without 
prior notice and will in any event be discontinued after the Stabilisation Period. Such stabilising action may under no 
circumstances continue beyond the 30th calendar day after the Listing Date.

In connection with the Offer the Stabilisation Manager will be permitted, for a period of 30 calendar days after the Listing 
Date, to purchase up to 2,000,000 Shares in the market comprising up to approximately 1.3% of the total number of Offer 
Shares. Any such Shares purchased will be sold to Investec at the Offer Price, which Investec will hold together with the 
Shares acquired by it as part of its investment as Cornerstone Shareholder.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Pre-Listing Statement includes statements about the Company that are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking 
statements. All statements other than statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking 
statements. These forward-looking statements are not based on historical facts, but rather reflect current expectations 
concerning future results and events and generally may be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as “targets”, 
“believe”, “aim”, “expect”, “project”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “foresee”, “forecast”, “likely”, “should”, “planned”, “may”, “will”, 
“estimated”, “potential” or similar words and phrases.

Examples of forward-looking statements include statements regarding a future financial position or future profits, cash 
flows, corporate strategy, estimates of capital expenditures, acquisition strategy, or future capital expenditure levels, and 
other economic factors, such as, amongst other things, interest and exchange rates and public sector spend and resource 
allocation.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown uncertainties, assumptions and other important 
factors, because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future, whether or 
not outside of the control of the Company. Such factors may cause the Company’s actual results, financial and operating 
conditions, liquidity and the developments within the industry in which the Company operates to differ materially from 
those made in, or suggested by, the forward-looking statements contained in this Pre-Listing Statement. The Company 
cautions that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance.

All these forward-looking statements are based on estimates and assumptions made by the Company, all of which, 
although the Company believes them to be reasonable, are inherently uncertain. Accordingly, no assurance can be given 
that any such forward-looking statements will prove to have been correct. Any forward-looking statement made in this 
Pre-Listing Statement or elsewhere is applicable only at the date on which such forward-looking statement is made. New 
factors that could cause the business of the Company not to develop as expected may emerge from time to time and it 
is not possible to predict all of them. Further, the extent to which any factor or combination of factors may cause actual 
results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement is not known. The Company has no 
duty to, and does not intend to, update or revise the forward-looking statements contained in this Pre-Listing Statement 
after the date of this Pre-Listing Statement, except as may be required by law or regulation.

The information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement identifies additional factors that could affect the operating 
results and performance of the Company and its group of companies. The forward-looking statements contained in this  
Pre-Listing Statement are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement and by the risk factors described 
in this Pre-Listing Statement under the heading Annexure 15 – “Risk Factors”.

Any forward-looking statement included in the Pre-Listing Statement has not been reviewed nor reported on by the 
Independent Auditor or Independent Reporting Accountant.



8

SPECIAL NOTE ON ACQUISITION OF INITIAL PORTFOLIO

Prospective Shareholders should take note of the fact that although agreements have been entered 
into in relation to the acquisition of the Initial Portfolio, certain of these agreements are subject to 
fulfilment of conditions precedent, further details of which are provided in Part C – “Initial Portfolio and 
Pipeline Opportunities” of this Pre-Listing Statement. Should any of these conditions not be fulfilled by 
the Listing Date, the proceeds of the Offer earmarked for the specific acquisition(s) will be retained in 
cash by Revego until such time as the relevant conditions are fulfilled, payment is due and transfer of 
ownership can occur. Should any conditions become incapable of fulfilment Revego will endeavour to 
procure within a reasonable timeframe, via the Fund, alternative Investments of a similar quality and 
earnings profile, in lieu of which the cash will be returned to Shareholders.

The existence of these remaining conditions precedent relating to acquisitions in no way affects the 
listing of Revego and the listing is not conditional on the fulfilment of these conditions.

DATE OF INFORMATION PROVIDED

Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, all information provided in this Pre-Listing Statement is provided as at the 
Last Practicable Date.

CURRENCIES

All references in this document to “Rand”, “R”, “ZAR” or “cents” are references to the lawful currency of South Africa.

TIMES

All references in this Pre-Listing Statement to times are to South African Standard Time.
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SALIENT FEATURES

The information set out in this section contains salient features of this Pre-Listing Statement, which should be read in 
its entirety for a full appreciation thereof. The definitions and interpretations commencing on page 14 of this Pre-Listing 
Statement apply mutatis mutandis to the salient features set out below.

1. OVERVIEW OF REVEGO

Figure 1: Revego structure

1.1 Introduction

Revego is an investment entity that was incorporated and registered as a public company in accordance with 
the company laws of South Africa on 12 July 2018. It is to be listed on the JSE and will be the sole limited 
partner in the Fund.

The Fund is a yield focused specialist BEE investment vehicle that will participate principally as an equity 
investor in, predominately, operational renewable energy assets in SSA with a track record of generating stable 
cash flows.

Revego will therefore, through its interest in the Fund, provide its Shareholders with an entry point and 
access to the Fund’s stable cash-generating Investments. Revego intends to provide Shareholders with an 
initial dividend yield of approximately 9 – 10% and will seek to increase this dividend yield over time, providing 
Shareholders with a targeted yield to maturity of approximately 11%.

The Fund is managed by the Investment Manager, a newly incorporated Black Fund Manager in terms of the 
BEE Codes, and the Fund is classified as a Black Private Equity Fund. The Investment Manager will provide 
investment management services in accordance with the Investment Management Agreement. The Investment 
Manager will provide investment management services in accordance with the Investment Management 
Agreement. The Investment Manager will, via the General Partner, hold a 0.01% interest in the Fund as well as 
directly hold a 0.01% interest in Revego.

The Fund has entered into agreements to acquire an Initial Portfolio for a total cost of c.R1,424m. A further 
near-term executable pipeline has been identified which is expected to be value enhancing and yield accretive 
to the Initial Portfolio, which will be funded through further new equity issuances by Revego.
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Revego is seeking to raise R1,519m from prospective Shareholders on Listing, with the Cornerstone 
Shareholders (see further details under 2.8 below) having committed to subscribe for Offer Shares up to the 
value of R1,725m. These proceeds will be deployed to the Fund primarily to pay for the acquisition of the Initial 
Portfolio (including repayment of the Bridge Facility), but also to pay for Fund establishment, listing, acquisition 
and other relevant costs as described in paragraph 32 of the body of the Pre-Listing Statement.

2. INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS

2.1 Attractive risk adjusted returns

The Fund is targeting providing investors with a yield to maturity of approximately 11% with an attractive initial 
dividend yield of approximately 9 – 10% growing over the longer term. The Directors believe that further 
upside may be created, for example through refinancing project-level debt (subject to relevant regulatory 
requirements), realising benefits of scale if the Initial Portfolio is enlarged through further Investments, driving 
operational efficiencies or entering into further offtake or expansion agreements beyond the currently 
contracted terms.

2.2 Focused Investment Policy

The Fund will invest predominantly in operational renewable energy, electricity-generating assets within SSA. 
The Fund will initially focus on assets in South Africa, where it has entered into agreements to acquire six 
assets making up its Initial Portfolio. The Investment Manager and the Board believe South Africa has attractive 
opportunities and a stable and robust renewable energy policy.

2.3 Supportive regulatory regime

The Integrated Resource Plan for South Africa requires considerable investment in electricity generation 
to replace Eskom’s (South Africa’s public electricity utility provider) ageing coal-fired fleet, with a significant 
allocation to renewable energy. The REIPPPP, implemented by the DMRE, has seen significant interest given 
the transparent and independently run bidding process, the standard form of agreements, regulatory approval 
process and the financial support provided by the South African government for the obligations of Eskom as 
the buyer.

2.4 Quality Initial Portfolio

The Initial Portfolio of assets consist of a spread of technologies, equipment suppliers and locations with an 
average operating history of three years and six months. The Initial Portfolio benefits from long-term contracts 
underpinned by the South African government, long-term operating and maintenance agreements together 
with availability guarantees and performance warranties on the equipment. The total installed capacity of the 
Initial Portfolio is 605MW with the Fund owning an effective 114MW.

2.5 Compelling growth opportunities

According to a June 2020 report issued by the IPP Office, 112 projects, amounting to 6 422 MW of renewable 
energy, had been procured, of which 4 276MW had been installed and connected to the grid. The estimated 
total investment in REIPPPP to date is R209.7bn. Under the draft updated Integrated Resource Plan 2019 for 
South Africa, a further c.22,900MW of renewable energy capacity will be procured and installed by 2030. In 
addition to the active South African renewable energy market, other countries are implementing renewable 
energy programmes requiring private sector investment. A significant number of opportunities therefore 
exists for the Fund to further bolster and diversify its portfolio of Investments.

2.6 Investment Manager and Investment Committee with relevant sector expertise

The newly formed majority black-owned Investment Manager has employed staff with significant experience 
and a proven track record in the African energy and financial sectors. To supplement the Investment Manager’s 
expertise, an independent Investment Committee is in place consisting of members with relevant experience 
in renewable energy, asset management, private equity, credit committees and corporate governance.

2.7 ESG

As an investor, through the Fund, in operational renewable energy assets, Revego understands the intrinsic 
link between the ESG performance of each Investment, the needs of Revego’s stakeholders and its long-term 
business objectives. Revego and the Investment Manager are therefore committed to actively identifying, 
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mitigating and managing ESG-related risks and opportunities throughout the lifecycle of the various 
Investments, by ensuring that ESG issues are a constant consideration in both the pre-investment and ongoing 
asset management processes.

Revego and the Investment Manager recognise the importance of engaging with all industry stakeholders 
to stay abreast of all ESG developments globally, manage its approach to all ESG matters and to champion 
responsible investment.

The day-to-day management of the Fund is delegated to the Investment Manager. The Investment Manager 
assesses how ESG should be managed and integrated at the Fund and asset-level both pre-investment and on 
an ongoing basis, reporting ESG information periodically to the Board. This is governed by the ESG Policy, which 
was developed in accordance with the Partnership Agreement and the Investment Management Agreement.

Revego is committed to providing transparent reporting on its approach to ESG as well as the ESG performance 
of the portfolio of Investments by the Fund. With this comes a commitment to actively engage with all 
stakeholders, from local communities to investors to regulatory bodies and industry experts. Revego believes 
working closely with stakeholders will further deepen its insights into potential ESG risks and opportunities 
thereby enabling it to better manage the ESG performance of the Fund’s portfolio.

In order to monitor, assess and benchmark performance across its portfolio and the wider sector, Revego has 
identified key performance indicators relevant to its ESG protocols and continues to develop these in response 
to market practices and trends.

2.8 Supportive Cornerstone Shareholders

The following Cornerstone Shareholders have provided signed irrevocable commitments to subscribe for 
Offer Shares up to a total value of R1,725 million in Revego:

• Investec (R875 million), an international banking and wealth management group with significant experience 
in the renewable energy sector through advisory, lending and investing, and a track record of establishing 
and supporting successful funds including Growthpoint Properties Limited, Investec Property Fund Limited 
and Investec Australia Property Fund Limited;

• UKCI (R500 million), a joint venture between the Green Investment Group and the UK Government’s 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy that was established in 2015 to target 
transformational green energy investments in India and SSA. UKCI is affiliated with and supported by the 
Macquarie Group’s Infrastructure and Real Assets’ global platform and network; and

• EPPF (R350 million), which provides retirement fund administration services for its members and had 
R144.5 billion in assets under management as at 30 June 2020.

Investec also provided the Bridge Facility which enabled the Fund to acquire a portion of the Initial Portfolio 
prior to Listing.

From Listing, Investec and UKCI will be subject to the following lock-ins:

• Investec – 35 million Shares for 12 months from Listing Date;

• UKCI – 42 million Shares for six months from Listing Date, reducing to 35 million Shares for a further six 
months, provided that this lock-in falls away if there is any material change to the Key Policy Requirements 
during this 12-month period which has not been approved or agreed to by UKCI and which causes the 
Key Policy Requirements to contradict the investment mandate of UKCI.

2.9 BEE status of the Fund

Revego acknowledges the role of transformation in community building and social cohesion. To that end, 
Revego aspires to be a catalyst for BEE investment in renewable energy by providing a platform for existing 
Black investors in renewable projects to monetise their positions, thereby creating wealth and capacity for 
further investment and simultaneously broadening the Fund’s investment universe. The Investment Manager, 
as a majority Black-owned fund manager, has further committed to ensuring that transformation remains a key 
consideration in all business and investment decisions of the Fund.

2.10 Scale and liquidity

The Fund will have an initial asset base of c.R1,424 million, with access to a further significant and attractive 
pipeline of near-term executable opportunities. Being listed, Revego provides investors with enhanced liquidity 
through the ability to trade on the JSE’s platform. An initial minimum shareholder spread of 20% will be 
achieved, which is expected to be bolstered over time as Revego builds scale and, through the Fund, pursues 
further investment opportunities.
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2.11 First listed renewable energy yieldco in Africa

A yieldco is a company that is formed to own operating assets that produce a predictable cash flow, primarily 
through long-term contracts. A number of these yieldcos have been successfully established internationally, 
particularly in the renewable energy sector due to the stable and predictable nature of cash flows from 
renewable energy projects. To the best of Revego’s knowledge and belief, it will be the first renewable energy 
yieldco to be established and listed in Africa.

3. PURPOSE OF THE OFFER AND LISTING

The main purposes of the Offer and Listing are to:

3.1 facilitate the formation of a Black Fund Manager and investment vehicle of considerable scale;

3.2 raise cash to enable Revego to implement its Investment Policy and to enable the Fund to pay for the acquisition 
of the Initial Portfolio (including repayment of the Bridge Facility); and

3.3 provide public-market investors with an opportunity to invest in infrastructure through a liquid instrument 
with indirect exposure to a quality, diversified pool of renewable energy assets, with an attractive cash flow 
profile, strong ESG credentials, managed at low cost, by an experienced majority Black management team.

4. RISK FACTORS

Annexure 15 of this Pre-Listing Statement entitled “Risk Factors” describes certain risk factors that should be 
considered together with the other information in this Pre-Listing Statement. Although information has been provided 
in this Pre-Listing Statement in relation to the Listing, a prospective Shareholder should use his or her own judgement 
and, if necessary, seek advice from an independent financial advisor if considering the acquisition of Offer Shares.
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SALIENT DATES AND TIMES

The definitions and interpretations commencing on page 14 of the Pre-Listing Statement, where appropriate, have been 
used in the table below:

TIMETABLE 2021

Publication of announcement and distribution of Pre-Listing Statement Wednesday, 31 March

Opening of the Offer at 09:00 Monday, 19 April

Closing of the Offer at 12:00 Tuesday, 20 April

Successful applicants advised of allocations Tuesday, 20 April

Final number of Offer Shares released on SENS Wednesday, 21 April

Final number of Offer Shares published in the press Thursday, 22 April

Expected Settlement Date and Listing Date on the JSE at 09:00 Friday, 23 April

Notes:

1. The above dates and times are South African dates and times and are subject to amendment. Any such amendment will be released on SENS.

2. Shareholders may only receive Shares in dematerialised form and must advise their CSDP or broker of their acceptance of Shares pursuant to 
their subscriptions in the manner and by the cut-off time stipulated by their CSDP or broker.

3. CSDP’s effect payment on a delivery-versus-payment basis.
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DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Pre-Listing Statement and in the annexures hereto, unless otherwise stated or the context clearly indicates otherwise, 
the words in the first column have the meanings stated opposite them in the second column, words in the singular include 
the plural and vice versa, words importing one gender include the other genders and references to a person include 
references to an entity and vice versa:

“Abort Costs” all out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Fund, 
Investment Manager or General Partner in connection with Investment proposals 
which do not proceed to completion and which are not recovered from third 
parties;

“Acquisition Cost” the total acquisition cost of an Investment (which, in the case of a loan, shall be 
the total amount advanced to the Project Company), together with any fees, 
costs and expenses related to such Investment which are borne by the Fund in 
accordance with the terms of the Partnership Agreement;

“Advisory Board” the advisory board appointed by the Board and constituted in respect of the 
Fund with the powers and duties set out in the Partnership Agreement,  
as further described in paragraph 82.1.3 of this Pre-Listing Statement;

“Affected Jurisdiction” Australia, Canada, Japan, the United States or any other jurisdiction where the 
distribution of this Pre-Listing Statement or the making of the Offer may be 
illegal, fails to conform to the laws of such jurisdiction or would require further 
action for such purpose;

“Annual ESG Report” the annual ESG report substantially in the form set out in Annexure 22 to this 
Pre-Listing Statement;

“Aurora Wind Power” Aurora Wind Power (RF) (Proprietary) Limited with registration number 
2011/110978/07, a private company duly incorporated and registered in accordance 
with the company laws of the Republic of South Africa;

“Authorised Dealer” in relation to any transaction in respect of foreign exchange in South Africa,  
a person authorised by the Financial Surveillance Department to deal in foreign 
exchange;

“BEE” Black Economic Empowerment;

“BEE Act” the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003, as amended from 
time to time;

“BEE Codes” the generic Codes of Good Practice on Broad-Based Black Economic 
Empowerment or sector Codes of Good Practice on Broad-Based Black 
Economic Empowerment (as applicable) promulgated from time to time in terms 
of the BEE Act;

“Bid Window” the bidding rounds where IPPs are invited to submit bids for onshore wind, solar 
PV, CSP, small hydro, biomass, biogas or landfill gas projects for the procurement 
of energy;

“Black” has the meaning given to it in the BEE Act read with the BEE Codes;

“Black Fund Manager” a fund manager meeting the requirements as described in par. 3.10 of the BEE 
Codes applicable to the manager of private equity funds;

“Black People” has the meaning given to it in the BEE Act read with the BEE Codes;

“Black Private Equity Fund” a private equity fund managed by a Black Fund Manager and meeting the 
requirements as described in paragraph 3.10 of the BEE Codes;

“Board” or “Directors” the board of directors of the Company from time to time;
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“Board Charter” Revego’s board charter, which sets out the role, responsibilities and composition 
of the Board;

“Bokpoort” ACWA Power Solafrica Bokpoort CSP Power Plant (RF) Proprietary Limited with 
registration number 2011/010375/07, a private profit company duly incorporated 
and registered in accordance with the company laws of South Africa;

“Bridge Facility” the finance provided (or to be provided) by Investec to facilitate the acquisition 
by the Fund of the Initial Portfolio prior to Listing. This facility will be settled by 
the funds raised on Listing;

“Business Day” any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or official public holiday in South Africa;

“Capital Account” the account maintained by the Partnership in respect of each Partner reflecting 
the amounts contributed and received by each Partner from the Partnership 
from time to time;

“Certificated Shares” shares which have not been dematerialised and ownership of which is represented 
by physical share certificates or other document of title acceptable to the Board;

“CIPC” the South African Companies and Intellectual Property Commission established 
under section 185 of the Companies Act;

“Common Monetary Area” collectively, South Africa, the Republic of Namibia and the Kingdoms of Lesotho 
and Eswatini;

“Companies Act” the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008, as amended from time to time;

“Companies Regulations” the Companies Regulations, 2011, promulgated in terms of section 223 of the 
Companies Act, as amended from time to time;

“Company” means Revego;

“Cornerstone Shareholders” Investec, EPPF and UKCI, collectively or individually, as the context requires;

“CSP” concentrated solar power;

“CSDP” a Participant, as defined in the Financial Markets Act, appointed by a Shareholder 
for purposes of, and in regard to, dematerialisation of shares evidenced by physical 
documents of title into the Strate system;

“DCF” discounted cash flow(s)

“Dematerialised Shares” shares that have been dematerialised, the process whereby physical share 
certificates are replaced with electronic records evidencing ownership of shares 
for the purpose of Strate, being “uncertificated securities” as defined in section 1 
of the Financial Markets Act;

“DMRE” the Department of Mineral Resources and Energy, a department of the 
government of South Africa responsible for the provision of energy and mineral 
resources for socio-economic development;

“Disposal” the sale, realisation, redemption, assignment, transfer, or disposal by the Fund of 
all or any portion of an Investment, or a cessation of business of a Project 
Company in conjunction with a receipt by the Fund of a dividend payable on or 
before liquidation, distribution upon a sale of all, or substantially all, of the assets 
of a Project Company, or other distribution, and shall include the writing off of an 
asset or Investment, and Dispose shall be construed accordingly;

“Dzana Investments” Dzana Investments Proprietary Limited, registration number 2007/010745/07, a 
private company duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa, 
further details of which are included in paragraph 55.3 of this Pre-Listing 
Statement;

“ED Trust” Entrepreneurial Development Trust, master reference number IT 8014/03, 
further details of which are included in paragraph 55.2 of this Pre-Listing 
Statement;
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“Enterprise Value” the enterprise value of Revego, being as at the date of calculation, the last 
reported traded price per Share multiplied by the number of Shares in issue plus 
last reported interest-bearing debt and non-controlling interests and less last 
reported cash and cash equivalents;

“ Environmental and Social 
Action Plan”

the environmental and social action plan, agreed upon between the Partnership 
and the relevant Project Company and to be implemented by the relevant 
Project Company, defining actions and a timeframe to remedy any  
non-compliance with the Environmental and Social Requirements;

“ Environmental and Social 
Claim”

any claim, proceeding or investigation by a person in respect of an Environmental 
Law, a Social Law and/or an Environmental and Social Permit;

“ Environmental and Social 
Coordinator”

the operational officer of the Investment Manager, responsible for the practical 
and day-to-day development, implementation and operation of the Environmental 
and Social Management System;

“ Environmental and Social 
Management System”

the environmental and social management system of the Investment Manager 
and the Partnership;

“ Environmental and Social 
Manager”

the senior officer of the Investment Manager having management responsibility, 
among other things, for ensuring proper operation and maintenance of the 
Environmental and Social Management System;

“ Environmental and Social 
Permits”

any permit, license, consent, approval and other authorisation and the filing of 
any notification report or assessment required under any Environmental Law and 
Social Law for the operation of the business of a Project Company conducted on 
or from the properties owned or used by a Project Company;

“ Environmental and Social 
Requirements”

with respect to each Project Company, means all applicable Environmental Law 
and Social Law, all applicable Environmental and Social Permits, and the 
Environmental and Social Action Plan (if any) with which any Project Company 
financed by the Fund has to comply;

“Environmental Law” any applicable law, rule or regulation (including international treaty obligations) in 
any jurisdiction in which the Fund, or, as the context may require, the relevant 
Project Company conducts business which relates to environmental matters and 
natural resource management as issued by its national government or authorities;

“Environmental Participant” initially only the Company, or any investor in the Fund that is a development 
finance institution or any other investor in the Fund that notifies the General 
Partner in writing that it is subject to requirements similar to the Environmental 
and Social Requirements;

“EPC” engineering, procurement and construction;

“EPPF” Eskom Pension and Provident Fund, a registered self-administered defined 
benefit fund in terms of the Pensions Funds Act of 1956 having its registered 
address at EPPF Office Park, 24 Georgian Crescent East, Bryanston East, South 
Africa;

“ Equity Instruments and 
Shareholder Loans”

ordinary shares, preference shares, convertible preference shares, convertible 
debentures and shareholder loans in unlisted companies;

“ESG” environmental, social and corporate governance;

“Eskom” Eskom Holdings State Owned Company Limited;

“Exchange Control Regulations” the Exchange Control Regulations, 1961 as promulgated by Government Notice 
R.1111 of 1 December 1961 and amended up to Government Notice R.445 of 
8 June 2012, in terms of section 9 of the South African Currency and Exchanges 
Act, 9 of 1933, as amended from time to time;

“FAIS” the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act 37 of 2002, as amended 
from time to time;
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“ Financial Advisor and 
Bookrunner”

the Investment Banking division of Investec;

“Financial Markets Act” the Financial Markets Act, 19 of 2012, as amended from time to time;

“FinSurv” the Financial Surveillance Department of the SARB which is responsible for the 
administration of exchange control on behalf of the National Treasury;

“FSCA” the Financial Sector Conduct Authority as established by the Financial Sector 
Regulation Act, 2017;

“FSP” a financial services provider licensed in terms of FAIS;

“Fund” the Revego Africa Energy Fund, a private equity fund structured as an  
en commandite partnership duly established in South Africa with its partners 
being the General Partner and Revego, the limited partner;

“General Partner” Revego General Partner (RF) Proprietary Limited, registration number 
2018/364868/07, a private company duly incorporated in accordance with the 
laws of South Africa and which is wholly-owned by the Investment Manager;

“GW” gigawatt

“H1 Holdings” H1 Holdings Proprietary Limited, registration number 1996/005471/07, a private 
company duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa, further 
details of which are included in paragraph 55.4 of this Pre-Listing Statement;

“IEA” the International Energy Agency;

“IFC Performance Standards” Environmental and Social Performance Standards issued by the International 
Finance Corporation, a subsidiary of the World Bank, on 1 January 2012;

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards;

“ Independent Auditor” or “EY” 
or “Independent Reporting 
Accountant”

Ernst & Young Incorporated, registration number 2005/002308/21, a company 
duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

“Initial Portfolio” the initial Investments held by the Fund at the Listing Date, as further described 
in Part C – “Initial Portfolio and Pipeline Opportunities” of this Pre-Listing 
Statement;

“Integrated Resource Plan” or 
“IRP”

the Integrated Resource Plan is an electricity infrastructure development plan for 
South Africa published by the DMRE in 2019 that is based on least-cost electricity 
supply and demand balance, taking into account security of supply and the 
environment (minimise negative emissions and water usage);

“Investec” Investec Bank Limited, a public company incorporated under the laws of South 
Africa with registration number 1969/004763/06 having its registered office at 
100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, Sandton, South Africa;

“ Investec Service Level 
Agreement”

the agreement entered into between Investec and Revego on 20 January 2021 in 
terms of which Investec will provide services to Revego including tax, company 
secretarial, financial management, accounting, legal, information technology and 
compliance on an arm’s-length basis;

“Investment” any proposed or existing investment made or to be made by the Fund (directly 
or indirectly) by way of holding Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans in a 
Project Company, and Invested and Invest shall be construed accordingly;

“Investment Committee” the investment committee constituted by the Investment Manager in accordance 
with the terms of the Investment Management Agreement and Partnership 
Agreement, as further described in paragraph 57 of this Pre-Listing Statement;
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“Investment Guidelines” Revego’s investment guidelines (as more fully described in paragraph 6 of and 
Annexure 12 to this Pre-Listing Statement), which include the Investment Policy 
and the Key Policy Requirements, and which was approved by the Board on 
5 August 2019;

“Investment Holding Vehicle” a body corporate, company, partnership or other entity wholly or partly owned 
or acquired by the Fund (or any custodian or nominee thereof) established or 
acquired primarily for the purpose of holding one or more Investments;

“ Investment Management 
Agreement”

the investment management agreement entered into on 16 September 2019 
between the Investment Manager and the General Partner (for and on behalf of 
the Fund) and pursuant to which the General Partner appoints the Investment 
Manager as discretionary investment manager of the Fund;

“Investment Manager” Revego Fund Managers Proprietary Limited, a private company duly incorporated 
in accordance with the laws of South Africa with registration  
number 2015/271652/07, which is regulated by the FSCA under FSP number 
47561, with its registered address at 100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, Sandton, 
South Africa, further details of which are included in Part G at paragraph 50 of 
this Pre-Listing Statement;

“Investment Policy” the policies, procedures, requirements and  restrictions of Revego as set out in 
Part C of Annexure 12 to this Pre-Listing Statement;

“IPP” Independent Power Producer;

“IPP Office” an office established in 2010 by the DMRE, National Treasury and the 
Development Bank of South Africa to provide the support to implement the 
REIPPPP;

“IRR” internal rate of return;

“JSE” JSE Limited, a public company incorporated under the laws of South Africa with 
registration number 2005/022939/06 and licensed as an exchange under the 
Financial Markets Act;

“Kathu Solar Park” Kathu Solar Power Plant (RF) (Proprietary) Limited, a private company duly 
incorporated and registered in accordance with the company laws of South Africa 
with registration number 2010/021766/07;

“Key Persons” key persons of the Investment Manager as determined in accordance with the 
Partnership Agreement, being Michael G. Meeser, Ziyaad Sarang and any 
additional persons approved as such by the Advisory Board;

“Key Policy Requirements” the key policy requirements as set out in paragraph 9.5 of Part C of Annexure 12 
to this Pre-Listing Statement;

“Khobab Wind Farm or “Khobab” Genesis Khobab Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited with registration number 
2013/122205/07, a private profit company duly incorporated and registered in 
accordance with the company laws of South Africa;

“King Code” the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct as set out in the King IV Report 
on Corporate Governance for South Africa, as amended from time to time;

“Last Practicable Date” the last practicable date prior to the finalisation of this Pre-Listing Statement, 
being Wednesday, 24 March 2021;

“Listing” the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the exchange operated by the JSE;

“Listing Date” the date on which the Shares will commence trading on the exchange operated 
by the JSE, which is expected to be Friday, 23 April 2021;

“Listings Requirements” the Listings Requirements issued by the JSE under the Financial Markets Act to 
be observed by issuers of equity securities listed on the exchange operated by 
the JSE, as amended from time to time;



19

“Loeriesfontein Wind Farm” or 
“Loeriesfontein”

Genesis Loeriesfontein Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited with registration number 
2013/122202/07, a private profit company duly incorporated and registered in 
accordance with the company laws of South Africa;

“Maitland” Maitland Group South Africa Limited, registration number 1981/009543/06, a 
private company duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

“Management Fee” the management fee payable by the Fund to the Investment Manager in terms of 
the Investment Management Agreement and as described in paragraph 52 of this 
Pre-Listing Statement;

“MOI” the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company accepted by CIPC on the 
date of registration of the Company, being 12 July 2018, extracts of which are 
annexed as Annexure 17 to this Pre-Listing Statement;

“MW” Megawatt;

“National Treasury” the Department of Finance, a department of the government of South Africa 
which manages national economic policy, prepares the South African government’s 
annual budget and manages the government’s finances;

“NAV” net asset value calculated in accordance with the principles described in 
Annexure 1 to this Pre-Listing Statement;

“NERSA” National Energy Regulator of South Africa;

“Nominated Director” any person nominated by the General Partner or the Investment Manager to be 
an officer, director, observer on the board, partner, employee or agent  
(or equivalent) of a Project Company, an Investment Holding Vehicle or any 
company in the same group as such Project Company, or such other entities as 
contemplated in the Partnership Agreement;

“Non-Executive Directors” those non-executive Directors who are identified in Part F – “Directors and 
Corporate Governance” of this Pre-Listing Statement;

“Noupoort Wind Farm” or 
“Noupoort”

Genesis Noupoort Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited with registration number 
2013/122207/07, a private profit company duly incorporated and registered in 
accordance with the company laws of South Africa;

“O&M” operations and maintenance services;

“Offer” the offers for subscription in Revego;

i. in South Africa, to South African Qualifying Investors; and

ii. In other jurisdictions, to selected persons outside the United States who 
are not US Persons and in reliance on Regulation S,

to whom the Offer will specifically be addressed, and only by whom the Offer 
will be capable of acceptance;

“Offer Price” R10 per Offer Share;

“Offer Shares” 151,941,442 Shares to be offered for subscription pursuant to the Offer;

“Partners” the General Partner and the Company, collectively or individually, depending on 
the context;

“Partnership” Revego Africa Energy Fund Partnership, being the en commandite partnership 
established and governed by the Partnership Agreement;

“Partnership Agreement” the agreement entered into between the General Partner, the Investment 
Manager and the Company establishing the Fund;

“PPA” Power Purchase Agreement;

“Pre-Listing Statement” all documents contained in this bound document, including the annexures hereto 
dated Wednesday, 31 March 2021;
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“Project Company/ies” any person, company, trust, partnership, undertaking, fund, or other entity in 
which the Fund holds an Investment;

“PV” Photovoltaic;

“Rand”, “R”, “ZAR” and “cents” the lawful currency of South Africa;

“Register” the register of Shareholders to be maintained by Revego;

“Regulation S” Regulation S under the US Securities Act;

“REIPPPP” the Renewable Energy Independent Power Producer Procurement Programme 
implemented by the DMRE;

“Revego” Revego Africa Energy Limited, registration number 2018/392811/06, a public 
company duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

“Revego Group” or the “Group” means Revego and the Fund;

“SARB” the South African Reserve Bank, the central bank of South Africa;

“SARS” the South African Revenue Service;

“SENS” the Stock Exchange News Service of the JSE;

“Settlement Date” the date of implementation of the Offer when the Offer Shares will be delivered 
to the applicants against payment of the aggregate Offer Price in accordance with 
the rules of Strate, which is expected to be on Friday, 23 April 2021;

“Shareholder/s” the holder/s of Shares from time to time, as recorded in the Register;

“Shares” ordinary no par value shares in the stated capital of the Company;

“Social Law” any (a) law, rule or regulation concerning (i) labour, (ii) social security,  
(iii) the regulation of industrial relations (between government, employers and 
employees), (iv) the protection of occupational as well as public health and safety, 
(v) the regulation of public participation, (vi) the protection and regulation of 
ownership of land rights (both formal and traditional), immovable goods and 
intellectual and cultural property rights, (vii) the protection and empowerment 
of indigenous peoples, ethnic groups and/or vulnerable groups,  
(viii) the protection, restoration and promotion of cultural heritage, (ix) all other 
laws, rules and regulations providing for the protection of employees and citizens, 
(b) international labour organisation (“ILO”) convention signed and ratified by 
the country concerned, as well as all ILO conventions listed as Core Labour 
Standards and Basic Terms and Conditions of Employment, and (c) United 
Nations treaty, convention or covenant on human rights signed and ratified by 
the applicable country;

“South Africa” the Republic of South Africa;

“ South African Qualifying 
Investors”

separately:

i) selected persons falling within one of the specified categories listed in 
section 96(1)(a) of the Companies Act; and

ii) selected persons, acting as principal, acquiring Shares for a total acquisition 
cost of R1 000 000 or more, as contemplated in section 96(1)(b) of the 
Companies Act;

“SSA” sub-Saharan Africa;

“Stabilisation” the process by which the Stabilisation Manager may, subject to the JSE Listings 
Requirements and other applicable law and only during the Stabilisation Period, 
effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Shares at a 
level above that which might otherwise prevail;



21

“Stabilisation Manager” Investec Markets Proprietary Limited, a private company duly incorporated in 
accordance with the laws of South Africa with registration number 2018/243092/07, 
which is wholly-owned by Investec Limited;

“Stabilisation Period” the period commencing on Listing and ending 30 calendar days thereafter;

“Strate” Strate Proprietary Limited, a private company incorporated in South Africa and 
registered as a central securities depository under the Financial Markets Act, with 
registration number 1998/022248/07;

“STT” Securities Transfer Tax;

“Tamela” or “Sponsor” Tamela Holdings Proprietary Limited a private company duly incorporated in 
accordance with the laws of South Africa with registration number 2008/011759/07;

“TF Cap” an initial aggregate cap to the Transaction Execution Fee of R15 million, subject 
to any amendment as provided for in paragraph 52 of this Pre-Listing Statement;

“Total Commitment” the total amount committed by Revego to the Fund as capital commitments 
from time to time;

“Transaction Execution Fee” the fee as described in paragraph 52 of this Pre-Listing Statement;

“UKCI” UK Climate Investments LLP, a joint venture between the Green Investment 
Group and the United Kingdom Government’s Department of Business, Energy 
and Industrial Strategy governed by the laws of the United Kingdom, having its 
registered address at Ropemaker Place, 28 Ropemaker Street, London  
EC2Y 9HD, United Kingdom;

“United Kingdom” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland;

“United States” The Unites States of America;

“US Persons” US persons as defined in Regulation S;

“US Securities Act” US Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

“US$” Unites States Dollar; and

“VAT” value added tax levied in terms of the South African Value-Added Tax Act, 89 of 
1991, as amended from time to time.



22

Revego Africa Energy Limited
(Incorporated in South Africa)

(Registration Number: 2018/392811/06)
(LEI: 378900D3189A58DB1E83

Share code on the JSE: RVG      ISIN: ZAE000296513
(“Revego” or “the Company”)

Directors:

Executives
Mr RL Hendricks (Chief Executive)

Non-Executives
Mr DH Brown*
Ms IN Mkhari*
Dr. RJ Khoza (Chairman)
Mr R Abel
Ms S Grimwood-Norley*
Mr TS Chauke* (Lead Independent Director)

* Independent

PART A: INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

1. INCORPORATION AND ADDRESS

Revego is an investment holding company, incorporated and registered in South Africa on 12 July 2018 as a public 
company in accordance with the company laws of South Africa and commenced business on the date of incorporation. 
The registered address of the Company is set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Pre-Listing Statement.
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2.1 Introduction

Revego is a public company to be listed on the JSE and is the sole limited partner in the Fund. The Fund will, 
in terms of its Investment Policy, acquire Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans in Project Companies.  
In deciding on the appropriate structure for Revego, consideration was given to potential shareholder mandates 
and increased liquidity by means of a listing on the JSE, tax efficiency and the requirement for the Fund to be 
a Black Private Equity Fund.

2.2 The Fund

The Fund is a private equity fund established in South Africa and structured as an en commandite partnership 
comprising the General Partner and Revego.

It has been established as a yield focused specialist BEE investment vehicle to participate principally as an equity 
investor in operational renewable energy assets in SSA.

The following parties and committees are the primary role players in relation to the Fund 
and its operations: Revego, the General Partner, the Investment Manager, the Investment 
Committee and the Advisory Board.

2.3 Revego

Revego is the sole limited partner in the Fund and will be listed on the JSE, thereby providing Shareholders with 
the ability to hold and trade Shares on the JSE and affording them access to the attractive long-term, stable 
cash flows derived from the Fund’s Investments.

The Fund will be managed according to the Investment Management Agreement and Partnership Agreement 
and Revego, as the limited partner, will be a passive investor in the Fund and it will play no role in the day-to-day 
management or investment decisions of the Fund. The Fund is structured as an en commandite partnership. 
The nature of such a partnership is that the limited partner does not incur joint and several liability with the 
General Partner in the partnership (as would be the case in a normal partnership), provided that the limited 
partner does not get involved in the day-to-day management of the Fund.

The day-to-day management of the Fund is therefore the responsibility of only the General Partner. Investment 
decisions are made by the Investment Committee. Any changes (excluding resignations) to the Investment 
Committee requires the prior approval of the Advisory Board and an amendment to the Investment Policy, 
which in turn, requires the approval of Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution.

In terms of Section 15 of the Listings Requirements, Revego will be deemed an investment entity, being a 
company, whose principal activity is the investment in securities. Its sole investment will be into the Fund.

2.4 General Partner

The General Partner is an entity established to act as the general partner of the Fund and is a 100% subsidiary 
of the Investment Manager. The General Partner acts in a representative capacity for and on behalf of the Fund, 
but also incurs certain obligations in a principal capacity. These are governed by the Partnership Agreement 
and include matters such as undertaking to manage the Fund assets and distribute profits.

2.5 Investment Manager

The General Partner has appointed the Investment Manager to manage the Fund in terms of the Investment 
Management Agreement. The Investment Manager holds a category II (provides intermediary services on 
a discretionary basis) FSP licence issued under FAIS and has discretion to manage the Fund in line with the 
Investment Policy.

The Investment Manager is a Black Fund Manager in terms of the BEE Codes and the Fund is regarded as a 
Black Private Equity Fund.

2.6 Investment Committee

The Investment Committee is responsible for the ultimate approval of the acquisition and disposal of 
Investments to be recommended to the Fund. Further details on the composition and members of the 
Investment Committee are contained in paragraph 57 below.
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2.7 Advisory Board

The Advisory Board will be appointed by the Board and no officer, director, partner or employee of the 
General Partner or the Investment Manager or any of their associates shall serve as a member of the Advisory 
Board. The Advisory Board will have certain oversight and veto roles over the General Partner and the 
Investment Manager in order to protect the interests of Revego as the limited partner, as set out in the 
Partnership Agreement and as further described in paragraph 82.1.3 of this Pre-Listing Statement.

For further information on the Partnership Agreement, see “Material Contracts” in paragraph 82.1 below,  
and the Investment Management Agreement, see Part G – “Management of the Fund” below.

3. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

3.1 Revego’s objective is to provide Shareholders with long-term stable returns derived from a steady stream of 
distributions from a diversified portfolio of operational renewable energy assets in SSA.

3.2 Revego will aim to pay out all cash received after costs relating to its investment into the Fund and after 
the payment of any relevant operational expenses, to Shareholders as a dividend and will target a minimum 
annualised dividend yield of 9 – 10%, paid semi-annually.

3.3 Revego is targeting to provide Shareholders with a market-related IRR after costs.

4. INVESTMENT STRATEGY

4.1 The Fund will be a long-term shareholder and will acquire and hold Investments to derive income from such 
Investments in accordance with the Fund’s investment policy.

4.2 The Fund will primarily invest in operating renewable energy assets located in SSA with an initial focus on utility 
scale operating assets in South Africa.

4.3 Investments will be made principally by way of holding Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans in Project 
Companies whose management teams have a proven track record, with the prospect of stable and increasing 
earnings over time.

4.4 The Fund will generally seek to acquire minority stakes but may, in certain cases, acquire majority interests.

4.5 During the life of an Investment, the Investment Manager will seek to protect the Fund’s interests and guide 
the management of a Project Company through board participation and shareholder agreements. The 
Investment Manager will seek ways to be actively involved in the management of the Project Companies and 
will pursue Investment opportunities where there is potential for the enhancement of returns through such 
active management.

4.6 In order to spread the risk and diversify its portfolio, the Fund will over time seek to invest across a number of 
countries within SSA with a mix of proven technologies. In determining the geographical spread of Investments, 
the Fund will be required to target countries with stable legal and regulatory frameworks. Diversification will 
also be accomplished through having various grid connection points, landowners, counterparties, technologies 
and energy sources.

4.7 No more than 10% of the Enterprise Value will be invested in any one Project Company where the Project 
Company is in development or construction phase, calculated at the time of investment.

4.8 Project Companies are generally anticipated to be leveraged through the application of senior debt. The Fund 
may borrow for reasons including, but not limited to, the making of an Investment or covering a temporary 
cash flow deficit or for working capital purposes. Borrowing for investment purposes may not be for longer 
than 12 months and may not, without the approval of the Advisory Board, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the 
Enterprise Value.

4.9 The Fund may enter into hedging transactions in relation to currency to manage these exposures given that 
the Fund is ZAR denominated. However, it will not enter into any derivative transactions for speculative or 
investment purposes.

4.10 The Fund’s income will be derived wholly or mainly from Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans and it will 
not conduct any material trading activity relative to the size of the Company.

4.11 The Fund is evergreen and will seek to raise additional capital to acquire further renewable energy assets in 
the future, in line with its investment policy.
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5. INVESTMENT PROPOSITION

The Revego investment proposition is centred on the following:

5.1 It provides Shareholders with the opportunity to gain indirect access to infrastructure investment through the 
renewable energy sector in SSA via a listed vehicle;

5.2 Revego will have a strong ESG focus and provide Shareholders with access to an asset class with a direct ESG 
impact;

5.3 Given the ownership of the Investment Manager and the ownership of the Project Companies invested in, the 
Fund will be considered a Black Private Equity Fund for investments in South Africa thereby allowing the Fund 
to acquire BEE stakes in underlying Project Companies, in addition to non-BEE stakes, broadening the Fund’s 
investment universe;

5.4 The management team and Investment Committee of the Investment Manager have proven track records in, 
amongst others, the renewable energy, asset management, private equity, investment and financial sectors 
(see paragraphs 56 to 58 below) and will oversee the transfer of skills to Black employees, thereby facilitating 
the creation of a new majority Black-owned investment manager and contributing to the transformation of the 
fund management industry;

5.5 The management team of the Investment Manager will create value for Shareholders through active 
management of the Project Companies by means of their involvement in refinancing opportunities, operational 
efficiencies (because of the portfolio view) and residual value enhancements;

5.6 Investec has a proven track record in establishing third party funds which include Growthpoint Properties 
Limited, Investec Property Fund Limited and Investec Australia Property Fund Limited; and multiple aviation 
funds, and will be a Cornerstone Shareholder into Revego and a 49% shareholder in the Investment Manager. 
Investec is actively engaged in the renewable energy sector in South Africa and has provided the Fund with a 
right of first refusal in relation to its equity interests in assets to be bid on during the REIPPPP post round 4 
to round 6. Furthermore, Revego and the Investment Manager will benefit from the established infrastructure 
and administrative support to be provided by Investec in terms of the service level agreements entered into 
with Investec;

5.7 The Investment Committee consists of members with significant global experience in private equity,  
the energy, asset management and financial services sectors;

5.8 The Investment Manager is staffed with individuals that have strong and established business networks and 
relationships, creating enhanced access to deal flow;

5.9 The Fund has entered into agreements to acquire a number of operational renewable energy assets which 
already generate cash flows, providing Shareholders with an immediate yield on their investment into Revego, 
as further described in Part C – “Initial Portfolio and Pipeline Opportunities” below;

5.10 The long-term stable yielding nature of the underlying Investments are ideally suited to Shareholders seeking 
stable long-term returns and compare favourably with asset classes with similar return fundamentals;

5.11 The revenue of underlying Project Companies is largely linked to the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”), which 
provide Shareholders with a natural hedge against inflation and market interest rate movements;

5.12 The Investment Manager holds a category II licence under FAIS and is regulated by the FSCA; and

5.13 Minimal tax leakage would occur in the short term as the majority of cash flows received from Project 
Companies will be dividends from South African tax resident companies, which should not attract income 
tax or dividends tax in Revego’s hands. Dividends from non-South African tax resident Project Companies, 
specifically those in sub-Saharan Africa, are, however likely to be subject to dividends withholding tax, levied 
by that foreign tax jurisdiction.
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6. INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND INVESTMENT POLICY

Annexure 12 to this Pre-Listing Statement sets out Revego’s:

6.1 Investment Guidelines, which include the Investment Policy and Key Policy Requirements. The Investment 
Guidelines set out certain guidelines in relation to the implementation of the Investment Policy (including 
in relation to categorisation of transactions, shareholder approvals, related party transactions and the 
communication of transactions). Any material changes to the Investment Guidelines (save for the Investment 
Policy and Key Policy Requirements included therein) must be approved by the Board and the JSE, to the 
extent required;

6.2 Investment Policy, which includes details surrounding the investment objective, investment restrictions, 
structure of investments and governance, financial policy, hedging and cash management principles, and 
prohibited Investments. Any material changes to the Investment Policy must be approved by Shareholders by 
way of an ordinary resolution; 

6.3 Key Policy Requirements, which include policies related to anti-bribery, corruption and economic sanctions, 
counterparty integrity, environmental and social provisions, confidentiality and transparency. The Key Policy 
Requirements are included in the Investment Policy and, accordingly, any material changes to the Key Policy 
Requirements must be approved by Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution; and

6.4 Revego will ensure that the policies and objectives of the Fund, as set out in the Partnership Agreement, 
conform to its principal objective(s) as described in Annexure 12 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

7. INVESTMENT PROCESS

The Investment Manager will be responsible for the investment process which will entail, inter alia, sourcing Investment 
opportunities, conducting and managing the necessary due diligence investigations and negotiating and executing sale 
and purchase agreements for Investments by the Fund. The Investment Manager will be paid the Management Fee, 
as described in more detail in paragraph 52 below, for the provision of its services.

Final decisions regarding Investments and Disposals will be taken by the independent Investment Committee,  
with due regard to the Investment Policy.

Further details in relation to the Investment Manager and Investment Committee have been included in  
Part G – “Management of the Fund” below.

8. PROSPECTS

In the opinion of the Directors, the Initial Portfolio, which is held indirectly by Revego through its interest in the Fund, 
is expected to generate increasing cash flows over the lives of the respective PPAs as tariffs escalate, efficiencies 
are realised and debt in Project Companies is repaid. To the extent possible, the Investment Manager will utilise its 
board representation in Project Companies and the extensive experience it has in the sector to drive efficiencies and 
improvements, to further improve the IRRs and cash flow profiles of the Fund’s Investments. Further benefits may 
also be created, for example through refinancing project-level debt (subject to relevant regulatory requirements), 
realising benefits of scale if the Initial Portfolio is enlarged through further Investments or entering into further offtake 
or expansion agreements beyond the original PPA terms. These improvements have not been taken into account in 
the projected cash flows of the Initial Portfolio and create upside potential for Shareholders.

It is the intention to grow the Fund to significant scale by acquiring additional assets in line with the Investment Policy, 
which would be accretive to the yield of Revego, allowing Revego to be included in relevant indices and improving 
liquidity for Shareholders.

In this regard, the Investment Manager will continue to seek attractive Investment opportunities for the Fund. At the 
Last Practicable Date, the Investment Manager has identified a further near-term executable pipeline of Investment 
opportunities which meet the Investment Policy requirements and objectives of the Fund.
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9. DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Revego intends to pay out semi-annually all cash received from its investment into the Fund to Shareholders as a 
dividend, after the payment of any relevant operational expenses.

The payment of a dividend will be subject to Revego’s constitutional documents and applicable laws and regulations 
and the reasonably foreseeable financial requirements of Revego and will require the approval of the Board (including 
the Board determining whether the Company is solvent and liquid). The dividends that are envisaged will be paid 
from distributions received from the Fund, who in turn receives distributions from the various Project Companies.

All unclaimed dividends will be held by Revego in trust, provided that dividends unclaimed for a period of three 
years from the date they were declared may be forfeited for the benefit of Revego. There is no fixed date on which 
entitlement to dividends arises and the date of payment will be determined by the Board at the time of declaration, 
subject to the Listings Requirements and applicable law. There are no current arrangements under which future 
dividends are waived or agreed to be waived. Relevant extracts of the MOI relating to dividends are set out in 
Annexure 17 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

Revego may revise its dividend policy from time to time.

10. STATED CAPITAL

Details of the issued shares of Revego and other ancillary information are set out in Part H – “Stated Capital and 
Shareholding” below.

11. DIRECTORS AND KEY SERVICE PROVIDERS

11.1 Board of Directors

Part F – “Directors and Corporate Governance” below sets out the details of the Directors.

11.2 Company secretary

The company secretary is Investec Group Data Limited, which will provide the Board as a whole and Directors 
individually with detailed guidance as to how their responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best 
interest of Revego. The Board is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Listings Requirements and the 
company secretary will provide a central source of guidance and advice to the Board, and within Revego, on 
matters of ethics and good corporate governance. Directors have access to the services and advice of the 
company secretary. The company secretary will be subject to annual evaluation by the Board.

11.3 Fund Administrator

Maitland, a fund administrator with extensive experience in the fund management industry, has been appointed 
as the independent fund administrator that administers the accounting, reconciliation, periodic reporting and 
valuation of assets. Maitland is a global provider of fund administration, multi-jurisdictional legal, tax, fiduciary 
and investment advisory services and has in excess of US$300 billion assets under administration and is 
privately owned by management and staff.

11.4 Independent Auditor and Compliance

EY has been appointed as Revego’s independent auditors while the risk and compliance functions will be 
provided by Investec.

The Investment Manager has appointed Moonstone Compliance Proprietary Limited to provide regulatory 
compliance services to ensure compliance with the FSCA as a licenced financial services provider.

11.5 Administration

Investec will provide all administration services for the Investment Manager, the General Partner, the Fund and 
Revego including tax, financial management, accounting, legal, information technology and compliance on an 
arm’s-length basis under service level agreements.

11.6 JSE Sponsor

Tamela will provide sponsor services for Revego which will entail providing advice on a continuing basis on the 
application of the Listings Requirements, in particular the continuing obligations of Revego, its Directors and 
company secretary.
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11.7 Other service providers

In addition to the above, it is envisaged that the Company will outsource certain functions to specialist  
third-party service providers in order to minimise day-to-day running costs. Such service providers may 
include without limitation: investor relations managers, legal counsel, accountants, administration, financial 
service providers and bankers.

In this regard, the Board will engage only with reputable, local or internationally recognised institutions with 
established track records for the provision of such services.

12. OPERATING EXPENSES

12.1 Revego

It is expected that Revego’s operating expenses will consist primarily of the Directors’ fees, the Chief Executive 
Officer’s (“CEO”) fee, the costs of insuring Directors against directors and officers liability, JSE listing fees, JSE 
sponsor fees, company secretary fees, the fees and expenses in terms of the Investec Service Level Agreement, 
the costs of preparing financial statements and other Shareholder communications, the fees and expenses of 
third parties that provide professional services, such as audit, tax, ongoing sponsor and legal services, and, to the 
extent that Revego incurs indebtedness, interest expense on borrowings and the amount of any commitment 
fee on amounts available but undrawn under any facility and the fees incurred in the establishment of any such 
facility.

In order to meet its reasonably foreseeable operating expenses, Revego will retain a portion of net proceeds 
from the issue of the Offer Shares, estimated to be R4 million, which will be held in a South African bank 
account.

12.2 The Fund

The Fund shall pay and be responsible for all reasonable direct and indirect expenses related to or arising from 
the Fund’s operations or those of its Investments, including, without limitation:

12.2.1 interest expenses of the Fund;

12.2.2 fees, costs and expenses related to preparing, printing and circulating reports and notices, legal fees, 
accounting fees, auditors’ and valuers’ fees, litigation costs (including the costs of any arbitration, 
investigation and other proceedings relating to the Fund, provided that litigation costs in excess of 
0.5% of the Total Commitment shall require the prior approval of the Advisory Board), secretarial and 
compliance costs in respect of the administration of the Fund, out of pocket expenses of members 
of the Advisory Board, the costs (including travel and lodging costs) incurred in connection with 
meetings of the Advisory Board, the costs of preparing tax returns, and any extraordinary costs and 
expenses of the Fund;

12.2.3 fees, costs and expenses incurred in relation to any custodian or nominee of the Investments, bank 
charges and borrowing costs;

12.2.4 any costs relating to an Investment or Disposal incurred after the Investment Committee having 
given preliminary approval of the proposed Investment or Disposal, including professional fees and 
the reasonable out of pocket costs and expenses of external consultants and other third parties, any 
other fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Fund in identifying, evaluating, negotiating, acquiring, 
implementing, holding, monitoring and disposing of Investments and potential Investments, and any 
Abort Costs (provided that the aggregate Abort Costs measured over the life of the Fund, net of 
any break fees received by the Fund, shall not exceed R5 million, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
Advisory Board). These fees, costs and expenses shall include, without limitation, brokerage fees and 
commissions, transfer taxes, costs and expenses relating to the registration or qualification for sale of 
any Investments, fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with obtaining financing (including 
commitment or financing fees or interest), fees and expenses of counsel and other professionals, fees, 
costs and expenses of any due diligence investigation of any proposed Investment (other than due 
diligence expenses related to the general sourcing of an Investment) and fees, costs and expenses 
incurred in obtaining or maintaining credit support;

12.2.5 the Management Fee;
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12.2.6 all fees, costs and expenses related to the organisation, establishment and operation of any company, 
body corporate, unincorporated association or any other entity, organisation, partnership, trust or 
collective investment scheme through or in which Investments may be made;

12.2.7 registration fees and registered office expenses;

12.2.8 costs of insurance (including, without limitation, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to cover 
members of the Advisory Board, and any Nominated Directors, as defined in the Partnership 
Agreement);

12.2.9 any taxes, duties, fees or other charges (including VAT) imposed on the Fund by any governmental 
authority (whether within or outside South Africa);

12.2.10 fees, costs and expenses payable in connection with the winding-up and dissolution of the Fund;

12.2.11 fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation of any amendments made to the 
Partnership Agreement or other agreements referred to therein;

12.2.12 any fees, cost and expenses related to Environmental and Social Requirements;

12.2.13 any costs incurred in obtaining a BEE certificate, any letters confirming the BEE status of the Fund or 
the manner in which Investments by the Fund should be treated for the purposes of BEE or any similar 
documents; and

12.2.14 reasonable fees or expenses incurred by the Investment Manager related to marketing, public relations, 
ratings or advertising in relation to the Fund.

12.3 The Investment Manager

The Investment Manager shall be responsible for:

12.3.1 all its normal overhead expenses, including (without limitation) compensation for employees, rent and 
utilities;

12.3.2 finders’ fees (which are not paid directly or indirectly by Project Companies or sellers);

12.3.3 fees paid to professional organisations;

12.3.4 any costs directly relating to the Investment Committee and the performance of its duties including 
fees and reasonable out of pocket travel and lodging costs for Investment Committee members;

12.3.5 any costs relating to the making of potential Investments or Disposals incurred prior to the Investment 
Committee having given preliminary approval of the proposed Investment or Disposal, which shall 
include all expenses relating to developing and investigating any potential Investment;

12.3.6 membership fees for professional and trade associations to which the Investment Manager is or 
becomes a member; and

12.3.7 fees or expenses incurred in respect of or by professional advisors or consultants in relation to 
services provided to the Investment Manager on its own behalf and not relating to services provided 
for or on behalf of the Fund.

13. INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Part C – “Initial Portfolio and Pipeline Opportunities” below contains further details on the Initial Portfolio held by 
the Fund.

The Company’s investment portfolio, via the Fund, will comprise of less than 10 investments on listing and may 
comprise less than 10 investments at any given time.

14. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

To adequately manage conflicts of interest the Investment Manager must identify all conflicts of interest timeously.

Once identified, each conflict of interest will be appropriately and adequately dealt with.

A number of controls, policies and processes have been adopted by the Investment Manager to manage and mitigate 
conflicts of interest and apply to all Investment Manager and Revego employees as well as the Investment Committee 
members.

For further details regarding the conflicts policy refer to Annexure 16 to this Pre-Listing Statement.
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PART B: RENEWABLE ENERGY IN SOUTH AFRICA & SSA

15. ELECTRICITY GENERATION IN SSA

Africa’s role in global energy growth

The SSA electricity sector requires major investment over the next 25 years with a significant portion of this 
investment to be made by the private sector as, currently, more than 600 million people live without access to 
electricity in SSA. Despite progress in several countries (e.g. Kenya, Ethiopia, Ghana, Senegal and Rwanda), current 
and planned efforts to provide access to modern energy services barely outpace population growth. It is forecasted 
that in 2030, 530 million people will still lack access to electricity (IEA, 2019). This lack of access to electricity imposes 
significant constraints on modern economic activities, provision of public services, and quality of life, as well as on 
adoption of new technologies in various sectors such as education, agriculture, and finance (World Bank, 2019).

Renewables play a leading role in meeting this demand in electricity. To date, Africa, which has the richest solar 
resources in the world has installed only 5 gigawatts of solar PV, less than 1% of the global total. However, Africa’s 
vast renewables resources and falling technology costs are expected to drive double-digit growth in deployment of 
utility-scale and distributed solar PV, and other renewables, across the continent (IEA, 2019).

The IEA expects solar PV deployment will average almost 15 GW a year, reaching 320 GW in 2040, overtaking 
hydropower and natural gas to become the largest electricity source in Africa in terms of installed capacity. Wind 
energy generation is also expected to expand rapidly in several countries that benefit from high quality wind 
resources, most notably Ethiopia, Kenya, Senegal and South Africa, while Kenya is also at the forefront of geothermal 
deployment.

Achieving reliable electricity supply for all would require an almost fourfold increase in electricity sector investment in 
generation and grids to around US$120 billion a year through 2040. Mobilising this level of investment is a significant 
undertaking, but can be done if policy and regulatory measures are put in place to improve the financial and 
operational efficiency of utilities and to facilitate a more effective use of public funds to catalyse private capital. 
Revego aims to play a role in this by becoming a sizeable investor in operational assets on the continent and facilitating 
potential exit mechanisms for developers and early investors.

Deploying renewables

Clean energy is spreading across SSA, buoyed by policy incentives, donor-backed auction schemes and de-risking 
mechanisms. In addition, low hydro availability and a growing reluctance to finance coal will boost investment in 
renewables in the long run; and the ability of gas and coal to compete will also be curtailed by the prohibitive cost of 
the required infrastructure. Revego’s mandate is renewables only which is intended to provide investors with access 
to this asset class.

SSA investment in clean energy (excluding South Africa) is on a clear upward trajectory. A large pipeline of 
PV projects is to be built in markets that have little grid-scale solar. Some 1.2GW is expected to come online in 
2021 outside of South Africa, more than twice the amount commissioned in 2018. Several promising markets have 
only seen small-scale or commercial and industrial PV but have sizeable pipelines of grid-scale solar. Kenya alone is 
predicted to see 220MW of capacity commissioned by 2021.

 

 

 

 

0%

0%

1%

19%

22%

35%

43%

48%

Cote d'Ivoire

Malawi

Ghana

Niger

Ethiopia

Senegal

Mali

South Africa

Progress toward 2020 renewables capacity targets as of 2018

Figure 3: Renewables investment in SSA, Bloomberg Climatescope SSA Market Outlook 2020 – 6 June 2020
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SSA energy policy is often described as slow-moving but the recent introduction of clean energy auctions has opened 
up clear opportunities for developers looking to enter the region’s renewables market. In this area, national policy 
has been supported by development finance institution backed procurement schemes. Many countries in SSA have 
seen their first large-scale renewables projects allocated through competitive auctions at internationally competitive 
prices. The table below provides a summary of the auction schemes in SSA to date:

Table 1

Scheme Countries
Generation 
technologies

Capacity 
allocated PPA tenors

REIPPPP South Africa PV, solar thermal, 
biomass, onshore wind, 
small hydro, landfill gas

6.38GW since 2011 20 years

GET FiT Uganda, Zambia, 
Mozambique*

PV, small hydro, biomass, 
biogas

0.28GW since 2013 20-25 years

Scaling Solar Zambia, Senegal, Ethiopia, 
Kenya, Madagascar, Togo*, 
Cote d’Ivoire*

PV, wind, biothermal 0.44GW since 2015 20-25 years

Other Botswana Solar, wind 850MW Not disclosed

*Countries in which auctions have been announced but have yet to be launched

Source: Renewable energy auction schemes in SSA to date, Bloomberg Climatescope SSA Market Outlook 2020  – 6 June 2020

Further indication of the continued support for renewable energy across SSA is that nearly 30 SSA countries, more 
than half those in the region, have set national renewables targets. These vary from aiming to reach a given share of 
capacity or generation to installing a certain volume of capacity. These targets represent an opportunity to acquire 
potential Investments as the countries ramp up projects to meet them.
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16. OVERVIEW OF THE RENEWABLE ENERGY MARKET IN SOUTH AFRICA2

16.1 Energy planning in South Africa

The IRP provides South Africa’s long-term plan for electricity generation. It primarily aims to ensure security 
of electricity supply, minimise the cost of that supply, limit water usage and reduce greenhouse gas emissions, 
while allowing for policy adjustment in support of broader socio-economic developmental imperatives. The 
IRP 2019 was promulgated in October 2019 and replaced the IRP 2010 as the country’s official electricity 
infrastructure plan. IRP 2019 identifies 39,696 MW to be added to the national grid between 2019 and 2030. 
This accounts for all committed and new additional capacity of 37,696 MW between 2019 and 2030, as 
well as a short-term capacity gap of at least 2,000 MW that needs to be filled between 2019 and no later 
than June 2022 (the Risk Mitigation Independent Power Producer Procurement Programme). The IRP 2019 
also anticipates 4,000 MW from own-use distributed and/or embedded generation technologies between 

Source: Bloomberg Climatescope Sub-Saharan Africa Market Outlook 2020 – 6 June 2020
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2023 and 2030, as well as coal-fired capacity of 11,017 MW that has to be decommissioned to 2030. Of the 
IRP 2019’s 39,696 MW to be installed to 2030, 8,208 MW (20.7%) reflects capacity that has already been 
committed or contracted under IRP 2010 for grid connection between 2019 and 2022, while 31,488 MW 
(79.3%) represents new additional capacity that has to be added by 2030.

By 2030, the electricity generation mix is set to comprise of 33,364 MW (42.6%) coal, 17,742 MW (22.7%) 
wind, 8,288 MW (10.6%) solar PV, 6,830 MW (8.7%) gas or diesel, 5,000 MW (6.4%) energy storage, 4,600 
MW (5.9%) hydro, 1,860 MW (2.4%) nuclear and 600 MW (0.8%) CSP. The IRP is intended to be frequently 
updated, which could impact future capacity allocations from various energy sources and technologies.

On 14 May 2020, NERSA concurred with a determination for the procurement of 2,000 MW between 2019 
and 2022, from a range of energy technologies to fill South Africa’s short-term electricity capacity gap that 
IRP 2019 indicated would persist between 2019 and 2022. In addition, DMRE Minister Gwede Mantashe 
on 25 September 2020 gazetted a Section 34 Determination to procure energy from independent power 
producers. This paves the way for Bid Window 5 of the REIPPPP. The gazette confirms that IPPs will sell the 
power to state-owned power utility Eskom, while the DMRE will be the procurer, with duties that include 
negotiating power purchase agreements. The latest determination opens the way for the procurement of 
11,813 MW of new generation capacity, of which 6,800 MW has been specified for solar or wind power, 513 
MW for storage, 3,000 MW for gas and 1,500 MW for coal.

Source: IPP Off ice Overview of REIPPPP Jun 2020

16.2 The REIPPPP

The DMRE REIPPPP was established at the end of 2010 as one of the South African government’s urgent 
interventions to enhance South Africa’s electrical power generation capacity. This programme has successfully 
channelled substantial private sector expertise and investment into grid-connected renewable energy in South 
Africa at competitive prices with banks, insurers, development finance institutions and even international 
utilities having all participated in the program.

Section 34 of the Electricity Regulation Act No.4 of 2006, pertaining to Electricity Regulations on New 
Generation Capacity, enable the Minister of Mineral Resources and Energy to determine new electrical energy 
generation capacity requirements in consultation with NERSA for its concurrence. Once NERSA has concurred 
with the ministerial determinations, they give effect to the procurement process and implementation of the 
relevant capacity allocations of the IRP. The determinations have been implemented in rolling bid windows 
with seven (1, 2, 3, 3.5, 4, 1S2 and 2S2) bid windows successfully completed. The number of projects per round 
and their capacity contribution is illustrated in the table below:

Table 2

Number of 
projects 
awarded

MW 
awarded

MW 
in operation

MW 
in construction

BW 1 28 1,425 1,415 –

BW 2 19 1,040 1,033 –

BW 3 17 1,452 1,428 24

BW 3.5 2 200 100 1 project not yet commenced 
construction

BW 4 26 2,205 873 23 projects in or entering 
construction

BW 1S2 
(small bid window)

10 50 – Awaiting financial close before 
they will commence with 

construction

BW 2S2 
(small bid window)

10 50 – Awaiting financial close before 
they will commence with 

construction

Source: IPP Office Overview of REIPPPP June 2020

By the end of June 2020, the REIPPPP had made the following significant impacts:
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Energy supply capacity impact:

• 6 422 MW of electricity had been procured from 112 IPPs in seven bid rounds;

• 4 276 MW of electricity generation capacity from 67 IPP projects had been connected to the national grid;

• 49 461 GWh of energy had been generated by renewable energy sources procured under the REIPPPP 
since the first project became operational.

Investment, economic, social and environmental impacts:

• Investment (equity and debt) to the value of R209.7 billion, of which R41.8 billion (20%) is foreign investment, 
was attracted;

• Black South Africans own, on average, 33% of projects that have reached financial close;

• Created 52 603 job years for South African citizens to date;

• Socio-economic development contributions of R1.2 billion to date;

• Enterprise development contributions of R384.2 million to date;

• Carbon emission reductions of 50.2 metric tons carbon dioxide has been realised by the programme from 
inception to date;

• Water savings of 59.4 million kilolitres has been realised by the programme from inception to date.

The REIPPPP has not only pioneered renewable energy in South Africa, which is currently overwhelmingly 
dependent on coal, but has also been the vanguard for IPPs in the country and has assisted in providing the 
national grid with electricity from a variety of sources. In less than four years, South Africa has achieved more 
investment in IPPs than in the rest of SSA over the past two decades. It offers valuable lessons for other 
developing countries in terms of designing and running competitive tenders or auctions for grid-connected 
renewable energy IPPs.

16.3 Summary of key role players in relation to the REIPPPP

Figure 5: Summary of key role players in relation to the REIPPPP – Eskom Single Buyer Office presentation

16.3.1 Eskom

Eskom is the South African electricity public utility and is the largest of South Africa’s state-owned 
enterprises. The company is divided into generation, transmission and distribution divisions and 
generates c.95% of electricity used in South Africa and c.40% of that in Africa.

Eskom is currently the sole buyer of the electricity generated by Project Companies in terms of PPAs 
entered into. In addition, Project Companies enter into transmission agreements and distribution 
agreements with Eskom.
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16.3.2 DMRE

The DMRE is a department of the government of South Africa which is responsible for energy 
planning, policy formulation and implementation. Relevant sub-sectors include electricity generation, 
transmission/distribution, energy efficiency and electrification. It is within its mandate to draft the IRP 
that determines required generation capacity and distinguishes between capacity to be implemented 
by Eskom and IPPs.

Its IPP office manages the public procurement programme for IPP projects based on coal, gas and 
renewable energy generation. It also plays the role of the procurer of electricity in respect of the 
REIPPPP which is to conduct the procurement programmes, prepare any requests for proposals and/
or related documentation, negotiate the PPAs, facilitate the conclusion of any other agreements and 
facilitate the satisfaction of any conditions precedent to financial close which are within its control.

16.3.3 National Treasury

The National Treasury is a department of the government of South Africa and manages national 
economic policy, prepares the South African government’s annual budget and manages the 
government’s finances. In addition, the National Treasury provides financial oversight over Eskom and 
has undertaken to ensure Eskom’s obligations under REIPPPP are met (additional details can be found 
under paragraph 16.4.1 below).

16.3.4 Other South African government entities and departments

NERSA regulates the electricity industry in terms of the Electricity Regulation Act, 2006 and the 
National Energy Regulatory Act, 2004. In addition to providing licences, regulatory rules, guidelines and 
codes, NERSA also determines Eskom’s revenue requirements in accordance with the requirements 
of the Electricity Pricing Policy. It is the body that issues Project Companies their electricity generation 
licenses.

Other government departments involved in the REIPPP include the Department of Environmental 
Affairs, Forestry and Fisheries, the Department of Water and Sanitation and the Department of 
Agriculture, Land Reform and Rural Development which the DMRE coordinates with to provide IPPs 
with the necessary consents. Examples of these consents include environmental authorisations, waste 
management licences, biodiversity consents, water use allocation, agricultural consents and heritage 
authority consents.

16.3.5 EPC and O&M contractors

EPC contractors provide all the activities relating to design, procurement, construction, commissioning 
and handover of the project to the end-user or owner, whilst O&M contractors are employed to 
operate, maintain, monitor and provide reporting on the projects. Further details in relation to 
contracts with these parties are included under paragraph 16.4 below.

16.3.6 Land-owners

The land on which projects are developed are generally owned by local farmers, and are leased 
on commercial terms by Project Companies for the period of PPAs (including construction and 
decommissioning periods).

16.3.7 Providers of capital

Shareholders (equity) and lenders (debt) provide the capital required for development of projects.

16.4 Summary of key contracts

Providers of capital in Project Companies typically require a number of contractual protections, which 
lower the risk of their investments and provide comfort around the Project Companies’ ability to generate 
the forecasted cash flows. These include contracts which will provide them with, amongst others, certain 
protections in respect of offtake, tariff, design, construction, performance and maintenance of the plants. The 
key terms of the typical contracts are outlined below.
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16.4.1 PPAs

In South Africa, all PPAs under the REIPPPP are entered into with Eskom as the sole off-taker. These 
offtake agreements typically endure for 20 years from commercial operation date and provide that 
Eskom must take all energy produced by the plant and pay a tariff agreed at financial close, which tariff 
escalates in line with inflation as determined by the CPI on an annual basis.

The PPAs under REIPPPP are standardised and non-negotiable. These PPAs were developed using 
global best practices following consultation with debt providers, project sponsors and equity providers. 
The PPAs are considered financeable with a fair allocation of risks between the off-taker of the power, 
Eskom, and the seller, the Project Company.

Through the implementation agreement between the IPP and DMRE, the National Treasury of South 
Africa via the DMRE has undertaken that it would step in and make payment in the event of any 
payment default by Eskom. To date Eskom has honoured their financial obligations in relation to all 74 
current operational REIPPP projects and made all payments in accordance with the executed PPAs 
which are pre-approved by the Eskom board and NERSA. Currently, Revego’s Initial Portfolio each 
have PPAs with Eskom. In the future, Revego will acquire additional assets in South Africa and/or SSA.

16.4.2 EPC contracts

The EPC contractors typically guarantee that the plant will meet certain performance ratios during 
the first two years of operation. If they do not meet the set performance ratios, the EPC contractor 
will be liable to pay liquidated damages to cover the performance ratio shortfalls over the two-year 
contract term as well as assumed future shortfalls on a DCF basis. The liability of the EPC contractor 
to pay liquidated damages is typically subject to a separate cap of around 10% of the contract price. 
The EPC contractors, pursuant to the EPC contract, have obligations to rectify any defects that 
become apparent within the plant within the typical initial term of two years post completion and 
handover of the plants.

The EPC contracts also provide for the Project Companies to take security, usually for up to two 
years, which may take the form of a cash retention of up to 10%, an on-demand performance bond of 
up to 10% and/or a guarantee from the parent company of the EPC contractor. The security is likely 
to be released once the power plant has passed its performance tests or, in the event it does not pass 
these performance tests, once all the performance liquidated damages due to the Project Companies 
have been paid in full.

At the end of the two-year term, the EPC contractors are usually obliged to assign to each Project 
Company the manufacturer warranties in relation to the component parts of the plants which extend 
beyond such term. These manufacturer warranties typically relate to solar panels, inverters, turbines, 
blades and other components (as relevant). Such manufacturers’ warranties offer a degree of on-going 
protection related to the repair or replacement of the warranted components if they break down. 
These warranties guarantee minimum performance levels and the degradation of the equipment 
and failure to meet these minimum levels entitles the Project Companies to make claims against the 
original equipment suppliers.

16.4.3 O&M contracts

The Project Companies have also entered into O&M contracts with different O&M contractors 
pursuant to which the O&M contractor provides both preventative and corrective maintenance. 
If the respective plant’s availability were to be less than that guaranteed under the O&M contract, 
typically not less than 95%, the O&M contractor will be liable to pay liquidated damages according to 
the formula that is set out in the O&M contract, which is generally capped per annum to the level of 
the annual fees paid to the O&M contractor. In addition, to the extent that the availability of the plant 
exceeds certain target levels, the O&M contractor is paid a bonus which is typically calculated based 
on a sharing mechanism of the outperformance.
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16.4.4 Other

The Project Companies have generally been project financed on a limited recourse basis. In respect 
of the Initial Portfolio, all equity commitments have been drawn down or expired on or before 
commercial operation date. There are no additional equity commitments for the Initial Portfolio.

A number of insurance contracts are entered into, including business interruption and material damage 
insurance, to cover any unforeseen events.

Project Companies are contractually obligated to maintain debt service reserve accounts or facilities 
to ensure sufficient funds are available to service future debt repayments and maintenance reserve 
accounts to accumulate funds to cover any periodic higher maintenance costs.

Interest and foreign exchange rate hedging contracts are entered into to protect against any unforeseen 
fluctuations in such rates.

The shares in Project Companies are pledged to the senior lenders as security in each of the underlying 
assets in the Initial Portfolio.

Apart from applicable solvency and liquidity tests, any distributions by Project Companies are subject 
to the satisfaction of predetermined ratio tests including the debt service cover ratio and loan life 
coverage ratio.
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PART C: INITIAL PORTFOLIO AND PIPELINE OPPORTUNITIES

17. LOCATION OF THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO

Figure 6: Location of the Initial Portfolio

18. OVERVIEW OF THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO

The Initial Portfolio consists of six distinct assets located in South Africa, all of which are unlisted Project Companies. 
Two assets are CSP projects (with a combined gross generating capacity of 150 MWs) and four are wind projects 
(with an approximate gross generating capacity of 455 MWs in total). The total contracted capacity, which is defined 
as the guaranteed dispatch under the signed PPAs, of the Initial Portfolio is 599 MWs. All of these assets are 
operational with a weighted average (based on attributable generating capacity) operational history of approximately 
three years and six months. There are no extraordinary items within the Initial Portfolio.

The Initial Portfolio represents a spread of renewable energy assets across different geographies in South Africa 
with a diversity of energy sources. Additional diversity is achieved by the Initial Portfolio’s exposure to different 
technologies, O&M service providers counterparties, EPC contractors and suppliers of the technologies.

The table below sets out summary data on the individual assets and their location as well as information on the 
overall composition of the Initial Portfolio. For further information in relation to the determination of fair values refer 
to Annexures 1 and 2 of this Pre-Listing Statement and for details in relation to the acquisitions and vendors, refer 
to Annexure 13 of this Pre-Listing Statement:
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Figure 7: Initial Portfolio REIPPPP round mix  Figure 8: Initial Portfolio technology mix

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 9: Initial Portfolio developer mix  Figure 10: Initial Portfolio O&M counterparty mix

Note:  All percentages calculated based on attributable MW

19. PROFILES OF THE ASSETS IN THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO

19.1 Aurora Wind Power

Aurora Wind Power is a 94 MW wind farm located 130 km north of Cape Town, in the Western Cape 
province in South Africa. It was constructed as part of Bid Window 2 of the REIPPPP, led by sponsor Engie 
Energy International (previously GDF Suez). Engie is one of the largest energy players globally and has extensive 
experience in developing and operating renewable energy plants. The PPA with Eskom is valid for a period of 
20 years from the date that commercial operations commence.

Construction commenced in May 2013 and the project reached the commercial operation date on 9 June 2015 
and the plant comprises of 47 Vestas V90 2.0 MW turbines. The project has been constructed under a turnkey 
EPC contract between Aurora Wind Power (RF) Pty Ltd and Vestas Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd (“Vestas”). 
The EPC contract was effective on 9 May 2013 until the project completion date of 8 June 2015. O&M services 
are provided by Lerole Power Operations and Maintenance (Pty) Ltd (a subsidiary of Engie) for the full period 
of the PPA covering scheduled and unscheduled maintenance for the wind turbines and the Balance of Plant, 
which consists of all the supporting components and auxillary systems of a power plant needed to deliver the 
energy. The O&M contractor has sub-contracted the maintenance of the wind turbines to Vestas under a 
services and availability agreement. The agreement was initially for 10 years commencing on the commercial 
operational date and has since been extended for an additional five years.

The current shareholders consist of Engie, Investec, Kagiso Tiso Holdings and an interest held by a Community 
Trust. Revego will be acquiring a 29.5% interest from Investec and a 20% interest from Kagiso Tiso Holdings 
in Aurora Wind Power.

In light of the Special Note on Acquisition of Initial Portfolio under the “Important Information” section on 
page 6 (highlighted in bold text), outstanding conditions precedent as at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement 
are as follows:

• evidence that all the ordinary shares of Revego have been admitted to the official list of the JSE and to 
trading on the JSE;
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• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser (acting reasonably), that there 
has been no material adverse change;

• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser acting reasonably, that all 
warranties given by the seller are true and correct;

• obtaining of relevant consents from the DMRE and Eskom;

• obtaining of approval from the lenders to Aurora Wind Power; and

• unconditional approval by the Competition Commission of South Africa in terms of the Competition Act, 
1998, or conditional approval on terms and conditions which each party confirms in writing to the other 
parties to be acceptable to it.

19.2 Kathu Solar Park

Kathu Solar Park is a 100 MW concentrated solar power project located in the town of Kathu, in the Northern 
Cape province in South Africa. Construction on the solar project began in May 2016 and was constructed as 
part of Bid Window 3 of the REIPPPP, led by sponsors Engie Energy International, (previously GDF Suez) with 
operations commencing in February 2019. The project is estimated to have an operational lifetime of 30 years. 
Kathu Solar Park is the first concentrated solar power plant that Engie’s subsidiary operates and Engie signed a 
20-year power purchase agreement with Eskom for the Kathu Solar Park project in May 2016.

The project has been constructed under an EPC Contract with a joint venture between Acciona (a Spanish 
conglomerate focusing on the development and management of infrastructure and renewable energy) and 
Sener (a global engineering and construction leader with more than 60 years of global operational experience) 
and O&M services are provided by Engie for the full period of the PPA.

The current shareholders consist of Engie, the Government Employees Pension Fund (Public Investment 
Corporation), SIOC Community Development Trust, Development Bank of Southern Africa Limited, Investec, 
Lereko Metier and the Kathu Trust. The Fund will be acquiring Investec’s 7.5% stake in Kathu Solar Park.

In light of the Special Note on Acquisition of Initial Portfolio under the “Important Information” section on 
page 6, outstanding conditions precedent as at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement are as follows:

• evidence that all the ordinary shares of Revego have been admitted to the official list of the JSE and to 
trading on the JSE;

• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser (acting reasonably), that there 
has been no material adverse change;

• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser acting reasonably, that all 
warranties given by the seller are true and correct;

• obtaining of relevant consents from the DMRE and Eskom; and

• obtaining of approval from the lenders to Kathu Solar Park.

19.3 Bokpoort

Bokpoort is a 50MW concentrated solar power thermal energy power plant located near Groblershoop 
(118km from Upington) in the Northern Cape province of South Africa. The plant was constructed as part of 
Bid Window 2 of the REIPPPP, led by sponsors ACWA Power. ACWA Power are one of the largest energy 
players globally and have extensive experience in developing and operating renewable energy plants.

The solar plant consists of eight solar fields and construction commenced in July 2013 with the project reaching 
commercial operation date on 19 March 2016. It is equipped with the largest thermal storage size ever 
adopted for a similar operational size providing nine hours of storage and is among the most efficient solar 
plants in the world.

The project has been constructed under a turnkey EPC Contract between TSK and Acciona and the O&M 
services are provided by NOMAC Bokpoort IAE (Pty) Ltd (a subsidiary of ACWA Power) for the full period 
of the 20-year PPA.

The current shareholders consist of ACWA Power, Lereko Metier, the Public Investment Corporation and 
other shareholders. The Fund has acquired Lereko Metier’s 12.0% stake in Bokpoort.
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19.4 Noupoort Wind Farm

Noupoort Wind Farm is a wind farm project located in Noupoort in the Northern Cape province in South 
Africa. The project was awarded as part of Bid Window 3 of the REIPPPP led by sponsors Mainstream 
Renewables Power SA, a leading developer of wind and solar PV projects. The project has a capacity of 80.5 
MW. Noupoort Wind Farm has a 20-year PPA with Eskom.

The project uses Siemens SWT-2.3-108 wind turbines with 35 turbines on site with a hub height of 99.5 
meters. Construction commenced in May 2015 and the project reached commercial operational date in 
July 2016. Mainstream Renewable Power SA managed the project construction process and manages the 
operations. The wind turbine generators are maintained through an O&M agreement with Siemens for a 20-
year project life. Conco (one of Africa’s largest power infrastructure service providers with three decades of 
Africa-wide experience in transmission, distribution and power infrastructure development) is responsible for 
the electrical maintenance.

The current shareholders consist of Lekela Power, Thebe Investment Corporation, the Ideas Managed Fund, 
Futuregrowth Asset Management, Genesis Eco Energy (in partnership with Lereko Metier) and the Noupoort 
Renewable Energy Community Trust. The Fund will be acquiring Lereko Metier and Genesis Eco Energy’s 
combined 15% stake in Noupoort Wind Farm.

In light of the Special Note on Acquisition of Initial Portfolio under the “Important Information” section on 
page 6, outstanding conditions precedent as at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement are as follows:

• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser (acting reasonably), that there 
has been no material adverse change;

• delivery by the purchaser to the sellers of a copy of the warranty and indemnity insurance policy, the terms 
of which must be satisfactory to the purchasers and sellers, all acting reasonably and evidence that it will 
be effective prior to the closing date; and

• approval by the Competition Commission of South Africa in terms of the Competition Act, 1998, or 
conditional approval on terms and conditions which each party confirms in writing to the other parties to 
be acceptable to it.

19.5 Khobab and Loeriesfontein Wind Farms

The Khobab and Loeriesfontein Wind Farms are located adjacent to each other in the Hantam municipality in 
the Northern Cape province in South Africa. The projects were constructed as part of the Bid Window 3 of 
the REIPPPP led by sponsors Mainstream Renewables SA, a leading developer of wind and solar PV projects. 
Each project has a capacity of 140 MW. Each wind farm has a 20-year PPA with Eskom.

Each project uses Siemens SWT-2.3-108 wind turbines with 61 turbines each on site with a hub height of 
99.5 meters. Construction commenced in September 2015 for Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and February 2016 
for Khobab Wind Farm with the projects reaching commercial operational date in December 2017 for both 
projects. Mainstream Renewable Power SA managed the projects construction process and manages the 
operations. The wind turbine generators are maintained through an O&M agreement with Siemens for a 20-
year project life and Conco is responsible for the electrical maintenance.

The current shareholders of Khobab Wind Farm consist of Lekela Power, Thebe Investment Corporation, 
the Ideas Managed Fund, Futuregrowth Asset Management, Genesis Eco Energy (in partnership with Lereko 
Metier) and the Khobab Renewable Energy Community Trust. The current shareholders of Loeriesfontein 
Wind Farm consist of Lekela Power, Thebe Investment Corporation, the Ideas Managed Fund, Futuregrowth 
Asset Management, Genesis Eco Energy (in partnership with Lereko Metier) and the Loeriesfontein Renewable 
Energy Community Trust.

The Fund will be acquiring Lereko Metier and Genesis Eco Energy’s combined 15% stakes in the Khobab and 
Loeriesfontein Wind Farms, respectively.

In light of the Special Note on Acquisition of Initial Portfolio under the “Important Information” section on 
page 6 outstanding conditions precedent as at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement are as follows:

• written confirmation, in form and substance satisfactory to the purchaser (acting reasonably), that there 
has been no material adverse change;

• delivery by the purchaser to the sellers of a copy of the warranty and indemnity insurance policy, the terms 
of which must be satisfactory to the purchasers and sellers, all acting reasonably and evidence that it will 
be effective prior to the closing date; and
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• approval by the Competition Commission of South Africa in terms of the Competition Act, 1998, or 
conditional approval on terms and conditions which each party confirms in writing to the other parties to 
be acceptable to it.

20. DIRECTORS’ VALUATION OF THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO

The table below sets out the Directors’ valuation of the NAV and NAV per Share based on the fair value of the 
Initial Portfolio on the Listing Date, after receipt of the proceeds from the Offer, as set out in Annexure 2 to this 
Pre-Listing Statement.

R million Fair value

Equity and shareholder loan investments1 1,424
Cash 4
Contingent consideration (20)

NAV 1,408

Issued Shares2 (in 000’s) 151,941
NAV per Share (Rand) 9.3
Tangible NAV per Share (Rand)  9.3

1. Values determined based on the cost of the Initial Portfolio at their assumed acquisition dates, being 30 April 2021, except for Bokpoort 
which was acquired at 18 March 2021 and its fair value determined as of 31 March 2021. For further details refer to the table included in 
paragraph 18 above as well as the details included in Annexure 2 and 13 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

2. To be issued pursuant to the Offer

21. OPERATIONAL HISTORY

The Initial Portfolio’s operational history provides prospective Shareholders with an overview of the consistency of 
the renewable energy resources and performance of the plants. The Initial Portfolio has demonstrated generation 
largely in line with P50 probability estimates as determined at initial project development and financial close.

P50 is a statistical level of confidence where the actual renewable energy resource yield exceeds the predicted 
renewable energy resource yield 50% of the time. P50 is the market standard probability factor applied by equity 
investors when forecasting performance for operating renewable energy projects.
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 11: Initial Portfolio historic production vs P50 estimates – Historic energy production reports as per Initial Portfolio companies
*Noupoort Wind Farm, Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and Khobab Wind Farm past P50 estimates have been adjusted downwards to be consistent with 
Revego’s assumptions as included in the Forecast Financial Information.

The figure above illustrates that the Initial Portfolio’s operational track record has largely tracked P50 estimates.

The portfolio effect can also be seen reducing volatility when comparing the average generation of the Initial Portfolio 
compared to the volatility of a particular project.
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In determining the forecast operational performance, the historical performance together with independent 
assessments are used to forecast electricity production, revenue and operational costs.

22. CASH FLOW OUTLOOK

The figures below provide an illustration of the forecast cash to be received from the respective Investments included 
in the Initial Portfolio over the respective PPA terms. Based on these forecasts, the Company is targeting providing 
Shareholders with an initial dividend yield of approximately 9 – 10% which is expected to increase over time as debt 
in the underlying Project Companies is repaid and additional cash is freed up and distributed to the Fund.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 12: Initial Portfolio cash f low prof ile

The forecasts above are based on detailed financial models produced by the Investment Manager which take into 
account, inter alia, the following:

22.1 due diligence findings where relevant;

22.2 the terms of any material contracts, including PPAs;

22.3 asset performance;

22.4 updated macro-economic assumptions; and

22.5 legal, taxation or regulatory environment.

Also refer to the “Distributions received” section of Annexure 2 to this Pre-Listing Statement as well as the 
“Assumptions” in Annexure 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement for detailed explanations of items impacting distributions 
from the Investments.

The Directors believe that further upside may be created, for example through refinancing project-level debt (subject 
to relevant regulatory requirements), realising benefits of scale if Revego’s portfolio of assets is enlarged through 
further Investments, driving operational efficiencies or entering into further offtake or expansion agreements beyond 
the original PPA terms. This additional potential value has not been taken into account in the graphs above or in 
determining the Acquisition Cost of Investments.

It should be noted that the figures above contain targets only and are not profit forecasts. There 
can be no assurance that these targets can or will be met and they should not be seen as an 
indication of the Company’s expected or actual results or returns or any form of recommendation 
or advice. Accordingly, Shareholders should not place any reliance on these targets in deciding 
whether to invest in Revego and should consult their own advisors. These cash flow forecasts 
are the Directors’ responsibility and have not been reviewed by the Independent Reporting 
Accountant. Potential investors should note that the forecasts for 2021 and 2022 in Figure 12 above 
are extracted from the same source as those reflected in Annexure 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement 
which have been reported on by the Independent Reporting Accountant in Annexure 10 to this 
Pre-Listing Statement.
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23. PIPELINE ASSETS

With the backdrop of the significant historic and expected growth in the renewable energy market in SSA (as set 
out in Part B – “Renewable Energy in South Africa & SSA” above) and the significant expected contributions of 
renewable energy IPPs towards future power capacity installations across the region, the Fund expects to have 
significant opportunities to expand its portfolio through further Investments which meet the requirements of the 
Investment Policy.

The shareholders, directors and management of the Investment Manager have long-standing and deep relationships 
with many of the developers, financial institutions, advisors and South African government which will be leveraged 
to originate transactions for the Fund. Investec, one of the leading institutions in the sector, has funded multiple 
transactions, was a pioneer in investing and taking proprietary investments in the energy sector and will refer 
transactions to the Investment Manager.

Furthermore, as the Fund will be a specialist investor focused on the renewable energy sector in SSA, with access to 
capital and classified as Black for South African ownership purposes, the Investment Manager is confident that it will 
be able to source and secure further operational assets in South Africa as well as SSA.

The successful implementation of this Investment Policy will result in the following potential benefits to Shareholders:

23.1 Greater diversification across geographies, technologies and operators which should reduce risk and further 
improve the stability of cash flows derived from Investments;

23.2 Improved liquidity for Shareholders in Revego as it grows in size and builds a greater and more diverse 
Shareholder base and qualifies for inclusion in relevant indices;

23.3 Enhanced longevity of the Fund to beyond the term of the PPAs of the Initial Portfolio (on average 16 years 
from date of Listing), which would be beneficial to Shareholders seeking to match longer-dated liabilities;

23.4 Achievement of economies of scale as the Fund’s growth is expected to exceed growth in relevant operating 
expenses; and

23.5 Driving efficiencies through the application of best practices across a broader range of Investments.

As at the Last Practicable Date, the Fund has identified an additional near-term executable pipeline of renewable 
energy assets which it believes would be value enhancing and yield accretive to the Fund’s portfolio. These identified 
assets have a total gross generation capacity of 323 MW, made up of solar PV 85 MW, solar CSP 150 MW and wind 
88 MW.

The Company anticipates that these future growth opportunities will be financed through the issuance of new equity. 
To the extent required, a bridging finance facility may be put in place to fund Investments, which will be repaid within 
12 months through the issuance of new equity.
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PART D: FORECAST FINANCIAL INFORMATION

24. FORECAST FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The below forecast financial information for Revego for the twelve months ending 31 March 2021 and 31 March 
2022 has been extracted from the detailed information included in Annexure 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement, which 
also includes the basis of preparation and key assumptions applied in arriving at the disclosed forecasted financial 
information. A report by the Independent Reporting Accountant on the forecast financial information of Revego, 
included in Annexure 9, has been included in Annexure 10 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

The directors of Revego are responsible for the forecast financial information of Revego and for the assumptions on 
which it has been prepared.

Based on forecast dividends per share of 118.01 cents for the 12 months ended 31 March 2022, the implied forward 
yield based on the initial Offer Price of R10 is 11.8%. It should be noted that the distributable dividends and the 
forward yield have not been reviewed nor reported on by the Independent Auditor and Independent Reporting 
Accountant as it is not an IFRS measure.

in millions of Rands

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-21

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-22

Return on investments 28.8 200.4
Dividends Received 63.4 69.7
Interest on shareholder loan investment – 46.6
Movement in fair value of investments (34.6) 84.1

Other income – 1.9

Total income and gains 28.8 202.3
Operating expenses (0.0) (18.1)

Investment Manager management fee (0.0) (9.5)
Directors’ remuneration – (1.7)
Administrative expenses – (6.9)
Other expenses – –

Establishment Costs – (11.5)
Listing Costs – (14.4)
Investment acquisition costs (1.1) (18.8)

Due diligence costs paid to third party service providers – (11.7)
Investment Manager transaction fee (1.1) (7.1)

Operating profit 27.7 139.5
Finance expense (10.3) (20.7)

Profit for the period before tax 17.4 118.8
Tax expense – (25.8)

Profit for the period after tax 17.4 193.0
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in millions of Rands

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-21

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-22

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 17.4 93.0
Non-controlling interest 0.0 0.0
Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 17.4 93.0

Headline earnings 17.4 93.0

Number of shares issued 10 151,941,452
Weighted Average Number of Shares 10 139,453,115
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 173,783,896.50 66.59
Headline and diluted Headline earnings per share (cents) 173,783,896.50 66.59
Dividends per share (cents) – 118.01

25. ASSUMPTIONS AND CONSIDERATIONS

Refer to Annexure 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement for the detailed assumptions applied in arriving at the forecast 
financial information.
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PART E: DETAILS OF THE OFFER

26. THE OFFER

The Offer comprises of an offer by Revego to subscribe for Offer Shares, being ordinary shares of no par value:

26.1 in South Africa, separately to:

26.1.1 selected persons falling within one of the specified categories listed in section 96(1)(a) of the Companies 
Act; and

26.1.2 selected persons, acting as principal, acquiring Shares for a total acquisition cost of R1 000 000 or 
more, as contemplated in section 96(1)(b) of the Companies Act; and

26.2 in other jurisdictions, to selected persons outside the United States who are not US Persons and in reliance 
on Regulation S, to whom the Offer will specifically be addressed, and only by whom the Offer will be capable 
of acceptance.

The Offer and the relevant information that pertains to such Offer in respect of each class of South African 
Qualifying Investor is combined in this Pre-Listing Statement for the sake of convenience only.

The Offer Shares will rank pari passu with all of the other issued Shares in all respects including dividends and 
will have no conversion or redemption rights.

There will be no premium or discount on the Offer.

The Offer Shares will be issued in dematerialised form only and, accordingly, no documents of title will be 
delivered to Shareholders.

There will be no simultaneous issue of Shares.

The main purposes of the Offer and Listing are to:

26.3 facilitate the formation of a Black Fund Manager and investment vehicle of important scale;

26.4 raise cash to enable Revego to implement its Investment Policy and to enable the Fund to pay for the acquisition 
of the Initial Portfolio (including repayment of the Bridge Facility); and

26.5 provide public-market investors with an opportunity to invest in infrastructure through a liquid instrument 
with indirect exposure to a quality, diversified pool of renewable energy assets, with an attractive cash flow 
profile, strong ESG credentials, managed at low cost, by an experienced majority Black management team.

27. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OFFER AND LISTING

The Offer and Listing is subject to the fulfilment of the following key conditions precedent:

27.1 the approval for the Listing granted by the JSE not being revoked or withdrawn;

27.2 the minimum subscription of R1,519m being attained; and

27.3 the minimum free float and shareholder spread requirements, as per the Listings Requirements, being met.

Should any of the conditions not be met, the Offer shall lapse and shall not be of any force or effect and no applicant 
shall have any claim whatsoever against the Company, the Bookrunner or any other person as a result of the failure 
of any such conditions and the consequent Listing.

If the Directors in their discretion determine that it would not be advisable to proceed with the Listing, the Company 
shall not be obliged to proceed with the Offer and the Listing.
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28. OFFER PRICE

The Offer Shares will be offered at an Offer Price of R10 per Share. STT will not be levied on the issue of the Offer 
Shares by Revego. The respective monies payable by applicants will be payable in full in Rand without deduction or 
set-off.

29. PARTICIPATION IN THE OFFER

South African Qualifying Investors in South Africa or persons in other jurisdictions (excluding persons in an Affected 
Jurisdiction) wishing to participate in the Offer should contact the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner prior to the cut-
off time for providing indications of interest referred to in the timetable contained in the “Salient Dates and Times” 
section of the Pre-Listing Statement.

30. STABILISATION

In connection with the Offer, the Stabilisation Manager may effect transactions which may support the market price 
of the Shares at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail for a limited period after the Listing Date.

However, there is no assurance that the Stabilisation Manager will undertake any such actions and there is no 
obligation on the Stabilisation Manager to do so. Such actions will be effected on the JSE, and will be carried out 
in accordance with the Listings Requirements, Financial Markets Act and other applicable law. Such Stabilisation, if 
commenced, may be discontinued at any time without prior notice and will in any event be discontinued after the 
Stabilisation Period. Such stabilising action may under no circumstances continue beyond the 30th calendar day after 
the Listing Date.

In connection with the Offer, the Stabilisation Manager will be permitted to purchase up to 2,000,000 Shares in 
the market (up to approximately 1.3% of the total number of Offer Shares). Any such Shares purchased will be 
sold to Investec at the Offer Price, which it will hold together with the Shares acquired as part of its investment as 
Cornerstone Shareholder.

31. TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR THE OFFER

31.1 General

The Financial Advisor and Bookrunner is acting as financial advisor and bookrunner to the Company and for 
no one else in connection with the matters described in this Pre-Listing Statement and accordingly will not be 
responsible to any person other than the Company for providing the protections afforded to customers of 
the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner, or for providing advice in relation to such matters and apart from the 
responsibilities and liabilities (if any) imposed on the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner by the FSCA, JSE or any 
applicable South African regulatory authority, any liability therefor is expressly disclaimed.

31.2 Representation

Any person applying for or accepting an offer of Offer Shares shall be deemed to have represented to Revego, 
the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner (including their advisors and 
representatives) that: (i) they have not relied on the Fund or the Investment Manager (including their advisors, 
representatives or associates) or any person affiliated with Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager or the 
Financial Advisor and Bookrunner (including their advisors, representatives or associates) in connection with 
any investigation of the accuracy of any information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement or their investment 
decision; (ii) they have relied only on the information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement; (iii) no person 
has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation concerning Revego, the Fund or its 
Project Companies or the Offer Shares (other than as contained in this Pre-Listing Statement) and, if given or 
made, any such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by 
Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner (including their advisors, 
representatives or associates); and (iv) and they are entitled in terms of all applicable law to participate in the 
Offer without any further registration, licensing or compliance obligation on Revego, the Investment Manager 
or the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner under any applicable law.



50

Any person applying for or accepting an offer of Offer Shares shall be deemed to have represented to Revego, 
the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner (including their advisors and 
representatives) that a copy of this document was specifically addressed and delivered to, and was in the 
possession of, such person, and that such person will make payment of the aggregate Offer Price and implement 
the Offer in respect of such applicant in accordance with its terms.

Any person applying for or accepting an offer of Offer Shares shall be deemed to have represented to 
Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner (including their advisors, 
representatives and associates) that he or she has done so in accordance with the applicable laws and 
regulations, including in respect of South Africa, where any person applying for or accepting an offer of Offer 
Shares shall be deemed to have represented that they are a South African Qualifying Investor or are otherwise 
entitled to accept an offer of Offer Shares without Revego being required to comply with any registration or 
other requirements.

Any person applying for or accepting an Offer of Offer Shares on behalf of another shall be deemed to 
have represented to Revego, the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner 
(including their advisors, representatives and associates) that: (i) they are duly authorised to do so and warrant, 
to the extent applicable, that they and the subscriber for whom they are acting as agent is duly authorised to 
do so in accordance with all relevant laws; (ii) they guarantee the payment of the Offer Price; (iii) they confirm 
that a copy of this Pre-listing Statement was in the possession of the subscriber for whom they are acting as 
agent; and (iv) in relation to an application for Offer Shares, warrant that the subscriber for whom they are 
acting as agent is acting as principal.

31.3 Allocation

The basis of allocation of the Offer Shares will be determined by the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner in 
consultation with Revego. Allocation will be done on an equitable basis but taking into consideration factors 
such as achieving an appropriate spread and diversity of Shareholders and promoting liquidity, tradability, and 
an orderly after-market.

The Financial Advisor and Bookrunner reserves the right, on behalf of Revego, except in respect of the 
Cornerstone Shareholders who are entitled to the allocations set out in this paragraph 31.3 below, to accept 
or refuse any application, either in whole or in part, or to accept some applications in full and others in part 
in such manner as it may, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether the Offer is over or under 
subscribed. Without limiting the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner’s discretion, it reserves the right to refuse 
any application if it is not satisfied that the applicant may participate in the Offer under any applicable law 
(including in circumstances where participation by such applicant would give rise to any registration, licensing 
or compliance obligation on Revego, the Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner).

It is intended that notice of the allocations will be given on or before Tuesday, 20 April 2021. Applicants may 
receive no Offer Shares or fewer than the number of Offer Shares applied for.

Dealing in Offer Shares prior to delivery of the Offer Shares is not permitted by the JSE.

Fractions of Shares will not be issued.

There is no intention to extend a preference on allocation to any particular Shareholder or group of 
Shareholders in the event of an over-subscription, other than to:

31.3.1 Investec who will be allocated Offer Shares to the value of at least R350 million, in line with their 
commitment to apply for Offer Shares;

31.3.2 UKCI who will be allocated Offer Shares to the value of at least R420 million in line with their 
commitment to apply for Offer Shares;

31.3.3 EPPF who will be allocated Offer Shares to the value of at least R350 million in line with their 
commitment to apply for Offer Shares; and

31.3.4 the Investment Manager, who will be allocated sufficient Offer Shares to allow it to attain at least a 
1.0% interest in Revego at Listing.

All Shares issued pursuant to the Offer will be allotted subject to the provisions of the MOI and will be allotted 
at the Offer Price.
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31.4 Dematerialisation of Offer Shares

The Offer Shares will be issued to the extent applicable, to successful applicants in dematerialised form only. 
Accordingly, all applicants must have appointed a CSDP under the terms of the Financial Markets Act, directly 
or as a controlled client of a broker, to receive and hold the Offer Shares on their behalf.

Should, at any point in time, a Shareholder require a physical share certificate for its Shares, it will have to 
materialise its Shares following the Listing and should contact its CSDP to do so. There are risks associated 
with holding shares in certificated form, including the risk of loss or tainted scrip, which is no longer covered by 
the JSE Guarantee Fund. All Shareholders who elect to convert their Dematerialised Shares into Certificated 
Shares will have to again dematerialise their Certificated Shares should they wish to trade them in accordance 
with the rules of Strate (see paragraph 35 below).

Each applicant’s duly appointed CSDP or broker will receive the applicable Offer Shares in dematerialised form 
on its behalf after payment of the applicable Offer Price therefor by the applicant’s CSDP, which is expected 
to occur by no later than Friday, 23 April 2021.

31.5 Payment and delivery of Offer Shares

Each successful applicant shall forward to:

31.5.1 its CSDP, all information required by its CSDP and instruct its CSDP to pay, against delivery of the 
applicant’s allocation of Offer Shares, the aggregate Offer Price for such Offer Shares to the account 
designated by the Company. Such information and instructions must be confirmed to the applicant’s 
CSDP no later than 12:00 on Tuesday, 20 April 2021; and

31.5.2 the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner, details of its CSDP, the name of the account holder and number 
of Offer Shares to be acquired and such other information as is required by the Financial Advisor 
and Bookrunner in order to effect delivery of the relevant Offer Shares. Such information must be 
confirmed to the Financial Advisor and Bookrunner no later than 12:00 on Tuesday, 20 April 2021.

By no later than 12:00 on Monday, 19 April 2021 each applicant must place funds with its CSDP or make other 
necessary arrangements to enable its CSDP to make payment for the allocated Offer Shares on or prior to 
the Listing Date, in accordance with each applicant’s agreement with its CSDP.

On the Listing Date, the applicant’s allocation of Offer Shares will be credited to the applicant’s CSDP or 
controlled broker account after payment during the Strate settlement runs which occur throughout the day.

32. USE OF PROCEEDS

The gross proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares receivable by Revego are estimated to be c.R1,519 million. 
The net proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares receivable by Revego are estimated to be c.R1,424 million, 
after deducting fees and estimated expenses payable by Revego, which are expected to amount to c.R91 million and 
R4 million cash that will be retained by Revego for reasonable foreseeable operating expenses.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares will be transferred to the Fund as a capital contribution by 
Revego.
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The following table presents the proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares receivable by Revego and how such 
proceeds will be utilised. This information is based on an Offer Price of R10 per Share and assumes that 151,941,442 
Shares will be issued. Save as presented in the table, the proceeds from the issue of the Offer Shares will not be used 
to provide for any other matters

Sources R’m Uses R’m

Gross proceeds from issue of 
Offer Shares  1,519 Initial portfolio

• Assets acquired 1,210
• Bridge Facility settlement 214
Fund establishment costs 12
Listing-related costs:
• Listing costs 14
• Capital raise fees 13

• Financial Advisor and Bookrunner
• Cornerstone Shareholder commitment fee 1

Asset acquisition costs:
• Investment Manager transaction fee 8
• Due diligence costs 12
Bridge Facility upfront fees 29
• Bridge facility interest expense 2
Minimum cash requirement 4

Total sources:  1,519 Total uses:  1,519

33. SOUTH AFRICAN EXCHANGE CONTROL REGULATIONS

Currency and shares are not freely transferable from South Africa to any jurisdiction outside the geographical 
borders of South Africa or jurisdictions outside of the Common Monetary Area. These transfers of currency and 
shares must comply with the Exchange Control Regulations. The Exchange Control Regulations also regulate the 
acquisition by former residents and non-residents of Offer Shares. Applicants who are resident outside the Common 
Monetary Area should seek advice as to whether any governmental and/or other legal consent is required and/or 
whether any other formality must be adhered to, to enable an application for, or an acceptance of, the Offer.

For further details in relation to the exchange control regulations, refer to Part J – “Exchange Control Regulations” 
on page 74 below.

34. APPLICABLE LAW

The Offer, applications, allocations and acceptances in terms thereof will be exclusively governed by the laws of 
South Africa, and each applicant will be deemed, by applying for Offer Shares, to have consented and submitted to 
the jurisdiction of the courts of South Africa in relation to all matters arising out of, or in connection with, the Offer.

35. STRATE AND TRADING OF SHARES ON THE JSE

Shares may only be traded on the JSE in electronic form (Dematerialised Shares) and will be trading for electronic 
settlement via Strate immediately following the Listing.
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Strate is a system of “paperless” transfer and settlement of securities. If applicants have any doubt as to the mechanics 
of Strate they should consult their broker, CSDP or other appropriate advisor, and they are referred to the Strate 
website at http://www.strate.co.za for more information. The contents of this website are not incorporated by 
reference and do not form part of this Pre-Listing Statement and should not be relied upon for the purposes of 
forming an investment decision with respect to the Offer Shares. Some of the principal features of Strate are as 
follows:

35.1 electronic records of ownership replace share certificates and physical delivery of certificates;

35.2 trades executed on the JSE must be settled within three Business Days;

35.3 all Shareholders owning Dematerialised Shares or wishing to trade their securities on the JSE are required 
to either be a controlled client of a broker or appoint a CSDP to act on their behalf and to handle their 
settlement requirements; and

35.4 unless Shareholders owning Dematerialised Shares specifically request their CSDP to register them as an “own 
name” Shareholder (which entails a fee), their CSDP’s or broker’s nominee company, holding Shares on their 
behalf, will be the registered Shareholder of the relevant Shares and not the Shareholder itself. Subject to the 
agreement between the Shareholder and the CSDP or broker, the beneficial ownership rights (rights to vote 
and rights to dividends) will still accrue to the Shareholder. In respect of voting, the Shareholder is entitled to 
instruct the CSDP or broker (or the CSDP’s or broker’s nominee company) as to how it wishes to exercise 
the rights attaching to the Shares and/or to attend and vote at Shareholders’ meetings.

36. LISTING OF THE SHARES ON THE JSE

The JSE has conditionally approved the Listing of the Offer Shares on the Listing Date in the “Closed End Investments” 
sector of the JSE under the abbreviated name “Revego”, JSE code: “RVG” and ISIN: ZAE000296513, subject to meeting 
a minimum free float requirement of 20 percent as required by paragraph 4.28(e) of the Listings Requirements. 
Should such condition be fulfilled, the Listing is expected to be effective from the commencement of trading on the 
exchange operated by the JSE on Friday, 23 April 2021.

At Listing, all the issued Shares will be fully paid up and freely transferable.

37. MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION AND MINIMUM FREE FLOAT

The minimum subscription to be realised in terms of the Offer is R1,519 million which will be utilised as outlined in 
paragraph 32 above. Furthermore, the minimum subscription must ensure that the Company has, once the Offer 
is completed, such number and composition of Shareholders as will enable it to meet the minimum free float and 
shareholder spread requirements, being that at least 20 percent of the Shares are held by the public (as defined in 
paragraph 4.25 of the Listings Requirements).

The Listing will not proceed if the minimum subscription is not realised or the minimum free float is not achieved, 
and any acceptance of the Offer shall not take effect and no person shall have any claim whatsoever against Revego, 
the Fund or the Investment Manager, their representatives, advisors or associates, or any other person as a result of 
the failure of any condition.
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PART F: DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

38. DIRECTORS

The following section provides a description of the Company’s Directors and its corporate governance structure 
and policy.

As at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement, the Board consists of four Independent Non-Executive Directors, two 
Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director.

The Board’s responsibilities entail ensuring that the day-to-day affairs of Revego are appropriately supervised and 
controlled. The Board is ultimately responsible for Revego’s business, strategy and key policies.

Save for the CEO, who is employed on a part-time basis, Revego will not employ any staff. As agreed with the JSE, the 
function of Chief Financial Officer will be performed by Ziyaad Sarang, the Chief Financial Officer of the Investment 
Manager.

The Board, together with the Investment Manager’s staff and Investment Committee, has sufficient and satisfactory 
experience in the management of the type of Investments in which the Fund proposes to invest. The Board includes 
experienced and senior individuals who can critically apply their minds to the business of the Company.

Appointments to the Board shall be in terms of a formal and transparent procedure. Directors will be nominated 
based on their calibre, credibility, knowledge, experience, impact they are expected to have, age and gender, and 
time and attention they can devote to the role.

None of the Directors are employees or professional advisors to the Investment Manager or General Partner and 
will act independently of the Investment Manager and General Partner. Please refer to paragraph 45 below which 
provides details with regards to the Directors interests in the Investment Manager.

39. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Name, age and nationality Business address Occupation/Function 
Date of 
Appointment

Executive Directors
Reyburn Lars Hendricks South 
African (48)

Moorings 3, Portswood Ridge, 
Portswood Road,  
V&A Waterfront  
Cape Town, 8002

CEO 31 July 2019

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza  
South African (70)

104 Leslie Avenue, Fourways, 
Johannesburg, 2191 

Chairperson, Non-Executive 31 July 2019

Richard Abel  
British (50)

Green Investment Group, 
Ropemaker Place,  
28 Ropemaker Street,  
London, EC2Y 9HD

Non-Executive 31 July 2019

Independent Non-
Executive Directors
David Hugh Brown  
South African (58) 

Unit 8, Centurion Gate  
Business Park,  
120 Akkerboom Street, 
Swartkop, Centurion, 0157 

Independent Non-Executive  31 July 2019

Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari
South African (46)

Midrand Business Park, Block 5, 
563 Old Pretoria Main Road, 
Midrand, 1685 

Independent Non-Executive 31 July 2019

Shamilah Grimwood-Norley  
South African (52)

Bowmans Attorneys,  
22 Bree Street, Cape Town, 
8000

Independent Non-Executive 31 July 2019

Terrence Sonny Chauke  
South African (54) 

32 Adderley Street,  
Kensington B, Randburg, 
Johannesburg, 2196 

Lead Independent Director, 
Independent Non-Executive 

31 July 2019



55

The committees of which the directors are part are detailed in Annexure 18 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

The Directors will retire, and be eligible for re-election, at the first annual general meeting of Shareholders.

All the Directors of the Company have submitted completed directors’ declarations in compliance with Schedule 13 
of the Listings Requirements to the JSE.

Details of directorships held by the Directors of the Company in other companies currently and during the past five 
years are set out in Annexure 19 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

Short biographies of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and Executive Director are set out below:

Executive Director
Reyburn Lars Hendricks
B.BusSc (Actuarial Science); CFA

Mr. Hendricks holds a Bachelor in Business Science from the University of Cape Town where he majored in Actuarial 
Science. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder and a member of The Investment Analysts Society. 
Reyburn began his career in fund management. From 1995 to 1998 he worked at Southern Life Asset Management, 
where he was a quantitative analyst and an equity analyst. In 1998 he left Southern Life Asset Management and was 
one of the founder directors of African Harvest Capital, the investment banking subsidiary of African Harvest, now 
Vunani Capital.

In 2002, Reyburn co-founded HJS Advisory Services (“HJS”). From 2002 to 2006, HJS publicly disclosed transactions 
totalling R11.4bn, as reported by EY in its annual survey on mergers and acquisitions. In 2003, HJS was sold to 
Hosken Consolidated Investments (“HCI”). Reyburn left HCI in 2007 and became the CEO of H1 Holdings, an 
empowerment investment company to which Reyburn had advised since 2002. H1 Holdings’ focus is on developing, 
investing in and managing clean energy power plants. Reyburn’s leadership at H1 Holdings has resulted in the company 
being an equity participant in nine renewable energy and clean energy power plants.

Outside of H1 Holdings, Reyburn is a director of TSIBA Education and a founding trustee of the TSIBA Education 
Trust and a Fellow of the African Leadership Initiative.

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza
BA Hons; MA; EngD; LLD; D Econ; CD (SA)

Dr. Khoza is a distinguished thinker, businessman and change agent in the forefront of black economic empowerment. 
Dr. Khoza is currently the chairman of the Pubic Investment Corporation, Dzana Investments, Assupol Insurance 
Group and AKA Capital and was previously the chairman of Eskom, GlaxoSmithKline South Africa, Nedbank and 
Globeleq (a leading power developer across SSA, until recently). He has also served as a director of the JSE, IBM 
South Africa, Liberty Life, Standard Bank, Nampak and Old Mutual. Dr. Khoza serves as a member of the King 
Committee on corporate governance in South Africa and is chancellor of the University of Limpopo. Dr. Khoza brings 
with him over 35 years of experience in business and in particular the energy sector and is a respected leader in the 
corporate world.

Richard Abel
MA (Philosophy & English Literature); MA (Philosophy)

Richard is Managing Director of UKCI. UKCI sits within the Green Investment Group, which since 2017 has been 
part of the Macquarie Group. The UKCI pilot is an exciting opportunity for Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets 
(“MIRA”), in partnership with the United Kingdom Government, to invest £200m of United Kingdom climate 
finance funds in transformational green energy projects in SSA and India. MIRA is Macquarie’s specialist real asset 
fund management business and the largest infrastructure fund manager globally with over US$100bn of assets under 
management. Richard’s career in MIRA has included global and pan-European COO roles and asset management 
and transaction activity. Before joining Macquarie, Richard was a UK Senior Civil Servant.

He holds degrees from the University of Glasgow and University of British Columbia.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

David Hugh Brown
BCom; CTA; CA (SA)

David is currently Chief Executive Officer of Kuvimba Mining House (April 2020 to present) and has full responsibility 
for various operating mines in Zimbabwe, which includes Bindura Nickel Corporation, Freda Rebecca Gold Mine and 
Shamva Gold mine as well as several projects. He was previously Chief Executive Officer of MC Mining (formerly 
Coal of Africa), from January 2014 to January 2020 and prior to that he was both the Non-Executive Chairman 
(August 2012 to April 2013) as well as the Executive Chairman (May 2013 to December 2013), where he was 
instrumental in designing and executing the turnaround strategy for the company.

Prior to that he was the Chief Executive Officer of Impala Platinum Holdings (September 2006 to June 2012) and 
prior to that he was Chief Financial Officer (January 1999 to August 2006). In addition, he was Chairman of the two 
main operating subsidiaries of Impala Platinum Limited and Zimplats.

David is also the lead non-executive director, chairman of the audit and risk committee, chairman of the investment 
committee and member of the remuneration committee of Vodacom Group (January 2012 to present), also the 
lead non-executive director, member of the audit and risk committee and chairman of the investment committee 
of Northam Platinum (November 2017 – present), also a non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee 
and a member of the investment and the remuneration committees of Resilient REIT (August 2018 to present). In 
addition, he is a non-executive director of Bindura Nickel Corporation and Freda Rebecca Gold Mine and Chairman 
of Great Dyke Investments (a platinum project in Zimbabwe).

Amongst others, David was previously a member of the advisory board of Accenture SA, a non-executive director 
of Edcon and of Simmer & Jack.

David is also a member of The Cape Provincial Society of Chartered Accountants.

Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari
B.SocSc; Executive Development Program (Wits)

Mrs. Mkhari is the co-founder and CEO of Motseng Investment Holdings, a diversified investment holdings group 
with investments spanning asset management, property management, infrastructure investing, logistics and industrial 
manufacturing. A pioneering entrepreneur, she established the first black woman owned Closed Circuit Television 
business and subsequently founded MIH in 1998.

In November 2012, she was a promoter of Delta Property Fund, a leading black managed and substantially black 
owned property loan stock company which listed on the JSE with an asset value of R2bn. Today the asset value is c. 
R7bn.

She holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree, has completed The Executive Development Programme at Wits 
Business School and is an Archbishop Tutu Fellow. Ipeleng has served on various boards of unlisted and listed 
businesses, public sector agencies and non-profit organisations. She is currently a non-executive director of Attacq, 
KAP Industrial, Nampak and the South African Property Owners Association.

During her 20-year career, Mrs. Mkhari has been named the Cosmopolitan Mover of the Year and was a finalist in 
the Entrepreneur Business Woman of the Year Award (National Business Women’s Association) in 2006. She was 
named one of CEO magazines Most Influential Women in Business in 2008. She has been featured in The Times 
(March 2012) as one of the 20 Movers and Shakers in Africa and was featured by Destiny Magazine’s 25 Most 
Inspirational Entrepreneurs (July 2013). In November 2015 she was awarded Pioneer Woman of the Year Award by 
Forbes Woman Africa.

Shamilah Grimwood-Norley
BA; LLB; LLM

Mrs. Grimwood-Norley is a partner of Bowmans and Head of Bowmans’ Banking and Finance Department. She was 
previously Head of Bowmans’ Infrastructure Sector.

Prior to joining Bowmans, Shamilah was a partner at a leading international law firm where she worked for 15 years. 
She was admitted to practice as an attorney in the State of New York in 2001 and as an attorney in South Africa in 
1996.

She is a regular speaker and panelist at various conferences on power, infrastructure and project finance. Her 
expertise have been recognised by Best Lawyers (Lawyer of the Year for Project Finance), Chambers Global (Projects 
& Energy in South Africa and in Africa), Legal 500 (Projects and Infrastructure and Project Finance/PPP) and Who’s 
Who (Public Procurement and Project Finance).
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Shamilah acts for a range of clients including developers, sponsors, commercial banks, development finance 
institutions, utilities and government institutions on a range of transactions in the infrastructure sector including 
power, energy, roads, ports and social development infrastructure. Her transactional experience includes the 
structuring and negotiation of public private partnerships, concessions, privatisations and off-take arrangements. 
She also has transactional experience in the funding of infrastructure projects (debt and equity) including acquisition 
and project financing transactions. She has worked on projects in several countries in SSA including South Africa, 
Mozambique, Namibia, Kenya, Zambia, Uganda, Rwanda, Botswana, Tanzania and Zimbabwe.

Terrence Sonny Chauke 
MBA (UCT); PDM (Wits); B. Admin (UNIN); FM&A (UCT); CD(SA); Master HR generalist (SABPP)

Mr. Chauke is a Founder CEO of Mathaveiya Skills Enhancement (“MSE”) , an organisation that has been working with 
client organisations to provide bespoke financial wellness to employees / members, since 2007. MSE also provides 
consulting services in human capital, strategy and leadership, amongst others. Mr. Chauke serves as Lead Independent 
Director of the Board and Chairman of the Advisory Board. Mr. Chauke is an entrepreneur and business leader with 
extensive experience as a director of JSE-listed and non-listed companies. He served on boards of retirement funds, 
infrastructure organisations, property management companies, parastatals, investment companies and regulatory 
bodies in South Africa since 2000. 

In addition to Revego, Mr. Chauke currently serves on the boards of Pareto Limited, Business Venture Investment 
No. 1360 and Government Employees Pension Fund as an alternate trustee. At executive level Mr. Chauke previously 
served as Joint-CEO and partner of Aspire Financial Services Group, CEO and Principal Officer of Eskom Pension and 
Provident Fund, Managing Director of Safrican Insurance, strategist at Fedsure Life, Provincial Head of Department 
of Labour (Gauteng), and as a training advisor at Eskom (Generation Group). Mr. Chauke is a Chartered Director 
(SA). He has also served as a visiting lecturer at the University of the Witwatersrand between 2001 and 2008 and 
lectured part-time at AAA school of advertising in 2018.

40. DIRECTORS’ DECLARATIONS

Each Director, including directors of the Investment Manager, has confirmed that he/she:

40.1 has not been declared bankrupt, insolvent or sequestrated or at any time been a party to a scheme of 
arrangement or made any other form of compromise with their creditors in any jurisdiction;

40.2 has not ever been involved in any business rescue plans and/or resolution proposed by any entity to commence 
business rescue proceedings, application having been made for any entity to begin business rescue proceedings, 
notices having been delivered in terms of section 129(7) of the Companies Act, receiverships, compulsory 
liquidations, administrations, company voluntary arrangements or any composition or arrangement with 
creditors generally or any class of creditors of any company where such person is or was a director, with an 
executive function within such company at the time of, or within the 12 months preceding, such events, other 
than Reyburn Lars Hendricks who was a director of African Partnerships Limited and Pennystocks Investments 
Limited which delisted from the JSE via schemes of arrangement during 2000 and 2001, respectively, and was 
a director of Dinatla Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited which was a solvent company wound up via 
voluntary liquidation in September 2014;

40.3 has not entered into creditors’ voluntary liquidations of any company where such person is or was a director, 
with an executive function within such company at the time of, or within the 12 months preceding such events;

40.4 has not been involved in any compulsory liquidation, administration or voluntary arrangements of any 
partnership where such person is or was a partner at the time of, or within the 12 months preceding, such 
events;

40.5 has not had receivership of any of the assets of such person or of a partnership of which he or she is or was a 
partner at the time of, or within 12 months preceding, such events;

40.6 has not been the subject of public criticism by any statutory or regulatory authorities, including recognised 
professional bodies, or been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting in 
the management or conduct of the affairs of any company;

40.7 has not ever been convicted of or committed any offence involving dishonesty, fraud, theft, forgery, perjury, 
misrepresentation or embezzlement committed by such person;
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40.8 has not ever been found guilty in disciplinary proceedings, by an employer or regulatory body, due to dishonest 
activities committed by such person;

40.9 has not ever been removed from an office of trust on the grounds of misconduct and involving dishonesty;

40.10 has not ever been barred from entry into any profession or occupation;

40.11 has not ever been convicted in any jurisdiction of any criminal offence or an offence under legislation relating 
to the Companies Act, and no company of which he or she was a director, alternate director or officer at the 
time of the offence has been convicted in any jurisdiction of any criminal offence, or an offence under legislation 
relating to the Companies Act; or

40.12 is not or has not been subject to any court order declaring him or her delinquent or placing him or her under 
probation under section 162 of the Companies Act and/or section 47 of the Corporations Act No. 69 of 1984, 
as amended, or disqualifying him or her to act as a director under sections 69 or 219 of the Companies Act.

41. APPOINTMENT, QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Annexure 17 of this Pre-Listing Statement contains details of the relevant provisions of the Company’s MOI, regarding:

41.1 the appointment, qualification and term of office of Directors and the retirement of Directors by rotation;

41.2 the remuneration of Directors. A disinterested quorum of Directors may vote remuneration to the executive 
Directors in the circumstances set out in the MOI; and

41.3 the borrowing powers of the Company exercisable by the Directors. The borrowing powers set out in the 
MOI may be varied by a special resolution of shareholders.

In terms of the MOI, no Director may be appointed for life or for an indefinite period, and there is no specified age 
of retirement for Directors.

The Directors’ borrowing powers have not been exceeded since the date of the Company’s incorporation, and there 
have not been any Exchange Control or other restrictions on the borrowing powers of the Company, other than 
restrictions generally applicable under the Exchange Control Regulations.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s borrowing powers and the business and affairs of the Company shall be 
managed and directed by the Board which may exercise all the powers and perform any functions of the Company.

42. REMUNERATION

The fees (exclusive of VAT) in relation to Board and Committee meetings will be as follows per director:

Chairperson – R200 000 per annum.

All non-executive Directors* – R200 000 per annum.
*excluding UKCI Board representative (Richard Abel) who earns no fee

Board Committees

All Board committee members and relevant committee chairpersons’ remuneration are included in the 
abovementioned remuneration of R200 000 per annum per director.

The fees referred to above were approved by special resolution passed by the existing Shareholders in terms of 
section 66(9) of the Companies Act on 12 December 2019. The approval granted in terms of that special resolution 
will remain in force until the earlier of the second anniversary of the date of that special resolution and the passing of 
a new shareholders’ resolution in relation to Directors’ fees.

No fees have been paid or been accrued as payable in lieu of Directors’ fees at the date of this Pre-Listing Statement 
or since the incorporation of the Company.

No remuneration will be payable to any Director as a consequence of the Offer or the Listing. Furthermore, the 
remuneration to be paid to any Director will not be varied in consequence of the Offer or the Listing.

None of the Directors have received any remuneration or benefits from: (a) any holding company of the Company; 
(b) any subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the Company; (c) any associate of the Company or of any entity included in 
(a) or (b); (d) a joint venture partner of the Company or an entity included in (a) to (c); or (e) entities that provided 
management or advisory services to the Company or any of the entities included in (a) to (d).

No loans have been made or security furnished by the Company to or for the benefit of any Director or manager or 
any associate of any Director or manager of the Company.
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Revego has entered into a services contract with Reyburn Lars Hendricks. Reyburn was appointed on 30 July 2019 
and in terms of the contract is required to retire at the age of 65, however either party to the contract may terminate 
it on 90 days’ notice. The remuneration for the services provided is R500,000 per annum. As the role is part time, in 
terms of the appointment, the CEO is not entitled to any further benefits over and above his annual remuneration.

43. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

As agreed with the JSE, all functions required to be performed by the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) have been 
outsourced to the Investment Manager in terms of a services agreement and will principally be performed by the 
CFO of the Investment Manager, Mr. Ziyaad Sarang. Revego will therefore not employ a CFO of its own accord.

The remuneration for the services provided is R1,500,000 per annum (excluding VAT). As the role is part time, 
in terms of the appointment, the part-time CFO is not entitled to any further benefits over and above his annual 
remuneration.

The audit committee has satisfied itself with (i) the arrangements in respect of the financial reporting functions of 
Revego and (ii) the experience and expertise of Mr. Sarang.

Refer to paragraph 58 below for a brief biography regarding Mr. Sarang.

44. INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the Last Practicable Date and on implementation of the Offer and Listing, none of the Directors, or their 
respective associates, held, or will hold, any direct or indirect beneficial interests in the Shares. None of the Directors 
have been granted any Share options or awards or any other right which would have had the same or similar effect 
in respect of providing a right to such Directors to subscribe for Shares.

45. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Reyburn Lars Hendricks and Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza are interested in the Investment Management Agreement 
entered into by the Fund via their directorships and shareholder interests in H1 Holdings and Dzana Investments 
respectively, being shareholders in the Investment Manager, as described in paragraphs 55.3 and 55.4 respectively 
below. Other than this, neither Mr. Reyburn Lars Hendricks nor Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza, have had any beneficial 
interest, either directly or indirectly, in transactions that were affected by the Company during the current or 
immediately preceding financial year or during an earlier financial year which remain in any respect outstanding or 
unperformed.

None of the other Directors have had any beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in the Investment Manager 
or in any transactions that were affected by the Company during the current or immediately preceding financial year 
or during an earlier financial year which remain in any respect outstanding or unperformed.

None of the Directors have any potential conflicts of interest between their duties to Revego and their private 
interests.

46. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Save as otherwise stated in this Pre-Listing Statement, no Director has a material beneficial interest, direct or 
indirect, in the promotion of the Company.

No sums have been paid, or agreed to be paid to any Director or to any company in which he or she is beneficially 
interested, directly or indirectly, or of which he or she is a director (associate company) or to any partnership, 
syndicate or other association of which he or she is a member (associate entity), in cash, securities or otherwise, by 
any person, either to induce him or her to become, or to qualify him or her as a Director or otherwise for services 
rendered by him or her or by the associate company or the associate entity in connection with the promotion or 
formation of the Company.
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47. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR TO BE ACQUIRED

No Director has had any material beneficial interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the 
Company out of the proceeds of the Offer or otherwise in the three years preceding the Last Practicable Date and 
no amount has been paid during this period, or is proposed to be paid, to any Director.

48. SUMMARY OF EXISTING OR PROPOSED CONTRACTS RELATING TO DIRECTORS AND 
MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION, RESTRAINT PAYMENTS, ROYALTIES OR SECRETARIAL 
AND TECHNICAL FEES

Save for the Directors’ remuneration as described in paragraph 42 above and the Investec Service Level Agreement 
as described in paragraph 82.3, below there are no existing or proposed contracts (whether written or oral) relating 
to Directors or managerial remuneration, restraint payments, royalties or secretarial and technical fees.

As at the date of the Pre-Listing Statement, there were no other contracts or arrangements in which the Directors 
were materially interested, and which were significant in relation to the business of the Company.

49. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annexure 20 to this Pre-Listing Statement sets out the details of the application by Revego of the King Code and 
other corporate governance principles.



61

PART G: MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

50. INVESTMENT MANAGER

The General Partner has appointed Revego Fund Managers Proprietary Limited as the Investment Manager on 
an exclusive basis. The Investment Manager is a discretionary FSP and is authorised to manage the Fund and its 
Investments in accordance with the Investment Policy, Key Policy Requirements and other provisions as contained in 
the Partnership Agreement and Investment Management Agreement.

The Investment Manager shall provide its services in accordance with the Environmental and Social Requirements as 
defined in the Partnership Agreement.

The management team and Investment Committee of the Investment Manager have a proven track record in 
managing third party funds and have direct relevant experience in the energy sector.

Revego, as the limited partner, will be a passive investor in the Fund and it will play no role in the day-to-day 
management or investment decisions of the Fund. Investment decisions are made by the Investment Committee. Any 
changes (excluding resignations) to the Investment Committee requires the prior approval of the Advisory Board and 
an amendment  to the Investment Policy, which in turn requires the approval of Shareholders by way of an ordinary 
resolution. Furthermore, Revego will, through the Advisory Board, have certain veto and approval rights in line with 
standard private equity principles within an en commandite partnership structure.

Given that one of the key objectives of the Fund is for the Fund’s shareholding in Investments to qualify as Black for 
ownership purposes, in terms of paragraph 3.10 (Private Equity Funds) of the BEE Codes published in October 2012, 
Black People must hold at least 51% of the exercisable voting rights, no less than 51% of senior management must be 
Black and at least 51% of the profit made by the Investment Manager must accrue to Black People. In addition, the 
Fund must invest in Project Companies that are at least 25% held by Black people in a specified percentage over a 
specified period (with the Fund’s own holding counting towards this requirement).

The current effective Black shareholding of the Investment Manager is 61.7% (see further details of its shareholders 
under paragraph 55 below).

The Investment Management Agreement is summarised in paragraphs 51 – 54 below and is available for inspection 
as noted in paragraph 89 below.

The Investment Management Agreement is governed by the laws of South Africa.

The registered address of the Investment Manager is 100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, Sandton, 2196.

51. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

The services to be provided by the Investment Manager in terms of the Investment Management Agreement include 
the following:

51.1 to establish and appoint individuals to the initial Investment Committee;

51.2 to identify, research and evaluate Investments and Disposals, including conducting any due diligence investigation 
of any Investments;

51.3 to present Investment and Disposal proposals to the Investment Committee for consideration;

51.4 to establish opportunities for and to negotiate the selection, timing, size and all terms of Investments and 
Disposals, prepare and negotiate Investment agreements and/or shareholder agreements, arrange for the 
subscription of, purchase or acquisition, sale, making or exchanging of Investments or Disposals independently 
or with other investors;

51.5 to negotiate and implement Investments or Disposals for the Fund alone or Investments in a syndicate or as 
co-investor with other investors;

51.6 to negotiate and arrange loan agreements or hedging arrangements in accordance with the Investment Policy;

51.7 if considered appropriate, to negotiate and arrange political risk insurance cover for the Investments;
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51.8 to monitor the performance of and, where appropriate, nominate directors of Project Companies, exercise 
all rights conferred upon the Fund under the terms of any memorandum of incorporation, shareholders 
agreement, investment agreement or otherwise in respect of a Project Company and liaise with, consult, 
assist or procure assistance to be given to Project Companies and generally to take any action it reasonably 
considers appropriate for the protection of an Investment;

51.9 in its discretion, to exercise voting rights in respect of Investments of the Fund on the Fund’s behalf;

51.10 to appoint (to the extent applicable) directors to the Project Companies;

51.11 to enter into and execute such agreements in connection with Investments or proposed Investments and 
do all such other acts or things as it may reasonably deem necessary and/or advisable or incidental to the 
management of the Fund;

51.12 lawfully to market the Fund through direct and indirect means and represent it at functions, conferences and 
events using marketing materials;

51.13 to engage professional advisors;

51.14 to report to the Fund on the performance of Investments;

51.15 to procure the independent valuation of the Fund’s portfolio of Investments on a bi-annual basis;

51.16 to keep the Fund informed of all material relevant matters relating to the affairs of the Fund, Investments, 
Disposals and Project Companies generally and their respective performances;

51.17 to assist the auditors of the Fund with the audit of the Fund’s accounts by the provision of all such information 
as may be necessary or desirable for such purpose;

51.18 to procure that appropriate corporate governance is applied in the Project Companies;

51.19 to provide such administrative assistance as the fund administrator may reasonably require, in relation to:

51.19.1 maintaining records of the Fund; and

51.19.2 engaging professional advisors to prepare tax returns and supporting data in respect of the Fund; and

51.20 to deal with reasonable queries from the Fund regarding the operation and investment performance of the 
Fund as soon as reasonably practicable after such queries have been received by the Investment Manager.

52. MANAGEMENT FEE

The Management Fee will comprise the following:

52.1 a fee equal to 0.65% per annum of the Enterprise Value, payable quarterly in arrears as provided for in the 
Investment Management Agreement and Partnership Agreement. This portion of the Management Fee will be 
calculated and accrued on a daily basis; and

52.2 a Transaction Execution Fee equal to 0.50% of the Acquisition Cost of an Investment (less any fees, costs and 
expenses related to such acquisition) payable upon the acquisition of such Investment becoming unconditional, 
provided that the aggregate Transaction Execution Fee to be received by the Investment Manager for the 
duration of the Fund shall be limited to the TF Cap (being, initially, R15 million). Should the Investment Manager 
at any time expect the TF Cap to be exceeded, it shall inform Revego, and Revego shall decide whether to, 
at its discretion:

52.2.1 remove the TF Cap; or

52.2.2 retain the TF Cap, but with a corresponding increase to the Management Fee, such that the Investment 
Manager would not be financially any worse off than it would have been had the TF Cap been 
removed (as per above); or

52.2.3 agree with the Investment Manager any other fee arrangement as deemed mutually agreeable between 
the Investment Manager and Revego such that the Investment Manager would not be financially any 
worse off than it would have been had the TF Cap been removed (as per above).
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53. TERMINATION OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

As agreed with the JSE, the Investment Management Agreement will endure for an initial period of 10 years and is 
thereafter renewable for successive periods of five years each unless, during any of those periods, it is terminated in 
accordance with its terms (including, by the General Partner, as outlined below).

Revego as the limited partner may, through an amendment of its Investment Policy which requires the approval of 
Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution, require that the Investment Management Agreement be cancelled 
by the General Partner: 

53.1 with cause, in the event of certain default events, such as fraud, negligence or wilful misconduct on the part 
of the Investment Manager or an un-remedied material breach of the Investment Management Agreement by 
the Investment Manager; or

53.2 without cause, on six months’ written notice to the Investment Manager.

The Fund shall on termination without cause pay a termination amount to the Investment Manager equal to the 
amount of the Management Fee which would have been due to the Investment Manager until the date which falls 60 
months after the termination date had the Investment Manager’s appointment not been terminated (calculated on 
the Enterprise Value, as applicable, of Revego as at the termination date). The 60 month period will however reduce 
on a monthly basis by a month, from inception of the Investment Management Agreement to a minimum of 24 
months (i.e. after 36 months, the penalty will remain at 24 months for the remainder of the Investment Management 
Agreement tenure).

For purposes of the above paragraph, the termination date will be determined at the end of the six months’ notice 
period in line with paragraph 53.2, which date will be used to determine the termination penalty payable as described 
in the preceding paragraph. During the notice period, the Fund will remain liable to pay the Management Fee.

54. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Investment Manager and all its directors, employees, representatives, 
agents and shareholders (each an, “Indemnified Person”) will not be liable to the Fund, the fund administrator or 
the Company for any act or omission taken or suffered by such Indemnified Person in connection with the conduct 
of the affairs of the Fund or otherwise in connection with the Partnership Agreement, the Investment Management 
Agreement or the matters contemplated therein, unless such act or omission resulted from fraud, gross negligence, 
wilful misconduct or bad faith on the part of an Indemnified Person.

The Fund shall procure that it does indemnify the Indemnified Persons in accordance with the terms of the Partnership 
Agreement.

None of the Indemnified Persons shall be liable to the fund administrator, the Fund or the Company for any indirect 
or consequential damages or for loss of profits or loss of data.

55. SHAREHOLDING IN THE INVESTMENT MANAGER TOGETHER WITH EXERCISABLE 
VOTING RIGHTS

55.1 Investec – 49% shareholding

Investec provides a diverse range of financial products and services to a niche client base in three principal 
markets, the United Kingdom, South Africa and Australia, as well as certain other geographies.

Investec has a proven track record of establishing and managing third party funds leveraging off in-house 
expertise including four separate specialist Aviation Funds (senior and mezzanine debt and equity) with a 
combined value in excess of US$5bn in over 45 aircraft worldwide with a multitude of global operators, 
Investec Property Fund Limited which was listed on the JSE in 2011 and Investec Australia Property Fund 
Limited which listed on the JSE in 2013 and on the Australian Stock Exchange in 2019.

Investec is a level one BEE contributor with 21.8% Black ownership.

Potential investors are referred to paragraph 86 below which provides disclosures of the various areas of 
involvement by Investec in the Revego structure.



64

55.2 ED Trust – 20% shareholding

The ED Trust was created in 2003 when a 25.1% shareholding in Investec was transferred to Black entities. The 
ED Trust aims to create active economic participants in South Africa by supporting previously disadvantaged 
Black South Africans through educational and entrepreneurial initiatives. It is still a shareholder in Investec, has 
invested in several additional investments, and will continue to invest in the right opportunities in order to build 
up a trust fund large enough to make a significant positive impact on South Africa and its people.

Beneficiaries of the ED Trust have included:

• Promaths students – Offers extra maths and science tuition to Grade 10, 11 and 12 learners;

• Unemployed youth – facilitated through Youth Employment Services, a non-profit organisation whose 
main objective is to facilitate job creation for the youth in South Africa;

• The villagers of 11 villages in Mpumalanga and Limpopo – where Innovation: Africa assisted in setting up 
boreholes and related infrastructure in water-stricken villages using solar energy;

• Learners – who are awarded high school and university bursaries; and

• Young black entrepreneurs – chosen to go on global exposure trips with Ennovate, exposing these groups of 
entrepreneurs and business professionals to the latest technologies, innovation and best business practice.

The ED Trust has a number of investments, including Investec, Ninety One Limited, the Bud Group, Izandla 
Property Fund and Khulasande Capital.

The ED Trust acts independently of Investec and the majority of its board of trustees comprise of individuals 
not appointed by Investec. The trustees of the ED Trust are Mr Khumo Shuenyane, Mr Stephen Koseff, Ms 
Constance Mashaba, Ms Happy Masondo and Mr Luyolo Poswa.

Potential investors are referred to paragraph 86 below which provides disclosures of the various areas of 
involvement by Investec in the Revego structure, including the interest of the ED Trust in Investec.

55.3 Dzana Investments – 15% shareholding

Dzana is a 100% Black-owned investment holding company in which Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza (Non-Executive 
Director of Revego) and Ms. Nkateko Patience Khoza (Non-Executive Director of the Investment Manager) is 
invested, having its origins in management consulting and private equity investment.

Dzana has interests in the property, energy, education, health and Information Communication and Technology 
(“ICT”) sectors and benefits from the vast business network and relationships of its shareholders.

Its shareholders are Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza (30%), Mumsy Meisie Khoza (30%), Nkateko Patience Khoza 
(20%) and Munene Kgopotso Khoza (20%).

55.4 H1 Holdings – 16% shareholding

H1 Holdings is a 100% Black-owned investment holding company established in 2000 and since 2012 has 
focused on the energy sector. It is a shareholder in a diversified portfolio of multi-technology assets spanning 
R2bn – R4bn of the REIPPPP at various stages of development. H1 Holdings is building significant operational 
and technical capacity in the energy sector with 15 employees directly focused in this area. Key individuals 
include Lionel Jacobs and Reyburn Lars Hendricks (Chief Executive Officer of Revego).

Lionel is a founder of H1 Holdings and was previously an executive director at Bidvest and commercial director 
at Bidserv. Prior to H1 Holdings, Lionel was CEO of Siphumelele Investments, serving on boards of PSG, 
Fedics, I&J, Ster Kinekor and Johnnic. Currently Lionel serves as non-executive director of Long4Life, non-
executive chairman of Compuclearing, non-executive chairman of Vunani and chairman of Saldanha Foods.

Reyburn has since 2007 been a joint controlling shareholder and manager of H1 Holdings.

The current shareholders of H1 Holdings are The Reyburn Hendricks Investment Trust (74.53%) and Lionel 
Isaac Jacobs (25.47%).
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56. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

The board of the Investment Manager will manage the business of the Investment Manager. Details of the board of 
the Investment Manager are set out in the table below:

Name, age and 
nationality Business address 

Occupation/
Function 

Date of 
Appointment

Andre Lawrence Wepener 
South African (36)

100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, 
Sandton, 2196

Non-Executive Director 26 November 2020

Bronwen Kim Trower 
South African (30)

100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, 
Sandton, 2196

Non-Executive Director 26 November 2020

Carla Linda Samaai 
South African (51)

Moorings 3 Portswood Ridge,
Portswood Road, Waterfront
Cape Town, 8002

Non-Executive Director 12 August 2019

Nkateko Patience Khoza 
South African (44)

104 Leslie Avenue, Fourways, 
Johannesburg, 2191

Non-Executive Director 17 October 2018

Shelley Thomas 
South African (54)

5 Everglades, 16 Coleraine Drive
Riverclub, Sandton, 2196

Non-Executive Director 19 August 2019

Potential investors are referred to paragraph 86 below which provides disclosures of the various areas of involvement 
by Investec in the Revego structure, including disclosure of any Investec employees serving on the board of directors 
of the Investment Manager.

Brief biographies of the Investment Manager’s board of directors are set out below:

Andre Lawrence Wepener (Non-Executive Director)
CA(SA); B.Comm (Hons)

Andre heads the Investec Power & Infrastructure Finance team based in Johannesburg. The team provides funding 
solutions for power and infrastructure projects and sponsors across Sub-Saharan Africa. Andre has been with 
Investec for 15 years with a broad range of experience in the specialist lending space across multiple sectors.

Bronwen Kim Trower (Non-Executive Director)
CA(SA); Bachelor’s Degree (Accounting); Honours Degree (Accounting)

Bronwen is a Chartered Accountant with four years of experience in investment banking and an additional four years 
of experience in fund management. She is a fund manager in the Investec Specialist Investments (“ISI”) business 
where her expertise lies in credit assets, enhanced cash and structured strategies. Her focus on bespoke, specialist 
and alternative asset classes was cemented within ISI, being the alternative asset manager of Investec Specialist 
Bank, where the team aims to leverage off Investec Specialist Bank’s origination, structuring and trading expertise 
in order to package specialised investment opportunities into investable funds. Bronwen assisted with establishing, 
implementing and operationalising the management company and fund manager of ISI. Being a FAIS accredited 
representative, she continuously assesses, manages, maintains and creates products to implement pay off profiles, 
fund returns and strategies within ISI’s various portfolios.

Previously Bronwen’s investment banking experience aided this bespoke investment focus whereby she was part of the 
Financial Products Credit Investment team within Investec Bank where the team would purchase and structure debt 
and/or fixed income instruments and their derivatives. This included asset origination in various forms of credit across 
a diverse jurisdictional mandate and currencies for the bank’s balance sheet. While focusing on credit proprietary 
trading and investment positions, Bronwen also had a good grasp of balance sheet optimisation techniques with the 
aim of leading to better capital utilisation and increased earnings for the bank. Qualifying as a chartered accountant 
through Investec’s SAICA accredited program in 2015, Bronwen was exposed to various areas of the bank over the 
three-year article period which included specialised growth, leverage finance and equity derivatives.

Carla Linda Samaai (Non-Executive Director)
Diploma: Music Teaching

Carla Samaai is the COO of H1 Holdings. Before joining H1 Holdings, Carla held executive positions in the fields of 
education, information technology and human capital management. A pioneering entrepreneur, she has had success 
in the establishment of a human resource management consultancy in the information technology sector. Carla 
has held leadership roles in the Federation of African Personnel Service Organisations, the Black IT Forum and the 
Cape Regional Chamber of Commerce. As a social activist, she devotes time to serving on the boards of local non-
governmental organisations.
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Nkateko Patience Khoza (Non-Executive Director)
MBA; BCom (Information Systems, Economics and Accounting)

In 1999, Nkateko started her career initially as a graduate trainee at BMW SA where she then progressed to become 
Business Analyst and Junior Project Manager. Subsequent to this she worked for the Gauteng Shared Services 
Centre (Gauteng Provincial Contact Centre) and Deloitte Consulting with a focus on business process solutions and 
outsourcing. Nkateko currently works with her father, Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza, in Dzana Investments, serving as its 
CEO with the sole aim of creating a holding company with interests in the property, energy, education, health and 
ICT sectors.

Shelley Thomas (Non-Executive Director)
BCompt; PGDA; CA (SA)

Ms Shelley Thomas has been an Independent Non-Executive Director at Texton Property Fund since October 
29, 2018. Ms. Thomas serves as Chair of the board of Industrial Timber Supplies and has been an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of Workforce Holdings since December 5, 2016. Shelley has over the years sat on several 
boards and committees. She has deep insight into the workings of large organisations in the public and private 
sector and an in-depth understanding of best practices in governance. She is currently self-employed. Her previous 
appointments included Director in the internal audit division of SekelaXabiso, divisional head of Forensic, Compliance, 
and Governance at Protect-A-Partner International and Financial Director at Ubambo Investment Holdings. Shelley 
has worked at Transnet Group and gained experience at Transnet, Spoornet and Portnet working in the internal 
audit, financial accounting, management accounting and systems development units. She has also been employed in 
private practice at Manase and Associates and Ian Pierce and Associates where her audits included external audits 
at Transnet, forensic audits at Denel Aviation and clean audit projects at the Provincial Department of Health in 
KwaZulu-Natal.

57. INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The board of the Investment Manager shall nominate members to serve on the Investment Committee which will 
have at least 51% of its members being Black People.

Any changes (excluding resignations) to the Investment Committee requires the prior approval of the Advisory 
Board and an amendment to the Investment Policy which, in turn, requires the approval of Shareholders by way of 
an ordinary resolution.

The Investment Committee is an independent committee of the Investment Manager and shall consist of between 
four and seven members, with at least four members not being employed in an executive capacity by the Investment 
Manager. The Investment Management Agreement further requires that at least one Key Person is also a member of 
the Investment Committee. Ziyaad Sarang, as Key Person, therefore serves on the Investment Committee.

All investment decisions for the Fund will be made by the Investment Committee.

The Investment Manager shall promptly inform the Company should any Investment Committee member resign or 
be removed. The appointment of an Investment Committee member to replace Jasandra Nyker (see below) is in 
progress and will be subject to the approval of the Advisory Board and Revego Shareholders.

Brief biographies of the initial Investment Committee members are set out below:

Glynn Burger
CA (SA); Masters in Business Leadership

Mr. Glynn Burger, a qualified chartered accountant with over 35 years of banking experience, served as an executive 
director and joint managing director of Investec from 2000 until 2019. Mr. Burger was Group Risk Manager and 
Financial Director, and in his capacity as Group Risk Manager was a key decision maker on Investec’s Credit, Deal 
Forum and Investment committees and as such reviewed and evaluated numerous transactions throughout his 
career. Mr. Burger also served as a non-executive director of Investec.

Patsy David
MBA; BCom; FSP Representative

Ms. David is the Head of Research at All Weather Capital, a specialist asset manager with offerings in hedge funds, 
balanced funds and long only equity funds in SA and offshore. Previously, she was responsible for research on South 
African non-consumer and consumer industrials, luxury and healthcare stocks at ABSA Asset Management’s Equity 
Franchise. She has in excess of 20 years’ experience in investment banking. She worked as a sell-side analyst at HSBC 
and Macquarie, analysing property, food producers, leisure and healthcare stocks. Between 2005 and 2008, she 
worked at the Public Investment Corporation as a portfolio manager/analyst for the non-consumer sectors, including 
telecommunications, diversified industrials, healthcare and technology.
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Rajit Nanda
MBA

Mr. Nanda is currently the Chief Investment Officer of ACWA Power (a shareholder in Bokpoort), a developer, 
investor, co-owner and operator of power generation and desalinated water production plants with contracted 
capacity of electricity in excess of 22 000MW and 2.7 million m³/day of desalinated water, providing employment to 
more than 2 300 people. ACWA Power operates throughout the Gulf Cooperation Council, Jordan, and Egypt and 
further afield in Turkey, Morocco, and Southern Africa. Prior to joining ACWA Power, Mr. Nanda held the position of 
Chief Financial Officer of Engie Energy International for the Middle East, Africa and Asia from 1999 to 2008. Engie is 
one of the world’s leading independent power producers, with 103GW of gross installed power generating capacity 
in operation across all technologies and a significant portfolio of projects under development.

Dr. Zuko Kubukeli
BSc; PhD

Dr. Kubukeli began his formal work in 1999 as a property manager for the listed Atlas Properties, which was later 
bought by Acucap. After three years with Atlas, he joined Brait and was promoted to executive director of Brait 
Specialist Funds where he was responsible for identifying and raising funds from institutional investors for the fund-
of-funds which resulted in the fund eventually having R2bn under management. Dr. Kubukeli was involved in setting 
up the first clean technology renewable energy fund on the African continent, the Evolution One Fund, capitalized 
at US$90m with the International Finance Corporation, Norfund and Industrial Development Corporation amongst 
its investors in late 2006. During his tenor at the fund, Dr. Kubukeli gained an in-depth insight into investment 
economics pertaining to renewable energy projects in South Africa. In late 2008 he commenced with the building of 
private equity funds through Pan Africa Capital Holdings and to date the value of the funds are in excess of R750m. 
He is CEO and managing partner of PAPE Fund Managers and has been managing private equity teams since 2006 
with funds in excess of R2bn. He brings with him 10 years of experience in investing and managing private equity 
investments with specific experience in the renewable energy sector.

Ziyaad Sarang
Refer to paragraph 58 below.

Jasandra Nyker – Appointed 6 September 2019; Resigned 1 March 2021
MBA; BBus Sci

Ms. Nyker is currently a Managing Director at Denham Capital Management and was previously the CEO of 
BioTherm Energy, a leading pan-African investment platform focused on the development of wind and solar assets. 
She joined BioTherm in 2011 and played a role in growing it from a gas platform to one with 500MW of secured 
projects, making it one of the most successful platforms in the African renewable energy space to date. She has also 
launched BioTherm’s expansion into Africa and the Corporate PPA market. Prior to joining BioTherm, Ms. Nyker 
was the Senior Vice President of the PCG Clean Energy & Technology Fund I (part of PCG Asset Management) – a 
US$680m Global Renewable Energy Investment Fund based in the USA. She spent four years at PCG and led the 
direct investment fund (US$230m) during her time. Prior to that she worked in the UK from 1998 in investment 
banking and, after completing her MBA at London Business School, as a strategy consultant until 2007, focusing on 
private equity, upstream oil and renewable energy.

58. EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

The management team of the Investment Manager will be responsible for identifying opportunities and presenting 
these to the Investment Committee for approval. They will also provide representation on the boards of directors of 
Project Companies (where appropriate), provide quarterly reports to Revego in relation to Project Companies and 
provide general feedback to Revego on relevant matters relating to the Fund.

Given the limited staff to be employed by the Investment Manager, Investec will provide administration services 
including accounting, preparation of reports, tax, cash management, legal and compliance in terms of a service level 
agreement. The Investment Manager may also make use of professional advisors during the due diligence process for 
any proposed Investment.

Potential investors are referred to paragraph 86 below which provides disclosures of the various areas of involvement 
by Investec in the Revego structure, including disclosure of any Investec employees also employed on a part time 
basis by the Investment Manager.

Brief biographies of the key members of the management team are set out below:
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Abel Mncedisi Mjiyako (Chief Technical Officer)
BSc Eng. (Wits University; MBA (Wits Business School)

Mr. Mjiyako qualified as an engineer in 1999 and started his engineering career with Gold Fields of SA and later joined 
De Beers as a Project Engineer at NAMDEB (JV between Namibia Gov and De Beers). He joined Investec in 2007 
in the Resource Finance lending business with a focus on Project Finance and General Corporate Lending for mining 
clients. He later moved to Investec Bank’s Specialized Finance Africa lending business to join a new business with a 
focus on growing the bank’s presence in Africa by lending to the commercial real estate sector, financial institutions 
and local corporates outside of South Africa.

Mr. Mjiyako is the Chief Technical Officer at the Investment Manager and is responsible for the technical interface 
between the Investment Manager and Independent Technical Engineers. In addition, Mr. Mjiyako is part of the 
business development efforts with a primary focus on the technical assessment for all early-stage equity investment 
decisions.

Michael George Meeser (Chief Investment Officer)
CA (SA); Graduate Diploma in Accounting

Mr. Meeser is the Chief Investment Officer of the Investment Manager. Mr. Meeser has a unique skill set with over 20 
years’ of local and international specialist experience in corporate and project finance in the energy, infrastructure and 
mining sectors and was the global head of Investec Power and Infrastructure Finance. Prior to this, Mr. Meeser was 
the Chief Financial Officer of MC Mining for two years, a company listed on three exchanges and was instrumental 
in executing against a five-point turnaround strategy including raising debt facilities, the sale of non-core assets 
and raising of capital from shareholders. Prior to MC Mining, he headed up the Project and Infrastructure and 
Commodities and Resource Finance businesses at Investec in Johannesburg. While at Investec he was involved in the 
financing of a number of energy projects including Kelvin Power and the DMRE Peakers. He also led Investec’s equity 
investment into one of the first renewable energy projects to achieve financial close. Mr. Meeser joined Investec in 
1998 after having spent seven years in the United Kingdom working for an independent power producer, Edison 
Mission Energy, where he worked on a number of large IPPs in the United Kingdom, Spain, Italy and Turkey covering 
various technologies.

Ziyaad Sarang (Chief Financial Officer)
CA (SA); BCom; BAccSci Honours

Mr. Sarang qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 2001 with the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants. 
Mr. Sarang has 19 years of experience in infrastructure, financial services and renewable energy. He spent three 
years at a boutique investment bank, where he was instrumental in advising and structuring financial services in the 
energy and infrastructure sectors throughout Africa. Prior to that role, Mr. Sarang was the global sector head of 
infrastructure in the Client Coverage division of Standard Bank – he was at Standard Bank for 15 years.

59. SHAREHOLDING IN REVEGO

As agreed with the JSE and to ensure better alignment of the interests of the Investment Manager, Revego and 
its Shareholders, the Investment Manager will hold a 1.0% interest in the Company at Listing and will be required 
to retain such interest for so long as it is appointed as the Investment Manager of the Fund and Revego is a 
limited partner of the Fund. The Investment Manager will not be required to participate in any future equity raises 
undertaken by Revego.
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PART H: STATED CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING

60. MAJOR AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Last Practicable Date there were 10 Shares in issue, all held by a nominee shareholder (Lourens Francois 
Janse van Rensburg, an employee of Investec).

It should be noted that the Cornerstone Shareholders have entered into a tri-partite voting arrangement in terms 
of which they have agreed to vote in favour of the UKCI and EPPF board nominees, only at the first annual general 
meeting of Revego post the Listing Date. In terms of the Listings Requirements, the Cornerstone Shareholders will 
therefore be considered as controlling shareholders from the Listing Date until the first annual general meeting of 
Revego has concluded. This tri-partite voting arrangement is available for inspection as noted in paragraph 89 below.

Prospective Shareholders should further take note of the following arrangements entered into by certain of the 
Cornerstone Shareholders:

• the Investment Manager and EPPF entered into an agreement whereby the Investment Manager agreed that it 
will appoint a Black female chief operating officer and that the Investment Manager will introduce a staff share 
scheme whereby its staff will become shareholders of up to a 20% interest in the Investment Manager; and

• EPPF entered into an agreement with Investec whereby, in the event that Investec disposes of all the Shares 
held by Investec immediately prior to such disposal and such disposal represents greater than 50% of the Shares 
acquired by Investec on Listing, EPPF shall have the right to require the party to whom Investec wishes to dispose 
of such Shares to, to acquire all or a part of the Shares held by EPPF, as EPPF may require, at the same time.

Subject to the outcome of the Listing, it is anticipated that Investec, UKCI and EPPF will be beneficially interested in 
5% or more of the issued stated capital of Revego as per the below, after taking into account the required free float 
and spread requirements per the Listings Requirements:

Shareholder
Beneficial interest 

(direct)

Investec 26.0% – 27.31%
UKCI 27.6%
EPPF 23.0%

Total 76.7% – 78.0%

1. Includes effect of any additional Shares that may be taken up by Investec as a result of the stabilisation activities as described in paragraph 30

61. SHARES ISSUED OTHER THAN FOR CASH

No Shares have been issued or agreed to be issued otherwise than for cash by the Company since incorporation.

62. STATED CAPITAL

The stated capital of Revego comprises of only ordinary shares of no par value.

62.1 Prior to the Offer and Listing

Authorised Shares No. of Shares

Shares 5,000,000,000

Issued Shares No. of Shares

Shares 10

The total amount of the stated capital of the Company immediately before the Offer and Listing will be R100.
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62.2 After the Listing

Authorised Shares No. of Shares

Shares 5,000,000,000

Issued Shares No. of Shares

Shares* 151,941,452

*Note: This is on the assumption that all of the Shares are issued pursuant to the Offer.

The total amount of the stated capital of the Company immediately following the Offer and Listing will be 
R1,505 million.

The Company does not hold any treasury shares.

The Board is authorised to issue unissued Shares for cash and/or grant options to subscribe for unissued Shares, 
provided those Shares (or options) are first offered to the existing Shareholders in proportion to their existing 
holdings. Only to the extent that those Shares (or options) are not taken up by the Shareholders under the 
offer may they then be issued for cash to other persons or otherwise than in the proportion mentioned above 
provided that such issue for cash has been approved by the JSE and subject to the Listings Requirements.

These provisions shall not apply:

• where the Shares (or options) are to be issued for the acquisition of assets (other than cash); or

• to the extent that the JSE has waived these requirements; or

• to the extent that Shareholders have provided their authorisation by way of an ordinary resolution (as 
contemplated in the Listings Requirements).

On Friday, 5 March 2021, the current Shareholders passed a resolution authorising the Board to issue not 
less than 151,941,442 Shares in order to give effect to the Offer through the Company’s South African share 
register, subject to the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements. Such authority given to the Directors 
shall be valid for a period of 12 months from the date of the Listing, or until the Company’s first annual general 
meeting of Shareholders, whichever occurs first.

63. OPTIONS OR PREFERENTIAL RIGHTS IN RESPECT OF SHARES

The Company is not party to any contract or arrangement (or proposed contract or arrangement), whereby an 
option or preferential right of any kind is (or is proposed to be) given to any person to subscribe for any Shares in 
the Company.

Potential investors should however take note of the preference to be extended to certain Shareholders as part of 
the allocation of Offer Shares, as described in paragraph 31.3 above.

64. ALTERATIONS TO STATED CAPITAL

On incorporation, the Company’s authorised shares consisted of 2,000,000,000 ordinary no par value shares.

The Company’s authorised shares were decreased to 5,000,000 on 12 December 2019.

The Company’s authorised shares were increased to 5,000,000,000 on 12 February 2021.

No further alterations and, in particular, no consolidations or sub-divisions of securities of the Company has occurred 
since the date of its incorporation.

65. PREVIOUS ISSUES, OFFERS OR REPURCHASES

There have been no material issues, offers for subscription or sale of any Shares or any securities made by the 
Company since the date of its incorporation. 10 Shares were issued to Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg, a 
nominee shareholder and employee of Investec, on 1 November 2019 at R10 each (total nominal value of R100).

There have been no repurchases of the Shares since the date of its incorporation.



71

66. RIGHTS ATTACHING TO SHARES

The rights attaching to the Shares as well as the mechanism for the variation of the rights attached to the Shares are 
contained in the MOI, the salient features of which are set out in Annexure 17 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

There are no preferential conversion and/or exchange rights attaching to any securities.

All the Shares to be issued in terms of the Pre-Listing Statement will be of the same class and will rank pari passu with 
all other issued Shares of the Company.

67. LISTING ON OTHER STOCK EXCHANGES

Other than the listing of the Shares pursuant to the Listing, no securities of the Company are listed on any other 
stock exchange.

68. FOUNDERS AND MANAGEMENT SHARES

As at the Last Practicable Date there are no Shares held by founders or Directors of the Company.

69. PHYSICAL PROPERTY

Revego does not own any physical property nor has it entered into any agreement to acquire any property as at the 
Last Practicable Date. The Directors do not have any material interest in any acquisition or disposal of any property.

70. FRACTIONS

No fractions of shares have been or will be issued.
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PART I: SELLING AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

71. SELLING AND TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

Because of the following restrictions, you are advised to consult your legal advisor prior to applying 
for or accepting an offer of Offer Shares.

71.1 General

This Pre-Listing Statement and the Offer do not constitute an offer (including an offer to the public) in or 
from Japan, the United States, or any other jurisdiction where the dissemination of this Pre-Listing Statement 
or the making of the Offer may be illegal or fails to conform to the laws of such Affected Jurisdiction. To the 
extent that this Pre-Listing Statement may be sent to any Affected Jurisdiction, it is provided for information 
purposes only. Persons in Affected Jurisdictions may not accept the Offer. No person accepting the Offer 
should use the mail of any such Affected Jurisdiction nor any other means, instrumentality or facility in such 
Affected Jurisdiction for any purpose, directly or indirectly, relating to the Offer. It shall be the responsibility 
of any persons resident in a jurisdiction outside South Africa to inform themselves about, and observe, any 
applicable legal requirements in the relevant jurisdiction.

71.2 South Africa

In South Africa, the Offer will only be made by way of separate private placements to South African Qualifying 
Investors, and this Pre-Listing Statement is only being made available to such South African Qualifying Investors. 
Accordingly, this Pre-Listing Statement does not constitute an offer or invitation to the public or any person 
for the sale of or subscription for, or an advertisement or the solicitation of an offer to buy and/or subscribe 
for, securities (as defined in the Companies Act) of the Company or otherwise and will not be distributed to 
any person in South Africa in any manner which could be construed as an offer or invitation to the public in 
terms of the Companies Act. Furthermore, this Pre-Listing Statement does not constitute an advertisement 
or a prospectus registered and/or issued under the Companies Act.

71.3 United Kingdom

In the United Kingdom, the Offer will only be made to and directed at persons: (i) who fall within Article 
19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “FPO”); (ii) who 
fall within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the FPO; or (iii) to whom this Pre-Listing Statement may otherwise be 
lawfully made available to or directed at, provided that such persons are also qualified investors in the United 
Kingdom within the meaning of the Article 2(e) of the Prospectus Regulation (Regulation 2017/1129/EU) as it 
forms part of retained European Union law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018,  all such 
persons together being referred to as Relevant Persons. The investments and investment activity to which this 
communication relates are available to, and will only be engaged in with, Relevant Persons. No other person 
should act or rely on it. For the avoidance of doubt, this Pre-Listing Statement has not been approved for the 
purposes of section 21 of the FSMA and does not constitute an offer to the public in accordance with section 
85 of the FSMA.

The Offer Shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be 
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). For 
these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) 
of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC, 
where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID; 
or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. Consequently, no key information 
document required by Regulation (EU) No. 1286/2014 (as amended, the PRIIPS Regulation) for offering or 
selling the Offer Shares or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared 
and therefore offering or selling the Offer Shares or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in 
the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.
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72. LOCK-IN PERIODS AND ORDERLY MARKET ARRANGEMENTS

To augment their ongoing commitment to the Company, Investec and UKCI have undertaken, other than in specific 
circumstances, not to directly or indirectly dispose of the following number of Offer Shares taken up by them as part 
of the Offer:

• Investec – 35m Shares for 12 months from Listing Date;

• UKCI – 42 million Shares for six months from Listing Date, reducing to 35 million Shares for a further six months, 
provided that this lock-in falls away if there is any material change to the Key Policy Requirements during 
this 12-month period which has not been approved or agreed to by UKCI and which causes the Key Policy 
Requirements to contradict the investment mandate of UKCI.
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PART J: EXCHANGE CONTROL

73. SARB APPROVAL

Exchange controls are imposed on South African residents in terms of the Exchange Control Regulations. FinSurv is 
responsible for the day-to-day administration of the exchange controls. FinSurv has a wide discretion which discretion 
is not exercised arbitrarily but is based upon a set of standards and is subject to the policy guidelines laid down by 
the Minister of Finance (the head of the National Treasury), the Director-General of the National Treasury and the 
SARB.

Certain South African banks have been appointed to act as authorised dealers in foreign exchange. Authorised 
dealers may buy and sell foreign exchange, subject to conditions and within limits prescribed by FinSurv.

Authorised Dealers have been delegated authority to assist FinSurv to administer exchange controls. All applications 
to FinSurv are required to be made through an Authorised Dealer. The Currency and Exchanges Manual for 
Authorised Dealers sets out the conditions, permissions and limits applicable to the transactions in foreign exchange 
which may be undertaken by Authorised Dealers, as well as details of related administrative responsibilities.

The Exchange Control Regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the Common Monetary Area. 
Transactions between residents of the Common Monetary Area, on the one hand, including corporations, and 
persons whose normal place of residence, domicile or registration is outside of the Common Monetary Area (“non-
residents”), on the other hand, are subject to these exchange control regulations.

Currency and shares are not freely transferable from South Africa to any jurisdiction outside the geographical 
borders of South Africa or jurisdictions outside of the Common Monetary Area. These transfers must comply with 
the Exchange Control Regulations as further detailed below. The Exchange Control Regulations also regulate the 
acquisition by former residents and non-residents of the Offer Shares.

If investors are in any doubt regarding the application of the Exchange Control Regulations, they should consult their 
own professional advisors.

The issuance of the Pre-Listing Statement has been approved by Revego’s Authorised Dealer in terms of the Exchange 
Control Regulations.

SOUTH AFRICAN PRIVATE INDIVIDUALS

The subscription for, or purchase of, Offer Shares in terms of the Offer or the acquisition of Shares on the market by 
a South African private individual will not affect such person’s foreign capital allowance under the Exchange Control 
Regulations.

South African private individuals need not take any additional administrative actions and can instruct their brokers to 
accept, buy and sell Shares on their behalf as it would with any other listed security on the JSE. Such Shares are on a 
South African register and are Rand-denominated.

SOUTH AFRICAN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS

South African retirement funds, long-term insurers, collective investment scheme management companies and 
asset managers who have registered with the FinSurv as institutional investors for Exchange Control purposes and 
Authorised Dealers, approved as such by the FinSurv, may invest in the Shares without affecting their permissible 
foreign portfolio investment allowances or foreign exposure limits.

SOUTH AFRICAN CORPORATE ENTITIES, BANKS, TRUSTS AND PARTNERSHIPS

South African corporate entities, banks, trusts and partnerships may subscribe for, or purchase, Shares in terms of 
the Offer or acquire Shares on the market without restriction.
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NON-RESIDENTS OF THE COMMON MONETARY AREA

Non-residents of the Common Monetary Area may subscribe for, or purchase, Shares in terms of the Offer or 
acquire Shares on the market, provided that payment is received in foreign currency or Rand from a non-resident 
account held in the books of an Authorised Dealer in South Africa.

Non-residents may sell their Shares on the market and repatriate the proceeds without restriction provided the 
Shares have been acquired in an approved manner.

Provided that the relevant account of the Shareholder at the CSDP or broker is correctly flagged, there is no 
restriction under the Exchange Control Regulations on the payment to a non-resident Shareholder of cash dividends 
in proportion to the Shareholder’s percentage holding of Shares. Payments to non-resident Shareholders of other 
dividends and distributions (including special dividends, dividends in specie and capitalisation issues) require the 
consent of FinSurv.

Applicants who are resident outside the Common Monetary Area should seek advice as to whether any governmental 
and/or other legal consent is required and/or whether any other formality must be observed to enable an application 
for, or an acceptance of, the Offer.

Applicants resident outside the Common Monetary Area should note that, where shares are subsequently re-
materialised and issued in certificated form, such share certificates will be endorsed “Non-Resident” in terms of the 
Exchange Control Regulations

EMIGRANTS FROM THE COMMON MONETARY AREA

Former residents of the Common Monetary Area who have emigrated may use funds in their emigrant capital 
accounts to subscribe for, or purchase, Shares in terms of the Offer or acquire Shares on the market. All payments 
in respect of subscriptions for Shares by an emigrant, using funds from an emigrant’s capital account, must be made 
through the Authorised Dealer controlling the remaining assets. The Shares will be credited to their share accounts 
at the CSDP controlling their remaining portfolios.

Shares subsequently re-materialised and issued in certificated form, will be endorsed “Non-Resident” and will be 
sent to the Authorised Dealer through whom the payment was made.

If applicable, refund monies payable in respect of unsuccessful applications or partly successful applications, as the 
case may be, for shares in terms of this Pre-Listing Statement, emanating from emigrant capital accounts, will be 
returned to the Authorised Dealer through whom the payments were made, for credit to such emigrants’ capital 
accounts
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PART K: ADDITIONAL MATERIAL INFORMATION

74. STATEMENTS AND REPORTS

Statement as to adequacy of capital

The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to Revego post the Offer/raising the minimum 
subscription is sufficient, taking into account its investment into the Fund (and acquisition by the Fund of the Initial 
Portfolio) for its present requirements, that is, for at least 12 months from the date of issue of this Pre-Listing 
Statement).

Reports by Directors as to material changes

The Directors report that, other than the acquisition of the Initial Portfolio as further described in Part C – “Initial 
Portfolio and Pipeline Opportunities” above, there have been no material changes in the financial and trading position 
or the assets and liabilities of the Company between 30 September 2020 (date of the interim report as contained in 
Annexure 5 to this Pre-Listing Statement) and the Last Practicable Date.

Statements as to no other Listing

The Company has not applied for a listing on any exchange other than the JSE and has accordingly never been refused 
a listing on any exchange nor had any such application for a listing deferred.

Report by the Independent Reporting Accountant of the Company

The historical financial information of Revego for the financial years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 is 
presented in Annexure 3 to this Pre-Listing Statement and should be read in conjunction with the Independent 
Reporting Accountant’s assurance report on the historical financial information included as Annexure 4 to this Pre-
Listing Statement.

The interim historical financial Information of Revego for the six months ended 30 September 2020 is presented 
in Annexure 5 to this Pre-Listing Statement and should be read in conjunction with the Independent Reporting 
Accountant’s review report on the interim historical financial information included as Annexure 6 to this Pre-Listing 
Statement.

The pro forma financial information of Revego is presented in Annexure 7 to this Pre-Listing Statement and should 
be read in conjunction with the Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance report on the pro forma financial 
information included as Annexure 8 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

The forecast financial information of the Company is presented in Annexure 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement and 
should be read with the Independent Reporting Accountant’s limited assurance report on the forecast financial 
information included as Annexure 10 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

75. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The objective of the Company is to provide Shareholders with an attractive stable dividend stream and the Board is 
therefore expected to declare dividends in due course.

No dividends have been declared as of the Last Practicable Date. The first dividend is expected to be declared and 
paid after the interim period ended September 2021.

No Shares of the Company are currently in issue with a fixed date on which entitlement to dividends arises and there 
are no arrangements in force whereby future dividends are waived or agreed to be waived.

76. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As at the Last Practicable Date, the Company did not have any subsidiaries.
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77. PRINCIPAL PROPERTY OWNED OR LEASED, MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND ADVANCES, 
LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As at the Last Practicable Date;

77.1 the Revego Group does not own any immovable property nor has the Revego Group entered into any leases 
in respect of immovable property;

77.2 the Revego Group does not have any material commitments, lease payments and contingent liabilities;

77.3 the only material loan advanced to the Revego Group is the Bridge Facility, further details of which are included 
in paragraph 78 below. No debentures have been issued and there is no debenture trust deed;

77.4 shareholders’ loans of R10.00 were recorded on the Company’s statement of financial position;

77.5 there are no loans receivable outstanding;

77.6 there is no loan capital outstanding, other than the Bridge Facility extended to the Fund;

77.7 there were no inter-Company loans or other financial transactions;

77.8 no charge or mortgage has been created over any assets of the Revego Group, other than those imposed by 
the Bridge Facility providers as follows:

• Cession over bank account and cash balances of the Fund; and

• A reversionary pledge and cession of the equity instruments owned by the Fund in the Initial Portfolio; and

77.9 there were no outstanding convertible debt securities.

78. BRIDGE FACILITY

The Bridge Facility was provided by Investec to facilitate the acquisition of the Initial Portfolio prior to Listing. This 
facility will be settled by the funds raised on Listing. Details of the Bridge Facility are included in the table below:

Lender  Investec
Facility amount R1.25 billion
Utilised R214.3 million, utilised towards the Bokpoort acquisition
Secured/Unsecured Secured
Term The final maturity date shall be the earlier of:

• the date falling six months after the date of Financial Close (as 
defined in the Bridge Facility agreement);

• three business days from the date the Offer proceeds are received
Interest rate Prime rate + 1.75% per annum
Security provided • A cession in security in favour of Investec over the bank accounts 

and cash balances of the Fund; and
• A reversionary pledge and cession of the assets of the Fund that 

are funded with the Bridge Facility in favour of Investec; and if any 
of the assets are held by a holding company which is acquired by 
the Fund using the Bridge Facility, a pledge and cession of the shares 
in the holding company

Conversion or redemption rights N/A
Details of repayment within the 
next 12 months

The Fund shall repay all loans made to it in full on the final maturity 
date from the Proceeds of the Offer (as described above) which will be 
contributed to the Fund

Guarantors N/A

79. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

No material immovable properties, fixed assets, securities and/or business undertakings have been acquired or 
disposed of by the Company since incorporation nor are in the process of being or are proposed to be acquired or 
disposed of by the Company (or which the Company has an option to acquire) other than the assets acquired as 
disclosed in Annexure 13 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

No vendor has guaranteed book debts or other assets. The agreements in terms of which the relevant material 
assets were or are to be acquired (the “Vendor Agreements”) contain warranties standard for transactions of 
their nature.
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The Vendor Agreements do not preclude the vendors from carrying on business in competition with Revego nor 
do they impose any other similar restrictions on the vendors. No payment in cash or otherwise has been made in 
this regard.

There are no liabilities for accrued taxation that are required to be settled in terms of the Vendor Agreements.

No director, proposed director or promoter of Revego (or any partnership, syndicate or other association in which 
a promoter or director had an interest) had any direct or indirect beneficial interest in the acquisition of the material 
assets from the vendors, other than the interests held by Investec in Aurora Wind Power and Kathu Solar Park, as 
further described in paragraph 86 below and Annexure 13 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

No cash or securities have been paid or any benefit given within the three years preceding this Pre-Listing Statement 
or is proposed to be paid or given to any promoter (not being a director). Potential investors are referred to 
paragraphs 31.3 above and 86 below which addresses the minimum subscription of the Offer.

Other than Bokpoort, the material assets as disclosed in Annexure 13 to this Pre-Listing Statement have not been 
transferred into the name of Revego. Save where such assets have been provided as security for borrowings as set 
out in paragraph 78 above, no such assets have been ceded or pledged.

80. INTERESTS OF ADVISORS AND PROMOTERS

None of the advisors hold any Shares nor have they agreed to acquire any Shares, except in respect of Investec 
which, as a Cornerstone Shareholder, has committed to apply for Offer Shares to the value of R500 million.

Investec is the principal promoter in relation to the establishment and listing of Revego and Revego has not paid any 
amount during the three years preceding the date of this Pre-Listing Statement and no amount (in cash or otherwise) 
is payable to any promoters or to any partnership, syndicate or other association of which a promoter was a member.

81. GOVERNMENT PROTECTION

As at the Last Practicable Date, the Company does not benefit from any government protection or investment 
encouragement law affecting its business.

82. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save for the agreements contemplated below and other contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, 
no material contract (including any restrictive funding arrangements) has been entered into by the Company since 
incorporation which is or may be material, or which contains any provisions under which the Company has any 
obligations or settlements which are, or may be material, as at the Last Practicable Date.

82.1 Partnership Agreement

On 16 September 2019, Revego signed a Deed of Adherence to the Partnership Agreement in South Africa, 
thereby becoming an Investor in the Fund and binding Revego to the terms and conditions of the Partnership 
Agreement establishing and governing the Fund.

The Partnership Agreement, signed on 16 September 2019, amongst the General Partner, the Investment 
Manager and the Company has an unlimited duration and pursuant to the Investment Policy, neither Revego 
(nor its Shareholders) shall be capable of winding up or dissolving the Partnership without amending the 
Investment Policy.

The Partnership Agreement is governed by the laws of South Africa.

Certain matters dealt with in the Partnership Agreement may from time to time require consent by Revego 
(as the limited partner) via the approval of its Board. Revego (as the limited partner) shall have no part in 
the management or investment decisions of the Fund, shall not participate in the control of the operations 
or business of the Fund and shall have no authority or right to act on behalf, or in the name, of the Fund in 
connection with any matter. The Investment Manager is mandated by the General Partner in terms of the 
Investment Management Agreement to identify and make Investments and Disposals in accordance with the 
Investment Policy.
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82.1.1 Termination with cause

Revego (as the limited partner) is entitled, by approval of the Board, to replace the General Partner, 
the Investment Manager or wind-up the Fund in the event of certain events, including:

• un-remedied material breach of the Partnership Agreement by the General Partner or Investment 
Manager;

• fraud, gross negligence or misconduct on the part of the General Partner, Investment Manager or 
any Key Person;

• material breach of the Fund’s anti-money laundering and corruption policies by the General 
Partner, Investment Manager or any Key Person;

• any Key Person has been charged in a court of law with, or convicted of, violating anti-money 
laundering or corruption laws or any other serious criminal offence (a serious criminal offence will 
include, without limitation, collusion, financing of terrorism, coercion and obstruction);

• a change in ownership of the General Partner or the Investment Manager such that a third party 
acquires 26% or more of the voting securities of the General Partner or the Investment Manager, 
in each case without the prior approval of the Board;

• an insolvency event in relation to the General Partner or Investment Manager;

• a loss or depreciation equal to at least 20% in the net asset value of the Investments as reflected 
in each of two consecutive annual valuations, which loss or depreciation is directly related to the 
actions or omissions of the General Partner or Investment Manager;

• the General Partner and/or Investment Manager ceases to be a BEE owned company or a BEE 
controlled company for a continuing period of more than 90 days. For these purposes (i) BEE 
owned company means a juristic person, having shareholding or similar members’ interest that is 
BEE controlled, in which Black People enjoy a right to economic interests that is at least 51% of 
the total of such rights measured using the flow through principle and (ii) BEE controlled company 
means a juristic person, having shareholding or similar members’ interest, in which Black People 
enjoy a right to exercisable voting rights that is at least 51% of the total of such rights measured 
using the flow through principle;

• less than 51% of the General Partner and/or Investment Manager’s executive management and/or 
senior management are Black People for a continuing period of more than 90 days;

• less than 51% of the profits made by the Investment Manager accrue to Black People; or

• the General Partner and/or the Investment Manager is in breach of any of the representations 
and warranties provided by them, as contained in the Partnership Agreement and/or Investment 
Management Agreement.

82.1.2 Key Person Event

If, at any time during the life of the Fund, any one of Michael George Meeser or Ziyaad Sarang (or 
any of their approved replacements) ceases to devote substantially all of their business time to the 
activities and affairs of the Fund a key person event (a “Key Person Event”) shall be deemed to 
have occurred and Revego shall promptly be notified in writing thereof. The Investment Manager 
shall not make any new Investments if a Key Person Event has occurred without the prior consent of 
the Advisory Board (other than Investments to which the Fund has committed to invest prior to the 
happening of such event) until such time as the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General 
Partner) has presented a plan to Revego (as the sole limited partner) for the future operation of the 
Fund and resourcing of the Investment Manager, which plan has been approved by the Advisory Board 
and implemented by the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner). If the plan is not 
approved and implemented within 120 days of the Key Person Event (or such longer period as may 
be permitted by Revego), Revego shall be entitled to replace the Investment Manager or wind-up the 
Fund.

82.1.3 Advisory Board

There shall, at all times during the life of the Fund, be an Advisory Board for the Fund which shall, 
while there is only one limited partner, be appointed by the Board of the Company, except that no 
officer, director, partner or employee of the General Partner or the Investment Manager or any of 
their associates shall serve as a member of the Advisory Board.
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The initial members of the Advisory Board will be constituted of David Hugh Brown, Shamila 
Grimwood-Norley, Terrence Sonny Chauke (Chairman), Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari and Richard 
Abel.

The Advisory Board shall be obliged to meet with the executive management (or individuals nominated 
by the executive management) of the Investment Manager on a quarterly basis. For purposes of these 
meetings, the CEO of Revego shall attend and a standing agenda will be agreed by the Investment 
Manager and the Advisory Board, which agenda shall include any items requested by the JSE. The 
Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall periodically, at such frequency as the 
members of the Advisory Board shall reasonably request, consult with the Advisory Board regarding 
progress of the Fund’s activities and, where the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General 
Partner) considers it appropriate, to obtain guidance on the Fund’s overall investment strategy.

The Advisory Board shall have the following authority and responsibilities (together with such other 
authority and responsibilities as provided elsewhere in the Partnership Agreement or as the General 
Partner may deem necessary or advisable):

• to consent to any change of the auditors of the Fund;

• to consult with the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) in respect of the 
appointment of the bank of the Fund;

• where a Key Person is charged or convicted of an offence as described in the Partnership 
Agreement, and the employment, membership or other engagement (as the case may be) of such 
Key Person is terminated, to determine if such termination is not an adequate remedy for the 
Company;

• to consult with the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) in respect of any 
change of name of the Fund;

• to grant permission to the Fund to enter into transactions that give rise to any potential conflicts 
of interest between the General Partner (or its associates) and the Fund;

• to review any Conflicts of Interest and approve methods for the resolution thereof including, but 
not limited to, any waiver by the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) of 
any rights the Fund may have in respect of a transaction involving a Conflict of Interest. For this 
purpose, a “Conflict of Interest” shall include (but not be limited to) (i) transactions between the 
Fund and a potential or existing Project Company with which the General Partner, the Investment 
Manager or any associate thereof has any prior or existing relationship, (ii) transactions between 
the General Partner, the Investment Manager and any associate thereof that are related to the 
operations of the Fund, or (iii) transactions between the General Partner or any associate of 
the General Partner (other than the Investment Management Agreement) and the Fund. The 
General Partner has undertaken that if it, the Investment Manager or any of their associates has 
an actual or potential Conflict of Interest in respect of a proposed transaction involving the Fund, 
it shall immediately disclose that matter in writing to the Advisory Board prior to concluding the 
transaction;

• to consent to any variations or waivers from the investment limitations set out in the Investment 
Policy, where such approval or waiver is provided for in the Investment Policy;

• to grant permission to the Fund to enter into any new Investments during a suspension period 
caused by a Key Person Event;

• to consent to the appointment of any replacement or additional Key Persons and, in the case of 
a Key Person Event, to approve the plan submitted by the Investment Manager (as mandated by 
the General Partner) (as described in “Key Person Event” under paragraph 82.1) and grant any 
extensions to the time periods therein;

• to approve the valuation of any fee received in kind by the General Partner, the Investment 
Manager or any of their associates or employees;

• to consent to litigation costs and/or Abort Costs in excess of the limitations described in paragraph 
12.2.4 above;

• to review and approve each Annual Valuation (as defined in the Partnership Agreement), once 
such Annual Valuation has been audited by the Independent Auditor;

• to consent to the General Partner and Investment Manager and/or their associates performing 
similar functions and duties for others as it performs for the Fund; and
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• to the extent that it determines that it would be advisable to do so, the Advisory Board shall 
be entitled (at the cost of the Fund) to appoint separate counsel or other experts, which is 
independent from the General Partner and/or its associates, to assist in the execution of the 
Advisory Board’s duties and functions pursuant to the Partnership Agreement.

82.1.4 Distributions

It is the Board’s intention that subject to certain retentions (for working capital purposes and 
permissible re-investments, after taking into consideration yield targets) and limitations as to solvency 
and liquidity, all amounts available for distribution shall be distributed to Partners in proportion to 
their partnership interest.

82.1.5 Dissolution, winding up and termination

The Fund may be wound up and dissolved in certain circumstances contemplated in the Investment 
Policy and will be wound up and dissolved upon a replacement General Partner not being appointed 
within the period specified in the Partnership Agreement upon the General Partner’s removal (with 
or without cause) or the General Partner experiencing an insolvency related event. Upon the winding 
up of the Fund, the liquidator shall first pay any Fund creditors and Partner loans and lastly to Partners 
in accordance with the distribution provisions.

82.1.6 Reports and valuations

The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner), is required to provide the Company 
with certain reports on a periodic basis, including accounting reports, tax information, ESG reports 
and valuations, as has been further detailed in Annexure 13 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

82.1.7 Indemnity

To the fullest extent permissible by the applicable law, none of the General Partner, the Investment 
Manager or their respective associates, or the directors, officers, partners, members, employees or 
shareholders of each of them, any Nominated Director, members of the Investment Committee 
or members of the Advisory Board (each an “Indemnified Person”) will be liable to the Fund 
or to Revego for any act performed or omission made by it in connection with the conduct of the 
affairs of the Fund or otherwise in connection with the Partnership Agreement or the Investment 
Management Agreement, provided, however that such Indemnified Person may be liable if and to 
the extent that such person’s conduct constitutes fraud, bad faith, wilful default or gross negligence. 
The Fund will indemnify each Indemnified Person for any losses, liabilities, demands, claims, costs 
and expenses (including reasonable legal fees) suffered or incurred or threatened by reason of its 
activities in connection with the conduct of the affairs of the Fund or otherwise in connection with 
the Partnership Agreement or the Investment Management Agreement (including, without limitation, 
as a result of the disclosure of confidential information by Revego or its employees or agent), except 
to the extent that such claims, damages, liabilities, costs or expenses are determined to have resulted 
from fraud, bad faith, wilful default or gross negligence on the part of such Indemnified Person.

82.2 Investment Management Agreement

The General Partner entered into the Investment Management Agreement with the Investment Manager 
on 16 September 2020 in terms of which the Investment Manager has appointed an Investment Committee 
to assist in the management of the Fund’s assets in accordance with the Investment Policy. The Investment 
Manager will be paid a management fee and transaction execution fees in respect of services provided. For 
further details in relation to the Investment Management Agreement refer to Part G – “Management of the 
Fund” above.

82.3 Investec Service Level Agreement

Revego has entered into the Investec Service Level Agreement with Investec on 20 January 2021 for a period 
of three years for the provision of the following services:

• Accounting services (financial services, including services relating to management and statutory accounting 
(monthly or annual where applicable), preparation of budgets and accounts receivable and payable);

• Tax services (registration with SARS, preparation and filing of VAT returns, preparation and filing of 
employees’ tax, Unemployment Insurance Fund and Skills Development Levy returns, preparation and 
filing of income tax returns and management of all SARS correspondence);
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• Operational services (day to day operational support services, including providing appropriately qualified 
personnel and support staff);

• Compliance and risk management services (compliance and risk management and regulatory function, 
support, and services including compliance and risk management advice, monitoring and supervision, 
regulatory compliance and business continuity processes and planning and internal audit);

• Cash management services (day to day treasury management);

• Secretarial services (company secretarial services related to the administration of the company and ensuring 
compliance with statutory/regulatory requirements applicable to Revego);

• General administration services (human resource support and management and general management of 
administrative matters and maintenance of records);

• Information technology services;

• Office space and equipment (provision of office space for all representatives of Revego);

• Legal (legal services as reasonably required);

• Marketing and distribution services (marketing and distribution services, including all branding and 
advertising); and

• Other (any other services, equipment and resources required by Revego not otherwise referred to above 
which have been agreed to and is necessary to perform the services stated above).

Revego will pay Investec a service fee of R694,000 per annum as consideration for the provision of the services 
above, which includes R344,000 for the company secretarial services.

82.4 Bridge Facility

The Bridge Facility was provided by Investec to facilitate the acquisition of the Initial Portfolio prior to Listing. 
This facility will be settled by the funds raised on Listing. Further details relating to the Bridge Facility are 
disclosed in paragraph 78 above.

82.5 Commitment Agreements

The following Cornerstone Shareholders have committed to subscribe for Offer Shares to the value of up to 
R1,725 million:

• Investec (R875 million) (dated 20 December 2020), an international banking and wealth management group 
with significant experience in the renewable energy sector through advisory, lending and investing, and a 
track record of establishing and supporting successful funds including Growthpoint Properties Limited, 
Investec Property Fund Limited and Investec Australia Property Fund Limited;

• UKCI (R500 million) (dated 20 December 2020), a joint venture between the Green Investment Group 
and the UK Government’s Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy that was established in 
2015 to target transformational green energy investments in India and sub-Saharan Africa. UKCI is affiliated 
with and supported by the Macquarie Group’s Infrastructure and Real Assets’ global platform and network; 
and

• EPPF (R350 million) (dated 26 October 2020), which provides retirement fund administration services for 
its members and currently has c.R144.5 billion in assets under management as at 30 June 2020.

From Listing, Investec and UKCI will be subject to the following lock-ins:

• Investec – 35 million Shares for 12 months from Listing Date;

• UKCI – 42 million Shares for six months from Listing Date, reducing to 35 million Shares for a further 
six months, provided that this lock-in falls away if there is any material change to the Key Policy Requirements 
during this 12-month period which has not been approved or agreed to by UKCI and which causes the Key 
Policy Requirements to contradict the investment mandate of UKCI.

83. MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes in the financial or trading position of the Company or its subsidiaries that has 
occurred since the end of the last financial period for which either audited annual financial statements or unaudited 
interim reports have been published.

Other than the allotment by the Board of 10 shares to an effective nominee shareholder on 1 November 2019, there 
have been no changes in controlling Shareholder(s) of the Company since incorporation. It should be noted, however, 
that the tri-partite voting arrangement as described in paragraph 60 has the effect of the Cornerstone Shareholders 
being regarded as controlling shareholders from the Listing Date until the first annual general meeting of Revego has 
concluded.
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84. LITIGATION STATEMENT

There have been no legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or threatened, 
of which the Revego Group is aware, that may have or have had in the recent past, being at least the previous 12 
months, a material effect on the Company’s financial position.

85. EXPENSES

Expenses relating to the Offer and Listing

The estimated expenses related to the Offer and the Listing payable in cash amount to approximately R29.06 million, 
inclusive of VAT, as set out below:

Expense Recipient

in millions 
of Rands 

(incl. VAT)

Capital Raise Fees: 14.62
Financial Advisor and Bookrunner Investec 13.41
Cornerstone Shareholder Commitment Fee EPPF 1.21
Listing Costs: 14.44
Financial Advisor and Bookrunner – Listing and 
Documentation fee

Investec
5.75

Legal fees Norton Rose Fulbright 1.38
Independent Reporting Accountant EY 3.55
Transfer secretary Computershare 0.03
Printing and publication INCE 0.27
JSE listing fee JSE 0.58
JSE documentation fee JSE 0.10
JSE ancillary fees1 JSE 0.05
Sponsor fees Tamela 0.29
Bookrunner legal fees DLA Piper 1.00
Marketing costs – Listing Various 0.55
Insurance – Public Offering of Securities Insurance Marsh Africa 0.88

Total 29.06

1 The ancillary fees include the new and amended MOI fees, the price stabilisation fee and the JSE ruling fees.

Save for the expenses detailed above, there were no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms 
granted during the three years preceding the date of the Pre-Listing Statement in connection with the issue or sale 
of any securities, stock or debentures in the capital of Revego. No amount has been paid by Revego, or accrued 
as payable, since incorporation, as commission to any person, including commission so paid or payable to any sub-
underwriter that is the holding company or director or officer of the Company, for subscribing or agreeing to 
subscribe, or procuring, or agreeing to procure, subscriptions for any securities of the Company other than a fee of 
R1.05 million (excluding VAT) (0.30% of EPPF’s commitment to apply for Offer Shares up to a value of R350 million) 
payable by Revego to EPPF as consideration for their commitment to apply for Offer Shares. In the opinion of the 
independent non-executive Directors, the fee payable to EPPF is considered market related and in line with fees paid 
for similar commitments received by other issuers.

The Investment Manager has agreed to pay to UKCI, as compensation for their commitment to apply for Offer 
Shares to the value of R500 million on Listing:

• for an initial period of 42 calendar months after the Listing, a rebate of 15 basis points on the Management Fee 
attributable to them based on their interest in Revego; and

• thereafter, for a further period of 18 calendar months only, a rebate of 10 basis points on the Management Fee 
attributable to them based on their interest in Revego.

The cost of this rebate is borne in its entirety by the Investment Manager and will have no bearing on the Management 
Fee payable by the Fund and will in no way impact the Company or its Shareholders.

Since incorporation, there have been no commissions paid or payable by the Company in respect of underwriting.
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Ongoing operating expenses

The ongoing operating expenses will be paid from the proceeds of the Offer and from distributions received from 
the Fund.

86. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT

Investec is the principal promoter in relation to the establishment and listing of Revego and it has various areas of 
involvement in relation to Revego, including:

• Investec is acting for Revego in the capacities of Financial Advisor and Bookrunner to the Offer and the Listing;

• Investec Markets Proprietary Limited is the Stabilisation Manager in relation to the Offer and the Listing;

• Investec holds a 49% interest in the Investment Manager and has committed to apply for Offer Shares to the 
value of R875 million;

• Revego has outsourced the provision of certain administrative functions, including company secretarial functions, 
to Investec in terms of the Investec Service Level Agreement and Investec also provides general banking services 
to the Fund;

• Investec is the current holder of the interests in the Aurora Wind Power and the Kathu Solar Park which is 
sold to the Fund and forms part of the Initial Portfolio as described in Part C – “Initial Portfolio and Pipeline 
Opportunities” above;

• the ED Trust (a shareholder in the Investment Manager) is a c.1% shareholder in Investec as at February 2021; and

• certain employees of Investec are also employed on a part time basis by the Investment Manager.

In order to manage any potential or perceived conflicts of interest that might arise as a result of Investec acting in 
these roles, Investec has in place appropriate checks and balances and divisions of responsibility among the persons 
involved in fulfilling these various functions. Investec’s ability to act independently and objectively in respect of each 
of these functions is safeguarded by the strict ethical walls existing between the various divisions and departments 
within Investec, allowing for no direction or instruction between these divisions and departments. In addition, the 
Fund’s conflict of interest policy will be applied in relation to all transactions involving Investec.

The conflicts noted above have further been put before the Advisory Board for review and have been approved. The 
terms of the acquisitions of the Aurora Wind Power and Kathu Solar Park interests were also reviewed and approved 
by the Investment Manager’s independent Investment Committee.

87. EXPERTS’ CONSENTS

The Financial Advisor and Bookrunner, Sponsor, Independent Reporting Accountant and Independent Auditor, legal 
advisor and transfer secretaries, whose names are included in this Pre-Listing Statement have consented in writing 
to the inclusion of their names in the capacity stated, and have not withdrawn such consent prior to publication of 
this Pre-Listing Statement.

The Independent Reporting Accountant has consented to the inclusion of their reports in the form and context in 
which they are included in the Pre-Listing Statement, which consent has not been withdrawn prior to the publication 
of this Pre-Listing Statement.

88. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, whose names are provided on page 22 above, collectively and individually, accept full responsibility 
for the accuracy of the information given and certify that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no 
facts that have been omitted that would make any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries 
to ascertain such facts have been made and that this Pre-Listing Statement contains all information required by the 
Listings Requirements.
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89. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered offices of Revego at 100 Grayston 
Drive, Sandown, Sandton and at the registered offices of the Sponsor at Ground Floor, Golden Oak House, Ballyoaks 
Office Park, 35 Ballyclare Drive, Bryanston, Sandton at any time during business hours on weekdays (official public 
holidays in South Africa excluded), as well as on the Company’s website (https://revegoenergy.com), from Wednesday, 
31 March 2021 until Tuesday, 20 April 2021:

89.1 The signed Pre-Listing Statement;

89.2 R.L. Hendricks’ employment agreement and the service agreement in relation to Z. Sarang’s services as CFO;

89.3 The MOI of the Company;

89.4 The material contracts referred to in paragraph 82 above;

89.5 The tri-partite agreement referred to in paragraph 60 above;

89.6 The letters of consent referred to in paragraph 87 above;

89.7 The Historical Financial Information of the Company, as set out in Annexure 3 to this Pre-Listing Statement;

89.8 The Interim Historical Financial Information of the Company, as set out in Annexure 5 to this Pre-Listing 
Statement;

89.9 The pro forma financial information and the forecast financial information of Revego as set out in Annexures 7 
and 9 to this Pre-Listing Statement; and

89.10 The signed reports by the Independent Reporting Accountant, as set out in Annexures 4, 6, 8 and 10 to this 
Pre-Listing Statement.

SIGNED AT SANDTON ON 31 MARCH 2021 BY MR REYBURN LARS HENDRICKS IN HIS CAPACITY 
AS A DIRECTOR OF REVEGO AND ON BEHALF OF EACH OF THE OTHER DIRECTORS OF 
REVEGO
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ANNEXURE 1 – VALUATION PRINCIPLES

1. BASIS

The accounting NAV per Share as well as the “Invested NAV” per Share (being the investments revalued using the 
principles set out below) of Revego will be calculated and reported to the Board for approval on a semi-annual basis. 
Upon approval, the accounting NAV per Share and Invested NAV per Share will be disclosed to the Shareholders.

2. VALUATION OF REVEGO

The Invested NAV for Revego will be calculated by determining the valuation of its partnership interest (99.99%) in 
the Fund.

3. VALUATION OF THE FUND

The Investment Manager will carry out the Investment valuations, which form part of the NAV calculation of the 
Fund, as per the Fund’s valuation policy which can be summarised as follows:

3.1 VALUATION BASIS

The fair value of the Investments in the Fund will be determined as at the measurement date. Fair value is 
defined as the price that would be received for an asset in an orderly arm’s length transaction (willing seller- 
willing buyer) between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value measurement assumes 
that a hypothetical transaction to sell an asset takes place in the principal market or in its absence, the most 
advantageous market for the asset.

3.2 VALUATION APPROACH

The valuations will be based on the income approach, specifically using the DCF methodology in line with 
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Guidelines 2015 (‘‘IPEV’’) and adjusted where appropriate, 
given the specialised nature of renewable energy investments.

The DCF will use reasonable assumptions on the estimations of expected future post-taxation and post-debt 
service cash flows (free cash flows to equity) and discounting to the present value by applying the appropriate 
risk adjusted rate.

The valuations will be based on a detailed financial model produced by the Investment Manager which will take 
into account, inter alia, the following:

3.2.1 due diligence findings where relevant;

3.2.2 the terms of any material contracts, including PPAs;

3.2.3 asset performance;

3.2.4 updated macro-economic assumptions; and

3.2.5 legal, taxation or regulatory environment.

3.3 FREQUENCY AND APPROVALS

The Investment Manager will perform valuations of the Fund’s portfolio of Investments on a quarterly basis 
and, further, will procure the services of an independent valuer to value the Investments on a semi-annual 
basis.

The Investment Manager shall notify the Advisory Board of all valuations in writing, to which the Advisory 
Board may object to in order to agree on a mutually acceptable valuation.

The annual valuation, as at 31 March, will be provided to the Advisory Board for approval and be audited by 
the Independent Auditor.



87

ANNEXURE 2 – DIRECTORS’ VALUATION OF THE INITIAL PORTFOLIO

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the 
company has access at that date.

1. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market 
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient 
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates 
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Group classifies disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable market 
inputs. A transfer is made between the hierarchy levels when the inputs have changed or there has been a change in 
the valuation method. Transfers are deemed to occur at the end of each semi-annual reporting period.

• Level 1 fair value hierarchy – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at measurement date;

• Level 2 fair value hierarchy – inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
assets and liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

• Level 3 fair value hierarchy – inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs), determine its fair value. Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value where relevant 
observable inputs are not available. The unlisted investments within the Fund are typically classified 
as level 3 instruments.

Revego Investments

The Group used level 3 inputs to derive the fair value of each Investment as all of the Project Companies are unlisted 
and therefore do not have observable inputs nor quoted prices in active markets available.

2. VALUATION APPROACH AND DISCOUNT RATE

IFRS 13 describes three valuation approaches:

• the market approach;

• the income approach; and

• the cost approach.

The Group uses the income approach to determine the fair value of the Investments in the Project Companies. 
The income approach converts future amounts (cash flows from Project Companies) to a single current, discounted, 
amount. This is typically done using a DCF method.

The DCF approach is used along with reasonable assumptions on the estimations of expected future cash distributions 
from the Investments. These cash flows were discounted over the remaining PPA periods, as per the table below, to 
the present value by applying the appropriate risk adjusted discount rate that captures the risk inherent to the Project 
Company projections in accordance with IFRS 13.

Project Company

Fair Value 
Adjustment – 

Discount Rate 
per Project

Aurora Wind Power 10.20% – 10.50%
Kathu Solar Park 13.00% – 13.50%
Bokpoort 11.30% – 11.60%
Noupoort Wind Farm 11.00% – 11.30%
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 11.30% – 11.60%
Khobab Wind Farm 10.80% – 11.10%
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Key inputs into DCF:

1) Distributions received

Revego receives distributions from the Investments as an equity holder in the Projects. The distributions form 
the basis of each DCF valuation performed by Revego on each Investment.

The distributions are made to Revego, as shareholder, from cash available for distribution from Revenue received 
by each Project less Project Company expenses, including mainly O&M expenses as well as debt service costs 
(as each Project is leveraged using limited recourse finance).

The key factors affecting the distributions received by Revego from the Investments are summarised below – also 
refer to ‘Key Assumptions’ in Annexure 9 for detailed explanations of items impacting distributions from the 
Projects:

• Energy production – each Project Company is compensated for energy produced and sold to Eskom. The 
energy produced by a Project is therefore a key variable in determining its Revenue.

• Remaining period of PPA – this represents the remaining period of contracted Revenue for each Project. 
The PPAs have a term of 20 years. The table below shows the remaining PPA terms for the various Projects. 
The end date of the PPA is unlikely to change, and therefore fair values are less likely to be affected by 
changes in this assumption.

• Macro assumptions

• Inflation – the tariffs charged for energy produced and sold to Eskom, as per the PPAs, escalate at 
inflation annually and therefore inflation affects Revenue received by the Projects. Inflation also affects 
expenses incurred by the Projects;

• Interest rates – the Projects are leveraged with limited recourse finance and interest payments are made 
based on the JIBAR interest rate. Partial interest rate hedges are in place at the Projects, but the Projects 
remain exposed to interest rate fluctuations on unhedged components;

• Foreign exchange rates – the O&M agreements at Project level have foreign currency components and 
therefore Projects are exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

2) Discount rate

Revego discounts the above estimated cash distributions at an appropriate discount rate, taking into account 
risk and return factors for each Investment held. The discount rates may vary slightly depending on market 
conditions as assessed at each point on the discount rate curve, hence a discount rate range is shown below.
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Fair Value of Project Companies:

The Investment purchase price is determined using the locked box mechanism to remove price uncertainty as a fixed 
price is determined on the agreed Locked Box date (the “Purchase Price”). This has the economic effect of accruing the 
benefits of the Investments to Revego from the Locked Box date. Revego has protection against value being extracted from 
the Project Company in the period between the Locked Box date and the completion of the acquisition transaction, this is 
known as “Leakage”. The seller undertakes not to extract value from the Project Company other than pre-agreed amounts, 
which is known as “Permitted Leakage”. Leakage includes inter alia any dividends and distributions or return of capital 
paid by the Project Company. If applicable, the seller is paid pre-completion interest on the purchase price from the Locked 
Box date until completion of the transaction.

The closing purchase price is generally the sum of:

a. the Purchase Price; minus

b. Leakage (excluding any Permitted Leakage); plus

c. pre-completion interest; plus/minus

d. other project specific costs.

Name of Project Company 
Locked 
Box Date

Acquisition 
Date

Closing 
Purchase 

Price 
(ZAR ‘m)

Fair Value* 
(ZAR ‘m)

Aurora Wind Power 31-December-2019 30-April-2021 314.0 314.0
Kathu Solar Park 31-March-2020 30-April-2021 336.2 336.2
Bokpoort 31-August-2020 18-March-2021 203.6 169.1
Noupoort Wind Farm 30-June-2020 30-April-2021 108.0 108.0
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 31-May-2020 30-April-2021 227.8 227.8
Khobab Wind Farm 31-May-2020 30-April-2021 234.3 234.3

Total 1,423.9 1,389.3

Methodology

In determining the fair value of each Investment, the following is assumed:

• in all instances, the initial recognition of each of the Investments is at the closing purchase price – which methodology 
is detailed above and the closing prices per Investment summarised in the above table – which is the best reflection 
of the fair value of each Investment on this date.

• Therefore, except for Bokpoort, which was acquired on 18 March 2021, because the transactions are anticipated 
to reach completion on 30 April 2021, the closing purchase price is also the fair value.

• For Bokpoort, the fair value on 31 March 2021 is R169.1 million.

• If the fair value is determined at a date that is not the acquisition date, then the fair value of each Investment is 
determined using the abovementioned DCF method and is based on the Revego Fund model calculation using an 
appropriate discount rate per Project, as can be found in the first table of this Annexure.

Sensitivity Scenarios:

The fair value of Investments is most sensitive to changes of the following factors:

1. Discount rate; and

2. Factors affecting distributions from each of the Project Companies*:

a. Energy production

b. Macro assumptions, specifically:

i. inflation

ii. interest Rates; and

iii. foreign exchange rate.
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The impact of changes in the above factors on the fair value of each of the Investments at 30 September 2020 and 31 March 
2022 is shown in the table below.

Sensitivity Table on Initial Portfolio – at 30 September 2020 and 31 March 2022:

Input Range Used Adjustment
30 September 2020 

(ZAR ‘m)
31 March 2022 

(ZAR ‘m)

Fair value of Initial 
Portfolio, before 
sensitivities 1,466.2 1,391.9

Adjustments Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Discount rate As above -+ 1.0%  103.3  (92.2)  99.5  (89.4)
Energy produced P50^ +- 2.5%  106.4  (102.4)  101.3  (96.5)
Macro Economic 
Factors
Inflation 4.0% – 5.0% +- 10.0%  36.8  (35.2)  44.2  (42.2)
Interest rate 
(JIBAR)

JIBAR forward 
curve +- 10.0%  13.7  (13.3)  14.0  (13.5)

Foreign exchange 
rate

Spot Rate 
(Dec-2020):
ZAR/EUR: 18.39
ZAR/USD: 15.47 +- 10.0%  38.4  (36.7)  40.5  (38.7)

* The potential impact of adjustments to the remaining periods of the PPAs, which would impact Revenue for each of the Project Companies, is not shown as the 
possibility of such an event occurring is remote given the strength of the PPA contracts entered into as well as the support provided by the South African government 
for the REIPPPP.

^Noupoort Wind Farm, Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and Khobab Wind Farm P50 estimates have been adjusted downwards (as detailed in “Investment-specific 
assumptions” in Annexure 9).
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ANNEXURE 3 – HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

INTRODUCTION

The definitions commencing on page 14 of this Pre-Listing Statement apply, mutatis mutandis, to this Annexure.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the two years 
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 and the notes thereto 
(“Historical Financial Information”) have been extracted from the annual historical financial statements of Revego for 
the two years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 (“Annual Historical Financial Statements”). The Annual Historical 
Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS and the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 
(“SAICA”) Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Pronouncements 
as issued by Financial Reporting Standards Council.

The Historical Financial Information was prepared in accordance with IFRS and the Listings Requirements, for the purpose of 
providing financial information to satisfy the requirements of Section 8 of the Listings Requirements.

The additional disclosure required in terms of paragraphs 8.11 and 8.12 of the Listings Requirements has been included in 
the Historical Financial Information.

The Annual Historical Financial Statements have been audited by EY and unqualified audit opinions have been issued thereon.

EY is the Independent Reporting Accountant to Revego and has issued an Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance 
report on this Historical Financial Information which is included as Annexure 4 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

The Directors are responsible for this report of Historical Financial Information.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTARY

Nature of operations

The Company is engaged in the business of investing in predominately operational renewable energy assets in SSA, for 
purposes of providing a stable dividend yield and will be deemed an investment entity upon Listing.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Directors are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of 
judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may 
be material to the financial information.

Review of results

The Company has been dormant since incorporation.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 
Twelve months

 ending
Twelve months

 ending
in millions of Rands Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

ASSETS
Investments
 – Investments – Equity – –
 – Investments – Shareholder Loan Accounts – –
Amounts owing by related parties 4 0 –
Cash at bank – –
Deferred tax asset – –

Total assets 0 –

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Bridge Facility – –
Deferred tax liability – –

EQUITY
Share capital 5 0 –
Retained income – –

Total equity and liabilities 0 –

Net Asset Value per share (cents) – –
Tangible Net Asset Value per share (cents) – –
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 
Twelve months 

ending
Twelve months 

ending
in millions of Rands Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Return on investments – –
Dividends received – –
Interest on shareholder loan investment received – –
Unrealised movement in fair value of investments – –
Other income – –

Total income and gains – –
Operating expenses – –

Investment Manager management fee – –
Directors’ remuneration – –
Administrative expenses – –
Other expenses – –

Establishment Costs – –
Listing Costs – –
Investment acquisition costs – –

Due diligence costs paid to third party service providers – –
Investment Manager transaction fee – –

Operating profit – –
Finance expense – –

Profit for the period before tax – –
Tax expense – –

Profit for the period after tax – –

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company – –
Non-controlling interest – –

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company – –

Headline earnings – –

Number of shares issued 10 –
Weighted Average Number of Shares 10 –
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) – –
Headline and diluted Headline earnings per share (cents) – –
Dividends per share (cents) – –
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

  2020

in millions of Rands Share Capital
Retained 
Earnings Total

Balance at the beginning of the year – – –
Issue of shares – – –
Total comprehensive income for the year – – –

Balance at the end of the year – – –

  2019

in millions of Rands Share Capital
Retained 
Earnings Total

Balance at the beginning of the year – – –
Issue of shares – – –
Total comprehensive income for the year – – –

Balance at the end of the year – – –
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 
Twelve months

 ending
Twelve months 

ending
in millions of Rands Notes 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Income – –
Interest income – –
Dividends received – –
Other income – –

Expenditure – –
Operating expenditure – –
Establishment costs – –
Investment acquisition costs – –
Income tax paid – –

Net cash flow from operating activities – –

Investing activities
Investments – Equity acquired – –
Investments – Shareholder loans acquired – –
Investments – Shareholder loans repaid – –

Net cash inflow from investing activities – –

Cash flows from financing activities:
Bridge Facility raised – –
Bridge Facility repaid – –
Issue of shares for cash – –
Listing costs – –
Capital raise fees – –
Finance cost – –
Dividends paid – –

Net cash inflow from financing activities – –

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents – –
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period – –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period – –

Dividends paid – –
Shares issued – –
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NOTES TO HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of this Historical Financial Information are set 
out below. These policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered material 
in relation to Revego Historical Financial Information and to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.2 Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

The Historical Financial Information have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB, and the requirements of the Companies Act. The 
Historical Financial Information is presented in South African Rand, which is the Company’s functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest million Rand. This Historical Financial Information has 
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where specifically indicated below. The Historical Financial 
Information was authorised for issue by the Directors on 13 October 2020.

Segmental information is not applicable for the reporting period of this Historical Financial Information.

Going concern

This Historical Financial Information has been prepared on the going concern principle.

The preparation of Historical Financial Information in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies. The notes to the Historical Financial Information set out areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
Historical Financial Information.

1.3 Financial Instruments

Financial instruments comprise of amounts owing by related parties and are initially measured at fair value and 
are subsequently measured as set out below.

Transaction costs of instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss (“FVPL”) are recognised 
immediately through profit and loss. For other categories of financial instruments, transaction costs are 
capitalised to the initial carrying amount.

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument.

All purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company 
commits to purchase the financial asset or to assume the financial liability.

Financial Assets

Amounts owing by related parties are classified as “hold to collect”: the intention is to hold the asset to 
maturity to earn interest, collecting repayments of principal and interest from the customer. These assets are 
accounted for at amortised cost.

The Company assesses whether the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest 
(the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows 
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value 
of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending 
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with 
a basic lending arrangement, the related asset would be classified and measured at FVPL.

At each balance sheet date each financial asset categorised at amortised cost is measured for expected credit 
losses (“ECL”) impairment. Loss allowances are forward-looking, based on 12-month expected credit losses 
where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime 
expected losses.
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1.3 Financial Instruments (continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the risk of default 
which is applied to the cash flow estimates. On a significant increase in credit risk, credit losses are rebased 
from 12-month to lifetime expectations. A change in credit risk is typically but not necessarily associated with 
a change in the expected cash flows.

The impairment losses on assets held at amortised cost are presented as impairments in the income statement. 
Financial assets held at amortised cost are presented net of allowances except where the asset has been 
wholly or partially written off.

Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised are considered to be “stage 1”, financial assets which are 
considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in “stage 2”, and financial assets for 
which there is objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired 
are in “stage 3”.

Financial assets are derecognised when:

• the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay 
them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or

• the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has either (a) transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Company 
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor is transferred control of the asset, the asset recognised 
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the 
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.

Share capital and reserves

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Capital and reserves comprise share capital and retained earnings.

2. RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company in the ordinary course 
of business enters into various transactions with related parties. Revego Africa Energy Limited is wholly owned by 
Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg.

Directors David Hugh Brown
Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari
Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza
Reyburn Lars Hendricks
Richard Abel
Shamilah Grimwood-Norley
Terrence Sonny Chauke

At 31 March 2020 R
Interest/fees 

(paid) received
Amounts owing 

to related parties
Amounts owing 

by related parties

Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg – – 0



99

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial risk to the Company resulting from default by a counterparty to comply with 
its obligations to service the outstanding debt. For the current financial year, the credit risk to which the Company 
is exposed to is “amounts owing by related parties” which consists of R10 owing by shareholders for share capital 
issued.

Capital risk management

Capital includes issued share capital to ordinary shareholders. No dividends have been paid in the current financial 
year.

Fair Value

The Directors are of the opinion that the book value of the financial instruments recognised at year end approximates 
their fair values.

March 2020
Receivables at 

amortised cost
Total carrying 

amount

Assets
Amounts owing by related parties – –

– –

4. AMOUNTS OWING BY RELATED PARTIES

2020 2019

Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg – –

Amounts owing by related parties are payable upon listing of the Company, which is expected to occur within the 
next financial period. Amounts owing are interest free and redeemable on demand. The ECL on this amount was 
assessed and considered to be immaterial.

5. EQUITY AND RESERVES

2020 2019

Ordinary share capital
Authorised
5,000,000 Ordinary shares of no par value
Issued:
10 ordinary shares at R1 0 –

0 –

6. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2020 2019

Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 1 –

Currently, and until the listing of the Revego, Investec carries all costs related to establishing and the listing of the 
Fund, which include expenses incurred by the Company. Upon successful listing of the Fund, Investec will have the 
legal right to recoup the costs incurred on behalf of Revego. If not listed, Investec will lose the right to recovery and 
suffer the loss. Consequently, there is no present obligation for the Company to refund Investec until such time as the 
Fund is listed. It is thus a possible obligation and meets the definition of a contingent liability under IAS 37 (Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).



100

7. FINANCIAL RATIOS

2020 2019
Cents Cents

Earnings per share – –
Diluted Earnings per share – –
Headline Earnings per share – –
Diluted Headline Earnings per share – –
Net Asset Value per share – –
Tangible Net Asset Value – –
Dividends per share – –

8. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the 2021 financial year the Revego Group has commenced the acquisition of assets for the listing of Revego; 
seven acquisitions have been initiated in the renewable energy industry of which none have been finalised. Even 
though these have been considered as material events between 31 March 2020 and the date of approval of this 
Historical Financial Information they are not considered to be adjusting events in terms of IAS 10.
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ANNEXURE 4 – INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S ASSURANCE 
REPORT ON THE HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on the Historical Financial Information for the 
two years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020.

To the Directors of Revego Africa Energy Limited

At your request, we present our Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance report on the historical financial 
information of Revego Africa Energy Limited (the “Company”) for the two years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020  
(the “Historical Financial Information”) for inclusion in Annexure 3 on pages 92 to 100 of this Pre-Listing Statement 
to be dated on or about 31 March 2021 (“Pre-Listing Statement”) by the directors.

This report is required for the purposes of complying with Section 8.48 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (the 
“JSE”) (the “JSE Listings Requirements”) and is given for the purpose of complying with those requirements and for 
no other purpose. We are the Independent Reporting Accountant and the Independent Auditor of Revego Africa Energy 
Limited.

To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability to any other 
person for any loss suffered by any such other person as a result of, arising out of, or in connection with this report or our 
statement, required by and given solely for the purposes of complying with the JSE Listings Requirements and consenting to 
its inclusion in the Pre-Listing Statement.

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on the Historical Financial Information

Opinion

We have audited the Historical Financial Information of the Company, which comprises of the statements of financial position 
as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020, the statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity 
and the statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, as presented in Annexure 3 on pages 92 to 100 of the Pre-Listing Statement.

In our opinion, the Historical Financial Information, as presented in Annexure 3 on pages 92 to 100 of the Pre-Listing 
Statement, presents fairly, in all material respects, for the purpose of the Pre-Listing Statement the financial position of Revego 
Africa Energy Limited as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 and its financial performance and cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Independent Reporting Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Historical Financial Information 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with section 290 and 291 of the Independent 
Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 
of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 
2018) (together, “the IRBA Codes”) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial 
statements of the Company and in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical requirements, as applicable, in accordance 
with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of the Company 
and in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA code”) and the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards), 
respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Historical Financial Information of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Historical Financial Information as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Independent Reporting Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Historical 
Financial Information section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the 
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performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the Historical 
Financial Information. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Historical Financial Information.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

None noted N/A

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information contained in this Pre-Listing Statement. The other information 
comprises the information included in the document titled Pre-Listing Statement. The other information does not include 
the Historical Financial Information and our Independent Reporting Accountant’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Historical Financial Information does not cover the other information contained in this Pre-Listing 
Statement and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Historical Financial Information, our responsibility is to read the other information 
contained in this Pre-Listing Statement and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Historical Financial Information or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Historical Financial Information

The directors are responsible for the compilation, contents and preparation of the Pre-Listing Statement in accordance with 
the JSE Listings Requirements. The directors are also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Historical 
Financial Information in accordance with the IFRS, the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listings 
Requirements, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Historical 
Financial Information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Historical Financial Information, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Historical Financial Information

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Historical Financial Information as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Independent Reporting Accountant’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this Historical Financial Information.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Historical Financial Information, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance report to the related disclosures 
in the Historical Financial Information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Historical Financial Information, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Historical Financial Information represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Company to express an opinion on the Historical Financial Information. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the Historical Financial Information of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our Independent Reporting Accountant’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette number 39475 date 4 December 2015, we report that we have 
been the Independent Auditor of Revego Africa Energy Limited for two years.

 
Ernst & Young Inc.
Director: Gail Moshoeshoe CA(SA)
Registered Auditor
Reporting Accountant

Johannesburg
25 March 2021
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ANNEXURE 5 – INTERIM HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

INTRODUCTION

The definitions commencing on page 14 of the Pre-Listing Statement apply, mutatis mutandis, to this Annexure.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The interim condensed statement of comprehensive income, interim condensed statement of cash flows and the interim 
condensed statement of changes in equity for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and interim condensed statement 
of financial position as at 30 September 2020, and the notes thereto (“Interim Historical Financial Information”) 
have been prepared in accordance with Section 8.7 of the Listings Requirements. The Listings Requirements require the 
interim financial statements to be prepared using the International Financial Reporting Standard IAS 34: Interim Financial 
Reporting (but excluding comparatives) and the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices 
Committee and the Financial Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.

The Interim Historical Financial Information was prepared in accordance with the Listings Requirements for the purposes of 
providing financial information to satisfy the requirements of section 8 of the Listings Requirements.

The additional disclosure required in terms of paragraphs 8.11 and 8.12 of the Listings Requirements has been included in 
the Interim Historical Financial Information.

The Interim Historical Financial Information has been reviewed by EY in accordance with ISRE 2410: Review of Interim 
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity and an unqualified review conclusion has been reached.

EY is the Independent Reporting Accountant to Revego and has issued an Independent Reporting Accountant’s review 
report on this Interim Historical Financial Information which is included as Annexure 6 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

The Directors are responsible for this report of Interim Historical Financial Information.

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTARY

Nature of operations

The Company is engaged in the business of investing in predominately operational renewable energy assets in sub-Saharan 
Africa, for purposes of providing a stable dividend yield and will be deemed an investment entity upon Listing.

Review of results

The Company has been dormant since incorporation.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Six months ended
in millions of Rands Notes 30-Sep-20

ASSETS
Investments
– Investments – Equity –
– Investments – Shareholder Loan Accounts –
Amounts owing by related parties 4 0
Cash at bank –
Deferred tax asset –

Total assets 0

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Bridge Facility –
Deferred tax liability –

EQUITY
Share capital 5 0
Retained income –

Total equity and liabilities 0

Net Asset Value per share (cents) –
Tangible Net Asset Value per share (cents) –
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Six months ended
in millions of Rands Notes 30-Sep-20

Return on investments –
Dividends received –
Interest on shareholder loan investment received –
Unrealised movement in fair value of investments –

Other income –

Total income and gains –
Operating expenses –

Investment Manager management fee –
Directors’ remuneration –
Administrative expenses –
Other expenses –

Establishment Costs –
Listing Costs –
Investment acquisition costs –

Due diligence costs paid to third party service providers –
Investment Manager transaction fee –

Operating profit –
Finance expense –

Profit for the period before tax –
Tax expense –

Profit for the period after tax –

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company –
Non-controlling interest –

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company –

Headline earnings –

Number of shares issued 10
Weighted Average Number of Shares 10
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) –
Headline and diluted Headline earnings per share (cents) –
Dividends per share (cents) –



107

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

  2020

in millions of Rands Share Capital
Retained 
Earnings Total

Balance at the beginning of the year – – –
Issue of shares – – –
Total comprehensive income for the year – – –

Balance at the end of the year – – –
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Six months ended
in millions of Rands Notes 30-Sep-20

Income –
Interest income –
Dividends received –
Other income –

Expenditure –
Operating expenditure –
Establishment costs –
Investment acquisition costs –
Income tax paid –

Net cash flow from operating activities –

Investing activities
Investments – Equity acquired –
Investments – Shareholder loans acquired –
Investments – Shareholder loans repaid –

Net cash inflow from investing activities –

Cash flows from financing activities:
Bridge Facility Raised –
Bridge Facility Repaid –
Issue of shares for cash –
Listing costs –
Capital raise fees –
Finance cost –
Dividends paid –

Net cash inflow from financing activities –

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents –
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period –

Dividends paid –
Shares issued –
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NOTES TO INTERIM HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of this Interim Historical Financial Information are 
set out below. These policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items that are considered material 
in relation to Revego Interim Historical Financial Information and to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated.

1.2 Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

The Interim Historical Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and interpretations issued by the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB, and the requirements of the Companies Act. 
The Interim Historical Financial Information is presented in South African Rand, which is the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest million Rand. This Interim Historical 
Financial Information has been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where specifically indicated below. 
The Interim Historical Financial Information was authorised for issue by the Directors on 25 March 2021.

As a minimum, contain the information required by IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting, except for comparatives. 
The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Interim Historical Financial Information are in terms of 
IFRS and are consistent with those applied in the previous consolidated annual financial statements.

Segmental information is not applicable for the reporting period of this Historical Financial Information.

Going concern

This Interim Historical Financial Information has been prepared on the going concern principle.

The preparation of Interim Historical Financial Information in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 
the Company’s accounting policies. The notes to the Interim Historical Financial Information set out areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant 
to the Interim Historical Financial Information.

1.3 Financial Instruments

Financial instruments comprise of amounts owing by related parties are initially measured at fair value and are 
subsequently measured as set out below.

Transaction costs of instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss (“FVPL”) are recognised 
immediately through profit and loss. For other categories of financial instruments, transaction costs are 
capitalised to the initial carrying amount.

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument.

All purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company 
commits to purchase the financial asset or to assume the financial liability.

Financial Assets

Amounts owing by related parties are classified as “hold to collect”: the intention is to hold the asset to 
maturity to earn interest, collecting repayments of principal and interest from the customer. These assets are 
accounted for at amortised cost.
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1.3 Financial Instruments (continued)

The Company assesses whether the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest 
(the “SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows 
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value 
of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending 
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with 
a basic lending arrangement, the related asset would be classified and measured at FVPL.

At each balance sheet date each financial asset categorised at amortised cost is measured for Expected credit 
losses (“ECL”) impairment. Loss allowances are forward-looking, based on 12-month expected credit losses 
where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime 
expected losses.

ECLs are a probability- weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the risk of default 
which is applied to the cash flow estimates. On a significant increase in credit risk, credit losses are rebased 
from 12-month to lifetime expectations. A change in credit risk is typically but not necessarily associated with 
a change in the expected cash flows.

The impairment losses on assets held at amortised cost are presented as impairments in the income statement. 
Financial assets held at amortised cost are presented net of allowances except where the asset has been 
wholly or partially written off.

Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised are considered to be “stage 1”, financial assets which are 
considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in “stage 2”, and financial assets for 
which there is objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired 
are in “stage 3”.

Financial assets are derecognised when:

• the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay 
them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or

• the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has either (a) transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Company 
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor is transferred control of the asset, the asset recognised 
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the 
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.

Share capital and reserves

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Capital and reserves comprise share capital and retained earnings.
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2. RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company in the ordinary course 
of business enters into various transactions with related parties. Revego Africa Energy Limited is wholly owned by 
Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg.

Directors David Hugh Brown
Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari
Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza
Reyburn Lars Hendricks
Richard Abel
Shamilah Grimwood-Norley
Terrence Sonny Chauke

At 30 September 2020 R
Interest/fees 

(paid) received
Amounts owing to 

related parties
Amounts owing by

 related parties

Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg – – 0

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial risk to the Company resulting from default by a counterparty to comply with 
its obligations to service the outstanding debt. For the current financial year, the credit risk to which the Company 
is exposed to is “amounts owing by related parties” which consists of R10 owing by shareholders for share capital 
issued.

Capital risk management

Capital includes issued share capital to ordinary shareholders. No dividends have been paid in the current financial 
year.

Fair Value

The Directors are of the opinion that the book value of the financial instruments recognised at year end approximates 
their fair values.

September 2020
Receivables at

 amortised cost
Total carrying 

amount

Assets
Amounts owing by related parties – –

– –

4. AMOUNTS OWING BY RELATED PARTIES

2020

Lourens Francois Janse van Rensburg –

Amounts owing by related parties are payable upon listing of the Company, which is expected to occur within the 
next financial period. Amounts owing are interest free and redeemable on demand. The ECL on this amount was 
assessed and considered to be immaterial.
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5. EQUITY AND RESERVES

2020

Ordinary share capital
Authorised
5,000,000 Ordinary shares of no par value
Issued:
10 ordinary shares at R1 0

0

6. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2020

Expenses incurred on behalf of the company 1

Currently, and until the listing of Revego, Investec carries all costs related to establishing and the listing of the Fund, 
which include expenses incurred by the Company. Upon successful listing of the Fund, Investec will have the legal 
right to recoup the costs incurred on behalf of Revego. If not listed, Investec will lose the right to recovery and suffer 
the loss. Consequently, there is no present obligation for the Company to refund Investec until such time as the Fund 
is listed. It is thus a possible obligation and meets the definition of a contingent liability under IAS 37 (Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).

7. FINANCIAL RATIOS

2020
Cents

Earnings per share –
Diluted Earnings per share –
Headline Earnings per share –
Diluted Headline Earnings per share –
Net Asset Value per share –
Tangible Net Asset Value –
Dividends per share –

8. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the 2021 financial year the Revego Group has commenced the acquisition of assets for the listing of Revego; 
seven acquisitions have been initiated in the renewable energy industry of which none have been finalized. Even 
though these have been considered as material events between 30 September 2020 and the date of approval of this 
Interim Historical Financial Information they are not considered to be adjusting events in terms of IAS 10.



113

ANNEXURE 6 – INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 
ON THE INTERIM HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Review Report on the Interim Historical Financial Information

To the Directors of Revego Africa Energy Limited

At your request, we present our Independent Reporting Accountant’s review report on the interim historical financial 
information of Revego Africa Energy Limited (the “Company”) as at and for the six months ended 30 September 
2020 (the “Interim Historical Financial Information”) for inclusion in Annexure 5 on pages 104 to 112 to the 
Pre-Listing Statement to be dated on or about 31 March 2021 (“Pre-Listing Statement”). This report is required for the 
purposes of complying with Section 8.48 (a)(iii) of the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”) (the “JSE Listings 
Requirements”) and is given for the purpose of complying with those requirements and for no other purpose. We are the 
Independent Reporting Accountant and the Independent Auditor of Revego Africa Energy Limited.

To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability to any other 
person for any loss suffered by any such other person as a result of, arising out of, or in connection with this report or our 
statement, required by and given solely for the purposes of complying with the JSE Listings Requirements, and consenting to 
its inclusion in the Pre-Listing Statement.

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Review Report on the Interim Historical Financial Information

We have reviewed the Interim Historical Financial Information which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
30 September 2020 and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement 
of cash flows for the six-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes, as presented in Annexure 5 on pages 104 to 112 to the Pre-Listing Statement.

Responsibility of the directors

The directors of the Company are responsible for the compilation, contents and preparation of the Pre-Listing Statement 
in accordance with section 8.7 of the JSE Listings Requirements. The Directors are also responsible for the preparation 
and presentation of this Interim Historical Financial Information, in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements, and for 
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the Interim Historical Financial 
Information that is free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Those charged with governance at the Company are responsible for overseeing the process to compile the Interim Historical 
Financial Information.

Responsibility of the Independent Reporting Accountant on the Interim Historical Financial Information

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Interim Historical Financial Information. We conducted our review in 
accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements ISRE 2410: Review of Interim Financial Information Performed 
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity. ISRE 2410 requires us to conclude whether anything has come to our attention that 
causes us to believe that the Interim Historical Financial Information is not prepared in all material respects in accordance 
with the applicable financial reporting framework. This Standard also requires us to comply with relevant ethical requirements.

A review of the Interim Historical Financial Information in accordance with ISRE 2410 is a limited assurance engagement. We 
perform procedures, primarily consisting of making enquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and 
applying analytical procedures and evaluating the evidence obtained.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than and differ in nature from those performed in an audit 
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on the 
Interim Historical Financial Information.

Conclusion

Based on our reviews, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Interim Historical Financial 
Information, as set out in Annexure 5 on pages 104 to 112 to the Pre-Listing Statement, is not prepared, in all material 
respects, in accordance with Section 8.7 of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our conclusion, we draw attention to Basis of Preparation included in the Interim Historical Financial 
Information, as presented in Annexure 5 on pages 104 to 112 to the Pre-Listing Statement, which describes the basis of 
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accounting. The Interim Historical Financial Information is prepared for inclusion in Annexure 5 of this Pre-Listing Statement 
for the purposes of complying with Section 8.7 of the JSE Listings Requirements. As a result, the Interim Historical Financial 
Information may not be suitable for another purpose.

 
Ernst & Young Inc.

Director: Gail Moshoeshoe CA(SA)
Registered Auditor
Reporting Accountant

Johannesburg
25 March 2021
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ANNEXURE 7 – PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

INTRODUCTION

The definitions commencing on page 14 to this Pre-Listing Statement apply, mutatis mutandis, to this Annexure 7.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The pro forma financial information of Revego (“Pro forma Financial Information”) has been prepared for illustrative 
purposes only and because of its nature may not fairly present Revego’s financial position, changes in equity and results of 
operations or cash flows.

The Pro forma Financial Information is based on the reviewed Historical Financial Information of Revego as at and for the 
interim period ended 30 September 2020 which is included as Annexure 5 to the Pre-Listing Statement.

The Pro forma Financial Information has been prepared to illustrate the impact of Revego acquiring its Initial Portfolio of 
renewable energy assets and the listing of Revego on the JSE (collectively the “Transaction”) on the Interim Historical 
Financial Information on the assumption that the Transaction occurred:

• on 1 April 2020 for the purposes of both the pro forma statement of comprehensive income and the pro forma 
statement of cash flows; and

• on 30 September 2020 for the purposes of the pro forma statement of financial position.

The Pro forma Financial Information has been prepared using the accounting policies of Revego (set out in Annexure 11) 
which comply with IFRS and are consistent with those applied in the Interim Historical Financial Information.

The Pro forma Financial Information is presented in accordance with the JSE Listing Requirements. The JSE Listings Requirements 
require that pro forma financial information be compiled in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, and the SAICA Guide on 
Pro forma Financial Information.

The directors of Revego are responsible for the Pro forma Financial Information included in this Pre-Listing Statement.

EY’s Independent Reporting Accountant’s assurance report on the compilation of the Pro forma Financial Information is set 
out in Annexure 8 to this Pre-Listing Statement.
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Notes to the Pro Forma Statement of Comprehensive Income, Pro Forma Statement of Cash Flows and 
Pro Forma Statement of Financial Position:
 1  The following key assumptions were applied when preparing Revego’s pro forma statement of comprehensive income 

(“pro forma SCI”) and pro forma statement of cash flows (“pro forma SCF”):

• The Transaction occurred on 1 April 2020, namely:

• The listing of Revego on the JSE;

• The drawdown and repayment of the Bridge Facility; and

• Revego acquiring its Initial Portfolio of Investments.

• The same capital raise assumption as Revego’s anticipated capital raise on Listing, the gross proceeds being 
R1,519 million, as presented in this Pre-Listing Statement and the Forecast Financial Information. Thereby assuming 
the following is the same in the pro forma SCI as the Forecast Financial Information:

• Acquisition values of Investments; and

• Once-off costs incurred, as per paragraph 32 of this Pre-Listing Statement, other than interest expenditure on the 
Bridge Facility of R0.7 million for the period 18 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 and R1.6 million between 1 April 
2021 and 30 April 2021.

Also refer to Assumptions relating to Pro Forma Financial Information included in this annexure (following note 42) for a 
summary of key assumptions.

2  Unless otherwise indicated, the pro forma adjustments summarised in the above pro forma SCI and pro forma SCF will have 
a continuing effect.

Notes 3, 4, 5 and 9 below are applicable to the pro forma SCI, pro forma SCF and pro forma statement of financial position 
(“pro forma SFP”) and notes 6 to 8 are applicable to the pro forma SCI and pro forma SCF only.

3  Column 1 presents the Interim Historical Financial Information of Revego, which has been extracted, without adjustment, 
from the reviewed interim statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows of Revego for the 6 months 
ended 30 September 2020, and the reviewed statement of financial position as at 30 September 2020, as presented in the 
Interim Historical Financial Information included as Annexure 5 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

4  Column 2 relates to and shows the impact on Revego’s pro forma financial information of the drawdown of the Bridge 
Facility used to acquire the relevant Investments prior to Listing. This column has no impact on the pro forma SCI.

5  Column 3 presents the financial effects on Revego’s pro forma financial information of the capital raised from the issue of 
shares on Listing. 151,941,442 shares for a consideration of R1,519 million will be issued on Listing and used to:

• settle the Bridge Facility of R214 million;

• acquire Investments of R1,210 million;

• settle once off costs incurred upon Listing of R91 million (as detailed in paragraph 32 of this Pre-Listing Statement), 
however, R2 million of the R91 million relates to an interest cost on the Bridge Facility which is excluded for pro forma 
purposes, as per note 1;

• to settle the contingent consideration, and applicable transaction costs payable to the Investment Manager, on 31 May 
2021 totalling R20 million in relation to Revego’s purchase of a 12% stake in Bokpoort, as detailed in note 40; and

• satisfy Revego’s required minimum cash balance of R4 million. Further information on this can be found in note 38.

6  Column 4 presents the returns from the underlying Investments of Revego affecting the pro forma financial information 
consisting of:

• dividends distributed by the Projects of R19.0 million (note 10 in the pro forma SCI);

• interest on shareholder loans accrued from the Projects of R28.4 million (note 11 in the pro forma SCI); and

• the income tax impact of the interest on shareholder loan investments of R7.9 million. Further information on this can 
be found in note 18.

7 Column 5 presents the financial effects of recurring costs relating to:

• the annual management fee paid to the Investment Manager of R5.3 million – which is calculated as 65bps of the 
Enterprise Value;

• directors’ fees of R0.9 million relating to the remuneration of Revego’s board members; and

• administration expenses of R3.4 million relating to internal costs to manage and maintain the Fund and Revego.
8  Column 6 presents the financial effects of the revaluations, along with related deferred tax on these revaluations, of the 
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Investments purchased in the Transaction. Further detail is provided in note 12 and Annexure 2 to this Pre-Listing Statement.

9 Column 7 presents the pro forma SCI, the pro forma SCF and the pro forma SFP of Revego after the Transaction.

10 Dividends received relate to the actual dividend distributions declared and paid by the Projects, detailed in the table below.

in millions of Rands Dividends Received

Aurora Wind Power 19.0
Kathu Solar Park –
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm –
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm –
Khobab Wind Farm –

Total 19.0

11  Interest on shareholder loans represent interest accrued on shareholder loan investments in the Projects, detailed in 
the table below. For the principal repayments on the shareholder loans, refer to the pro forma statement of cash flows, 
specifically the investing activities.

in millions of Rands
Interest on

Shareholder Loans

Aurora Wind Power –
Kathu Solar Park 14.9
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm 1.6
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 5.5
Khobab Wind Farm 6.4

Total 28.4

12  Fair value adjustments relate to the Investments purchased in the Transaction. The fair value movements are largely due 
to movements in the discount rates. The valuations are performed on a semi-annual basis on 30 September and 31 
March. The valuations use a DCF methodology using the below discount rates per Project – each of which considers the 
prevailing risk-free rate and is adjusted for equity and project risk. Refer to Annexure 2 for more detail in this regard. The 
fair value of the contingent consideration (in note 40 below) is assumed to stay constant.

The fair value adjustments are summarised as follows:

Project Company Discount Rate

Equity 
Investment
(in millions 

of Rands)

Shareholder 
Loans

(in millions 
of Rands)

Total
(in millions 

of Rands)

Aurora Wind Power 10.20% – 10.50% (27.4) – (27.4)
Kathu Solar Park 13.00% – 13.50% (12.1) (4.1) (16.2)
Bokpoort 11.30% – 11.60% 17.6 – 17.6
Noupoort Wind Farm 11.00% – 11.30% 19.4 (0.6) 18.8
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 11.30% – 11.60% 38.4 (1.0) 37.4
Khobab Wind Farm 10.80% – 11.10% 15.3 (1.7) 13.6

Total 51.1 (7.4) 43.7

13  Establishment costs amounting to R11.5 million relate to cumulative costs incurred by the Fund in establishing the Fund’s 
structures. Establishment costs are incurred prior to Listing and settled using the Listing proceeds. Further detail is shown 
in paragraph 32 of the Pre-Listing Statement. The establishment costs will not have a continuing effect on Revego’s pro 
forma SCI and Revego’s pro forma SCF.
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Establishment Costs (in millions of Rands)

Legal fees 5.9
Advisory fees 3.0
BEE opinion 0.0
Fund Manager registration and licencing 0.5
Insurance – Private Equity Management Liability Insurance 0.2
Insurance – Directors and Officers Liability Insurance 0.2
Directors fees prior to Listing 0.0
Other fees 0.2

Total (excluding VAT) 10.0

VAT (@15%) 1.5

Total (including VAT) 11.5

14  Listing costs incurred by Revego amounting to R14.4 million in preparation for its Listing on the JSE. Detail relating to the 
listing costs can be found in paragraph 85 of this Pre-Listing Statement. The Listing costs will not have a continuing effect 
on Revego’s pro forma SCI and Revego’s pro forma SCF. Detail relating to the listing costs can be found in paragraph 85 of 
this Pre-Listing Statement.

Listing costs (in millions of Rands)

Listing fees 5.0
Legal fees 1.2
Reporting accountants 3.1
Transfer secretary 0.0
Printing and publication 0.2
JSE Listing fee 0.5
JSE documentation fee 0.1
JSE ancillary fees 0.0
Sponsor fees 0.3
Bookrunner legal fees 0.9
Marketing costs – Listing 0.5
Insurance – Public Offering of Securities Insurance 0.8

Total (excluding VAT) 12.5

VAT (@15%) 1.9

Total (including VAT) 14.4

15  External advisors’ costs, amounting to R11.7 million, are incurred to complete the required detailed due diligence (legal, 
technical, environmental and tax) of each Investment prior to acquisition. The external advisors’ costs will not have a 
continuing effect on Revego’s pro forma SCI and Revego’s pro forma SCF.

16  Transaction costs, amounting to R8.1 million, paid to the Investment Manager – 50bps of the value of the Transaction. The 
transaction costs will not have a continuing effect on Revego’s pro forma SCI and Revego’s pro forma SCF.

The following transaction costs are due to the Investment Manager:

• In column 2:

– R1.1 million as a result of the acquisition of Bokpoort.

• In column 3:

– R7.0 million for the acquisition of the Investments, other than Bokpoort.

17  Finance expenses, amounting to R28.8 million, relate to costs incurred on the Bridge Facility. The finance expenses in 
Revego’s pro forma financial information relate only to the upfront Bridge Facility fee because, for pro forma purposes only, 
it is assumed that the Bridge Facility is utilised and repaid on the same day, thereby incurring no interest expenditure on 
the Bridge Facility.

The upfront fee is calculated as the Bridge Facility commitment of R1.25 billion multiplied by the commitment fee of 2% 
grossed up with VAT of 15%, totalling R28.8 million.
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The finance expenses will not have a continuing effect on Revego’s pro forma SCI nor on Revego’s pro forma SCF.

18 Tax expense relates to the following:

• The current tax impact, as per Column 4, considering the following:

• Revego, as an investment company, earns passive income and is therefore not regarded as carrying on a trade for 
income tax purposes. As a result, in calculating its tax expense, Revego can only deduct interest expenditure to the 
extent that interest income has been earned. For the purposes of the pro forma financial information, no interest 
expense is incurred.

• Interest income accrued on shareholder loans are taxable.

• Dividends received are exempt from income tax.

• The deferred tax impact, as per Column 6, of the fair value adjustments of the Investments that result in a taxable 
temporary difference. The fair value adjustments attract tax as follows:

• The fair value adjustments relating to the revaluation of the equity portion of the Investments attracts deferred tax 
at the applicable capital gains tax inclusion rate of 80% of the standard corporate tax rate of 28%; and

• The fair value adjustments relating to the revaluation of the shareholder loan portion of the Investments attracts 
deferred tax at the standard corporate tax rate of 28%.

19  Non-controlling interest represents 0.01% of the Fund’s partnership held by the General Partner in the Fund, with Revego 
owning 99.99% of the partnership interest.
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 (continued) Notes to the Pro Forma Statement of Cash Flows
20 Unless otherwise indicated, the pro forma adjustments summarised in the above pro forma SCF will have a continuing effect.

21  Column 6 does not impact the pro forma SCF as it relates to fair value adjustments which is a non-cash item and, as such, 
the column is only included for completeness.

22 Column 7 presents the pro forma SCF of Revego after the Transaction.

The closing cash balance less the minimum required cash balance of R4.0 million and the R20.0 million required to settle 
the contingent consideration and transaction costs related thereto (as per note 40), results in Revego’s distributable income. 
Revego intends to distribute all available cash to shareholders. Dividends are expected to be declared on a semi-annual basis 
in March (final dividend) and September (interim dividend).

23  Interest on shareholder loans, amounting to R20.1 million, represent the interest received from shareholder loan investments 
in the Projects, detailed per Project in the table below.

in millions of Rands
Interest received on

 shareholder loans

Aurora Wind Power –
Kathu Solar Park 7.4
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm 1.6
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 5.4
Khobab Wind Farm 5.7

Total 20.1

24  Dividends Received, amounting to R19.0 million, relate to actual dividend distributions by the Projects which have been 
paid to Revego, detailed per Project in the table below. Detailed breakdown per Project shown in note 10  above.

in millions of Rands Dividends Received

Aurora Wind Power 19.0
Kathu Solar Park –
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm –
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm –
Khobab Wind Farm –

Total 19.0

25  Operating expenditure, amounting to R9.6 million, relates to the following recurring expenditure incurred, as detailed in 
note 7 in the pro forma SCI:

• The annual (pro-rated) management fee, of R5.3 million, paid to the Investment Manager, which is calculated as 65bps 
of the Enterprise Value.

• Directors’ fees, of R0.9 million, relate to the remuneration of Revego’s board members.

• Administration expenses, of R3.4 million, relate to internal costs to manage and maintain the Fund and Revego.

 26 Income tax paid relates to the current tax impact considering the following:

• Revego, as an investment company, earns passive income and is therefore not regarded as carrying on a trade for 
income tax purposes. As a result, in calculating its tax expense, Revego can only deduct interest expenditure to the 
extent that interest income has been earned. For the purposes of the pro forma financial information, no interest 
expense is incurred.

• Interest income accrued on shareholder loans are taxable.

• Dividends received are exempt from income tax.

• Shareholder loan repayments to the Fund, as per note 29 below, are not taxable as these are capital in nature.

 27  Investments in the Projects can consist of Investments in Equity Instruments and Investments in Shareholder Loans, the 
latter dealt with in note 28 below.
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This item relates to Investments in Equity Instruments acquired as follows:

• Bokpoort for R183.7 million, as per Column 2, using Bridge Facility proceeds.

• The remainder of the assets in the Initial Portfolio, acquired for a total of R708.2 million.

Refer to Annexure 13 for further detail in relation to the acquisition prices.

The following has been assumed for the Investments acquired for the purposes of the Pro forma Financial Information (this 
also applies to note 28 below relating to Investments in Shareholder Loans):

• The acquisition of the Initial Portfolio of Investments at their respective shareholdings, consistent with what is contained 
in the Pre-Listing Statement.

• The purchase prices were agreed using a DCF methodology with the following salient assumptions:

• Cash flows from Investments, consisting of interest received on shareholder loans, principal repayments of 
shareholders loans and dividends, for the remainder of the PPA;

• No terminal value assumed; and

• Discount rates applied for each of the assets considering various risk and return factors specific to each asset – 
refer to Annexure 2.

28  Investments in shareholder loans relate to Shareholder Loans acquired in the Projects. Refer to assumptions above in 
note  27 relating to the acquisition of Equity Instruments, as the same valuation principles apply to the acquisition of 
Shareholder Loans. Detailed investments in shareholder loans per Project shown below.

in millions of Rands
Investments in

 shareholder loans

Aurora Wind Power –
Kathu Solar Park 241.3
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm 29.5
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 119.8
Khobab Wind Farm 121.4

Total 512.0

29 Shareholder loan repayments relate to cash received by the Fund from principal repaid by Projects on shareholder loans.

in millions of Rands
Shareholder Loan

 Repayments

Aurora Wind Power –
Kathu Solar Park 3.8
Bokpoort –
Noupoort Wind Farm 2.5
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 3.3
Khobab Wind Farm –

Total 9.6

30  The Bridge Facility is utilised to acquire Revego’s investment in Bokpoort. For pro forma SCF purposes and to ensure 
consistency with the forecast assumptions, the Bridge Facility, amounting to R214.3 million, is assumed to be both drawn 
down and repaid on 1 April 2020. For pro forma SCF purposes, the Bridge Facility is assumed to be repaid on 1 April 2020.

31  Capital of R1.52 billion raised by Revego through the issuance of ordinary shares, for pro forma purposes, on the assumption 
the Listing on the JSE took place on 1 April 2020. Assumptions relating to the issuance are as follows:

• An issue price of R10.00 per share – as per paragraph 28 of the Pre-Listing Statement; and

• The resultant subscription of 151.9 million shares.

32  Capital raise fees paid to Revego’s financial advisors and bookrunners and EPPF as cornerstone investor. Refer to 
paragraph 32 in the Pre-Listing Statement for further detail.

Capital raise fees are accounted for directly in equity, and not as expenditure as the fees relate directly to the issue of Shares.
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33  Dividends relating to the period ending 30 September 2020 would only be paid after 30 September 2020, therefore the 
dividend amount is zero and has no impact on the pro forma SCF.

34  Revego’s cash balance after the capital raise, for pro forma purposes, will be R26.3 million (the sum of the cash balances in 
Column 2 and 3). This consists of:

• the capital raised to ensure the minimum cash balance of R4.0 million is available;

• the capital raised, in relation to the contingent consideration on 31 May 2021 for Revego’s purchase of a 12% stake in 
Bokpoort, as detailed in note 40 to allow Revego to settle:

• the R19.9 million contingent consideration payable to the seller; and

• the applicable transaction costs payable to the Investment Manager of R0.1 million; and

• the “additional” capital raised, but not incurred to ensure consistency with forecast capital raise assumptions, on 
the R2.3 million Bridge Facility interest expense as detailed in Note 1. Thereby adding to the cash available after 
capital raise.
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(continued) Notes to the Pro Forma Statement of Financial Position
35 The following key assumptions are applied when presenting Revego’s pro forma SFP:

• The Transaction, in its entirety, occurred on 30 September 2020.

• The same capital raise assumption as Revego’s anticipated capital raise on Listing, being R1,519 million, as presented in 
this Pre-Listing Statement and the Forecast Financial Information. Thereby assuming the following is the same in the 
pro forma SFP as the forecast financial information:

• Acquisition values of Investments in the pro forma SFP as the forecast financial information; and

• Once-off costs incurred, as per paragraph 32 of this Pre-Listing Statement, other than interest expenditure 
on the Bridge Facility of R2.3 million, due to the assumption that the Bridge Facility is utilised and repaid on 
30 September 2020.

As a result of the assumption that the Transaction occurred on 30 September 2020, the same date as the pro forma SFP 
reporting date, Columns 4, 5 and 6 do not impact the pro forma SFP as these columns are affected over a period of time 
which is not applicable in this case given the Transaction date.

36 This item relates to Investments in Equity Instruments as follows:

• Bokpoort for R203.6 million, as per Column 2, consisting of.

• Bokpoort for R183.7 million, as per Column 2, using Bridge Facility proceeds; and

• A contingent consideration on the acquisition of Bokpoort for R19.9 million. Refer to note 40 for further detail in 
this regard.

• The remainder of the assets in the Initial Portfolio, acquired for a total of R708.2 million.

Refer to Annexure 13 for further detail in relation to the acquisition prices.

The following has been assumed for the Investments acquired for the purposes of the Pro Forma Financial Information (this 
also applies to note 37 below relating to Investments in Shareholder Loans):

• The acquisition of the Initial Portfolio of Investments at their respective shareholdings, consistent with what is contained 
in the Pre-Listing Statement.

• The purchase prices were agreed using a DCF methodology with the following salient assumptions:

• cash flows from Investments, consisting of interest received on shareholder loans, principal repayments of 
shareholders loans and dividends, for the remainder of the PPA;

• no terminal value assumed; and

• discount rates applied for each of the assets considering various risk and return factors specific to each asset – refer 
to Annexure 2.

37  Investments in shareholder loans relate to Shareholder Loans, amounting to R512.0 million, acquired in the Projects. Refer 
to assumptions above in note 36 relating to the acquisition of Equity Instruments, as the same valuation principles apply 
to the acquisition of Shareholder Loans.

38 Revego’s cash balance after the capital raise, for pro forma purposes, is R26.3 million. This consists of:

• the capital raised to ensure the minimum cash balance of R4.0 million is available;

• the capital raised, in relation to the contingent consideration on 31 May 2021 for Revego’s purchase of a 12% stake in 
Bokpoort, as detailed in note 40 to allow Revego to settle:

• the R19.9 million contingent consideration payable to the seller; and

• the applicable transaction costs payable to the Investment Manager of R0.1 million; and

• the “additional” capital raised, but not incurred to ensure consistency with forecast capital raise assumptions, on the 
R2.3 million Bridge Facility interest expense. Thereby adding to the cash available after capital raise.

39  The Bridge Facility is utilised to acquire the investment in Bokpoort For pro forma SCF purposes and to ensure consistency 
with the forecast assumptions, the Bridge Facility is assumed to be utilised on 30 September 2020. For pro forma SCF 
purposes, the Bridge Facility is assumed to be repaid on 30 September 2020.

40  A contingent consideration of R19.9 million relates to Revego’s purchase of a 12% stake in Bokpoort. This is due to the 
share purchase agreement signed with the seller relating to additional consideration payable if the Project implements 
certain operational enhancements.

The fair value of the contingent consideration is based on discounting of future additional cash flows arising from the 
implementation of the operational enhancement.
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The contingent consideration of R19.9 million represents the fair value of the consideration payable for the operational 
enhancements in accordance with the share purchase agreement. The contingent consideration is payable upon implementation 
of the operational enhancement by the Project, and the estimated payment date is 31 May 2021.

41  Capital of R1.52 billion raised by Revego through the issuance of ordinary shares, for pro forma purposes, on the assumption 
the Listing on the JSE took place on 30 September 2020. Assumptions relating to the issuance are as follows:

• An issue price of R10.00 per share – as per paragraph 28 of the Pre-Listing Statement; and

• The resultant subscription of 151.9 million shares.

The Share Capital balance is reduced by the capital raise fees of R14.6 million. These fees are accounted for directly in equity, 
and not as expenditure, as the fees relate directly to the issue of Shares. Refer to paragraph 85 for further detail relating to 
the capital raise fees.

42  The negative retained earnings balance of R74.5 million is because of the once-off expenditure incurred and summarised 
as follows:

• Establishment costs of R11.5 million;

• Listing costs of R14.4 million;

• Investment acquisition costs of R19.9 million; and

• Finance expenses (relating to the Bridge Facility fee) of R28.8 million.

The capital raise fees of R14.6 million do not reduce the retained earnings balance as these are accounted for directly in 
equity.

No income was earned for the purposes of the pro forma SFP due to the acquisition date assumption of 30 September 2020, 
thereby resulting in a negative retained earnings balance equal to the above once-off expenses of R74.5 million.
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ASSUMPTIONS RELATING TO PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

The Pro forma Financial Information presented contains assumptions, which are discussed individually below. It is important 
to highlight the key assumptions, namely inflation rates, energy production, discount rates and other factors in assessing the 
fair value adjustments of the Investments, contained in the Pro forma Financial Information that is presented.

Furthermore, it is important to note that the assumptions below only affect the Pro forma Financial Information through the 
impact on the fair value adjustments, and the resultant deferred tax, presented.

Refer to each assumption below to understand the level of influence the Investment Manager has over such assumption.

General

Acquisition Dates for the purposes of the SCI and SCF

The below table shows the acquisition dates of the various Projects and the sources of funding utilised to acquire such 
Investments:

Project (Seller) Acquisition Date Funding Source

Aurora Wind Power (KTH) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds
Aurora Wind Power (Investec) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds
Kathu Solar Park (Investec) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds
Bokpoort (Metier) 1 April 2020 Bridge Facility
Noupoort Wind Farm (Metier) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm (Metier) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds
Khobab Wind Farm (Metier) 1 April 2020 Listing Proceeds

Investment-specific assumptions

The following assumptions are the drivers of the forecast profits and distributable income of the Projects in which Revego 
is a shareholder. These assumptions in turn affect the quantum and timing of shareholder loan repayments and dividend 
distributions from the investments. Revego receives its share of the shareholder loan repayments and dividend distributions.

1. REVENUE

a. Power Purchase Agreements

Risks of non-performance or credit-related defaults by Eskom cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

Revenue of the underlying Project Companies is generated solely from long term, government backed, power 
purchase agreements that are entered into with Eskom for all the energy produced by the plants.

The energy produced by each Project is sold at the agreed, inflation-linked escalated tariff to Eskom.

No material non-performance or credit-related defaults by Eskom, being the off-taker in relation to the Initial 
Portfolio, have been assumed.

b. Inflation rate

The inflation forecasts cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

Tariffs and Project Companies’ revenue impact

The forecast inflation rates have an impact on the tariffs that each of the Project Companies charge for energy 
produced and sold to Eskom, therefore affecting each Project Company’s revenue materially. The inflation-
indexed portion of the tariff increases on 1 April each year with the prior year’s actual inflation result, resulting 
in an escalated tariff charged by the Project Company to Eskom for energy produced and sold.

The inflation-indexation for each of the Project Companies’ tariffs is summarised below:

Project Company Tariff Indexation

Aurora Wind Power Partial indexation (32%)
Kathu Solar Park Fully indexed (100%)
Bokpoort Fully Indexed (100%)
Noupoort Wind Farm Partial Indexation (27%)
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm Fully Indexed (100%)
Khobab Wind Farm Fully Indexed (100%)
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The current, weighted average tariff for the Initial Portfolio is R 2,535.41/MWh.

Operational costs

Operational costs are subject to inflationary increases. The operational costs for the Project Companies are 
escalated at the forecast inflation rates.

Investment Manager methodology

The Investment Manager applies its internal view on inflation which it collates from the following sources: BMi 
Research (Fitch), Bureau of Economic Research and Investec Bank Limited. The Investment Manager calculates 
the average inflation from the above sources and applies this to determine its forecast inflation assumptions.

Estimates applied

In the Forecast Financial Information, Revego has estimated inflation of:

• 3.75% for the year ending 31 March 2021, and

• 4.70% for the year ending 31 March 2022.

c. Energy production

Energy produced and sold by each Project Company is a function of two factors, the renewable energy 
resource factor and the performance of each plant.

(i) Resource factor

The resource factor cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

The renewable energy resource factor refers to either the amount of solar irradiation or wind received 
by each project. This cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

A P50 energy resource factor has been assumed for each of the Project Companies ,̂ an assumption 
that is customary in the market from an equity perspective. The Initial Portfolio has shown that resource 
yields are in line with P50 expectations to date.

^ Downward adjustments were, however, made to the Noupoort Wind Farm, Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and 
Khobab Wind Farm energy yield assumptions following the completion of the Investment Manager’s appointed 
technical expert advisor’s detailed due diligence. The downward adjustments relate largely to the anticipated 
impact of wake losses and resultant wind turbine performance. The total downward adjustments made on 
energy yield assumptions were (-1.5%) for Noupoort Wind Farm (-6.0%) for Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and 
(-5.0%) for Khobab Wind Farm. The breakdown of the total downward adjustments per each wind farm is 
listed on the table below.

Adjustments by Lloyd’s Register
Noupoort 

Wind Farm
Loeriesfontein 

Wind Farm
Khobab 

Wind Farm

Availability 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%
Electrical efficiency –0.10% –0.30% –0.80%
Wind turbine performance –2.40% –0.60% –1.40%
Power Boost 0.50% 0.20% 0.20%
Long term wind resource modelling 0.10% –0.30% –0.30%
Wake loss modelling –0.90% –3.90% –1.80%
Flow model –0.50% –0.50% –0.50%
Other* 1.60% –0.80% –0.60%

Total –1.50% –6.00% –5.00%

*Other adjustments were included by the Projects’ technical advisor, Lloyd’s Register, as a reconciling item for unforeseen items.

(ii) Plant performance

Plant performance of the Projects can be influenced by the Investment Manager through the board of 
directors’ representation of each Project Company.

The performance of the project impacts how much of the resource yield is converted into usable energy 
for sale. The factors affecting plant performance can only be influenced by Revego through the Investment 
Manager’s board representation on each of the Project Companies’ boards, whose influence is limited in 
nature because of the minority interest holdings in the Project Companies. Operating expenditure consists 
primarily of long-term O&M agreements entered into with O&M Contractors.
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Plant performance relies on the following operating assumptions:

 – Equipment degradation: the degradation forecasts are aligned with the Investment Manager’s 
appointed technical experts’ estimations of degradation of equipment in the market.

 – Availability of the plant: the O&M contractors of the plants have minimum plant availability 
requirements as per the O&M agreements. These minimum, contractual requirements form the 
basis for the forecast availability assumed for the various projects.

 – Scheduled maintenance: each project has planned maintenance, and resultant down-time and this is 
included in the Forecast Financial Information.

 – Unscheduled maintenance: Unscheduled maintenance is not included in the forecasts as this is covered 
by the O&M contractor’s minimum availability guarantee.

 – Grid unavailability: grid unavailability affects the amount of energy each project can sell to Eskom. 
Under the PPAs, the maximum grid unavailability is 5.00%, whereafter Eskom is liable to pay for 
energy produced by each project, but the forecasts include grid unavailability of between 0.50% – 
1.00%, based on historical data.

The assumptions relating to plant performance are summarised per Project as follows:

Project Company
Equipment 

Degradation
Plant 

Availability
Turbine 

Availability
Grid 

Unavailability

Aurora Wind Power 0.0% 97.0% 97.0% 0.50%
Kathu Solar Park 0.2% 97.0% N/A 0.50%
Bokpoort 0.2% 98.0% N/A 0.50%
Noupoort Wind Farm 0.0% 97.0% 97.5% 1.00%
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 0.0% 96.0% 97.5% 1.00%
Khobab Wind Farm 0.0% 96.0% 97.5% 1.00%

2. OTHER FACTORS

The below factors cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

a. Capital expenditure at a Project Company level: Maintenance and operating capital expenditures have 
been forecast in line with the operating budget for life cycle costs, the relevant O&M agreements and, where 
applicable, provided for in the major maintenance reserve accounts.

b. Debt service: As is customary with limited recourse project financed transactions of this nature, each of the 
Project Companies have significant gearing ranging from 67% to 95% with debt tenors amortising within the life of 
the PPAs. The debt principal repayments are individually sculpted to meet minimum debt service coverage ratios.

c. Tax:

i. A VAT rate of 15.0% has been assumed during the forecast period;

ii. A company income tax rate of 28.0% has been assumed during the forecast period

iii. A capital gains tax inclusion rate of 80.0% has been applied; and

iv. No Withholding Tax has been forecast as the Initial Portfolio comprises only South African investments.

d. Regulatory risk: No new or material amendments to any laws or regulations, or interpretation or application of 
existing laws or regulation, that in either case will have a materially adverse effect on the business of Revego, the 
Fund or the Project Companies have been included in the Forecast Financial Information.
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3. PROJECT COMPANY OPERATING EXPENDITURE:

a. O&M agreements

Costs related to the O&M agreements can only be influenced to the extent that the current O&M agreements 
expire or the O&M agreements are terminated.

The cost of the O&M agreements account for, on average, approximately 74% of the operating expenditure 
of the various Project Companies. The contracts have remaining terms that range between 12 and 15 years.

Project Company

O&M 
Contractor 

Cost* 
(of total operating 

expenditure)

O&M 
Contractor 

Cost
(of revenue)

Remaining 
Term on O&M 

Agreement

Aurora Wind Power 87% 21% 12 Years
Kathu Solar Park 66% 9% 15 Years
Bokpoort 80% 18% 12 Years
Noupoort Wind Farm 68% 13% 12 Years
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 70% 12% 14 Years
Khobab Wind Farm 67% 12% 14 Years

Weighted Average 74.19% 14.60% 13 Years

b. Other operating expenditure

Other operating expenditure at each Project can be influenced by the Investment Manager through the board of 
directors’ representation of each Project Company.

Other operating expenditure has been determined based on the Investment Manager’s assessment of the 
Project Companies’ historical expenditure against budgeted costs over the same period. Other operating 
expenditure consists of, inter alia:

i. insurance costs,

ii. administration costs,

iii. audit and legal fees,

iv. debt agency fees,

v. environmental costs, and

vi. security SPV fees.
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ASSUMPTIONS RELATING TO VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS:

1. DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate in determining the periodic fair values of the Investments, after acquisition, cannot be influenced by 
the Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager uses the DCF method to:

– value investments on acquisition to determine the acquisition price; and

– fair value investments post-acquisition.

Project Company
Fair Value Adjustment – 

Discount Rate per Project

Aurora Wind Power 10.20% – 10.50%
Kathu Solar Park 13.00% – 13.50%
Bokpoort 11.30% – 11.60%
Noupoort Wind Farm 11.00% – 11.30%
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 11.30% – 11.60%
Khobab Wind Farm 10.80% – 11.10%

Depending on the risk associated with an investment, the discount rate used to acquire an equity interest in a 
Project Company may vary. The discount rate used in the Forecast Financial Information when assessing the fair 
value of investments, and the resultant fair value gains or losses through profit or loss, is the same discount rate used 
to acquire each of the equity interests in the Project Companies. This is regarded by the Investment Manager as a 
reliable measure of the market value of the investment.

2. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

a. No terminal values beyond the PPA term have been assumed for any of the Projects.

b. No extensions of PPAs have been forecast.
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ANNEXURE 8 – INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S ASSURANCE 
REPORT ON THE PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on the Compilation of Pro Forma Financial 
Information Included in a Pre-Listing Statement

The Directors of Revego Africa Energy Limited

Report on the Assurance Engagement on the Compilation of Pro Forma Financial Information Included in a 
Pre-Listing Statement

We have completed our assurance engagement to report on the compilation of pro forma financial information of Revego 
Africa Energy Limited (the “Company”) by the directors.

The Pro Forma financial information, as set out in Annexure 7 on pages 115 to 134 of the Pre-Listing Statement, consists of 
the pro forma statement of financial position as at 30 September 2020, the pro forma statement of comprehensive income 
for the period ended 30 September 2020, the pro forma statement of cash flows for the period ended 30 September 2020 
and related notes (collectively the “Pro forma Financial Information”). The applicable criteria on the basis of which the 
directors have compiled the Pro forma Financial Information are specified in the JSE Limited (“JSE”) Listings Requirements 
and described in Annexure 7 on pages 115 to 134 of the Pre-Listing Statement.

The Pro forma Financial Information has been compiled by the directors to illustrate the impact of the corporate action or 
event, described on page 115 of the Pre-Listing Statement, on the Company’s financial position as at 30 September 2020 
and the Company’s financial performance for the period then ended, as if the corporate action or event had taken place 
at 30 September 2020 and for the period then ended. As part of this process, information about the Company’s financial 
position and financial performance has been extracted by the directors from the Company’s Interim Historical Financial 
Information for the period ended 30 September 2020, as presented in Annexure 5 of the Pre-Listing Statement, on which 
an independent reporting accountant’s report has been issued.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Pro forma Financial Information

The directors are responsible for compiling the Pro forma Financial Information on the basis of the applicable criteria specified 
in the JSE Listings Requirements and described in Annexure 7 on pages 115 to 134 of the Pre-Listing Statement.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Professional Conduct for Registered 
Auditors issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA Code), which is founded on fundamental principles 
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour. The IRBA Code is 
consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards).

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of 
Financial Statements, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements and accordingly maintains a comprehensive 
system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, 
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Reporting Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion about whether the Pro forma Financial Information has been compiled, in all 
material respects, by the directors on the basis specified in the JSE Listings Requirements and described in Annexure 7 on 
pages 149 to 173 of the Pre-Listing Statement based on our procedures performed.

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3420, 
Assurance Engagements to Report on the Compilation of Pro forma Financial Information Included in a Prospectus, which is 
applicable to an engagement of this nature, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. This standard 
requires that we plan and perform procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Pro forma Financial 
Information has been compiled, in all material respects, on the basis specified in the JSE Listings Requirements.

For purposes of this engagement, we are not responsible for updating or reissuing any reports or opinions on any historical 
financial information used in compiling the Pro forma Financial Information, nor have we, in the course of this engagement, 
performed an audit or review of the financial information used in compiling the Pro forma Financial Information.
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The purpose of Pro forma Financial Information included in a pre-listing statement is solely to illustrate the impact of a 
significant corporate action or event on unadjusted financial information of the Company as if the corporate action or event 
had occurred or had been undertaken at an earlier date selected for purposes of the illustration. Accordingly, we do not 
provide any assurance that the actual outcome of the corporate action or event at 30 September 2020 would have been 
as presented.

A reasonable assurance engagement to report on whether the Pro forma Financial Information has been compiled, in all 
material respects, on the basis of the applicable criteria involves performing procedures to assess whether the applicable 
criteria used by the directors in the compilation of the Pro forma Financial Information provides a reasonable basis for 
presenting the significant effects directly attributable to the corporate action or event, and to obtain sufficient appropriate 
evidence about whether:

• The related pro forma adjustments give appropriate effect to those criteria; and

• The Pro forma Financial Information reflects the proper application of those adjustments to the unadjusted financial 
information.

Our procedures selected depend on our judgment, having regard to our understanding of the nature of the Company the 
corporate action or event in respect of which the Pro forma Financial Information has been compiled, and other relevant 
engagement circumstances.

Our engagement also involves evaluating the overall presentation of the Pro forma Financial Information.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Pro forma Financial Information has been compiled, in all material respects, on the basis of the applicable 
criteria specified in the JSE Listings Requirements and described in Annexure 7 on pages 149 to 173 of the Pre-Listing 
Statement.

 
Ernst & Young Inc.
Director: Gail Moshoeshoe CA(SA)
Registered Auditor
Reporting Accountant

Johannesburg
25 March 2021
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ANNEXURE 9 – FORECAST FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

INTRODUCTION

The definitions commencing on page 14 of the Pre-Listing Statement apply, mutatis mutandis, to this Annexure 9.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The forecast of Revego’s statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for the twelve months ending 
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 (“Forecast Financial Information”) are set out in the table below and should be 
read in conjunction with the Independent Reporting Accountant’s report thereon (which is included in Annexure 10 to 
this Pre-Listing Statement).

The forecast period ending 31 March 2021 contains actual financial information for the period 1 April 2020 to 30 
September 2020 and uses the same line items, as per the Interim Historical Financial Information as set out in Annexure 5 
of the Pre-Listing Statement and contains forecast financial information for the period 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2021.

The directors of Revego are responsible for the Forecast Financial Information including the assumptions on which it is 
based, and for the financial information from which it has been prepared. The Forecast Financial Information has been 
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies of Revego (set out in Annexure 11) and in compliance with 
IFRS.

EY’s Independent Reporting Accountant’s report on the Forecast Financial Information is set out in Annexure 10 to this 
Pre-Listing Statement.
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FORECAST STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

in millions of Rands

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-211

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-22

Return on investments 28.8 200.4
Dividends received2 63.4 69.7
Interest on shareholder loan investment3 – 46.6
Movement in fair value of investments4 (34.6) 84.1

Other income5 – 1.9

Total income and gains 28.8 202.3
Operating expenses (0.0) (18.1)

Investment Manager management fee6 (0.0) (9.5)
Directors’ remuneration7 – (1.7)
Administrative expenses8 – (6.9)
Other expenses – –

Establishment Costs9 – (11.5)
Listing Costs10 – (14.4)
Investment acquisition costs (1.1) (18.8)

Due diligence costs paid to third party service providers11 – (11.7)
Investment Manager transaction fee12 (1.1) (7.1)

Operating profit/(loss) 27.7 139.5
Finance expense13 (10.3) (20.7)

Profit/(loss) for the period before tax 17.4 118.8
Tax expense14 - (25.8)

Profit/(loss) for the period after tax 17.4 93.0

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 17.4 93.0
Non-controlling interest15 0.0 0.0
Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 17.4 93.0

Headline earnings 17.4 93.0

Number of shares issued 10 151,941,452
Weighted average number of shares 10 139,453,115
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 173,783,896.50 66.59
Headline and diluted Headline earnings per share (cents) 173,783,896.50 66.59
Dividends per share (cents)16 – 118.01

NOTES TO THE FORECAST STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
1 The forecast period ending 31 March 2021 does not relate to an active operating period of 12 months for Revego as the Revego Listing is only 

assumed to take place during the month of April 2021 and the first Investment was made on 18 March 2021. Refer to assumptions relating to 
Forecast Financial Information (following note 33) for Acquisition Dates of all the Investments.

The forecast was prepared for the current financial year and for a period of 12 months after the current financial year.
2 Dividends Received relates to forecast dividend distributions by the Projects.

The R63.4 million dividend in the period ending March 2021 relates to Revego’s 12% portion of the special dividend expected to be paid out by 
Bokpoort in March 2021 after the refinancing event that occurred at the Project in December 2020.

The salient details of the refinancing are as follows:

• The senior debt providers refinanced the existing debt in the Project on more favourable terms for the Project.

• The refinancing resulted in a lower tariff for energy produced for the Project, as agreed with the DMRE as part of its share in the refinancing.

• The refinancing resulted in additional cash available for distribution to shareholders. The majority of the additional cash available was distributed 
in December 2020 but due to solvency requirement, in accordance with the Companies Act 73, a portion of the cash available was retained 
by the Project.
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• The remainder of the cash will, following declaration thereof as a dividend, be paid out in March 2021 as the Project has revalued its assets 
and liabilities which results in the Project meeting the solvency requirement in accordance with the Companies Act 73 allowing it to distribute 
available cash as dividends to shareholders.

• Revego’s 12% of the remaining refinance dividends to be distributed in March 2021 equals R63.4 million.
3 Interest on shareholder loans represent interest income accrued on shareholder loan investments in the Projects. No interest on shareholder loans 

accrues for the period ending 31 March 2021. All assets, other than Bokpoort, are assumed to be acquired on 30 April 2021.

Revego is not acquiring Shareholder Loans in Bokpoort and therefore there is no interest income accrual in this regard.

in millions of Rands Interest on shareholder loans
31 March 

2021
31 March 

2022

Aurora Wind Power – –
Kathu Solar Park – 26.9
Bokpoort – –
Noupoort Wind Farm – 1.2
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm – 9.0
Khobab Wind Farm – 9.5

Total – 46.6

4  Fair value adjustments relate to the Investments purchased in the Transaction. The fair value movements are largely due to movements in the 
discount rates. The valuations are performed on a semi-annual basis on 30 September and 31 March. The valuations use DCF methodology using 
the discount rates per Investment (refer to Annexure 2 for detail) – each of which takes into account the prevailing risk-free rate and is adjusted for 
equity and project risk.

The fair value adjustments are summarised as follows:

• In the period ending March 2021:

• The only fair value adjustment relates to Revego’s investment in Bokpoort between 18 March 2021 and 31 March 2021.

• The other Investments that form part of the Initial Portfolio are assumed to be acquired on 30 April 2021 and therefore have no impact on 
fair value adjustments in this period.

• In the period ending March 2022

• The Investments, other than Bokpoort, that form part of the Initial Portfolio are assumed to be acquired on 30 April 2021 and the final 
purchase price on this date for these Investments is regarded as the best indication of an arm’s length transaction of an unlisted investment 
on this date.

• All Investments in the Initial Portfolio are revalued on 30 September 2021 and 31 March 2022.

• See table below for fair value adjustments relating to 31 March 2022.

Project Company Discount Rate

Equity 
Investment 

(in millions of 
Rands) 

Shareholder 
Loans 

(in millions of 
Rands) 

Total 
(in millions of 

Rands)

Aurora Wind Power 10.20% – 10.50% (71.7) – (71.7)
Kathu Solar Park 13.00% – 13.50% (1.5) 24.4 22.9
Bokpoort 11.30% – 11.60% 4.4 – 4.4
Noupoort Wind Farm 11.00% – 11.30% 25.5 0.1 25.6
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 11.30% – 11.60% 63.0 1.2 64.2
Khobab Wind Farm 10.80% – 11.10% 37.2 1.5 38.7

TOTAL 56.9 27.2 84.1

5  Other income relates to interest received on positive cash balances.
6  The annual management fee paid to the Investment Manager, which is calculated as 65bps of the Enterprise Value.

No amounts are payable to the Investment Manager prior to the Fund’s first Investment. The management fee of R0.05 million for the period ending 
March 2021 only relates to the Investment Manager fee for the period between 18 March 2021 and 31 March 2021 as Bokpoort was acquired on 
18 March 2021. The remainder of the Investments in the Initial Portfolio are assumed to be acquired on 30 April 2021.

7  Directors’ fees relate to the remuneration of Revego’s board members. For the period ending March 2021, the Directors’ fees, all incurred prior to 
Listing, were considered to be establishment costs as, in accordance with the agreement between Revego and Investec, such costs were borne by 
Investec and are recovered by Investec upon Listing. The actual directors’ fees of R1.1 million incurred in the period ending March 2021 are included 
in total establishment costs in note 10 below.

8  Administration expenses relate to internal costs to manage and maintain the Fund and Revego.

For the period ending March 2021, recurring administration expenses were incurred but are included as part of establishment costs as per note 9. 
Recurring costs included in establishment costs are as follows:

• Directors and officer’s liability insurance of R0.5 million;

• Audit fees of R0.1 million;

• Directors’ fees of R1.1 million and

• Other expenses of R0.3 million.
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9  Establishment costs relate to costs incurred by the Fund in establishing the Fund’s structures. Further detail is shown below and in paragraph 32 of 
the Pre-Listing Statement.

Establishment costs (in millions of Rands)
Legal fees 5.9
Advisory fees 3.0
BEE opinion 0.0
Fund Manager registration and licencing 0.5
Insurance – Private Equity Management Liability Insurance 0.2
Insurance – Directors and Officers Liability Insurance 0.2
Directors Fees prior to Listing 0.0
Other fees 0.2

Total (excluding VAT) 10.0

VAT (@15%) 1.5

Total (including VAT) 11.5

10  Listing costs incurred by Revego in preparation for its Listing on the JSE. Further detail relating to the listing costs can be found below and in 
paragraph 85 of this Pre-Listing Statement.

Listing Costs (in millions of Rands)
Listing fees 5.0
Legal fees 1.2
Reporting accountants 3.1
Transfer secretary 0.0
Printing and publication 0.2
JSE Listing fee 0.5
JSE documentation fee 0.1
JSE ancillary fees 0.0
Sponsor fees 0.3
Bookrunner Legal fees 0.9
Marketing costs – Listing 0.5
Insurance – Public Offering of Securities Insurance 0.8

Total (excluding VAT) 12.5

VAT (@15%) 1.9

Total (including VAT) 14.4

11  Due diligence costs paid to third party service providers incurred to complete the required detailed due diligence (legal, technical, environmental 
and tax) of Investments prior to acquisition.

12  Transaction costs paid to the Investment Manager – 50bps of the value of the Transaction.

The following transaction costs are due to the Investment Manager:

• In the period ending 31 March 2021:

• R1.1 million as a result of the acquisition of Bokpoort on 18 March 2021.

• In the period ending 31 March 2022:

• R7.0 million for the acquisition of the Investments, other than Bokpoort, assumed on 30 April 2021.

• Additional transaction costs of R0.1 million as a result of the additional consideration payable on Bokpoort of R19.9 million. This is likely to 
be paid on 31 May 2021.

13  Finance expenses relate to the Bridge Facility to enable the Fund to purchase Investments prior to Listing. The finance expenses in Revego’s Forecast 
SCI relate to:

• the upfront Bridge Facility fee of R28.8 million capitalised to the Bridge Facility and deferred over the term of the Bridge Facility as follows:

• R9.58 million in March 2021; 

• R19.17 million expensed in April 2021; and  

• interest expenditure on the Bridge Facility of R0.7 million for the period 18 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 and R1.6 million between 1 April 
2021 and 30 April 2021.

The amount owing on the Bridge Facility is settled using the capital raised from shares issued by Revego at Listing.

Further, the above once off cost items are not capitalised to the cost of the Investments, but rather expensed in full as the Investments are 
measured at fair value through profit and loss.

14  Tax expense relates to the following:

• The current tax impact considering the following:

• Revego, as an investment company, earns passive income and is therefore not regarded as carrying on a trade for income tax purposes. As 
a result, in calculating its tax expense, Revego can only deduct interest expenditure to the extent that interest income has been earned.

• Interest income accrued on shareholder loans and other income are taxable.

• Dividends received are exempt from income tax.
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• The deferred tax impact of the fair value adjustments of the Investments that result in temporary differences. The fair value adjustments attract 
tax as follows:

• The fair value adjustments relating to the revaluation of the equity portion of the Investments attracts deferred tax at the applicable capital 
gains tax inclusion rate of a company of 80% of the standard tax company tax rate of 28% and

• The fair value adjustments relating to the revaluation of the shareholder loan portion of the Investments attracts deferred tax at the 
standard tax company tax rate of 28%.

Tax income (expense) is summarised as follows:

• For the period ending March 2021, a deductible temporary difference of R34.6 million is calculated due to negative fair value adjustments to 
Equity Instruments. However, in order to remain prudent, Revego has not recognised a deferred tax asset as a result of its assessment of the 
likelihood of utilising such a capital loss in future.

• For the period ending March 2022, the tax expense of R25.8 million relates to R13.2 million of current tax and R12.6 million of deferred tax 
expense.

15  Non-controlling interest represents 0.01% of the Fund’s partnership held by the General Partner in the Fund, with Revego owning 99.99% of the 
partnership interest.

16  Dividends relating to earnings in the period ending 31 March 2021 would only be paid after 31 March 2021, therefore dividends per share are zero 
in the period ending 31 March 2021.

Revego intends to distribute all available cash to shareholders. Dividends are expected to be declared on a semi-annual basis in March (final 
dividend) and September (interim dividend).
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FORECAST STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS17

in millions of Rands

Twelve 
months 
ending

31-Mar-21

Twelve 
months
 ending

31-Mar-22

Income 63.4 111.3
Interest income18 – 39.7
Dividends received19 63.4 69.7
Other income20 – 1.9

Expenditure (1.1) (76.0)
Operating expenditure21 (0.0) (18.1)
Establishment costs22 – (11.5)
Investment acquisition costs23 (1.1) (18.9)
Listing costs24 – (14.4)
Income tax paid25 – (13.1)

Net cash flow from operating activities 62.3 35.3

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investments – Equity investments acquired26 (183.7) (747.0)
Investments – Shareholder loans acquired27 – (493.2)
Investments – Shareholder loans repaid28 – 88.4

Net cash inflow from investing activities (183.7) (1,151.8)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Bridge Facility Raised29 214.3 –
Bridge Facility Repaid29 – (214.3)
Issue of shares for cash30 – 1,519.4
Capital raise fees31 – (14.6)
Finance cost32 (29.5) (1.6)
Dividends paid33 – (164.6)

Net cash inflow from financing activities 184.8 1,124.3

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 63.3 7.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period – 63.3

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 63.3 71.1

Dividends paid – 164.6
Shares issued 10 151,941,452
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NOTES TO THE FORECAST STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS:
17 Also refer to assumptions relating to Forecast Financial Information included in this annexure (following note 33) for a summary of key assumptions.
18 Interest on shareholder loans represent the interest received from shareholder loan investments in the Projects, detailed per Project in the table 

below.

in millions of Rands Interest on shareholder loans
31 March 

2021
31 March 

2022

Aurora Wind Power – –
Kathu Solar Park – 26.8
Bokpoort – –
Noupoort Wind Farm – 1.0
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm – 5.8
Khobab Wind Farm – 6.1

Total – 39.7

19 Dividends Received relate to forecast dividend distributions by the Projects, detailed per Project in the table below.

in millions of Rands Dividends Received
31 March 

2021
31 March 

2022

Aurora Wind Power – 56.0
Kathu Solar Park – –
Bokpoort 63.4 13.7
Noupoort Wind Farm – –
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm – –
Khobab Wind Farm – –

Total 63.4 69.7

The R63.4 million dividend in the period ending March 2021 relates Revego’s 12% portion of the special dividend paid out by Bokpoort in March 
2021 as a result of the refinancing event that occurred at the Project in December 2020.

20 Other income relates to interest received on positive cash balances.
21 Operating expenditure relates to the following recurring expenditure incurred, as detailed in notes 7,8 and 9 in the Forecast SCI:

• The annual management fee paid to the Investment Manager, which is calculated as 65bps of the Enterprise Value.

• No amounts are payable to the Investment Manager prior to the Fund’s first Investment. The management fee of R0.05 million for the period 
ending March 2021 only relates to the Investment Manager fee for the period between 18 March 2021 and 31 March 2021 as Bokpoort was 
acquired on 18 March 2021.

• Directors’ fees relate to the remuneration of Revego’s board members.

• Administration expenses relate to internal costs to manage and maintain the Fund and Revego.
22 Establishment costs relate to cumulative costs incurred by the Fund in establishing the Fund’s structures. Establishment costs are incurred prior to 

Listing and settled using the Listing proceeds. Further detail is shown in paragraph 32 of the Pre-Listing Statement.
23 Investment acquisition costs relate to the following, as detailed in notes 12 and 13 in the forecast SCI:

• Transaction costs paid to the Investment Manager – 50bps of the value of the Transaction.

• External advisors’ costs incurred to complete the required detailed due diligence (legal, technical, environmental and tax) of each Investment 
prior to acquisition.

24 Listing costs incurred by Revego in preparation for its Listing on the JSE. Further detail relating to the listing costs can be found in paragraph 85 of 
this Pre-Listing Statement.

25 Income tax paid relates to the current tax impact considering the following:

• Revego, as an investment company, earns passive income and is therefore not regarded as carrying on a trade for income tax purposes. As a 
result, in calculating its tax expense, Revego can only deduct interest expenditure to the extent that interest income has been earned.

• Interest income accrued on shareholder loans and other income are taxable.

• Dividends received are exempt from income tax.

• Shareholder loan repayments to the Fund, as per note 28 below, are not taxable as these are capital in nature.
26 Investments in the Projects can consist of Investments in Equity Instruments and Investments in Shareholder Loans, the latter dealt with in note 27 

below.

This item relates to Investments in Equity Instruments acquired as follows:

• Bokpoort for R183.7 million, as per Column 2, using Bridge Facility proceeds.

• The remainder of the assets in the Initial Portfolio, acquired for a total of R747.0 million.

Refer to Annexure 13 for further detail in relation to the acquisition prices.
27 Investments in shareholder loans relate to Shareholder Loans acquired in the Projects. Refer to assumptions above in note 26 relating to the 

acquisition of Equity Instruments, as the same valuation principles apply to the acquisition of Shareholder Loans.
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28 Shareholder loan repayments relate to cash received by the Fund from principal repaid by Projects on shareholder loans, detailed per Project in 
the table below.

in millions of Rands Shareholder Loan Repayments
31 March 

2021
31 March 

2022

Aurora Wind Power – –
Kathu Solar Park – 35.0
Bokpoort – –
Noupoort Wind Farm – 13.1
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm – 23.7
Khobab Wind Farm – 16.6

Total – 88.4

29 The Bridge Facility is utilised to acquire Revego’s investment in Bokpoort for R183.7 million and the related Investment Manager Transaction fee 
of R1.1 million. Also included is the Bridge Facility upfront fee of R28.8 million. The outstanding balance on the Bridge Facility is repaid with Listing 
proceeds on 30 April 2021.

30 Capital of R1.52 billion raised by Revego through the issuance of ordinary shares on date of listing being 30 April 2021. Assumptions relating to the 
issuance are as follows:

• An issue price of R10.00 per share – as per paragraph 28 of the Pre-Listing Statement; and

• The resultant subscription of 151.9 million shares.

R20.0 million of the capital raise relates to the R19.9 million Bokpoort contingent consideration and applicable Investment Manager transaction 
costs of R0.1 million, to be settled on 31 May 2021.

31 Capital raise fees of R14.6 million paid in April 2021 to Revego’s financial advisors and bookrunners and EPPF as cornerstone investor. Refer to 
paragraph 32 in the Pre-Listing Statement for further detail.

Capital raise fees of are accounted for directly in equity, and not as expenditure as the fees relate directly to the issue of Shares.
32 Finance expenses relate to costs incurred on the Bridge Facility. The finance expenses in the Forecast SCF relate to:

• the upfront Bridge Facility fee of R28.8 million; and

• interest expenditure on the Bridge Facility R0.7 million for the period 18 March 2021 to 31 March 2021 and R1.6 million between 1 April 2021 
and 30 April 2021.

The amount owing on the Bridge Facility is settled using the capital raised from shares issued by Revego.
33 Dividends relating to the period ending 31 March 2021 would only be declared after 31 March 2021, therefore dividends paid equal zero in the 

period ending 31 March 2021.

Dividends paid in the period ending 31 March 2022, totalling R164.6 million, consist of the amounts available for distribution to shareholders at:

• 31 March 2021 (assumed paid in May 2021) of R63.3 million; and

• 30 September 2021 (assumed paid in November 2021) of R101.3 million.

Revego intends to distribute all available cash to shareholders. Dividends are expected to be declared in relation to the periods ending 31 March 
(final dividend) and 30 September (interim dividend).
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ASSUMPTIONS RELATING TO THE FORECAST FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

The Forecast Financial Information presented contains assumptions, which are discussed individually below. It is important 
to highlight the key assumptions, namely inflation rates, energy production, discount rates and other factors in assessing 
the Forecast Financial Information that is presented.

Refer to each assumption below to understand the level of influence the Investment Manager has over such assumption.

General

1. Forecast period from 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020

The forecast period ending 31 March 2021 contains actual financial information for the period 1 April 2020 to 30 
September 2020 and contains forecast financial information for the period 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2021. Refer 
to Annexure 5 of the Pre-Listing Statement for more information on the actual financial information for the period 
1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020.

2. Acquisition Dates

The below table shows the acquisition dates of the various Projects and the sources of funding utilised to acquire 
such Investments:

Project (Seller) Acquisition Date Funding Source

Aurora Wind Power (KTH) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds
Aurora Wind Power (Investec) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds
Kathu Solar Park (Investec) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds
Bokpoort (Metier) 18 March 2021 Bridge Facility
Noupoort Wind Farm (Metier) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm (Metier) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds
Khobab Wind Farm (Metier) 30 April 2021 Listing Proceeds

Investment-specific assumptions

The following assumptions are the drivers of the forecast profits and distributable income of the Projects in which 
Revego is a shareholder. These assumptions in turn affect the quantum and timing of shareholder loan repayments 
and dividend distributions from the investments. Revego receives its share of the shareholder loan repayments and 
dividend distributions.

1. Revenue

a. Power Purchase Agreements

Risks of non-performance or credit-related defaults by Eskom cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

Revenue of the underlying Project Companies is generated solely from long term, government backed, power 
purchase agreements that are entered into with Eskom for all the energy produced by the plants.

The energy produced by each Project is sold at the agreed, inflation-linked escalated tariff to Eskom.

No material non-performance or credit-related defaults by Eskom, being the off-taker in relation to the Initial 
Portfolio, have been assumed.

b. Inflation rate

The inflation forecasts cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

Tariffs and Project Companies’ revenue impact

The forecast inflation rates have an impact on the tariffs that each of the Project Companies charge for energy 
produced and sold to Eskom, therefore affecting each Project Company’s revenue materially. The inflation-
indexed portion of the tariff increases on 1 April each year with the prior year’s actual inflation result, resulting 
in an escalated tariff charged by the Project Company to Eskom for energy produced and sold.
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The inflation-indexation for each of the Project Companies’ tariffs is summarised below:

Project Company Tariff Indexation

Aurora Wind Power Partial Indexation (32%)
Kathu Solar Park Fully Indexed (100%)
Bokpoort Fully Indexed (100%)
Noupoort Wind Farm Partial Indexation (27%)
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm Fully Indexed (100%)
Khobab Wind Farm Fully Indexed (100%)

The current, weighted average tariff for the Initial Portfolio is R 2,535.41/MWh.

Operational costs

Operational costs are subject to inflationary increases. The operational costs for the Project Companies are 
escalated at the forecast inflation rates.

Investment Manager methodology

The Investment Manager applies its internal view on inflation which it collates from the following sources: BMi 
Research (Fitch), Bureau of Economic Research and Investec Bank Limited. The Investment Manager calculates 
the average inflation from the above sources and applies this to determine its forecast inflation assumptions.

Estimates applied

In the Forecast Financial Information, Revego has estimated inflation of:

• 3.75% for the year ending 31 March 2021, and

• 4.70% for the year ending 31 March 2022.

c. Energy production

Energy produced and sold by each Project Company is a function of two factors, the renewable energy resource 
factor and the performance of each plant.

(iii) Resource factor

The resource factor cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

The renewable energy resource factor refers to either the amount of solar irradiation or wind received by 
each project. This cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

A P50 energy resource factor has been assumed for each of the Project Companies ,̂ an assumption that 
is customary in the market from an equity perspective. The Initial Portfolio has shown that resource yields 
are in line with P50 expectations to date.
^ Downward adjustments were, however, made to the Noupoort Wind Farm, Loeriesfontein Wind Farm and Khobab Wind Farm energy 

yield assumptions following the completion of the Investment Manager’s appointed technical expert advisor’s detailed due diligence. 
The downward adjustments relate largely to the anticipated impact of wake losses and resultant wind turbine performance. The total 
downward adjustments made on energy yield assumptions were (-1.5%) for Noupoort Wind Farm, (-6.0%) for Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 
and (-5.0%) for Khobab Wind Farm. The breakdown of the total downward adjustments per each wind farm is listed on the table below.

adjustments by Lloyd’s Register
Noupoort 

Wind Farm
Loeriesfontein 

Wind Farm
Khobab 

Wind Farm

Availability 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%
Electrical efficiency –0.10% –0.30% –0.80%
Wind turbine performance –2.40% –0.60% –1.40%
Power Boost 0.50% 0.20% 0.20%
Long term wind resource modelling 0.10% –0.30% –0.30%
Wake loss modelling –0.90% –3.90% –1.80%
Flow model –0.50% –0.50% –0.50%
Other* 1.60% –0.80% –0.60%

Total –1.50% –6.00% –5.00%
*Other adjustments were included by the Projects’ technical advisor, Lloyd’s Register, as a reconciling item for unforeseen items.
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(iv) Plant performance

Plant performance of the Projects can be influenced by the Investment Manager through the board of directors’ 
representation of each Project Company.

The performance of the project impacts how much of the resource yield is converted into usable energy 
for sale. The factors affecting plant performance can only be influenced by Revego through the Investment 
Manager’s board representation on each of the Project Companies’ boards, whose influence is limited in 
nature because of the minority interest holdings in the Project Companies. Operating expenditure consists 
primarily of long-term O&M agreements entered into with O&M Contractors.

Plant performance relies on the following operating assumptions:

– Equipment degradation: the degradation forecasts are aligned with the Investment Manager’s appointed 
technical experts’ estimations of degradation of equipment in the market.

– Availability of the plant: the O&M contractors of the plants have minimum plant availability requirements 
as per the O&M agreements. These minimum, contractual requirements form the basis for the forecast 
availability assumed for the various projects.

– Scheduled maintenance: each project has planned maintenance, and resultant down-time and this is 
included in the Forecast Financial Information.

– Unscheduled maintenance: Unscheduled maintenance is not included in the forecasts as this is covered by 
the O&M contractor’s minimum availability guarantee.

– Grid unavailability: grid unavailability affects the amount of energy each project can sell to Eskom. 
Under the PPAs, the maximum grid unavailability is 5.00%, whereafter Eskom is liable to pay for energy 
produced by each project, but the forecasts include grid unavailability of between 0.50% – 1.00%, based 
on historical data.

The assumptions relating to plant performance are summarised per Project as follows:

Project Company
Equipment 

Degradation
Plant 

Availability
Turbine 

Availability
Grid 

Unavailability

Aurora Wind Power 0.0% 97.0% 97.0% 0.50%
Kathu Solar Park 0.2% 97.0% N/A 0.50%
Bokpoort 0.2% 98.0% N/A 0.50%
Noupoort Wind Farm 0.0% 97.0% 97.5% 1.00%
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 0.0% 96.0% 97.5% 1.00%
Khobab Wind Farm 0.0% 96.0% 97.5% 1.00%

2. Other factors

The below factors cannot be influenced by the Investment Manager.

a. Capital expenditure at a Project Company level: Maintenance and operating capital expenditures have been 
forecast in line with the operating budget for life cycle costs, the relevant O&M agreements and, where 
applicable, provided for in the major maintenance reserve accounts.

b. Debt service: As is customary with limited recourse project financed transactions of this nature, each of the 
Project Companies have significant gearing ranging from 67% to 95% with debt tenors amortising within the life 
of the PPAs. The debt principal repayments are individually sculpted to meet minimum debt service coverage 
ratios.

c. Tax:

i. A VAT rate of 15.0% has been assumed during the forecast period;

ii. A company income tax rate of 28.0% has been assumed during the forecast period;

iii. A capital gains tax inclusion rate of 80.0% has been applied; and

iv. No Withholding Tax has been forecast as the Initial Portfolio comprises only South African investments.

d. Regulatory risk: No new or material amendments to any laws or regulations, or interpretation or application of 
existing laws or regulation, that in either case will have a materially adverse effect on the business of Revego, the 
Fund or the Project Companies have been included in the Forecast Financial Information.



148

3. Project Company operating expenditure:

a. O&M agreements

Costs related to the O&M agreements can only be influenced to the extent that the current O&M agreements 
expire or the O&M agreements are terminated.

The cost of the O&M agreements account for, on average, approximately 74% of the operating expenditure of 
the various Project Companies. The contracts have remaining terms that range between 12 and 15 years.

Project Company

O&M contractor 
cost* 

(of total 
operating 

expenditure)

O&M contractor 
cost 

(of revenue)

Remaining term 
on O&M 

agreement

Aurora Wind Power 87% 21% 12 Years
Kathu Solar Park 66% 9% 15 Years
Bokpoort 80% 18% 12 Years
Noupoort Wind Farm 68% 13% 12 Years
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 70% 12% 14 Years
Khobab Wind Farm 67% 12% 14 Years

Weighted Average 74.19% 14.60% 13 Years

b. Other operating expenditure

Other operating expenditure at each Project can be influenced by the Investment Manager through the board of 
directors’ representation of each Project Company.

Other operating expenditure has been determined based on the Investment Manager’s assessment of the 
Project Companies’ historical expenditure against budgeted costs over the same period. Other operating 
expenditure consists of, inter alia:

i. insurance costs,

ii. administration costs,

iii. audit and legal fees,

iv. debt agency fees,

v. environmental costs, and

vi. security SPV fees.
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ASSUMPTIONS RELATING TO VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS:

1. Discount rate

The discount rate in determining the periodic fair values of the Investments, after acquisition, cannot be influenced by 
the Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager uses the DCF method to:

– value investments on acquisition to determine the acquisition price; and

– fair value investments post-acquisition.

Project Company

Fair value 
adjustment – 
discount rate 

per project

Aurora Wind Power 10.20% – 10.50%
Kathu Solar Park 13.00% – 13.50%
Bokpoort 11.30% – 11.60%
Noupoort Wind Farm 11.00% – 11.30%
Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 11.30% – 11.60%
Khobab Wind Farm 10.80% – 11.10%

Depending on the risk associated with an investment, the discount rate used to acquire an equity interest in a 
Project Company may vary. The discount rate used in the Forecast Financial Information when assessing the fair 
value of investments, and the resultant fair value gains or losses through profit or loss, is the same discount rate used 
to acquire each of the equity interests in the Project Companies. This is regarded by the Investment Manager as a 
reliable measure of the market value of the investment.

The discount rate in determining the periodic fair values of the Investments, after acquisition, cannot be influenced 
by the Investment Manager.

2. Other considerations

a. No terminal values beyond the PPA term have been assumed for any of the Projects.

b. No extensions of PPAs have been forecast.
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ANNEXURE 10 – INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON 
THE FORECAST FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REVEGO

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on the Forecast Financial Information

To the Directors of Revego Africa Energy Limited

Report on the Identified Forecast Financial Information

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement in respect of the forecast information of Revego Africa Energy 
Limited (the “Company”) for the twelve months ending 31 March 2021 and the twelve months ending 31 March 
2022, set out in Annexure 9 on pages 137 to 149 of the Pre-Listing Statement to be dated on or about 31 March 2021, 
comprising the forecast statement of comprehensive income and the forecast statement of cash flows as a whole (the 
“Forecast Financial Information”), as required by section 8 of the JSE Limited (the “JSE”) Listings Requirements, 
as applicable.

We have also undertaken a limited assurance engagement in respect of the director’s assumptions used to prepare 
and present the forecast information, disclosed in the notes to the forecast information presented in Annexure 9 on 
pages 137 to 149 of the Pre-Listing Statement, as required by paragraph 8.40 of the JSE Listings Requirements.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Forecast Financial Information and for the Assumptions used to Prepare the Forecast Financial 
Information

The directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Forecast Financial Information and for the 
reasonableness of the assumptions used to prepare the Forecast Financial Information as set out in the notes to the 
Forecast Financial Information presented in Annexure 9 on pages 137 to 149 of the Pre-Listing Statement in accordance 
with section 8 of the JSE Listings Requirements, as applicable (the “JSE Listings Requirements for forecast 
information”). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Forecast Financial Information on the basis of those assumptions that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Inherent Limitations

Actual results are likely to be different from the Forecast Financial Information since anticipated events frequently do not 
occur as expected and the variation may be material. Consequently, readers are cautioned that the Forecast Financial 
Information may not be appropriate for purposes other than described in the Purpose of the report paragraph below.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Professional Conduct for Registered 
Auditors issued by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA Code), which is founded on fundamental 
principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour. The 
IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards).

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of 
Financial Statements, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements and accordingly maintains a comprehensive 
system of quality control including  documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, 
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Part A – Reasonable Assurance Engagement on the Forecast Financial Information

Reporting Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on the evidence we have obtained about whether the Forecast Financial 
Information is properly prepared and presented on the basis of the directors’ assumptions disclosed in the notes to 
the Forecast Financial Information presented in Annexure 9 on pages 137 to 149 of the Pre-Listing Statement (the 
“assumptions”) and in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements for forecast information. We conducted our 
reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3400), 
The Examination of Prospective Financial Information (ISAE 3400), issued by the International Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether such Forecast Financial Information is properly prepared and presented on the basis of the directors’ 
assumptions disclosed in the notes to the Forecast Financial Information presented in Annexure 9 on pages 137 to 149 of 
the Pre-Listing Statement and in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements for forecast information.
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A reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with ISAE 3400 involves performing procedures to obtain evidence 
that the forecast information is properly prepared and presented on the basis of the assumptions and in accordance with 
the JSE Listings Requirements for forecast information. The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend 
on the independent reporting accountant’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, of the forecast information. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal 
controls relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation of the Forecast Financial Information.

Our procedures included:

• Inspecting whether the Forecast Financial Information is properly prepared on the basis of the assumptions;

• Inspecting whether the Forecast Financial Information is properly presented, and all material assumptions are adequately 
disclosed, including a clear indication as to whether they are best-estimate assumptions; and

• Inspecting whether the forecast statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is prepared on a consistent 
basis with the historical financial statements, using appropriate accounting policies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion on the Forecast Financial Information

In our opinion, the Forecast Financial Information, for the twelve months ending 31 March 2021 and the twelve months 
ending 31 March 2022, is properly prepared and presented on the basis of the assumptions and in accordance with the 
JSE Listings Requirements for forecast information.

Part B – Limited Assurance Engagement on the Reasonableness of the Directors’ Assumptions

Reporting Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on whether anything has come to our attention that causes 
us to believe that the assumptions do not provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and presentation of the Forecast 
Financial Information in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements for forecast information, based on the procedures 
we have performed and

the evidence we have obtained. We conducted our limited assurance engagement in accordance with the International 
Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE 3400), The Examination of

Prospective Financial Information (ISAE 3400), issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That 
standard requires that we plan and perform this engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the directors’ 
assumptions provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and presentation of the Forecast Financial Information.

A limited assurance engagement undertaken in accordance with ISAE 3400 involves assessing the source and reliability 
of the evidence supporting the directors’ assumptions. Sufficient appropriate evidence supporting such assumptions 
would be obtained from internal and external sources including consideration of the assumptions in the light of historical 
information and an evaluation of whether they are based on plans that are within the entity’s capacity. A limited assurance 
engagement is substantially less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement in relation to both the risk assessment 
procedures, including an understanding of internal control, and the procedures performed in response to the assessed 
risks.

The procedures we performed were based on our professional judgement and included inquiries, observations of 
processes performed, inspection of documents, analytical procedures, evaluating the reasonableness of best-estimate 
assumption and agreeing or reconciling with underlying records.

Our procedures included evaluating the directors’ best-estimate assumptions on which the forecast information is based 
for reasonableness.

The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement are less in extent than for, and vary in nature from, 
a reasonable assurance engagement. As a result, the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement 
is substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had we performed a reasonable assurance 
engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a reasonable assurance opinion about whether the directors’ assumptions 
provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and presentation of the Forecast Financial Information.

Limited assurance conclusion on the reasonableness of the directors’ assumptions

Based on the procedures we have performed and evidence we have obtained, nothing has come to our attention that 
causes us to believe that the directors’ assumptions do not provide a reasonable basis for the preparation and presentation 
of the Forecast Financial Information.
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Purpose of the report

This report has been prepared for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of section 8 of the JSE Listings Requirements, 
as applicable, and for no other purpose.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

No Exceptions Detected: In accordance with our responsibilities set out in the JSE Listings Requirements, section 8, as applicable, 
we have performed the procedures set out therein. If, based on the procedures performed, we detect any exceptions, we are 
required to report those exceptions. We have nothing to report in this regard.

 
Ernst & Young Inc.
Director: Gail Moshoeshoe
Registered Auditor
Reporting Accountant

Johannesburg
25 March 2021
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ANNEXURE 11 – ACCOUNTING POLICIES OF REVEGO

The following represents the current accounting policies (as reflected in Annexures 3 and 5 to this Pre-Listing Statement) 
for Revego but incorporating additional accounting policies as a result of changes to the business transactions and balances 
as described in the Pre-Listing Statement.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 
SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Standards 
Council, as well as the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets held at fair 
value through profit or loss, which have been measured at fair value.

The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Key areas of Judgement

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Group to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates and key judgements are recognised in the period to which they relate.

1. Fair value estimation of the Group’s investments

The basis of valuation of all investments in the Group is fair value. Fair value is determined twice annually. All 
investments are valued in accordance with the valuation policy outlined below.

The Investment Manager values the Group Assets in accordance with the Fund’s valuation policy. The valuation 
policy considers the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines (IPEV Guidelines) and is 
consistent with the below detailed valuation approach, which will be consistent year on year except where there 
have been changes in circumstances in relation to an investment in a Group Asset, and therefore the impact of such 
change would be disclosed.

a. Basis of valuation and approach

The fair values of the Group Assets are determined as at the reporting date in accordance with IFRS 13, Fair 
Value Measurement.

The Investment Manager uses its judgement to select the valuation technique most appropriate for an investment 
and in determining the fair value of an investment.

The Group Assets are unlisted investments, for which the primary valuation methodology applied is the DCF 
method.

The Investment Manager will use the services of an independent expert on a bi-annual basis – specifically on the 
valuation dates 30 September and 31 March.

b. DCF methodology

The DCF method is used to derive the equity value of the investment using reasonable assumptions on the 
estimations of expected future post-taxation cash flows (free cash flows to equity), and discounting to the 
present value by applying the appropriate risk adjusted discount rate.

Whilst the best judgement is used in determining the fair value of these investments, there are inherent 
limitations in any valuation technique involving assets of the type in which the Fund invests. Therefore, the fair 
values presented may not be indicative of the amount which the Fund could realise in a current transaction.
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2. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include those of the Company and entities controlled by the Company. The 
Company controls an entity when:

• it has power over the investee;

• it is exposed to, or has rights to the variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

• it has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The consolidated financial statements include assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the Company 
and all entities controlled by the Company. Intergroup transactions, balances and unrealized profits are eliminated 
on consolidation.

3. Non-controlling interests

The Group measures the non-controlling interest in the Fund at the proportionate share of the Fund’s net assets.

4. Accounting for associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate 
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over the investee. 
IFRS requires that investments in associates are either equity accounted, or if held by venture capital organisations, 
mutual funds, unit trusts or similar entities, at fair value if such election is made, on an investment-by-investment basis.

Certain underlying investments in the Fund are associates in terms of IAS 28. The Group has elected to measure 
these investments at fair value through profit or loss in terms of IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments using the venture 
capital exemption on equity accounting.

In management’s judgement, the Fund’s investments in the underlying projects over which the Group has significant 
influence, qualify for the exemption to equity accounting for venture capital organisations, mutual funds, unit trusts 
or similar entities, as the Fund is similar in nature and purpose to these entities. The Group considers fair value 
measurement to be the most appropriate method of accounting for these investments.

5. Interest income

Interest income from financial instruments held at amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis 
using the effective interest method. Such financial instruments include investments with financial institutions and are 
recognised as “other income” on the income statement.

Interest income from financial instruments held at fair value are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis 
using the contractual interest method. Such financial instruments include the underlying investments in the project 
companies and are recognised as “interest on shareholder loan investments” on the income statement.

6. Dividend income

Dividend income is received from the underlying investments and is recognized when the dividends are paid from 
the underlying investments.

7. Financial instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value. For financial assets or financial liabilities not held at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities are included in the initial measurement.

All other transaction costs are recorded in the income statement immediately.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are measured at:

• amortised cost;

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or

• fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
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a. Financial assets – Debt instruments

A debt instrument that meets the following two conditions must be measured at amortised cost unless the 
asset is designated at FVTPL under the fair value option.

i. Business model test

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect their 
contractual cash flows.

ii. Cash flow characteristics test

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s shareholder loan assets, that are financial assets with non-closely related embedded derivatives 
under IAS 39, fail to meet the contractual cash flow characteristic test, and thus would also be accounted 
for at FVTPL under IFRS 9.

The Group’s debt instruments are classified as follows:

• Shareholder loan assets:

Due to the option to convert shareholder loans into equity instruments at an amount other than the principle, 
being the fair value on initial recognition, these loans fail the cash flow characteristics test and are therefore 
classified as mandatorily at fair value through profit and loss.

• All other debt instruments:

All other debt instruments are accounted for at amortised cost, as they pass both the business model test and the 
cash flow characteristics test.

b. Financial assets – Equity instruments

Investments in equity instruments within the Fund are financial instruments recognised and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. For further details on the determination of the fair value of the investment within 
the Fund, refer to the key judgements section above as well as the fair value measurement paragraph below.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value on the balance 
sheet with changes in fair value subsequently recognised in profit or loss. Financial instruments held at amortised 
cost are increased by interest using the effective interest rate method, as well as additional draw downs and 
reduced by repayments.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

At each balance sheet date each financial asset is measured for ECL impairment. Loss allowances are forward-
looking, based on 12-month expected credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk 
rating, otherwise allowances are based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by the 
risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. On a significant increase in credit risk, credit losses are 
rebased from 12-month to lifetime expectations. A change in credit risk is typically but not necessarily associated with 
a change in the expected cash flows.

The costs of loss allowances on assets held at amortised cost are presented as impairments in the income statement. 
Financial assets held at amortised cost are presented net of allowances except where the asset has been wholly or 
partially written off.

Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised are considered to be “stage 1”, financial assets which are 
considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in “stage 2”, and financial assets for which there 
is objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired are in “stage 3”.

The Group calculates the effective interest rate on stage 3 assets which is calculated based on the amortised cost of 
the financial assets (i.e. gross carrying amount less ECL) instead of gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact 
of ECLs in estimated future cash flows.
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Financial liabilities: Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as non-trading, held-for-trading or designated as held at fair value through profit or 
loss.

Non-trading liabilities, including the Group’s bridging loan and any payables, are recorded at amortised cost applying 
the effective interest rate method.

Contingent considerations are held at fair value through profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset, or a portion thereof, is de-recognised when the group’s rights to cash flows have expired or 
when the group has transferred its rights to cash flows relating to the financial assets and either (a) the group has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the financial assets or (b) the group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the financial assets but has transferred 
control of the assets.

A financial liability is de-recognised when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced or modified with substantially different terms, such a 
replacement or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Reclassification of financial instruments

Financial assets are only reclassified where there has been a change in business model. Financial liabilities cannot be 
reclassified.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when there is both an intention to settle on a net basis (or simultaneously) 
and a currently enforceable legal right to offset exists.

8. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the group has access at that date.

The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for 
that instrument.

A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume 
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates 
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The group classifies disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable market 
inputs. A transfer is made between the hierarchy levels when the inputs have changed or there has been a change in 
the valuation method. Transfers are deemed to occur at the end of each semi-annual reporting period.

• Level 1 fair value hierarchy – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at measurement date.

• Level 2 fair value hierarchy – inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
assets and liabilities, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

• Level 3 fair value hierarchy – inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs), determine its fair value. Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value where relevant 
observable inputs are not available. The unlisted investments within the Fund are typically classified as level 3 
instruments.
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9. Taxation and deferred taxation

Current taxation payable is provided for based on the amount expected to be payable on taxable profits at rates 
that are enacted or substantively enacted and applicable to the relevant period.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the 
balance sheet and its tax base, except where such temporary differences arise from:

The initial recognition of goodwill

The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of 
the transaction has no effect on accounting profit or tax profit

In respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation assets or liabilities are measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which the deferred taxation asset can be utilised. Items recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income are net of related current and deferred taxation.

10. Share capital and reserves

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Capital and reserves comprise of share capital and retained earnings.
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ANNEXURE 12 – INVESTMENT GUIDELINES

PART A – BACKGROUND

Revego is a public company to be listed on the JSE and is the sole limited partner in the Fund. These investment guidelines 
include Revego’s Investment Policy, which has been formulated in compliance with section 15 of the Listings Requirements, 
as well as certain other ancillary matters.

PART B – DEFINITIONS

1.1 DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, capitalised words and expressions in these Investment Guidelines shall 
have the following meanings and references to legislation or enactments as are to the relevant legislations and 
enactments of the United Kingdom, United States or South Africa as appropriate:

Advisory Board means the advisory board appointed by the Board constituted in respect of the Fund with the 
powers and duties set out in the Partnership Agreement;

Affiliate means with respect to any Shareholder, or any other Person who is not a Shareholder, any Person who or 
which, now or hereafter, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, owns or Controls or is owned 
or Controlled by, or is under common ownership or Control with, any herein specified Person;

Agents means, in relation to a Person, that Person’s directors, officers, employees, advisors, agents and 
representatives;

Anti-Corruption Laws means, in relation to a Person, all Applicable Laws relating to anti-bribery, anti-corruption 
and anti-money laundering applicable to such person including, where applicable but without limitation, the U.S. 
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act 1977, the South African Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act 2004 
and the UK Bribery Act 2010 including any statutory modifications or amendments thereto for the time being in 
force;

Applicable Law includes all applicable statutes, subordinate legislation, enactments, acts of the state legislature, 
laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, notifications, guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders of 
any Governmental Authority, statutory authority, tribunal, board, court or recognised stock exchange, as may be 
applicable to a Person or any treaty, judgment, decision, notice, order, executive order, code of practice (whether 
or not having the force of law but, if not having the force of law, being of a type with which any Person to which 
it applies is accustomed to comply) including the UK Freedom of Information Act 2000, the UK Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004, the South African Financial Intelligence Centre Act 2001, the South African National 
Environmental Management Act 1998, the South African Protection of Personal Information Act 2013 and any 
statutory modifications or amendments thereto for the time being in force;

Arrangement means a transaction, arrangement or agreement or series of transactions, arrangements or 
agreements;

Black has the meaning given to it in the BEE Act read with the BEE Codes;

BEE Act means the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (as amended from time to time);

BEE Codes means the generic Codes of Good Practice on Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment or a 
sector Codes of Good Practice on Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (as applicable);

Business Day means a day (other than Saturday or a Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business 
in Johannesburg, South Africa;

Board means the board of directors of the Investor;

Capital Call means a “Drawdown Notice” as defined below;

Capital Contributions means the amount of cash actually contributed or the value of any asset transferred in 
specie by the Investor to the Partnership as instalments of its Committed Capital in accordance with Drawdown 
Notices;

Closing Date means the date on which the Partnership will commence;
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Commitment Period means the period commencing on the Closing Date or upon the date of any increase in 
Committed Capital in accordance with clause 4.2(3) of the Partnership Agreement (as applicable) and termination 
on the later of:

– 6 (six) months following the Closing Date or the increase in Committed Capital (as applicable), provided that this 
may be extended by 6 months by the General Partner with the written approval of the Advisory Board;

– the date when the Total Commitment has been drawn down and paid in accordance with the Partnership 
Agreement; or

– the date (if any) determined pursuant to clause 3.7(4) of the Partnership Agreement.

Committed Capital means in respect of the Investor, the total amount committed to the capital of the 
Partnership by the Investor as specified in the Partnership Agreement or in the Investor’s Deed of Adherence (in 
the form of either cash or an In Specie Commitment) including any Increased Committed Capital. The Committed 
Capital of the Investor shall be denominated in South African Rands;

Company means Revego;

Consent means any notice, consent, approval, authorisation, waiver, permit, grant, concession, agreement, licence, 
certificate, exemption, order or registration, of, with, from or to any Person;

Controlling, Controlled by or Control, means in relation to a Person or Affiliate:

the beneficial ownership, directly or indirectly of:

1. in the case of a company, cooperative, corporation or a limited liability company, shares or securities of that 
company, cooperative or corporation:

aa) which entitle the holder, alone or pursuant to an agreement with one or more other persons, to elect a 
majority of the members of the management board or one-tier board of the company, cooperative or 
corporation; or

ab) representing more than 50% of the company’s or corporation’s stated capital or, in case of a cooperative, 
members’ funding; or

ac) which entitle the holder, alone or pursuant to an agreement with one or more other persons, to more 
than 50% of the votes which may be cast at the shareholders or members meetings of that company, 
cooperative or corporation; or

2. in the case of a partnership (other than a limited partnership), limited liability partnership, joint venture or any 
other unincorporated association or organization, ownership interests therein representing more than 50% of 
the voting interest of that entity by contract or otherwise; or

3. in the case of a limited partnership, (i) if the general partner of the limited partnership is a company or 
corporation, sufficient securities of that company or corporation to satisfy the criteria in paragraph (a) of 
this definition, or (ii) if the general partner of the limited partnership is an entity other than a company or 
corporation, sufficient ownership interests of that entity to satisfy the criteria in paragraph (b) of this definition; 
or

4. in the case of a trust, estate, body or any other person (other than an individual) not falling within (a), (b) or 
(c) above, more than 50% of the beneficial interest therein; or

5. in the case of a fund, the right, directly or indirectly through a body corporate controlled by another person, 
to be the sole or predominant manager or advisor to that fund,

 and the term Common Control shall be construed accordingly;

Corrupt Act means, in relation to any Person, the exercise by that Person of any improper or corrupt influence 
over the actions of another Person by directly or indirectly:

(a) offering, promising or giving a financial or other advantage to such other Person; or

(b) requesting, agreeing to receive or accepting a financial or other advantage from such other Person,

in a manner which is or could reasonably be expected to constitute a breach of any applicable Anti-Corruption 
Laws;

Deed of Adherence means the deed of adherence which the Investor will sign and deliver to the General Partner 
in order to apply for admission as a limited partner to the Partnership;
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Defaulting Investor means a failure by the Investor to pay any amount specified in a Drawdown Notice given to 
the Investor or any other amount required to be funded by the Investor hereunder (the “Defaulted Amount”) 
on or before the due date for such payment and fails to remedy such default within 21 days of the General Partner 
giving the Defaulting Investor written notice to so remedy the default, or the Investor purports to Transfer all or 
any part of its interest in the Partnership other than in accordance with the Partnership Agreement (a “Default”), 
then the Investor shall, for the duration of such Default, be designated as a defaulting Investor under the Partnership 
Agreement

Drawdown Notice means a written notice given by the General Partner to the Investor from time to time, 
requiring the Investor to pay an instalment of its Committed Capital pursuant to the Partnership Agreement

Disposal means the sale, realisation, redemption, assignment, transfer, or disposal by the Fund of all or any portion 
of an Investment, or a cessation of business of a Project Company in conjunction with a receipt by the Fund of a 
dividend payable on or before liquidation, distribution upon a sale of all, or substantially all, of the assets of a Project 
Company, or other distribution, and shall include the writing off of an asset or Investment, and Dispose shall be 
construed accordingly;

Economic Sanctions means

(a) all Applicable Laws relating to economic sanctions or terrorism financing administered or enforced by the U.S. 
Government (including the U.S. Department of State and the OFAC), the United Kingdom (including Her 
Majesty’s Treasury), the European Union, Australia or the United Nations Security Council; and

(b) all other economic sanctions as may be applicable which are not already covered in (a) above;

Enterprise Value means the enterprise value of Revego, being as at the date of calculation, the last reported 
traded price per Share multiplied by the number of Shares in issue plus last reported interest-bearing debt and 
non-controlling interests and less last reported cash and cash equivalents;

Environmental and Social Laws means all Applicable Laws relating to:

(a) the protection, preservation, improvement of or prevention of damage to the environment (including but not 
limited to all applicable planning and climate change laws);

(b) the regulation or control of any pollutants or contaminants (including but not limited to any chemical, biological, 
industrial, radioactive, dangerous, toxic or hazardous substance, water or residue, whether in solid or liquid 
form or a gas or vapour);

(c) the protection or preservation of worker and occupational health and safety; and

(d) human rights, including human trafficking, slavery, public safety, security and community-related matters and 
labour standards;

Environmental and Social Licence means any applicable approval, authorisation, licence (including statutory 
licence), Consent or permission required under or in relation to any Environmental and Social Law;

Equator Principles means the Equator Principles risk management framework, which is used for the determining, 
assessing and managing of environmental and social risk in projects;

Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans means ordinary shares, preference shares, convertible 
preference shares, convertible debentures and shareholder loans in unlisted companies;

FSCA means the Financial Services Conduct Authority a juristic person established in terms of the Financial 
Services Regulatory Act, 2017 (as amended from time to time);

Fund means the Revego Africa Energy Fund, a private equity fund structured as an en commandite partnership duly 
established in South Africa with its partners being the General Partner and Revego, the limited partner;

GAAR Arrangement means any Arrangement which under Applicable Law constitutes an unlawful or notifiable 
tax-avoidance or abusive tax-Arrangement (or substantially similar) or which otherwise invokes any provisions of 
Applicable Law relating to tax-avoidance or abusive tax-Arrangements (or substantially similar);

General Partner means Revego General Partner (RF) Proprietary Limited, a private company duly incorporated 
in South Africa or any additional or successor general partner admitted to the Partnership as a general partner 
thereof in accordance with the terms hereof;
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Governmental Authority means any:

(a) governmental or quasi-governmental authority of any nature (including, without limitation, any governmental 
agency, branch, department or other entity and any court or other tribunal) including a national, regional, state, 
district, city, town, village, or other governmental authority having jurisdiction; or

(b) body exercising, or entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, regulatory or taxing 
authority or power of any nature;

IFC Performance Standards means the Performance Standards issued by the International Finance Corporation on 
1 January 2012;

IFRS means International Financial Reporting Standards developed and adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board and in effect from time to time;

Increased Committed Capital means an amount of additional Committed Capital committed by the Investor to the 
Partnership as contemplated in clause 4.2 of the Partnership Agreement;

In Specie Commitment means the Rand value of any asset committed for transfer to the Partnership as a Capital 
Contribution;

Investment means any proposed or existing investment to be made or made by the Fund (directly or indirectly) 
by way of holding Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans in a Project Company and Invested and Invest shall 
be construed accordingly;

Investment Committee means the investment committee established by the Investment Manager;

Investment Management Agreement means the investment management agreement entered into on 16 September 
2019 between the Investment Manager and the General Partner (for and on behalf of the Fund) and pursuant to 
which the General Partner appoints the Investment Manager as discretionary investment manager of the Fund;

Investment Manager means Revego Fund Managers Proprietary Limited, a private company duly incorporated 
in South Africa with registration number 2015/271652/07, which is regulated as a financial services provider by the 
FSCA under Financial Services Provider no. 47561;

Investment Policy means the investment policies, procedures and restrictions of the Fund;

Investor means Revego, who will be admitted as a commanditarian partner of the Partnership and who will 
become a party to the Partnership Agreement on the written acceptance by the General Partner of a Deed of 
Adherence signed and delivered by it, or any replacement or substitute. For the avoidance of doubt, the General 
Partner shall not be an Investor;

JSE means JSE Limited (registration number 2005/022939/06), a public company incorporated in accordance with 
the laws of South Africa and licensed as an exchange under the Financial Markets Act, 2012;

Key Project Parties means in respect of the Fund:

(a) any contractor that is engaged directly by or on behalf of the Fund in relation to its assets; and

(b) after the date of the Partnership Agreement: (i) any person or entity which is a successor in title, permitted 
assignee or permitted transferee of any of the parties listed in paragraph(a) above; or (ii) any other entity 
designated as a Key Project Party by the Investor (acting reasonably);

provided that such persons shall cease to be Key Project Parties when the relevant contracts to which they are a 
party in connection with the General Partner and the Fund have been performed in full or otherwise terminated 
and no further obligations or liabilities remain thereunder;

Listings Requirements means the Listings Requirements issued by the JSE under the Financial Markets Act to 
be observed by issuers of equity securities listed on the exchange operated by the JSE, as amended;

OFAC means the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury;

Partner means the General Partner and/or the Investor, as the case may require;

Partnership means the Revego Africa Energy Fund Partnership, being the en commandite partnership established 
and governed by the Partnership Agreement;

Partnership Agreement means the en commandite partnership agreement establishing and governing the 
Partnership, as amended from time to time;
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Person means any natural person, limited or unlimited liability company, corporation, partnership (whether limited 
or unlimited), firm, joint venture, body corporate (whether incorporated or not), proprietorship, trust, union, 
association, Governmental Authority or any agency or subdivision thereof, works council, employee representative 
body or any other entity that may be treated as a person under Applicable Law (whether or not having separate 
legal personality);

Portfolio Company/ies means any Person in which the Partnership owns an Investment;

Project Company/ies means any person, company, trust, partnership, undertaking, fund, or other entity in which 
the Fund is invested;

Public Official means:

(a) any official, whether elected or appointed, who holds a legislative, administrative or judicial position of any kind 
of any country or territory or any public international organisation; and

(b) any person who performs public functions in any branch of a national, provincial or municipal government or 
for any public agency or public enterprise;

Revego means Revego Africa Energy Limited, registration number 2018/392811/06, a public company duly 
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of South Africa and registered with the Companies and Intellectual 
Properties Commission and the sole limited partner in the Fund;

Sanctioned Person shall mean any persons who are:

(a) listed on the Consolidated List of Financial Sanctions Targets and/or the Investment Ban List maintained by Her 
Majesty’s Treasury or any similar list maintained by the United Kingdom or the United Kingdom government, 
as amended, supplemented or substituted from time to time;

(b) listed on the World Bank blacklist (being the list of firms and individuals ineligible to be awarded a World Bank 
financed contract, published by the World Bank at www.worldbank.org/debarr), as amended, supplemented 
or substituted from time to time;

(c) listed on the consolidated list of persons, groups and entities subject to sanctions imposed by the European 
Union, United States, United Kingdom, Australian Union, as amended, supplemented or substituted from time 
to time;

(d) listed on the sanctions list(s) of the OFAC (or any successor entity) as amended, supplemented or substituted 
from time to time;

(e) listed on the Consolidated United Nations Security Council Sanctions List as amended, supplemented or 
substituted from time to time;

(f) convicted for any charges, whether of a civil or criminal nature, related to corruption, money-laundering or 
offences involving moral turpitude;

(g) identified by any Governmental Authority as a “willful defaulter” or qualify as such; or

(h) Affiliate of any of the Persons in (a) to (g) above;

Shareholder means the holder/s of Shares from time to time, as recorded in the shareholder register;

Shares means ordinary no par value shares in the stated capital of the Company;

South Africa means the Republic of South Africa;

SSA means sub-Saharan Africa;

Substitute Investor means a Person who becomes an Investor as the successor to all, or part of, the rights and 
obligations of the Investor in respect of the latter’s interest in the Partnership or a portion thereof;

Temporary Investments means investments in (i) cash or cash equivalents; (ii) marketable direct obligations 
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the Government of South Africa, or issued by any agency thereof, maturing 
within one year from the date of acquisition thereof; (iii) money market instruments, commercial paper or other 
short-term debt obligations having at the date of purchase by the Partnership a rating at least equal to the South 
African sovereign rating from either Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services or Moody’s Investors Services, Inc., or their 
respective successors; (iv) interest bearing accounts at a registered broker-dealer; (v) money market mutual funds; 
and (vi) pooled investment funds or accounts that invest only in instruments of the type described in (i) through (iv). 
For the avoidance of doubt, Temporary Investments may be held at, managed by, or purchased from, any Person 
that satisfies the foregoing requirements;
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Total Commitment means the aggregate of the Committed Capital of the Investor from time to time;

Transfer means a direct or indirect transfer in any form, including a sale, assignment, transfer, exchange, pledge, 
encumbrance, conveyance, mortgage, securitisation, hypothecation or other disposition, any purported severance 
or alienation of any beneficial interest (including the creation of any derivative or synthetic interest), or the act of 
so doing, as the context requires;

Undrawn Committed Capital means in respect of the Investor, that part of the capital that the Investor has 
committed to contribute but which has not yet been drawn down by the Fund, being equal to the difference 
between the Committed Capital and the Capital Contributions of the Investor;

United Kingdom means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland; and

United States means the United States of America.

PART C – INVESTMENT POLICY

1. REVEGO INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

1.1 Revego’s objective is to provide Shareholders with long-term stable returns derived from a steady stream of 
distributions from a diversified portfolio of operational SSA renewable energy assets.

1.2 Revego’s investment objective will be achieved exclusively through its investment in the Fund.

2. THE FUND’S INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

2.1 The Fund will invest in a diversified portfolio of renewable energy assets located in SSA with an initial focus on 
operating assets in South Africa. Investments will be made principally by way of equity stakes and shareholder 
loans in unlisted private companies. In the event of the Fund acquiring minority stakes, it will secure its 
shareholder rights (including voting rights and minority protections) through memorandums of incorporation, 
shareholders agreements and/or other legal agreements.

2.2 The Fund, in order to spread risk (including political risk) and diversify its portfolio, will invest across a number 
of countries within SSA with a mix of proven renewable energy technologies including solar, wind, hydro 
and biogas. In determining the geographical spread of Investments, the Fund will target countries with stable 
regulatory frameworks. Diversification will also be accomplished through having various grid connection points, 
varied landowners, counterparties, technologies and energy sources.

2.3 The Fund will seek over time to invest at least 51% of the value of funds under management in Project 
Companies that are at least 25% Black owned (using the flow through principle), which Black ownership can 
be facilitated by the Fund.

2.4 The Fund’s target return on Investments will be based on market related returns and yields achieved on a per-
project basis. For purposes of this clause 2.4 “return” shall mean the gross internal rate of return (“IRR”) of 
the Fund (post tax, nominal, and excluding operating expenses).

3. INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

3.1 Limits with respect to technologies, counterparties and countries will be set and agreed from time to time.

3.2 No more than 10% of the Enterprise Value will be invested in any Project Companies where the Project 
Companies are in an advanced stage of development or construction phase, calculated at the time of the 
investment. “Advanced stage of development” shall mean the Project Company concerned has (i) secured 
all major relevant permits, consents and approvals and (ii) has been awarded a tariff or entered into a power 
purchase agreement with the relevant authority.

4. STRUCTURE OF INVESTMENTS AND GOVERNANCE

4.1 The Fund will generally invest in Project Companies which have or whose management teams have a proven 
track record.

4.2 The Investment Manager will aim to proactively manage the Fund’s portfolio of Investments via comprehensive 
investment agreements and shareholders agreements to be entered into with sponsors, shareholders and 
managers, to ensure agreement and alignment in the investment objectives.
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4.3 The Investment Manager (on behalf of the Fund) will generally seek certain consents, rights and other 
protections in respect of key decisions of Project Companies, through which the Investment Manager (on 
behalf of the Fund) will oversee and add value to its Investment, including by holding seats on the board of 
directors, and having the right to sit on key board sub-committees and to change key managers under specified 
conditions. During the life of an Investment, the Investment Manager will seek to protect the Fund’s interests 
and guide management of a Project Company through board participation and shareholders agreements.

4.4 The Investment Manager will seek to achieve the Fund’s objectives by following a disciplined Investment 
sourcing, due diligence and transaction execution and monitoring process.

4.5 The Fund will ensure that market standard due diligence investigations are conducted as a condition to the 
implementation of any Investments. Such due diligence investigations shall include at least “red flag” technical, 
legal, financial, environmental and social, operational, insurance, tax and accounting due diligence investigations, 
subject to the usual provisos, conditions and assumptions customary for such investigations.

4.6 The Fund will primarily invest in Project Companies by means of Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans 
or quasi Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans (including, for the avoidance of doubt, secured and 
subordinated unsecured loans) in order to strengthen the Project Companies’ capital structure.

4.7 Project Companies are generally anticipated to be leveraged through the application of senior secured non-
recourse project finance debt.

4.8 The Fund may give guarantees over cash, warranties and indemnities in connection with Investments and 
Disposals made in relation to an Investment, provided that the risks, contingent liabilities and charges resulting 
from the normal performance of these commitments, as estimated in the financial evaluation made by the 
Fund, must at no time exceed the Enterprise Value. In addition:

4.8.1 any guarantees, warranties and indemnities given by the Fund in connection with a particular 
Investment or Disposal shall be limited to the consideration attributable to the relevant Investment 
or Disposal; and

4.8.2 any guarantees, warranties and indemnities given by the Fund in connection with a particular 
Investment or Disposal, shall be limited in time and in any event shall not be longer than a period of 
24 months following the date of the relevant Investment or Disposal.

5. FINANCIAL POLICY

5.1 The Fund will finance its expenses either from income or from Capital Contributions.

5.2 The Fund may borrow for reasons including, but not limited to, covering a temporary cash flow deficit, 
financing a capital call during the Commitment Period where there is a Defaulting Investor, for working capital 
purposes or in connection with making an Investment.

5.3 Borrowing for Investment purposes may not be for longer than 12 months and may not without the approval 
of the Advisory Board in aggregate exceed 30% of the sum of:

5.3.1 the Enterprise Value; and

5.3.2 the aggregate Undrawn Committed Capital,

5.4 Borrowing for the purposes of financing a Capital Call where there is a Defaulting Investor shall never exceed 
in aggregate 10% of aggregate Undrawn Committed Capital without the approval of the Advisory Board.

5.5 While the Fund has a single limited partner (being Revego), Undrawn Committed Capital is likely to be minimal 
(insofar as the General Partner will typically draw down the full amount of any Capital Commitment made by 
Revego (subsequent to any capital raise by Revego)). Similarly, the Fund is unlikely to have a Defaulting Investor 
insofar as Revego will only commit capital to the Fund if it has raised such capital from Shareholders.

6. HEDGING

6.1 The Fund may enter into hedging transactions in relation to currency and interest rates to manage these 
exposures, however it will not enter into any derivative transactions for investment or speculative purposes. 
The Fund may borrow in currencies other than ZAR as part of its currency hedging strategy.

6.2 Furthermore, to the extent that the political risk which includes currency convertibility, repatriation of funds 
and expropriation is viewed to be unacceptable, the IRR for the Investment will be calculated after taking into 
account the cost of any political risk insurance.
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7. CASH MANAGEMENT

7.1 Pending re-investment or distribution of cash receipts, cash received by the Fund may be invested in Temporary 
Investments.

8. PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS

8.1 The Fund shall not invest in proposed Project Companies which are engaged in, or to the knowledge of 
the Investment Manager after due investigation, intend to engage in any of the prohibited activities listed in 
paragraph 2 of Part D of this Annexure 12.

9. FUND MATTERS

9.1 Commencement and duration of the Partnership

9.1.1 The Partnership shall continue indefinitely from the Closing Date onwards.

9.2 Investment Management Agreement

9.2.1 The General Partner shall not terminate the Investment Management Agreement, cede or assign 
any of its rights or obligations under the Investment Management Agreement or agree to amend any 
material provisions of the Investment Management Agreement.

9.2.2 In the event that the Investment Management Agreement should terminate prior to the dissolution 
of the Partnership (other than any termination pursuant to a cession and/or delegation by, or 
reorganisation of, the Investment Manager permitted under the Investment Management Agreement), 
the General Partner shall not arrange for the services supplied thereunder to be supplied by some 
other person or persons, unless this Investment Policy is amended to provide for such appointment 
and the terms of such appointment.

9.3 Winding-up and dissolution of the Partnership

9.3.1 Neither Revego (nor its Shareholders) shall be capable of winding up or dissolving the Partnership.

9.3.2 The Partnership shall not be automatically reconstituted if wound up or dissolved following the 
occurrence of any of the following events:

9.3.2.1 the expiry of the applicable notice period, in the event that the General Partner is removed 
pursuant to clause 13.5 of the Partnership Agreement and a replacement General Partner 
is not appointed;

9.3.2.2 the General Partner:

9.3.2.2.1 makes an assignment for the benefit of the creditors;

9.3.2.2.2 applies to be wound up;

9.3.2.2.3 is adjudged to be insolvent, or has entered against it an order of relief in any 
insolvency proceeding;

9.3.2.2.4 files an application or answer seeking for itself any judicial management, 
business recuse, insolvency, reorganisation, arrangement, composition, 
readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or similar relief under any 
statue, law or regulation;

9.3.2.2.5 files an answer or other pleading admitting or failing to contest the material 
allegations of an application filed against it in any proceeding of the nature 
described in clause 15.1 (2) of the Partnership Agreement; or

9.3.2.2.6 seeks, consents to or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
liquidator, judicial manager, business rescue practitioner or other similar person 
of all or any substantial part of its properties.
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9.4 Amendment of Partnership Agreement

9.4.1 No material provision of the Partnership Agreement may be amended in whole or in part.

9.5 KEY POLICY REQUIREMENTS

9.5.1 Anti-bribery, corruption and economic sanctions

The Fund shall:

a) comply with all applicable Anti-Corruption Laws and Economic Sanctions, and shall use reasonable 
endeavours to procure that each of its Portfolio Companies do the same;

b) procure that it shall not commit a Corrupt Act and take reasonable endeavours to procure that 
none of its Project Companies or respective Agents shall commit a Corrupt Act;

c) shall take reasonable endeavours to procure that none of its Project Companies or Affiliates (nor 
any of their respective Agents) shall (i) commit a Corrupt Act; or (ii) fail to comply with Economic 
Sanctions, in either case:

i. directly or indirectly in connection with any project; or

ii. which would be likely to have a material adverse effect on the interests and reputation of 
the Investor;

d) take reasonable endeavours to procure that none of the Key Project Parties (nor any of their 
respective Agents) shall commit a Corrupt Act or fail to comply with Economic Sanctions in 
either case directly or indirectly in connection with any project or Project Company;

e) maintain and enforce policies and procedures for: (i) preventing and assessing the risk of breaching 
Anti-Corruption Laws and Economic Sanctions; and (ii) reviewing and monitoring any such risk, 
in each case in relation to the Fund and take reasonable endeavours to ensure the same in 
respect of all Project Companies;

f ) procure that the Fund shall not provide any entertainment, hospitality or gifts to any third party 
other than modest courtesies with respect to value and frequency, and in situations where the 
Fund is in the process of awarding a contract or being awarded a contract, either alone or in 
partnership, all gifts and hospitality must be avoided, irrespective of value;

g) use its reasonable endeavours to ensure that any Key Project Party engaged in connection with 
any project from the Closing Date is only engaged on the basis of a written contract which 
imposes on such person terms substantially equivalent to those imposed in this paragraph 1.1. of 
this Part E;

h) use its reasonable endeavours to procure that an anti-bribery and corruption policy is formally 
adopted by each Project Company’s board of directors or such similar governing and/or 
management body, as the case may be, and the completion of the anti-bribery and corruption 
integrity risk annual questionnaire by the Fund and its Project Companies; and

i) procure that a formal whistleblowing policy and procedures are formally adopted by its board of 
directors.

The Fund shall disclose particulars of all hospitality, entertainment and gifts proposed to be provided/
provided to Public Officials as a matter reserved for the Advisory Board.

9.5.2 Counterparty integrity

The Fund shall:

a) procure that neither it nor any Project Company is a Sanctioned Person and ensure that no Key 
Project Party (and take reasonable endeavours to ensure that none of their respective Agents) 
shall be a Sanctioned Person; and

b) take reasonable endeavours to ensure that none of its Agents has been or is currently disqualified 
from acting as a director of a company or partner/designated partner of a partnership in any 
jurisdiction.
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9.5.3 Environmental and social

The Fund shall, and shall use reasonable endeavours to procure that each of its Project Companies shall 
take reasonable endeavours to, procure that each of the sub-contractors, suppliers and outsourced 
service providers engaged and material to the relevant project shall, comply with applicable 
Environmental and Social Laws.

The Fund shall promptly on becoming aware of the following with respect to the Fund and/or any of 
its Project Companies, give notice to the Investor:

a) any event or circumstance which has a negative environmental or social impact that is materially 
greater than the impact anticipated in any applicable Environmental and Social Licence;

b) any material breach of an applicable Environmental and Social Law or environmental and social 
standard;

c) any environmental or social claim in writing against the Fund and/or any Project Company 
(including but not limited to any correspondence from any applicable regulator or Governmental 
Authority in relation to environmental, health and safety or other social matters);

d) any community campaign, demonstration or dispute in connection with any Project Company;

e) any employee or union action or dispute in connection with any Project Company; and

f) any other materially adverse environmental, labour, health and safety, workplace incident, 
accident or other social issues arising in connection with any Project Company.

9.5.4 Tax

The Fund shall, and shall take reasonable endeavours to procure that each of its Project Companies 
shall:

a) use best efforts not to enter into any GAAR Arrangement relating to any project;

b) promptly after becoming so aware notify the Investor if any arrangement entered into by it in 
relation to any Project Company is or becomes a GAAR Arrangement, together with details of 
that arrangement and any other matters and/or mitigating factors it considers relevant; and

c) comply in all material respects with all Applicable Laws relating to tax.

9.5.5 Publicity

The Fund shall, and the General Partner shall procure, to the extent possible, that each Project 
Company shall, obtain the Investor’s prior written consent in relation to:

a) the content, timing and publication of any press or public release issued, or communication with 
representatives of the media, by the Fund or its Project Companies or (to the extent within its 
control) any of its Affiliates or Key Project Parties in respect of the Investor’s involvement in any 
project (directly or indirectly); and

b) the use of the Investor’s name or information (including any contraction, derivation or modification 
thereof) in any press or public release or other communication with representatives of the 
media.

9.5.6 Confidentiality and transparency

Subject to the provisions below, the Fund and the General Partner agrees and confirms that the 
Investor may disclose any information in relation to the Fund and its Project Companies or which 
would otherwise be confidential:

a) to the extent that disclosure is necessary in order to comply with Applicable Laws;

b) on an anonymised basis or aggregated with other projects in the Investors portfolio.

If the Investor is requested to disclose any information in accordance with this paragraph, the Investor 
shall (to the extent practicable and permissible by Applicable Law):

a) notify the Fund of the nature and content of such request;

b) consult with the Fund as to the validity of the request, whether or not disclosure is required 
under the relevant legislation (taking into account any applicable exemptions under the Applicable 
Laws), and the scope and content of any disclosure,
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provided that it shall remain in the sole discretion of the Investor to determine whether or not it 
is required to make a disclosure of any information in relation to a project in accordance with its 
obligations under the Applicable Laws.

The Fund shall, and shall take reasonable endeavours to procure that each Project Company shall, 
inform the Investor as soon as possible and in any event within 5 (five) Business Days of receipt of any 
request under the Applicable Laws for information relating to a project. In no event shall the Fund 
or Project Company respond directly to any request for information received under the Applicable 
Laws unless expressly authorised to do so by the Investor in writing, provided the Investor agrees to 
be reasonable so as to not cause an unreasonable delay.

9.5.7 Safeguarding

The Investor is committed to maintaining an organisational culture that prioritises the safeguarding of 
vulnerable adults and children, ensuring they do not suffer exploitation or other harm. Accordingly, 
the Fund confirms that it shall:

a) provide a safe and trusted environment designed to safeguard those with whom the Fund has 
contact;

b) ensure all staff treat others with respect and speak up if they see something that does not seem 
right; and

c) ensure that there are clear incident-handling procedures to deal with any safeguarding incident or 
concern that should arise. In such instances, the Fund will, as applicable, ensure the appropriate 
Governmental Authorities are involved and inform the Investor.

9.5.8 Remedial action plan

Each of the events described in paragraph 9.5.3 above (whether or not caused by any reason 
whatsoever outside the control of the General Partner and/or the Fund shall, unless waived in writing 
by the Investor (at its sole discretion), be a “Remedial Action Plan Event”.

The Fund shall promptly notify the Investor upon becoming aware of any Remedial Action Plan Event.

If at any time the Investor determines that a Remedial Action Plan Event has occurred, the Investor 
shall promptly give notice to the Fund.

Within 10 (ten) Business Days of the date on which the Investor or the Fund receives notice, the Fund 
shall (unless advised otherwise in writing by the Investor) deliver to the Investor a draft action plan (a 
“Draft Remedial Action Plan”) which must include:

a) a detailed description of the Remedial Action Plan Event and the circumstances that led to it;

b) the steps taken and proposed to be taken to:

i) remedy, bring an end to or mitigate the effect of the relevant non-compliance;

ii) ensure that there is no further non-compliance in respect of the same matter in the future; 
and

iii) keep the Investor informed of progress in the implementation of the plan; and

c) time periods and deadlines for the completion of each of the steps referred to in paragraph (b) 
above.

Following receipt of the Draft Remedial Action Plan by the Investor, the Investor shall consult with the 
Fund in relation to such Draft Remedial Action Plan and, no later than 15 (fifteen) Business Days after 
the date on which the Draft Remedial Action Plan is delivered to the Investor, the Investor shall either:

a) approve the Draft Remedial Action Plan (with any changes required by the Investor) (an 
“Approved Remedial Action Plan”); or

b) not approve the Draft Remedial Action Plan, in which case it shall provide the Fund with its 
reasons for not approving the Draft Remedial Action Plan in writing and the Fund shall within 5 
(five) Business Days submit to the Investor a revised Draft Remedial Action Plan to take account 
of the input provided by the Investor (with the process to be repeated until an Approved 
Remedial Action Plan is in place).
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The Fund shall, at its own costs, diligently implement and shall procure the diligent implementation of 
any Approved Remedial Action Plan.

The Investor may appoint (or require the Fund to appoint at the Investor’s cost) an advisor approved 
by the Investor to access the site, review and advise on any Draft Remedial Action Plan and review, 
advise on and monitor the implementation of any Approved Remedial Action Plan or compliance with 
the terms of this Part E.

The General Partner and the Fund acknowledges that the Investor may be irreparably injured if the 
General Partner or the Fund fails to comply with its obligations under this Part E and agrees that 
damages, or the implementation of an Approved Remedial Action Plan, may not be an adequate 
remedy for particular breaches, and that the Investor shall be entitled (without prejudice to its other 
rights and remedies under contract or in law) to seek an injunction or similar remedies.

The Fund shall, at its cost and taking reasonable endeavours to procure that the Project Companies 
shall, provide to the Investor (and its Agents, including any environmental and social consultants) such 
information and access as is reasonably required to facilitate the Investor’s monitoring of compliance 
with this Part E including permitting site access and visits as may reasonably be required by the 
Investor.

The Fund shall, at its cost, and taking reasonable endeavours to procure that the Project Companies 
shall, provide to the Investor (and its Agents, including any environmental and social consultants) such 
information and access as is required to carry out an impact assessment with respect to any project 
including with respect to the project’s environmental, financial and social impact in the relevant sector 
and/or geography.

9.5.9 Target sectors

The Fund shall only invest in Renewable Energy Projects in SSA, in accordance with the following 
definitions:

a) “Renewable Energy” means energy generated in such a manner that it is naturally replenished 
and uses non-extinguishable resources such as the wind, sun (solar), run of river hydro, tides, 
waves, geothermal heat, sustainable biomass and biogenic gas;

b) “Renewable Energy Project” means any infrastructure or infrastructure-related venture 
which generates or distributes Renewable Energy or operates within the Renewable Energy 
Sector.

9.5.10 Green impact

Provisions that will ensure that the Fund is able to provide certain project operating parameters 
for each year and details of material environmental matters, including compliance with all relevant 
environmental, social and planning laws, regulations and permits in all material respects. Suitable 
environmental (and health and safety) policies and management systems will need to be in place (or 
planned). These policies will need to be updated for a Project Company to the extent that there are 
any gaps with respect to the IFC Performance Standards.

9.5.11 Responsible investment

Provisions regarding compliance with all environmental and social laws, suitable operation, maintenance 
and management of the Fund in accordance with international good industry practice and appropriate 
reporting and access for monitoring and reporting.

9.5.12 Transparency

Transparency requirements include rights under applicable laws and regulations

9.5.13 IFC performance standards

The eight IFC Performance Standards (and associated Environmental, Health and Safety Guidance 
Notes) establish the environmental and social good practice standards that the Fund is to meet 
throughout the proposed life of an Investment by the Fund. The Fund will assess the ability of any 
Investments to meet these standards as part of its diligence process

9.5.14 Equator principles

The Fund will seek to ensure that its Project Companies comply with the Equator Principles, where 
applicable.
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PART D – BUSINESS PRINCIPLES AND PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

1. BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

1.1 The Investment Manager will:

1.1.1 require that the Fund undertakes its operations; and

1.1.2 use its reasonable endeavours to procure that each Project Company conducts its business,

in compliance with the Environmental and Social Law.

2. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

2.1 The Fund shall not make Investments which could be associated with the following activities and it will use all 
reasonable endeavours to conduct due diligence investigations prior to making an Investment to ascertain if 
the Prohibited Activities (as described below) are being carried out by a Project Company in which the Fund 
intends to invest. If, following such investigations, the Fund becomes aware that the relevant Project Company 
carries out any of the Prohibited Activities, the Fund will not make an Investment in such Project Company. 
Prohibited Activities include:

2.1.1 Forced labour1 or child labour2;

2.1.2 Activities or materials deemed illegal under host country laws or regulations or international 
conventions and agreements, or subject to international phase-outs or bans, such as:

2.1.2.1 ozone depleting substances, PCB’s (Polychlorinated Biphenyls) and other specific, hazardous 
pharmaceuticals, pesticides/herbicides or chemicals;

2.1.2.2 wildlife or products regulated under the Convention on International Trade in Endangered 
Species or Wild Fauna and Flora (CITES);

2.1.2.3 Unsustainable fishing methods (e.g., blast fishing and drift net fishing in the marine 
environment using nets in excess of 2.5 km in length);

2.1.3 Cross-border trade in waste and waste products, unless compliant with the Basel Convention and 
the underlying regulations;

2.1.4 Destruction3 of High Conservation Value areas4;

2.1.5 Radioactive materials5 and unbounded asbestos fibres;

2.1.6 Pornography and/or prostitution;

2.1.7 Racist and/or anti-democratic media;

2.1.8 Production or trade in weapons and munitions;

2.1.9 Production or trade in alcoholic beverages (excluding beer and wine);

2.1.10 Production or trade in tobacco;

2.1.11 Gambling, casino and equivalent enterprises;

2.1.12 Commercial logging operations for use in primary tropical moist forest; and

2.1.13 Production or trade in wood or other forestry products other than from sustainably managed forests.

1 Forced labor means all work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is extracted from an individual under threat of force or penalty as defined by Interna-
tional Labour Organization conventions.

2 Persons may only be employed if they are at least 14 years old, as defined in the ILO Fundamental Human Rights Conventions (Minimum Age Convention 
C138, Art. 2), unless local legislation specifies compulsory school attendance or the minimum age for working. In such cases the higher age shall apply.

3 Destruction means the (1) elimination or severe diminution of the integrity of an area caused by a major, long-term change in land or water use or (2) modifi-
cation of a habitat in such a way that the area’s ability to maintain its role is lost.

4 High Conservation Value (“HCV”) areas are defined as natural habitats where these values are considered to be of outstanding significance or critical impor-
tance (See http://www.hcvnetwork.org).

5 This does not apply to the purchase of medical equipment, quality control (measurement) equipment or any other equipment where the radioactive source is 
understood to be trivial and/or adequately shielded.
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PART E – GENERAL

1. INVESTMENT PROCESS

The Investment Manager and its management team will be responsible for the investment process which will entail 
inter alia, sourcing, negotiating, concluding and executing investment opportunities for the Fund.

Final decisions regarding Investments and Disposals will be taken by the Investment Committee, with due regard to 
the Investment Policy and objectives.

Revego and the Fund’s income will be derived wholly or mainly from shares or other securities and it will not conduct 
any material trading activity relative to the size of the Company.

The nature of the opportunities sought by the Fund dictate longer term investments. It is not the intention of the 
Fund to trade frequently in its Investments.

2. ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENTS IN THE COMPANY REPORTING STATEMENTS

The Company will report in line with IFRS and in consultation with its Independent Auditors, EY, in terms of the 
principles to be applied going forward.

3. TRANSACTIONS AND SHAREHOLDER APPROVALS

3.1 Section 9 of the Listings Requirements will not apply to Revego (or the Fund) provided transactions are 
concluded in the ordinary course of business pursuant to the Investment Policy. All transactions by Revego (or 
the Fund) will be categorised as required by the Listings Requirements and any transaction exceeding 10% will 
be announced pursuant to the provisions of section 9 of the Listings Requirements. In respect of transactions 
less than 10% Revego will consider the application of the general obligation of disclosure pursuant to paragraph 
3.4(a) of the Listings Requirements in the event that any transaction constitutes price sensitive information 
(applied individually or on a cumulative basis).

3.2 In respect of transactions by Revego (or the Fund) with related parties of Revego, Shareholder approval will 
be required in accordance with the thresholds and requirements for such approvals contained in section 10 
of the Listings Requirements respective of whether the transactions are in the ordinary course of business.

3.3 In the event that Revego (or the Fund) wishes to conclude a Transaction outside the scope of the Investment 
Policy, the Investment Policy must be amended in terms of paragraph 6 below in order to allow the Transaction.

4. COMMUNICATION OF TRANSACTIONS

4.1 Communications with Shareholders will be made in accordance with the Listings Requirements in respect of 
all Transactions concluded by Revego or the Fund.

4.2 All Transactions will be summarised for Shareholders in the interim and final results announcements and in the 
integrated annual report.

5. COMMUNICATION OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY

5.1 The Investment Policy is included in Revego’s Pre-Listing Statement and may be made available by the Board in 
a manner that it deems appropriate (including allowing for it to be accessed on Revego’s website) and including 
it in Revego’s annual report.

6. AMENDMENTS TO THE INVESTMENT POLICY

6.1 Any material changes to the Investment Guidelines (save for the Investment Policy and Key Policy Requirements 
included therein) must be approved by the Board and the JSE, to the extent required.

6.2 Any material changes to the Investment Policy or new policy must be approved by Shareholders by way of an 
ordinary resolution.

6.3 The Key Policy Requirements are included in the Investment Policy and, accordingly, any material changes to 
the Key Policy Requirements must be approved by Shareholders by way of an ordinary resolution.
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ANNEXURE 13 – ACQUISITIONS AND VENDORS

Details of the vendors of material assets, including immovable properties, subsidiaries and investments, acquired by the 
Fund during the three years preceding the Last Practicable Date or proposed to be acquired, are detailed in the table 
below. Refer to Part C of this Pre-Listing Statement for further details in relation to the assets, including conditions 
precedent outstanding as at the Last Practicable Date.

Description: Acquisition of 29.5% interest in Aurora Wind Power

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 December 2019)

R188m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R2m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R190m

Valuation: R190m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will be financed with Listing Proceeds)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares

Name of vendor: Investec*

Address of vendor: 100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, Sandton, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years

* Investec will be a material Shareholder in Revego after the Listing and this acquisition would therefore have constituted a related party transaction as 
contemplated by the Listings Requirements. As Revego is not yet listed, the related party provisions as per section 10 of the Listings Requirements were not 
required to be complied with.
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Description: Acquisition of 20.0% interest in Aurora Wind Power

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 December 2019)

R127m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R(3)m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R124m

Valuation: R124m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will be financed with Listing Proceeds)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares

Name of vendor: Kagiso Tiso Holdings Proprietary Limited

Address of vendor: Kagiso Tiso House, 100 West Street, Wierda Valley, Sandton, 2196

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years

Description: Acquisition of 7.50% interest in Kathu Solar Park

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 March 2020)

R285m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R51m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R336m

Valuation: R336m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will be financed with Listing Proceeds)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares and a shareholder loan

Name of vendor: Investec*

Address of vendor: 100 Grayston Drive, Sandown, Sandton, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years

* Investec will be a material Shareholder in Revego after the Listing and this acquisition would therefore have constituted a related party transaction as 
contemplated by the Listings Requirements. As Revego is not yet listed, the related party provisions as per section 10 of the Listings Requirements were not 
required to be complied with.
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Description: Acquisition of 12.00% interest in Bokpoort

Date of acquisition: 18 March 2021

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 August 2020)

R294m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R(90)m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 18 March 2021)

R204m*

* The R204m includes a contingent consideration of R20m to be paid in May 
2021)

Valuation: R204m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

R204m – See paragraph 78 of the Pre-Listing Statement for details relating to 
the Bridge Facility

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares

Name of vendor: Lereko Metier Sustainable Fund II

Address of vendor: 4th Floor, Building 3, Oxford Parks, 8 Parks Boulevard, Rosebank, 
Johannesburg, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years

Description: Acquisition of 15.00% interest in Noupoort Wind Farm through a 
100% acquisition of the investment holding company Genesis 
Noupoort Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 30 June 2020)

R113m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R(5)m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R108m

Valuation: R108m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will likely be financed with Listing Proceeds, unless the relevant 
conditions precedent as described in paragraph 19.4 have been fulfilled prior 
to the Listing Date in which case the Bridge Facility as described in paragraph 
78 of the Pre-Listing Statement would be utilised)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares and a shareholder loan

Name of vendor: Lereko Metier Sustainable Fund II

Address of vendor:  4th Floor, Building 3, Oxford Parks, 8 Parks Boulevard, Rosebank, 
Johannesburg, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years
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Description: Acquisition of 15.00% interest in Loeriesfontein Wind Farm 
through a 100% acquisition of the investment holding company 
Genesis Loeriesfontein Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 May 2020)

R225m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R3m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R228m

Valuation: R228m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will likely be financed with Listing Proceeds, unless the relevant 
conditions precedent as described in paragraph 19.5 have been fulfilled prior 
to the Listing Date in which case the Bridge Facility as described in paragraph 
78 of the Pre-Listing Statement would be utilised)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares and a shareholder loan

Name of vendor: Lereko Metier Sustainable Fund II

Address of vendor: 4th Floor, Building 3, Oxford Parks, 8 Parks Boulevard, Rosebank, 
Johannesburg, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years

Description: Acquisition of 15.00% interest in Khobab Wind Farm through a 
100% acquisition of the investment holding company Genesis 
Khobab Wind (RF) Proprietary Limited

Date of acquisition: 30 April 2021 (assumed)

Consideration: Purchase Price 
(at Locked Box Date of 31 May 2020) 

R231m

Change in Purchase Price 
(between Locked Box Date and Acquisition Date)

R3m

Final Purchase Price – to be settled full in cash 
(at Acquisition Date of 30 April 2021)

R234m

Valuation: R234m (for interest acquired)

Goodwill paid and manner in 
which was accounted for:

N/A

Loans incurred to finance 
acquisition:

N/A (will likely be financed with Listing Proceeds, unless the relevant 
conditions precedent as described in paragraph 19.5 have been fulfilled prior 
to the Listing Date in which case the Bridge Facility as described in paragraph 
78 of the Pre-Listing Statement would be utilised)

Nature of asset acquired: Ordinary shares and a shareholder loan

Name of vendor: Metier

Address of vendor: 4th Floor, Building 3, Oxford Parks, 8 Parks Boulevard, Rosebank, 
Johannesburg, 2196, South Africa

Price paid by vendor and date 
of acquisition by vendor if 
within preceding three years:

N/A as not acquired by vendor within preceding three years
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ANNEXURE 14 – REPORTS AND VALUATIONS

1. ACCOUNTING REPORTS

1.1 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall prepare and approve financial statements 
of the Fund in respect of each Accounting Period (a period beginning on 1 April and ending on and including 
31 March each year being considered an “Accounting Period”, adjusted for any changes which have been 
approved in line with the terms of the Partnership Agreement) in accordance with IFRS and comply with 
any requirement which applies to the financial statements of the Fund under any other enactment, including 
a balance sheet, profit and loss account, a cash flow statement, a statement of the balance of the Capital 
Account of the Partners and a summary of movements in such accounts and statements showing the income, 
gains and losses for the Accounting Period. The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) 
shall cause such accounts to be audited by the Independent Auditors in accordance with IFRS.

1.2 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall cause such accounts to be audited by the 
Independent Auditors in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. The Independent Auditors 
shall annually produce a factual findings report designed to provide comfort to the Partners that allocations 
and distributions related to the Fund have been made correctly and in accordance with the terms of the 
Partnership Agreement and that the calculations required to determine the Management Fee payable to the 
Investment Manager (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the set-off of creditable fees, as defined in the 
Partnership Agreement) have been performed correctly and in accordance with the terms of the Partnership 
Agreement.

1.3 As soon as practicable and in any event within 60 days after the end of each Accounting Period, the Fund shall 
provide to each Partner (i) a set of the audited accounts, including the report of the Independent Auditors 
and a statement of accounting policies; (ii) an overview of each Investment, sold or otherwise disposed of 
during the Accounting Period; (iii) the Annual Valuation (as defined in paragraph 4 below); (iv) a schedule 
of all drawdowns and distributions during the Accounting Period; and (v) a schedule of all borrowings and 
guarantees of the Fund during the Accounting Period. The audited accounts shall be signed on behalf of the 
Fund by the General Partner.

1.4 Within 45 days after the end of each Quarter (each three month period following 31 March, 30 June, 30 
September and 31 December being a “Quarter”), the Fund shall provide to the Partners an unaudited 
report comprising: (i) a statement of the Investments and the value thereof, determined on the basis set out in 
paragraph 4 below; (ii) details of the Investments purchased during the Quarter, including a brief summary of 
any Project Company; (iii) details of Investments sold and otherwise disposed of during the relevant Quarter; 
(iv) a detailed description of any Creditable Fees which are set off against the Management Fees or retained by 
the General Partner, the Investment Manager or their Associates (as defined in the Partnership Agreement); 
(v) the IRR of the Fund (including the methodology for calculating such IRR); (vi) a breakdown of the expenses 
of the Fund during the Quarter; (vii) the undrawn commitments as at the end of the Quarter; (viii) details of 
all cash and liquid instruments held by the Fund; and (ix) a letter addressed by the Investment Manager (as 
mandated by the General Partner) to the Partners detailing the activities of the Fund during the Accounting 
Period.

1.5 In addition, the Quarterly report shall include a report on each Project Company with the following information:

1.5.1 the name, address and location of the Project Company;

1.5.2 a brief description of the Project Company’s business;

1.5.3 the amount initially invested in the Project Company (including loans and guarantees);

1.5.4 any amounts invested in the Project Company as follow-on Investments;

1.5.5 the percentage of the Project Company owned by the Fund, and any alternative investment vehicles;

1.5.6 a discussion by the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) of recent key events 
in respect of the Project Company;

1.5.7 selected financial information (quarterly and annually) regarding the Project Company where applicable 
and available, including: (i) revenue; (ii) debt (terms and maturity); (iii) earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”); (iv) profit and loss; and (v) cash position;
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1.5.8 the cost and distributions to date of each Project Company; and

1.5.9 if the Investment in the Project Company was liquidated or disposed of during the Quarter, the 
amount realised from such disposition.

1.6 Should any event or circumstance result in the net asset value of any Project Company being reduced by 10% 
or more, the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall, as soon as reasonably possible, 
inform the Company of such event or circumstance and any measures taken to mitigate such reduction in 
value.

1.7 Within 30 days of the beginning of each Accounting Period, the Investment Manager (as mandated by the 
General Partner) shall provide to the Advisory Board its annual budget for the operating expenses that are 
the responsibility of the Fund (as detailed in paragraph 12 of Part A of this Pre-Listing Statement) during that 
Accounting Period.

1.8 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) will provide the Company with monthly 
statements on the net asset value of the Fund. The format and content of these statements shall be reviewed 
by the Advisory Board. The first monthly statement will be provided at the end of the month in which the first 
Investment is made by the Fund.

1.9 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall, as soon as reasonably possible, provide 
the Company with such additional information reasonably required by the Company to comply with any 
regulatory or statutory requirements applicable to the Company, including, without limitation, any requirements 
of the JSE.

2. TAX INFORMATION

2.1 Within 120 days after the end of each Accounting Period, or as soon as practicable thereafter, the Investment 
Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall prepare and send, or cause to be prepared and sent, 
to the Company at any time during such Accounting Period copies of such information as may be reasonably 
required for applicable income tax reporting purposes, for the Company, and such other information as the 
Company may reasonably request for the purpose of complying with applicable laws or applying for refunds1 
of withholding taxes.
1 Refunds of withholding taxes only apply in very specific instances. Revenue Authorities are commonly required to provide withholding tax 
certificates to allow the person suffering the withholding tax to claim a tax credit or possible deduction in the tax year in which the tax was 
suffered. This is however not a refund in its literal form, but rather supporting documentation that aids in the claiming of the tax credit/deduction 
in question.

3. ESG REPORTS

3.1 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall as soon as it is available, but in any event 
no later than the date it has to deliver the audited annual statements in accordance with paragraph. 1.3 above 
deliver to the Company the Annual ESG Report. The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General 
Partner) shall not be obliged to provide any additional information to the Company in respect of environmental, 
social and governance issues, except to the extent provided for in this section and the Environmental and 
Social Requirements.

3.2 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall inform the Environmental Participants in 
writing as soon as reasonably practicable (but in any event within seven Business Days) upon becoming aware 
of:

3.2.1 any Environmental and Social Claim being threatened or commenced against any of them and/or any 
Project Company; or

3.2.2 any facts or circumstances which will or are reasonably likely to result in any Environmental and Social 
Claim being commenced or threatened against any of them and/or any Project Company,

where (in either case) the Environmental and Social Claim would be reasonably likely, if determined against any 
of them and/or the Project Company, to have a material adverse effect.

3.3 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall promptly notify the Environmental 
Participants, when either the Environmental and Social Manager or the Environmental and Social Coordinator 
is replaced and provide the Environmental Participants with a copy of a training programme, in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Environmental Participants, to be followed by any replacement Environmental 
and Social Manager and/or Environmental and Social Coordinator to ensure proper operation and maintenance 
of the Environmental and Social Management System.
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4. VALUATIONS

4.1 The Fund may value the Investments at any time the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General 
Partner) determines necessary in its sole and absolute discretion, but will, at a minimum, value the Investments 
as at 30 June, 30 September and 31 December (each an “Interim Valuation”) and 31 March (the “Annual 
Valuation”) each year. The Interim Valuations and Annual Valuation shall be conducted as soon as reasonably 
possible after the end of the relevant valuation period, but by no later than 45 days thereafter in the case of 
the Interim Valuations and 45 days thereafter in the case of the Annual Valuation. The Annual Valuation shall 
be audited by the Independent Auditors and approved by the Advisory Board. The Investment Manager (as 
mandated by the General Partner) shall further value the Investments as soon as reasonably possible following 
any request by the Company for such valuation. All valuation costs shall be borne by the Fund.

4.2 The fair market value of an Investment or portion thereof that derives its value from interest and the repayment 
of the principal shall be determined as amortised cost less impairment in accordance with IFRS. The fair value 
of all other Investments shall be determined in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture 
Capital Valuation Policy.

4.3 All matters concerning the valuation of Investments or other assets of the Fund, the maintenance of Capital 
Accounts, the calculation of the Acquisition Cost of any Investment, and any accounting procedures, not 
specifically and expressly provided for by the terms of the Partnership Agreement, shall be determined in good 
faith, on a consistent basis, and with a view to the furtherance of the objects and purposes of the Fund, by the 
Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner)

4.4 The Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall immediately notify the Advisory Board in 
writing of all valuations. If the Advisory Board objects in writing to any valuation within 10 days of being notified 
thereof, and the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) and the Advisory Board are unable 
to agree upon a mutually acceptable valuation within 10 days after such objection is made, the Investment 
Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) shall (at the Fund’s expense) cause a recognised investment 
banking firm that is mutually acceptable to the Investment Manager (as mandated by the General Partner) and 
the Advisory Board, to determine the fair value within 20 days. If the Investment Manager (as mandated by the 
General Partner) and the Advisory Board do not agree on the identity of the investment banking firm, within 
seven Business Days of either such party in writing calling on the other to so agree, the investment banking 
firm shall be one appointed at the request of either such party by the President for the time being of the South 
African Institute of Chartered Accountants. In making its determination, the investment banking firm shall act 
as an expert and not as an arbitrator. Absent manifest error, determinations made by the expert shall be final 
and binding. The costs of the investment banking firm shall be borne by the Fund.

5. SCRIP COUNT

5.1 The assets of the Fund shall be verified by the Independent Auditors through a scrip count conducted as at 
the end of each semi-annual period ending on 31 March and 30 September each year.
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ANNEXURE 15 – RISK FACTORS

An investment in Revego will involve substantial risks and is suitable only for investors who are capable of evaluating the 
merits and risks of such an investment and who are able to bear a loss of their investment. You should carefully consider 
the following factors in addition to the other information set out in this Pre-Listing Statement before you decide to 
subscribe for Shares. Additional risks and uncertainties that Revego does not currently know about or that it currently 
believes are immaterial may also adversely impact its business, financial condition, results of operations, investments, 
returns, realisations or the value of an investment in Revego. If any of the circumstances outlined in the following risk 
factors actually occurs, Revego’s business, financial condition, results of operations, investments, returns, realisations, the 
price of the Shares and the value of an investment in Revego could be adversely affected.

1. RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY OF 
REVEGO AND THE FUND

1.1 The Company’s sole investment will be in the Fund

The Company will only invest in the Fund and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the Company will be 
adversely affected if the performance of the Fund is poor.

1.2 The Company and the Fund cannot provide assurances that they will be able to achieve their 
objectives and generate returns

There can be no assurance that the Company and/or the Fund will be able to achieve their objectives and 
generate returns for Shareholders or that the returns will be commensurate with the risks of investing in the 
type of companies and transactions described in this Pre-Listing Statement. There can be no assurance that 
any Shareholder will receive any distribution from the Company.

1.3 Ability to effect change or establish an influential position in the Fund’s investments

The Fund is expected to hold predominantly minority, non-controlling interests in the majority of its Investments 
and therefore may have a limited ability to effect change or establish an influential position in such Investments.

1.4 Dependence on Investment Manager

The Board and Shareholders of Revego will not have an opportunity to evaluate for themselves the relevant 
economic, financial and other information regarding the Investments to be made by the Fund and, accordingly, 
will be dependent upon the judgement and ability of the Investment Manager and its Investment Committee.

1.5 BEE nature of the Investment Manager

Although provisions are included in the Partnership Agreement and Investment Management Agreement to 
try and ensure that the Investment Manager maintains its BEE credentials, a risk remains that the Investment 
Manager fails to maintain its BEE status, which would negatively impact on the Fund’s ability to target BEE 
stakes in underlying Project Companies. If the Fund is the incumbent BEE shareholder in any Project Company, 
the Investment Manager losing its BEE accreditation may cause the Project Company to be in breach of its 
obligations in terms of the relevant REIPPPP implementation agreement. This may negatively impact on the 
Project Company’s continued rights to sell energy to Eskom or may result in the Fund having to dispose of the 
relevant Investment to a BEE party at a depressed price.

1.6 Risk of litigation

The Fund intends investing in Equity Instruments and Shareholder Loans of Project Companies. Due to the 
nature of the Investments of the Fund, the Fund may become involved in litigation. Under such circumstances, 
the Investment Manager and/or the Fund may be named as a defendant in a lawsuit or regulatory action and 
be subject to the costs involved.

1.7 Fees and expenses

Whether or not the Fund is profitable, it is required to pay fees and expenses, including organisation and 
offering expenses, brokerage commissions, custody, administrative and operating expenses and advisory fees.
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1.8 Scrip lending

The Fund may participate in scrip lending. Scrip lending may be subject to counterparty credit risk, cash 
collateral reinvestment risk, non-cash collateral risk and operational risk.

1.9 The Fund is managed by the Investment Manager and its Investment Committee. There is 
however no assurance that the Investment Manager will have adequate or continued access 
to its investment team and Investment Committee.

Success in achieving the Company’s investment goals and its ability to create returns on Investment for 
Shareholders, through the Fund, will depend in substantial part on the skills, experience and expertise of 
the Investment Manager and its Investment Committee, and their respective continued involvement in the 
Fund. Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager will be responsible for, among 
other things, sourcing and acquiring Investments, optimising value in the Project Companies and managing 
exits of underlying Investments. The Investment Committee will, amongst others, be responsible for the 
approval of Investments and Disposals. These persons are not obliged to continue to render their services 
in this regard to the Investment Manager. The market for experienced investment professionals is highly 
competitive, and one or more of such individuals could cease to render their services. The departure of any of 
the senior investment professionals for any reason, their reassignment to duties other than managing the Fund, 
a significant deterioration in their performance or the failure to appoint qualified or effective successors in the 
event of such departures or reassignment could have a material adverse effect on the Investment Manager’s 
ability to achieve the Fund’s investment objectives.

1.10 The Fund’s Investments may be sold at prices below Acquisition Costs

Although it is the intention of the Fund to hold its Investments for the full duration of the PPA term, there can 
be no assurance that the Fund’s Investments will not be required to be sold at prices below their Acquisition 
Costs. Future performance, market conditions, political environment and macro and micro economic conditions 
are uncertain and may require Disposal of an Investment at a price below the Acquisition Cost.

In addition, certain of the Fund’s Investments in Project Companies may be subject to adverse consequences 
if the Fund ceases for any reason to provide the Project Companies concerned with BEE benefits it may have 
undertaken to provide them, or if the Fund otherwise breaches its contractual commitments to the Project 
Companies concerned. In such an event, the Fund may be required to sell the Investments concerned at prices 
significantly lower than their Acquisition Cost or their market value.

1.11 Illiquidity of the Fund’s Investments

Although it is the intention of the Fund to hold its Investments for the full duration of the PPA term, the 
illiquidity of most of the Fund’s Investments may make it difficult to sell such Investments if the need arises or 
if the Investment Manager determines that such sale would be in the Fund’s best interests. In addition, if the 
Fund were to be required to liquidate all or a portion of an Investment quickly, it may realise significantly less 
than the value at which the Investment was previously recorded or acquired.

1.12 COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on Revego

COVID-19 has not had a significant impact on operations to date. Project companies continue to operate 
as providers of an essential service. The COVID-19 virus may impact the operating efficiency of the project 
companies operations and result in increased expenditure on measures to protect operations from COVID-19.

2. RISKS RELATED TO THE PROJECT COMPANIES

2.1 Legal and regulatory risk

The renewable energy sector is subject to extensive legal and regulatory controls. Each Project Company must 
comply with all applicable laws, regulations and regulatory standards which, among other things, may require 
the Project Companies to obtain and/or maintain certain authorisations, licences and approvals required for 
the construction and operation of the assets.

2.2 Risk of government intervention

The Project Companies, in which the Fund may invest, are subject to certain risks arising from government 
regulation or intervention through regulation by local authorities, including in South Africa the DMRE or 
Department of Trade and Industry in respect of REIPPPP and/or the BEE Codes. Such regulation or intervention 
could adversely affect the Fund’s performance.
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2.3 Renegotiation of agreed tariffs by Eskom

There has been speculation in the press that Eskom could look to renegotiate tariffs previously agreed to 
be paid under the PPAs, particularly in relation to the earlier round projects under the REIPPPP, which in 
general were awarded higher tariffs than the later round projects given the higher capital costs. A downward 
adjustment to the tariffs without any consequential adjustment to the PPA period or debt terms would 
negatively impact on the returns that can be generated by a Project Company. Revego however believes the 
risk of this to be remote as it would result in a breach of the implementation agreement (backed by the South 
African government) which would trigger termination and settlement of the full value of debt and equity in the 
Project Company by National Treasury.

2.4 Grid connections

In order to export electricity, generation assets must be, and remain, connected to the electricity network. 
This may involve a connection to the transmission and distribution networks or either of them, depending on 
the circumstances of a particular asset. Non-compliance under the relevant connection agreements in some 
instances may lead to a breach of the PPA, giving the PPA off-taker the right to terminate. This could have a 
material adverse effect on the Project Company’s financial position, operating results, business prospects and 
returns to Shareholders.

As the focus on renewable energy policy has increased, there has been a resultant increase in investment in 
renewable energy projects, inevitably leading to higher demand for grid capacity. This has led to concerns 
of “grid congestion” where offers of capacity carry significant costs and delays associated with major grid 
reinforcement. A lack of access to the grid or increased connection charges as a result of the high demand for 
access does not impact the Project Companies as the use of transmission or distribution system charges are 
reimbursed by the PPA off-taker in terms of the respective PPA, but this could have a material adverse effect 
on business prospects in the renewable energy sector in the future.

2.5 Change in law

In addition to any changes to the current energy policy which the government may introduce, there may be 
non-policy change in law risks (i.e. change in law unrelated to national support schemes, electricity prices and 
transmission/distribution) which the Project Companies may be expected to assume under the various project 
documents if not passed through under the PPA.

2.6 Decommissioning and restoration obligations

In respect of the majority of power projects with a fixed term PPA, the relevant Project Company is obliged 
to comply with decommissioning and restoration obligations at the expiry of the PPA. It is customary for funds 
to be put aside in order to cover the costs of any decommissioning or restoration obligations, however the 
decommissioning costs may be more or less than the aggregate of such funds and any scrap value. Should 
any of these assumptions prove incorrect, such that a substantial additional financial contribution is required, 
this could have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Project Company in question and 
potentially also on the Fund’s financial position, operating results, business prospects and returns paid to 
Shareholders. In determining the value of any Investment into a Project Company, no residual value including 
any value relating to repowering or life extension has or will be assumed.

2.7 Health and safety

The physical location, construction, maintenance and operation of a power plant poses health and safety risks 
to those involved. Power plant construction and maintenance may result in bodily injury or industrial accidents, 
particularly if an individual were to fall or be electrocuted. If an accident were to occur the Project Company 
could be liable for damages or compensation to the extent such loss is not covered under existing insurance 
policies.

2.8 Energy supply

The profitability of renewable energy projects is dependent on the meteorological conditions at the particular 
site. Accordingly, the Project Company’s revenues will be dependent upon the meteorological conditions at 
any site which can vary across seasons and years. Variations in meteorological conditions occur as a result of 
fluctuations in the levels of wind, sunlight and water flow on a daily, monthly and seasonal basis. In particular, 
wind and water availability are known to experience, at times, substantial variance on a daily, monthly or 
seasonal basis. A sustained decline in wind and water conditions at any of the Project Companies’ sites could 
lead to a reduction in the volume of energy which the project produces which, in turn, would have a material 
adverse effect on its financial position, operating results, business prospects and returns to Shareholders.
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There is statistical evidence that the variance in annual solar irradiation is relatively low compared to other 
renewable energy sources. However, permanent changes in weather patterns due to global warming or for 
any other reason, could affect the amount of solar irradiation received annually or during any shorter or longer 
period of time in locations where the projects may be located. Such changes could lead to a reduction in the 
electricity generated which would have a material adverse effect on the Project Company’s financial position, 
operating results, business prospects and returns to investors.

2.9 Forecasting

No one can guarantee the accuracy of the forecast wind, solar or hydro conditions at any project although 
such forecasts are used to try to predict the financial performance of Investments in such projects. Forecasting 
can be inaccurate due to meteorological measurement errors, the reliability of the forecasting model, or 
errors in the assumptions applied to the forecasting model. In particular, forecasters look at long term data 
and there can be short term fluctuations. Production and forecast data will be made available for review by 
the Investment Manager and the third party technical advisors before Investments are made. Such production 
data should inform the Investment Manager and technical advisors about how the projects concerned actually 
perform and the power that is produced. If the actual production does not correspond to forecasts or to 
the conclusions drawn from production data, by way of negative variances and resulting in the generation 
of lower electricity volumes and lower revenues than anticipated, this could have a material adverse effect 
on the relevant Project Company’s financial position, operating results, business prospects and returns to 
Shareholders.

2.10 Operations

The Project Company’s revenues will depend on how efficiently and reliably the equipment performs from 
an availability and operating perspective. A defect or a mechanical failure in the equipment or a component, 
or an accident, which causes a decline in the operating performance of the equipment will directly impact 
upon the revenues and profitability of that Project Company. The forecast profitability includes estimates of 
operating costs, equipment degradation and unavailability based on advice received from technical advisors. 
These risks can be mitigated by receipt by the relevant Project Company of the benefit of any warranties or 
guarantees given by an equipment supplier which cover the repair and/or replacement cost (typically given for 
a limited period) of failed equipment and/or by insurance policies or appropriate maintenance cash reserves. It 
should be noted that as described in this Pre-Listing Statement, modelling can be inaccurate due to differences 
between estimates and actual performance or errors in the assumptions used.

2.11 Operation and maintenance contracts

The contracts governing the operation and maintenance of projects are generally negotiated and executed 
at the same time as the construction documents. The operation and maintenance contracts typically have a 
duration of five to ten years. Upon their expiry or earlier termination in the event of, for example, contractor 
insolvency or default, there is no assurance that replacement or renewal contracts can be negotiated on similar 
terms, and less favourable terms could result in higher operation and maintenance costs.

2.12 Labour unrest and labour union pressures

Labour unrest and strikes by individuals employed at renewable energy plants could impact on the ability of 
plants to operate at their full potential, which would negatively impact on its generation capability, revenue and 
ultimately returns to the Project Company concerned. Labour unions may put pressure on projects to increase 
wages to levels above those initially agreed to and included in financial forecasts, which would result in greater 
operations and maintenance costs and lower returns than projected.

2.13 Operational life of equipment

Wind turbines and solar panels are generally expected to operate for approximately 20 to 25 years from 
installation. These technologies are a relatively new investment class (commercial wind farm investments 
have been made in the renewable energy market since the 1990s, and commercial solar PV investment since 
the 2000s). There is limited experience of the operational problems which may occur in the later years of a 
project’s expected operational life and which may affect investment returns.
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2.14 Eskom credit risk

Eskom is the off-taker of all energy produced in South Africa under the REIPPPP. Therefore, the Fund’s 
Investments in South Africa will be exposed to credit risk of Eskom, a state-owned entity which is known 
to currently be under severe financial pressures. In terms of the REIPPPP, the National Treasury of South 
Africa through the Department of Energy have undertaken to ensure payments due by Eskom are made 
and   Project Companies can therefore be considered to have assumed National Treasury (i.e. South African 
Government) credit risk, as opposed to Eskom credit risk. Revego therefore believes that, although an element 
of risk remains, that it is unlikely that National Treasury will default on its obligations in terms of the ensuring 
payments are made.

2.15 Counterparty credit risk

The Fund will be exposed, via its Investments, to third party credit risk in several instances, including, without 
limitation, with respect to contractors who may be engaged to construct or operate assets held by the Project 
Company, property owners or tenants who are leasing space to the Project Companies for the location of the 
assets, the off-takers of energy supplied, banks who may provide guarantees for the obligations of other parties 
or insurance companies who may provide coverage against various risks. Where the counterparty is deemed 
to expose the Project Company to unacceptable credit risk, additional credit support will be required as is the 
case where governments provide financial support for state owned utilities.

2.16 Project financing

The Project Companies will utilise project specific debt financings that account for a significant part of the 
total project funding. These debt facilities typically impose obligations and afford certain rights and remedies 
to the financiers. The financing documents typically contain detailed covenants with which the relevant Project 
Companies must comply, including restrictions on the movement of money out and it is typical for cash to be 
locked up in the project until a number of conditions are satisfied.

It is typical for the financiers providing such debt financing to have a secured first priority charge on substantially 
all of the tangible and intangible assets of the relevant asset and a pledge and cession of the shares and 
shareholder loans. In the case of un-remedied breach under the project financing agreements, the relevant 
financiers may be able to enforce their security interest over the security package.

2.17 Financial modelling

Investments rely on large and detailed financial models to support their valuations. There is a risk that 
errors may be made in the assumptions or methodology used in a financial model. In such circumstances 
the returns generated may be different to those expected. Furthermore, forecasting can be inaccurate due 
to meteorological measurement errors, or errors in the assumptions applied to the forecasting model. In 
particular, forecasters look at long-term data and there can be short term fluctuations. To the extent that the 
actual costs incurred differ from the forecast costs and cannot be passed on to contractors, the expected 
investment returns may be adversely affected.

2.18 Insurance

Project Companies will take out insurance to cover theft and the costs of repairs caused by an insurable event, 
business interruption and third party liability although not all risks are insured or insurable and deductibles and/
or excesses will apply. It is not possible to guarantee that insurance policies will cover all possible losses resulting 
from outages, failure of equipment, repair and replacement of failed equipment, environmental liabilities or 
legal actions brought by third parties (including claims for personal injury or loss of life to personnel). The 
uninsured loss, or loss above limits of existing insurance policies could have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position, operating results, and business prospects.

2.19 Inflation/Deflation

The revenues and costs of projects are partly or wholly affected by inflation. The Project Company’s ability to 
meet targets and its investment objectives may be adversely or positively affected by inflation and/or deflation, 
although it is also affected by a wide range of other factors.
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2.20 Investment acquisition documentation

The completion of Investments is subject to the signing of a sale and purchase agreements and conducting, 
a suitable commercial, financial, technical and legal due diligence exercise. Notwithstanding that such due 
diligence is undertaken, risks may not be adequately protected against in the acquisition documentation. 
On signing of sale and purchase agreements the sellers will provide various warranties for the benefit of the 
relevant purchaser. The warranties are typically limited in extent and subject to disclosure, time limitations, 
materiality thresholds, liability caps and other restrictions common within such arrangements.

2.21 Due diligence

Prior to investing, the Investment Manager on behalf of the Fund and with the use of external advisors will 
undertake commercial, financial, technical, tax and legal due diligence on the assets and project documents. 
Notwithstanding that such due diligence is undertaken, such due diligence may not uncover all of the material 
risks affecting the Project Company. Technical analysis of the build quality, lifecycle costs and asset life will be 
undertaken by the technical advisors appointed by and managed by the Investment Manager in connection with 
any proposed Investment. It is not intended that the equipment and systems purchased will rely substantially 
on new technology and it is expected that such equipment and systems will have a track record.

2.22 Economic conditions

Changes in general economic and market conditions including, for example, interest rates, rates of inflation, 
exchange rates, industry conditions, competition, political events and trends, tax laws, national and international 
conflicts and other factors could affect the performance of Project Companies and the Fund. It will be the 
policy of the Investment Manager to maintain a diversified portfolio of Investments for the Fund so as to 
minimize risk but the value of Investments can fall as well as rise and Shareholders may not realise their initial 
investment. Furthermore, Project Companies generally enter into interest rate and exchange rate hedges, to 
protect against fluctuations.

3. RISKS RELATED TO THE OFFER

3.1 Liquidity risk

Although the Shares will be listed on the exchange operated by the JSE, there is no guarantee that an active 
trading market for the Shares will develop and be sustained after Listing. If a more active volume traded in the 
Shares does not develop or is not sustained after the Listing, this could have a material adverse effect on the 
liquidity and consequently the market price of the Shares.

3.2 Market price of the Shares may prove to be volatile and is subject to fluctuations, including 
significant decreases

The market price of the Shares could be volatile and is subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of 
factors, some of which do not relate to the Company’s fundamentals, including changes in general market 
conditions, the general performance of the exchange operated by the JSE, changes in sentiment in the market 
regarding the Shares, regulatory changes affecting the Company’s operations, variations in the Company’s 
results, business developments of the Company or its competitors, the operating and share price performance 
of other companies in the industries and markets in which the Company operates, speculation about the 
Company’s business in the press, media or the investment community, or changes in the political, social or 
economic conditions in South Africa and other SSA countries, as well as other emerging markets. Investments 
in emerging markets, including in SSA countries, may be subject to unique risks. Furthermore, the Company’s 
results and prospects from time to time may be below the expectations of market analysts and investors. Any 
of these events could result in a decline in the market price of the Shares.

3.3 Shares could trade at a discount to NAV

The Shares could trade at a discount to the Company’s NAV for a variety of reasons, including due to market 
conditions or to the extent investors assign a lower value to the Company’s net assets as reported by 
management. In the event that a Shareholder requires immediate liquidity, or otherwise seeks to realise the 
value of its investment in Revego, through a sale of Shares, the amount received by the Shareholder upon such 
sale may be less than the underlying NAV of the Shares sold.
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ANNEXURE 16 – CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY

1. WHAT IS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST (“COI”)?

A “COI” describes a situation where two or more interests are legitimately present and competing or conflicting. 
This undermines the principle that all players in the market should have equal opportunity and status.

As an authorized FSP which provides discretionary investment management services to a select client base, COI are 
inherent to the business of the Investment Manager.

Although it is not incumbent on an organisation to avoid COI, as an authorised FSP the Investment Manager has 
both regulatory and fiduciary obligations to ensure that all potential or actual COI to which it is party are identified 
timeously, mitigated where possible, and appropriately managed.

COI typically fall into one of the following 4 categories:

a. Firm versus client

b. Client versus client

c. Employee versus firm

d. Employee versus client

It is an accepted principle that where an authorised FSP has a COI between itself and its client, or between one client 
and another client, the FSP must act with due regard to the interests of each client and manage the COI fairly. The 
Investment Manager’s employees are required to act in the best interests of the Investment Manager and its clients 
at all times.

2. IDENTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

To adequately manage COI the Investment Manager must identify all relevant COI timeously.

The Investment Manager employs different mechanisms to ensure that all COI are identified:

a. The Compliance Officer, being Moonstone Compliance Proprietary Limited, (registration number 
2002/020736/07), a private company duly incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa, maintains 
an index of potential COI risks at the Investment Manager, taking into consideration the business and income 
streams. The index is updated with all new COI identified, and to ensure completeness is reviewed on an annual 
basis.

b. All employees, including management, are responsible for identifying specific instances of COI and are required 
to notify the Compliance Officer of any COI they become aware of. The Compliance Officer may escalate the 
COI/potential COI to the Advisory Board.

c. Conflicts Clearance Process – The Compliance Officer is required to complete a conflicts check prior to the 
Fund committing to act on a transaction.

In determining whether there is a COI, the Compliance Officer will consider the factual circumstances and determine 
whether the Investment Manager, the Investment Committee or any employee(s):

a. Is likely to make a financial gain, or avoid a financial loss, at the expense of a client;

b. Has an interest in the outcome of a service provided to a client, or a transaction carried out on behalf of a client, 
which is distinct from the client’s interest in that outcome;

c. Has a financial or other incentive to favour the interest of the firm, or a client or a group of clients over the 
interests of another firm or another client;

d. Carries on the same business as a client; or

e. Receives (or will receive) from a person other than a client an inducement in relation to a service provided to 
the client other than the standard commission or fee for that service.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF CONLICT OF INTEREST

Once a COI has been identified it must be appropriately and adequately managed.

The Compliance Officer assesses each COI, including whether the COI is actual or perceived, what the value of the 
COI or exposure is and the potential reputational risk. The Compliance Officer and management then agree on the 
controls that need to be put in place to manage the COI, including the introduction of Chinese Walls (Chinese walls 
are artificial barriers to the flow of information between different functional areas within companies or groups of 
companies), implementation of policies/procedures and the like.

Specific instances of COI may require management intervention in addition to the documented controls already in 
place. These can include escalation to an appropriate forum, like the Advisory Board, for a decision on how the COI 
should be managed.

There is no single approach to dealing with COI. Each case is dealt with according to the nature of the COI and the 
potential harm. When a COI arises in the course of a transaction or business dealings, the following general principles 
are applied:

a. Financial services should be provided in a manner that will not advance the interests of one client unfairly over 
the interests of another client;

b. Clients should be treated fairly and the Investment Manager should manage COI between the interests of 
various clients (including existing or potential clients and investors);

c. COI should be managed in the best interests of clients;

d. The Investment Manager should ensure that clients are appropriately informed about any COI that may affect 
the provision of financial services to them; and

e. Disclosure of COI to clients should be timeous (i.e. occur before/when the service is provided), adequate and 
clearly communicated.

The best means of managing a conflict will depend on the nature of the conflict in question and the parties involved. 
Steps that can be taken to manage conflicts include:

a. No conflict exists/touchpoint: On occasion, after further investigation, an apparent conflict will not exist or be 
deemed to be a touchpoint rather than a conflict.

b. Disclosure: Disclosure of a conflict and/or how it is managed, either within a public document or to an affected 
party, may be sufficient to manage a conflict.

c. Informed consent: Where a client could be affected by a conflict of interest (either real or perceived), it may 
be possible to proceed with the proposed transaction subject to the client’s consent (after full disclosure of the 
conflict).

d. Stand down: Occasionally it will either not be possible to resolve a conflict satisfactorily or the perception of 
conflict would be too great to enable a transaction to proceed. In these circumstances it would be necessary for 
one of the conflicting areas to stand down from the transaction.

The Compliance Officer maintains records of all COI identified and their resolution, including the persons involved 
and the controls used. This information is included in reports to management and/or the Advisory Board.

4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST CONTROLS

The following controls are the policies and processes adopted by the Investment Manager to manage and mitigate 
COI and apply to all Investment Manager and Revego employees as well as the Investment Committee members.

a. Confidentiality obligation;

b. Disclosure to client;

c. Personal Account (“PA”) Dealing Policy;

d. Gifts and Entertainment (“G&E”) Policy;

e. Outside Business Interests (“OBI”) Policy;

f. Employee Participation (“EP”) Policy;
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ANNEXURE 17 – RELEVANT PROVISIONS FROM THE MOI OF REVEGO

Extracts from the MOI of Revego are set out below:

Please note that the salient features do not constitute an exhaustive summary of the provisions of the MOI, but highlight 
certain key aspects only. Accordingly, the MOI will need to be read in its entirety for a full appreciation of its contents.

“2 Incorporation and nature of the Company

2.1 Incorporation

(1) The Company was incorporated as from the date reflected in its registration certificate as a public 
company and is a profit company.

(2) The Company is constituted subject to:

(a) the unalterable provisions of the Act;

(b) any provisions set out in this Memorandum of Incorporation imposing on the Company a higher 
standard, greater restriction, longer period of time or any similar more onerous requirement, than 
would otherwise apply to the Company in terms of an unalterable provision of the Act;

(c) the alterable provisions of the Act, subject to the limitations, extensions, restrictions, variations or 
substitutions set out in this Memorandum of Incorporation; and

(d) the provisions of this Memorandum of Incorporation.”

“2.3 Memorandum of Incorporation and Company rules

(1) All alterations or amendments to this Memorandum of Incorporation required to be effected by a special 
resolution of the Shareholders (and the holders of any class of Shares other than the ordinary Shares) are 
subject to the prior approval of the JSE.

(2) This Memorandum of Incorporation may be altered or amended:

(a) in compliance with a court order effected by a resolution of the Company’s board; or

(b) by a special resolution of the Shareholders but subject to that special resolution having been 
proposed by:

(i) the board; or

(ii) Shareholders entitled to exercise at least 10% of the voting rights that may be exercised on such 
resolution.

(3) Despite clause 2.3(2), if any amendment relates to the variation of any preferences, rights, limitations 
and other terms attaching to any class of Shares (other than the ordinary Shares) already in issue (Other 
Shares), that amendment must not be implemented without:

(a) firstly, a special resolution, taken by the holders of the Other Shares at a separate class meeting; and

(b) secondly, a special resolution taken at a meeting of Shareholders at which the proposed variation is 
considered.

In instances where the holders of such Other Shares are allowed to vote at a general or annual general 
meeting, they will be allowed to vote at such meeting, subject to the restrictions set out in clause (2).

(4) An amendment contemplated in clause 2.3(2)(b) or 2.3(3) may take the form of:

(a) a new Memorandum of Incorporation in substitution for the existing Memorandum of Incorporation; 
or

(b) one or more alterations to the existing Memorandum of Incorporation by:

(i) changing the name of the Company;

(ii) deleting, altering or replacing any of its provisions; or

(iii) inserting any new provisions.
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(5) Amendments to this Memorandum of Incorporation include, but are not limited to:

(a) the creation of any class of Securities;

(b) the variation of any preferences, rights, limitations and other terms attaching to any class of Securities;

(c) the conversion of one class of Securities into one or more other classes;

(d) an increase in the number of Securities of a class;

(e) a consolidation of Securities;

(f ) a sub-division of Securities;

(g) the conversion of shares from par value to no par value; and

(h) the making of any combination of such alterations.”

(8) Preferences, rights, limitations or other terms of any class of Shares of the Company may not be varied 
and no resolution may be proposed to or passed by Shareholders for rights to include such variation in 
response to any objectively ascertainable external fact or facts as provided for in sections 37(6) and (7).

(9) The Company’s board does not have the authority to make, amend or repeal any necessary or incidental 
rules relating to the governance of the Company in terms of section 15(3).

“2.5 Public company provisions

(1) The Company is a public company and is or is intended to be listed on the JSE; and

(a) Securities for which listing is sought must be fully paid up;

(b) there is no restriction on the transferability of any Securities of the Company, save as otherwise 
required by law; and

it is not prohibited from offering any Securities to the public.”

“3 Securities of the Company

3.1 Shares

(1) The Company is authorised to issue the following Shares:

Number Class

5,000,000,000 ordinary Shares with no par value

(2) Each Share entitles the holder to the rights attaching to the particular class of Share set out in this 
clause 3.1(2).

(a) Each ordinary Share shall rank pari passu and entitles the holder to:

(i) vote on any matter to be decided by a vote of the ordinary Shareholders on the basis 
contemplated in clause 4.3(1);

(ii) participate in any distribution to the ordinary Shareholders; and

(iii) participate in the distribution of the residual value of the Company upon its dissolution.

(b) If there are listed cumulative and/or listed non-cumulative preference Shares in the capital of the 
Company, the following right must attach to such Shares: No further Securities ranking in priority 
to, or pari passu with, existing preference Shares, of any class, shall be created without a special 
resolution passed at a separate class meeting of such preference Shareholders.

(3) The Company’s board is authorised to issue unissued equity Securities for cash and/or grant options to 
subscribe for unissued equity Securities, provided those Securities (or options) are first offered to the 
existing holders of equity Securities in proportion to their existing holdings. Only to the extent that those 
Securities (or options) are not taken up by the holders of equity Securities under the offer may they 
then be issued for cash to other persons or otherwise than in the proportion mentioned above. These 
provisions shall not apply:

(a) where the equity Securities (or options) are to be issued for the acquisition of assets (other than 
cash); or
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(b) to the extent that the JSE has waived these requirements; or

(c) to the extent that the holders of equity Securities have provided their authorisation by way of an 
ordinary resolution (as contemplated in the Listings Requirements and approved by the JSE). Any 
such approval may be in the form of a general authority to the Directors, whether conditional 
or unconditional, to allot or issue any equity Securities or grant options to subscribe for unissued 
equity securities in their discretion, or in the form of a specific authority in respect of any particular 
allotment or issue of equity Securities or grant of options. If any such approval is given in the form of 
a general authority to the Directors, it shall be valid only until the next annual general meeting but it 
may be varied or revoked by any general meeting of the Company prior to the holding of the next 
annual general meeting.

(4) Any issue of Securities other than equity Securities or the granting of any options to subscribe for any 
unissued non-equity Securities is subject to the prior approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting 
and the JSE, if necessary. Any such approval may be in the form of a general or specific authority to the 
Directors, as contemplated in clause 3.1(3)(c), with the necessary changes.

(5) Notwithstanding clauses 3.1(3) and 3.1(4), any issue of Shares or any Securities convertible into Shares, 
or grant of options contemplated in terms of section 42, or a grant of any other rights exercisable for 
Securities, must be approved by a special resolution of the Shareholders, if the Shares, Securities or 
options are issued to a:

(a) director, future director, prescribed officer, or a future prescribed officer of the Company;

(b) person related or inter-related to the Company, or to a director or prescribed officer of the 
Company; or

(c) nominee of a person contemplated in clause 3.1(5)(a) and 3.1(5)(b).

(6) The authority of the Company’s board to increase or decrease the number of authorised Shares of any 
class, to reclassify any classified Shares that have been authorised but not issued, to classify any unclassified 
Shares that have been authorised but not issued, or to determine the preferences, rights, limitations or 
other terms of any class of Shares, is restricted or varied in the manner contemplated in clauses 2.3(2) 
and 2.3(3), and must be exercised in accordance with the Listings Requirements. Shares may only be 
issued within the classes and to the extent that the Shares have been authorised by or in terms of this 
Memorandum of Incorporation.

(7) Subject to clauses 3.1(3), 3.1(4) and 3.1(5) and the provisions of section 47, the Company’s board may 
approve the issuing of any authorised Shares as capitalisation Shares or the issuing of Shares of one class 
as capitalisation Shares in respect of Shares of another class and may permit Shareholders to elect to 
receive a cash payment in lieu of a capitalisation share.

(8) Subject to the provisions of sections 46 and 48 and the Listings Requirements, the Company’s board may 
determine that the Company will acquire a number of its own Shares provided that such resolution by 
the board:

(a) is approved by a special resolution of the Shareholders, if any shares are to be acquired by the 
Company from a director or prescribed officer of the Company, or a person related to a director or 
prescribed officer of the Company; and

(b) is subject to the requirements of sections 114 and 115 if, considered alone, or together with other 
transactions in an integrated series of transactions, it involves the acquisition by the Company of 
more than 5% of the issued shares of any particular class of the Company’s shares.

(9) Subject to the provisions of sections 46 and 48 the Company may determine that it will acquire shares in 
its holding company provided that:

(a) not more than 10%, in aggregate, of the number of issued shares of any class of shares of the holding 
company may be held by, or for the benefit of, all of the subsidiaries of the holding company, taken 
together; and

(b) no voting rights attached to those shares may be exercised while the shares are held by the Company, 
and it remains a subsidiary of the holding company whose shares it holds.

(10) The Company may not pay commission exceeding 10% to any person in consideration for their subscribing 
or agreeing to subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally, for any Securities of the Company.

(11) Securities of the Company are to be issued in either certificated or uncertificated form.”



190

“4 Shareholders

4.3 Votes of Shareholders

(1) Subject to the Act, any person who is present at the meeting whether in person or by proxy and is 
entitled to exercise voting rights, shall have one vote per ordinary Share.

(2) Voting on all matters at a meeting shall be by polling.

(3) Scrutineers shall be appointed to count the votes and to declare the result of the poll. The scrutineers’ 
declaration, which shall be announced by the chairperson of the meeting, will be deemed to be the 
resolution of the meeting. In case of any dispute as to the admission or rejection of a vote, the chairperson 
of the meeting shall determine the same and his or her determination made in good faith shall be final and 
conclusive.

(4) The holders of any Securities other than ordinary Shares or any special Shares created for the purposes 
of black economic empowerment in terms of the BEE Act and BEE Codes shall not be entitled to vote 
on any resolution taken by the Company, save as may be expressly provided for in clauses 2.3(3), 3.1 (as 
amended from time to time) or 4.3(5). In such instances, their votes may not carry any special rights or 
privileges and they shall be entitled to one vote for each Share that they hold, provided that their total 
voting right at a general or annual general meeting of the Company may not exceed 24.99% of the total 
voting rights of all Shareholders at such meeting.

(5) In the case of joint holders of a Share, only the vote of the senior holder shall be accepted, whether in 
person or by proxy. For the purpose of this clause, seniority shall be determined by the order in which 
the names appear in the register or, in the case of persons entitled to a Share by transmission, the order 
in which their names were given in the notice to the Company of that transmission.

(6) Any entity holding Shares conferring the right to vote may, by resolution of the directors or other 
governing body of that entity, authorise one person to act as its representative at any Shareholders 
meeting. The representative shall be entitled to exercise the same powers as that entity could exercise if 
it were an individual Shareholder. The board may require proof to their satisfaction of the appointment 
or authority of a representative to act.

(7) A declaration by the chairperson that a resolution has been carried, or carried by a particular majority, or 
lost, or not carried by a particular majority, shall be final and an entry to that effect in the minute book 
of the Company shall be prima facie evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion 
of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution. No objection shall be raised as to the 
admissibility of any vote except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to be or 
may be given or tendered and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. 
Any such objection shall be referred to the chairperson of the meeting, whose decision shall be final and 
conclusive.”
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“6 Directors and officers

6.1 Composition of the board

(1) The Company’s board must comprise not less than four Directors, elected by the Shareholders, provided 
that any Shareholder may nominate any Director for the purposes of such election.

(2) Each incorporator of the Company is a first Director and serves until sufficient other Directors to satisfy 
the minimum requirements of the Act and/or this Memorandum of Incorporation have been appointed 
or elected.

(3) Subject to clause 6.1(7), each Director, other than the first Directors and any Directors appointed in this 
Memorandum of Incorporation, must be elected by the persons entitled to exercise voting rights in such 
an election to serve for a term to be determined by those persons entitled to exercise voting rights in the 
election of that Director, provided that no director may be appointed for life or for an indefinite period.

(4) In any election of Directors, the election is to be conducted as a series of votes, each of which is on the 
candidacy of a single individual to fill a single vacancy.

(5) In each vote to fill a vacancy, each voting right entitled to be exercised may be exercised once and the 
vacancy is filled only if a majority of the voting rights exercised support the candidate.

(6) There are no ex officio Directors in addition to any Directors appointed in terms of this Memorandum 
of Incorporation and the elected Directors.

(7) The authority of the board to fill any vacancy on the board on a temporary basis is not restricted or 
varied by this Memorandum of Incorporation. A Director appointed on a temporary basis must be a 
person who satisfies the requirements for election as a Director and has all the powers, functions and 
duties, and is subject to all the liabilities, of any other Director.

(8) The appointment of a director, whether to fill a casual vacancy, or as an addition to the board (or 
otherwise), must be confirmed by Shareholders at the annual general meeting following such appointment.

(9) If the number of Directors falls below the minimum provided in clause 6.1(1), the remaining Directors 
must as soon as possible and, in any event not later than three months from the date that the number of 
Directors falls below the minimum, fill the vacancies or call a general meeting for the purpose of filling the 
vacancies, provided that the failure by the Company to have the minimum number of Directors during 
the three month period does not limit or negate the authority of the board of Directors or invalidate 
anything done by the board or the Company. After the expiry of the three month period the remaining 
Directors shall only be permitted to act for the purpose of filling vacancies or calling general meetings of 
Shareholders.

(10) To become or to continue to act as a Director or a prescribed officer of the Company, a person must not 
be:

(a) a juristic person;

(b) an unemancipated minor, or a person under a similar legal disability;

(c) a person who has been declared a delinquent or placed under probation by a court in terms of 
section 162 or section 47 of the Close Corporations Act, 1984, except to the extent permitted by 
the order of probation;

(d) an unrehabilitated insolvent;

(e) prohibited in terms of any public regulation to be a Director;

(f) removed from an office of trust, on the grounds of misconduct involving dishonesty;

(g) a person who has been convicted, in South Africa or elsewhere, and imprisoned without the option 
of a fine, or fined more than the prescribed amount, for theft, fraud, forgery, perjury or an offence:

(i) involving fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty;

(ii) in connection with the promotion, formation or management of a company;

(iii) in connection with having been appointed or elected as a Director or acting as a Director whilst 
ineligible or disqualified, or whilst having been placed under probation by a court; or
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(iv) under the Act, the Insolvency Act, 1936, the Close Corporations Act, 1984, the Competition 
Act, 1998, the Financial Intelligence Centre Act, 2001, the Financial Markets Act, 2012, or 
Chapter 2 of the Prevention and Combating of Corruption Activities Act, 2004.

(h) A person need not satisfy any further eligibility requirements or qualifications.

6.2 Rotation of Directors

(1) If the Company is a newly incorporated Company, all the Directors are to retire at the first annual general 
meeting.

(2) Thereafter, at least one third of non-executive Directors must retire at the Company’s annual general 
meetings or other general meetings on an annual basis, provided the meeting is not conducted in terms of 
section 60 of the Act. These retiring members of the board of Directors may be re-elected, provided they 
are eligible. The board of Directors through the nomination committee, should recommend eligibility, 
taking into account past performance and contribution made.

6.3 Alternate Directors

(1) An alternate Director may be elected or removed by the Shareholders entitled to exercise voting rights 
in such an election to act as an alternate Director in a Director’s place as the occasion arises and during 
that Director’s absence.

(2) An alternate Director shall, except as regards the power to receive remuneration, be subject in all 
respects to the terms and conditions applicable to the Director on whose behalf the alternate acts, and 
each alternate Director shall be entitled:

(a) to receive notice of all meetings of the Directors or of any committee of the Directors of which the 
Director on whose behalf the alternate acts is a member;

(b) to attend and vote at any such meetings at which the Director on whose behalf the alternate acts is 
not personally present;

(c) to furnish written consent to adopt a decision which could be voted on at a board meeting;

(d) to be appointed as an alternate to more than one Director and shall have a vote for each Director 
for whom such alternate acts, in addition to their own vote as Director, if any; and

(e) generally, to exercise and discharge all the functions, powers and duties of the Director on whose 
behalf the alternate acts in such Director’s absence as if such alternate were a Director.

(3) In addition to clause 6.3(1), an alternate Director shall also cease to be an alternate Director if the 
Director on whose behalf the alternate acts ceases for any reason to be a Director, but if any Director 
retires and is re-elected at the same meeting, any appointment made in respect of such Director shall 
remain in force as though the Director had not retired.

6.4 Authority of the board

(1) The authority of the Company’s board to exercise all of the powers and perform any of the functions 
of the Company and to manage and direct the business and affairs of the Company, is not restricted or 
varied by this Memorandum of Incorporation.

(2) If, at any time, the Company has only one Director, the authority of that Director to act without notice 
or compliance with any other internal formalities, is not restricted or varied by this Memorandum of 
Incorporation.”

“6.6 Directors’ power to effect borrowing

The Company’s board may raise or borrow from time to time for the purposes of the Company, or secure 
the payment, of such sums as they think fit and may secure the repayment or payment of any such sums by 
guarantee, bond or mortgage upon all or any of the property or assets of the Company or by the issue of debt 
instruments or otherwise as they may think fit.

6.7 Directors’ compensation and financial assistance

(1) The authority of the Company to pay remuneration to the Directors, in accordance with a special 
resolution approved by the Shareholders within the previous two years, is not restricted or varied by this 
Memorandum of Incorporation.
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(2) A Director may be employed in any other capacity in the Company or as a director or employee of a 
company controlled by, or itself a major subsidiary of, this Company, provided that their appointment and 
remuneration in respect of such other office is determined by:

(a) a disinterested quorum of Directors in the case of executive Directors; and

(b) the Shareholders, within the previous two years, in the case of non-executive Directors.

(3) The Directors may be paid all their travelling and other expenses properly and necessarily incurred 
by them in and about the business of the Company, and in attending meetings of the Directors or of 
committees thereof. If any Director is required to perform extra services or to reside abroad or will be 
specifically occupied about the Company’s business, they may be entitled to receive such remuneration 
as is determined in accordance with clause 6.7(2).

(4) The authority of the Company’s board to authorise the Company to provide financial assistance by 
way of a loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise to any person for the purpose of, or in 
connection with, the subscription of any option, or any Securities, issued or to be issued by the Company 
or a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any Securities of the Company or a related 
or inter-related company, subject to the provisions of sections 44(3) and 44(4), is not restricted or varied 
by this Memorandum of Incorporation.

(5) The authority of the Company’s board to authorise the Company to provide financial assistance to a 
Director or prescribed officer of the Company or a related or inter-related company, or to a related 
or inter-related company or corporation or to a member of a related or inter-related company or 
corporation, or to a person related to any such person or entity, subject to the provisions of sections 
45(3) and 45(4), is not restricted or varied by this Memorandum of Incorporation.”

“7 General Provisions

7.1 Distributions

(1) Subject to the provisions of the Listings Requirements and the Act, and particularly section 46, the 
Company may from time to time make a proposed distribution if that distribution is:

(a) pursuant to an existing legal obligation of the Company, or a court order; or

(b) authorised by a resolution of the Company’s board,

and the solvency and liquidity test is complied with in the manner contemplated in the Act.

(2) Distributions that are dividends must be paid to Shareholders according to their respective rights and 
interest in proportion to the number of Shares held by them in each class in respect of which the dividend 
is payable. If any Share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividends as from a particular date 
or for all dividends declared after a particular date, such Share shall rank for dividends accordingly.

(3) No distribution carries interest as against the Company, except as may otherwise be specifically provided.

(4) Dividends are payable to Shareholders that are registered as at a date subsequent to the date of 
declaration of the dividend or the date of confirmation of the dividend, whichever is the later.

(5) Distributions may be made either free of or subject to the deduction of income tax and any other tax or 
duty for which the Company may be charged or which the Company may be required by law to withhold.

(6) Unclaimed distributions (including dividends) due to a Shareholder shall be settled by the Company upon 
trustees to be held in trust until that Shareholder’s claim to it has prescribed, after which that distribution 
will revert to the Company.

(7) The right of election to receive either scrip dividends or cash dividends (as contemplated in the Listings 
Requirements) is not prohibited in any way.

(8) A repayment of capital to Shareholders may not be made on the basis that it may be called up again.”

“7.4 Winding-up

If the Company is wound-up the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Shareholders, 
distribute among the Shareholders in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company and the 
liquidator may for such purpose set a value that the liquidator deems fair upon any asset and may determine 
how the distribution will be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of Shareholders. The 
liquidator may, after discharging all liabilities and with like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets 
upon trustees to be held in trust for the benefit of the Shareholders or any of them as the liquidator deems fit.”
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ANNEXURE 18 – CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with all of its statutory obligations as specified in the 
MOI, the Companies Act, the Listings Requirements and all other legal and regulatory requirements. The Board at all 
times acts in the best interests of the Company in ensuring an effective compliance framework, the integrity of its financial 
reporting and risk management, together with timely and transparent disclosure to Shareholders.

The Company is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance and application of the highest ethical 
standards in the conduct of its business and affairs. The Board is committed to the principles of diligence, honesty, integrity, 
transparency, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The Directors accept full responsibility for the application of 
these principles to ensure that the principles of good corporate governance are effectively practised throughout Revego. 
Furthermore, the Board understands and accepts its responsibility to the Shareholders of Revego and endeavours to 
ensure that Revego conducts its business in the best interests of its Shareholders.

The Directors endorse the King Code and recognise the need to conduct the affairs of the Company with integrity and 
in accordance with generally accepted corporate practices. A full analysis of the steps taken by the Company to comply 
with the King Code is included in Annexure 20 and is also available on the Company’s website https://revegoenergy.com/.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PRACTICES

Revego is led, managed and controlled by an experienced, multinational independent Board that has final oversight and 
responsibility in respect of Revego’s business, including its investment into the Fund and reporting to Shareholders.

The Board currently consists of one executive Director, four independent non-executive Directors and two non-
executive Directors. In accordance with the Company’s board term of reference (the “Board Charter”) and the King 
Code, the Board composition reflects a majority of non-executive Directors so that there is a clear balance of power and 
authority. Pursuant to the abovementioned composition and the policies set out in the Board Charter, no one Director 
has unfettered powers of decision making.

The Board recognises and values the unique contribution people can make because of their individual background, 
different skills, experience, perspectives, demographics and gender.

Reyburn Lars Hendricks and Dr. Reuel Jethro Khoza have interests in the Investment Manager via their shareholder 
interests in H1 Holdings and Dzana Investments respectively, as described in paragraphs 55.3 and 55.4 of the Pre-Listing 
Statement. As at the Last Practicable Date, no other Directors are employed by, professional advisors to or associated 
with the Investment Manager or the General Partner. Accordingly, as at the Last Practicable Date, all independent 
members of the Board are considered independent from the Investment Manager and the General Partner.

The Board’s responsibilities entail ensuring that the day-to-day affairs of Revego are appropriately supervised and 
controlled. The Board is ultimately responsible for Revego’s business, strategy and key policies.

Save for the CEO who is employed on a part-time basis, Revego will not employ any staff.

Appointments to the Board are in terms of a formal and transparent procedure and are a matter for the Board with the 
assistance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, subject to Shareholder approval.

The Board will initially have a minimum of four scheduled meetings per financial year. Ad hoc meetings are held to consider 
special business, if required. The Board has met once a year in 2019 and 2020.

The Company is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, specifically relating to its incorporation and 
operating in conformity with its MOI.

Committees

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by David Hugh Brown, an independent non-executive director, and its other 
members are Terrence Sonny Chauke and Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari. All members are Independent Non-Executive 
Directors of the Company.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for performing the functions required of it in terms of section 94(7) of the 
Companies Act. These functions include: (i) nominating and appointing the Company’s auditors and ensuring that such 
auditors are independent of the Company; (ii) determining the auditors’ fees and terms of engagement; (iii) ensuring that 
the appointment of the auditors complies with the provisions of the Companies Act and any other relevant legislation; 
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(iv) determining, from time to time, the nature and extent of non-audit services to be provided by the Company’s auditors 
and to pre-approve any agreement in respect of such services; (v) preparing a report to be included in the annual report 
of the Company, in compliance with the Companies Act; (vi) dealing with any complaints (whether from within or outside 
the Company) relating to accounting practices, internal audits of the Company or the content of the Company’s financial 
statements and related matters; and (vii) making submissions to the Board on any matter concerning the Company’s 
accounting policies and financial controls.

The non-statutory functions of this Committee are to assist the Board in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company, the operation of adequate systems, the formulation of internal controls and control 
processes and the review and preparation of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable 
legal requirements, corporate governance and accounting standards and addressing statutory and regulatory issues, 
including the nomination for appointment, removal and replacement of the external auditors with the appointment being 
subject to the approval by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting. With regard to risk, this Committee is to 
assist the Board to ensure that: (i) the Company has implemented relevant risk management processes that will enhance 
the Company’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives; and (ii) the Company’s disclosure regarding risk is comprehensive, 
timely and relevant and (iii) identify risks and opportunities and oversight of technology and information management.

The Audit and Risk Committee shall normally invite the CEO, any managers responsible for finance, the head of internal 
audit and the external audit partners to attend meetings and to make proposals as necessary and should invite the 
Chairperson of the Board to all Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

The Audit and Risk Committee shall review the expertise, experience and performance of the person tasked with 
performing the role of the Company’s Financial Director (or CFO), annually and report on whether or not it is satisfied 
therewith. In addition, the Audit and Risk Committee shall review and report on the expertise, resources and experience 
of the Company’s finance function.

The Audit and Risk Committee is required to meet a minimum of twice per financial year. Ad hoc meetings are held to 
consider special business, as required.

The Audit and Risk Committee will request from the Independent Auditors (and if necessary consult with the Independent 
Auditors on) the information detailed in paragraph 22.15(h) of the Listings Requirements in their assessment of the 
suitability for appointment of the current or prospective Independent Auditors and designated individual partner both 
when they are appointed for the first time and thereafter annually for every re-appointment as well as prior to the listing 
of Revego.

The Audit and Risk Committee will ensure that Revego has established appropriate financial reporting procedures and 
that those procedures are operating, which will include consideration of all entities included in the consolidated group 
IFRS financial statements, which will consist of Revego as the Company will not have any subsidiaries, to ensure that it has 
access to all the financial information of Revego to allow it to effectively prepare and report on the financial statements 
of Revego;

The Audit and Risk Committee will ensure that the appointment of the Independent Auditor is presented and included 
as a resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Audit and Risk Committee shall confirm the above by reporting to the Shareholders in the annual report of the 
Company that it has executed these responsibilities.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Shamilah Grimwood-Norley, an Independent Non-Executive Director, chairs the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee which is comprised entirely of Independent Non-Executive Directors. The other members of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee are Dr. Reuel Khoza and David Hugh Brown.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for the specific remuneration packages for executive 
Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is also responsible for recommending to the Board, fees 
for the Directors and the chairperson, as well as fees for members and chairpersons of committees of the Board, for 
subsequent approval by Shareholders of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meets a minimum of twice per financial year. Ad hoc meetings are held to 
consider special business, as required.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has established a policy on the promotion of broader diversity at board 
level, specifically focusing on the promotion of the diversity attributes of gender, race, culture, age, field of knowledge, 
skills and experience. Revego will confirm to shareholders in its annual report on how the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee has considered and applied the policy in the nomination and appointment of directors. If applicable, the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will explain why any of the above diversity indicators have not been applied 
and further report progress in respect thereof on agreed voluntary targets.
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Post-Listing, in accordance with the Listings Requirements, the remuneration policy and the implementation report will be 
tabled every year for separate non-binding advisory votes by shareholders of Revego at the annual general meeting. The 
remuneration policy records the measures that the Directors commit to take in the event that either the remuneration 
policy or the implementation report, or both, are voted against by 25% or more of the votes exercised. In order to give 
effect to the minimum measures referred to in the King Code, in the event that either the remuneration policy or the 
implementation report, or both are voted against by shareholders exercising 25% or more of the voting rights exercised, 
Revego will in its voting results announcement provide for the following:

• An invitation to dissenting shareholders to engage with the issuer; and

• The manner and timing of such engagement

Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee

This Committee comprises Ipeleng Nonkululeko Mkhari, who chairs the Committee, Dr.Reuel Jethro Khoza and Shamilah 
Grimwood-Norley. The Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee monitors the Company’s activities, having regard to 
any relevant legislation, other legal requirements and prevailing codes of best practice, in respect of social and economic 
development, good corporate citizenship (including the promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, the 
environment, health and public safety, including the impact of the Company’s activities and of its products or services), 
stakeholder and consumer relationships and labour, black economic empowerment and employment issues.

The Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee draws to the attention of the Board, matters within its mandate as 
occasion requires and reports to the Shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting on such matters.

In order to carry out its functions, the Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee will be entitled to request information 
from any Director or employees of the Company, attend and be heard at general Shareholders’ meetings, and receive 
notices in respect of such meetings.

The Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee has fulfilled its mandate as prescribed by the Companies Regulations to 
the Companies Act and there are no instances of material non-compliance to disclose.

The Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee meets a minimum of two times per financial year. Ad-hoc meetings are 
held to consider special business, as required.

Internal control systems

To meet the Company’s responsibility to provide reliable financial information, the Company maintains financial and 
operational systems of internal control. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
concluded in accordance with management’s authority, that the assets are adequately protected against material losses, 
unauthorised acquisition, use or disposal, and that transactions are properly authorised and recorded.

The Company monitors the operation of the internal control systems in order to determine if there are deficiencies. 
Corrective actions are taken to address control deficiencies as they are identified. The Board, operating through the Audit 
and Risk Committee, oversees the financial reporting process and internal control systems. There are inherent limitations 
on the effectiveness of any system of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention 
or overriding of controls. Accordingly, an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to financial statement preparation and the safeguarding of assets.

Company secretarial function

Investec Group Data Limited (represented by Niki van Wyk (LLM, LLB), or her appointed representative), being the 
company secretary of the Company, is a suitably-qualified, competent and experienced company secretary and has been 
appointed and appropriately empowered to fulfil duties with regards to assistance to the Board. Ms van Wyk is not a 
Director of the Company. The Board is satisfied that there is an arms-length relationship between the company secretary 
and the Board.

The Board reviews the competence, qualifications and experience of the company secretary annually and reports on 
whether or not it is satisfied therewith. This report is confirmed by reporting to Shareholders in the annual report of the 
Company. The Board has determined that it is satisfied with the current competence, qualifications and experience as the 
Company’s company secretary.

The company secretary of the Company is required to provide the Directors, collectively and individually, with guidance 
as to their duties, responsibilities and powers and is also required to ensure that the Directors are aware of all laws and 
legislation relevant to, or affecting the Company and reporting to any meeting, of the Shareholders of the Company or 
of the Directors, any failure on the part of the Company or a Director to comply with the MOI of the Company or the 
Companies Act.
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The company secretary must certify in the Company’s annual financial statements whether the Company has filed 
required returns and notices in terms of the Companies Act, and whether all such returns and notices appear to be true, 
correct and up to date, and ensure that a copy of the Company’s annual financial statements is sent, in accordance with 
the Companies Act, to every person who is entitled to it. Furthermore, the company secretary is responsible for carrying 
out the functions of a person designated in its annual returns to ensure the Company’s compliance with its transparency, 
accountability and integrity of requirements set out in sections 22 to 34 of the Companies Act, and the enhanced 
accountability and transparency requirements set out in Chapter 3 of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable.

The company secretary is also required to ensure that minutes of all Shareholders’ meetings, Directors’ meetings and any 
committee meetings of the Directors are properly recorded in accordance with sections 24(d) and (e) and section 73 of 
the Companies Act.

Administration

Revego has entered into the Investec Service Level Agreement with Investec in terms of which Investec will provide 
administrative and accounting services to Revego.

Communications with stakeholders

Revego is committed to ongoing and effective communication with stakeholders. It subscribes to a policy of open and 
timeous communication in line with JSE guidelines and sound corporate governance. Revego will prepare, and distribute 
to Shareholders, an annual integrated report, as a primary form of communication with Shareholders, in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, communication with institutional Shareholders and investment analysts 
will be maintained through periodic presentations of financial results, one-on-one visits, trading statements and press 
announcements of interim and final results, as well as the proactive dissemination of any information considered relevant 
to investors and Shareholders.

Revego will also communicate details of any Investments or Disposals made by the Fund, as further detailed in 
paragraph 4 of Annexure 12 to this Pre-Listing Statement.
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ANNEXURE 19 – DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES IN THE PAST FIVE 
YEARS

Other directorships held by the Directors of the Company during the previous five years, not already set out in the Pre-
Listing Statement, are set out below:

Director
Current directorships 
and partnerships

Past directorships and 
partnerships  
held in the last five years

David Hugh 
Brown

Vodacom Group Limited, Resilient REIT Limited, 
Mudande Investments Proprietary Limited, Northam 
Platinum Limited, Turrim Projects Proprietary Limited, 
Ntsimbintle Holdings Limited, Freda Rebecca Gold Mine 
Limited, Freda Rebecca Holdings Private Limited, Great 
Dyke Investments Private Limited and Bindura Nickel 
Corporation Limited

MC Mining Limited, GVM Metals 
Administration Proprietary Limited, 
Newshelf 1384 Proprietary Limited, 
Nyambose Mining Proprietary 
Limited, Pan African Coal Holdings 
Proprietary Limited and Mutsho 
Power Proprietary Limited

Ipeleng 
Nonkululeko 
Mkhari

Attacq Limited, B Phly Properties Proprietary Limited, 
Dezzo Trading 99 Proprietary Limited, Ellipse Control 
Technologies Proprietary Limited, Hardy Office 
Furniture Proprietary Limited, Emergent Office 
Solutions Proprietary Limited, Epibuzz Proprietary 
Limited, Imbumba Aganang Facilities Management 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, Kap Industrial 
Holdings Limited, Mesidox Proprietary Limited, MNSP 
Facilities Management Joint Venture Proprietary Limited, 
Motseng Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited, 
Micawber 455 Proprietary Limited, Mpamot Africa 
Proprietary Limited, Rhyolite Trading Proprietary 
Limited, South African Property Owners Association – 
Association Incorporated Not For Gain, Supermould 
Office Furniture Proprietary Limited, Trennplast 
GroupOffice Furniture Proprietary Limited and Tuffsan 
Investments 1055 Proprietary Limited 

Assore Limited, SA Corporate Real 
Estate Fund Managers Proprietary 
Limited, Old Mutual Property 
Proprietary Limited and Nampak 
Limited
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Director
Current directorships 
and partnerships

Past directorships and 
partnerships  
held in the last five years

Dr. Reuel Jethro 
Khoza

Aka Capital Holdings Proprietary Limited, Angels View 
Graskop Proprietary Limited, Assupol Holdings Limited, 
Assupol Life Limited, Centre Of Excellence In Financial 
Services Association Incorporated Not For Gain, 
Corobrik Proprietary Limited, Coromining Proprietary 
Limited, Dzana Investments Proprietary Limited, Engage 
Entertainment Proprietary Limited, Era 
Stene Proprietary Limited, Hlayisani Capital Proprietary 
Limited, Hlayisani Fund Managers Proprietary Limited, 
Hoyohoyo Hotels And Resorts Proprietary Limited, 
Khomani Koeltehuis Joint Venture Proprietary Limited, 
Koeltehof Packers Proprietary Limited, Main Street 
57 Proprietary Limited, Platinum Hospitality 
Holdings Proprietary Limited, Protea Hotels 
Empowerment Initiative Proprietary Limited, Public 
Investment Corporation State Owned Company 
Limited, Rainer Investments Proprietary Limited, Sasol 
Oil Proprietary Limited, Skukuza Airport Management 
Company Proprietary Limited, The Ethics 
Institute Association Incorporated Not For Gain, The 
Mortgage Corporation Proprietary Limited, Thermocon 
Otr Proprietary Limited, Tshwarisano Lfb Investment 
Proprietary Limited and Wheatfields Investments 
No.230 Proprietary Limited

Ceder Isle Auto Proprietary Limited, 
Lionpride Investment 
Holdings Limited and Nepad Business 
Foundation Association Incorporated 
Not For Gain
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Director
Current directorships 
and partnerships

Past directorships and 
partnerships  
held in the last five years

Reyburn Lars 
Hendricks

Business Venture Investments No 1166 Proprietary 
Limited, Desert Palace Hotel Proprietary Limited, 
Desert Palace Hotel Resort Proprietary Limited, 
Dyasons Klip 1 (Rf) Proprietary Limited, Dyasons Klip 2 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, Eternity Power 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, Greencap Investments 
Proprietary Limited, H1 Capital Proprietary Limited, H1 
Holdings Proprietary Limited, H1 Infrastructure Capital 
Proprietary Limited, H1 Infrastructure Capital 
Proprietary Limited, H1 Kagnas Wind (Rf) Proprietary 
Limited, H1 Kvh Hydro (Rf) Proprietary Limited, H1 
Manco Proprietary Limited, H1 Partners 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, H1 Perdekraal Wind 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, H2 Clean Energy Proprietary 
Limited, H1 Roggeveld Wind (Rf) Proprietary Limited, 
K2019212083 (South Africa) Proprietary Limited, 
K2019217693 (South Africa) Proprietary Limited, 
K2020469553 (South Africa) Proprietary Limited, 
K2020469621 (South Africa) Proprietary Limited 
Northern Cape Casino Consultants, Roggeveld Wind 
Power (Rf) Proprietary Limited, Sirius Solar Pv Project 
One (Rf) Proprietary Limited, South Africa Mainstream 
Renewable Power Kangnas (Rf) Proprietary Limited, 
South Africa Mainstream Renewable Power Perdekraal 
East (Rf) Proprietary Limited, Sprout Performance 
Partners Proprietary Limited, Stortemelk Hydro 
(Rf) Proprietary Limited, Tetmor Investment Holdings 
Proprietary Limited, Tsiba Ei Holdings Proprietary 
Limited, Tsiba Education Proprietary Limited, Ulco 
Clean Energy Proprietary Limited, 
Vapotouch Proprietary Limited, Vuselela Energy 
Proprietary Limited, We Shelf Trading 316 Proprietary 
Limited and Zevobuzz (Rf) Proprietary Limited

Ansec 105 Proprietary Limited, 
Bassap Fishing Investments 
Proprietary Limited, Bassap Services 
Investments Proprietary Limited, 
Deltromax Proprietary Limited, 
Dimplx Proprietary Limited, Dinatla 
Investment Holdings Proprietary 
Limited, Green Chip 
Investments Proprietary Limited, 
Ikineo Proprietary Limited, Mzansila 
Communicologies Proprietary 
Limited, Pb Liquor 
Merchants Proprietary Limited, 
Rapivest 89 Proprietary Limited, 
Stella Trade Gelati Proprietary 
Limited and Vilatrade 142 Proprietary 
Limited

Richard Abel Clean Max Enviro Energy Solutions Private Limited, 
Galloper Extension Investco Parent Limited, India Sun 
B.V., Lightsource India Limited, Rampion Extension 
Investco Limited and UK Climate Investments LLP

ALX Holdings LLC, Clyde SPV 
Limited, Condor Holdings Limited, 
Enterprise Express Limited, European 
Transport Investments (UK) Limited, 
Galloper Holdco Limited, Macquarie 
(Scotland) GP Limited, MEIF II 
Channels Islands Transport Holdings 
Limited, Midland Motorways Group 
Limited, MIF Holdings Limited, MPF 
Nominees Limited, New Green 
Interim Holdco Limited, OSW Co 
Investments Limited, Peregrine 
Motorways Limited, Rampion Holdco 
Limited and WMR Holdco Limited

Shamilah 
Grimwood-
Norley

Bowman Gilfillan Incorporated N/A
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Director
Current directorships 
and partnerships

Past directorships and 
partnerships  
held in the last five years

Terrence Sonny 
Chauke

Business Venture Investments No. 3600 Proprietary 
Limited, Caldron Investments Proprietary Limited, 
Caldron Property, Tourism Proprietary Limited, 
Inclusivity Human Capital Services Proprietary Limited 
and Pareto Limited

Aspire Financial Services Proprietary 
Limited, Aspire Financial Services 
Group Proprietary Limited, Oak Tree 
Managed Solutions Proprietary 
Limited, Valinsight Proprietary 
Limited, Ubuntu-Botho Investments 
(Gauteng) Proprietary Limited and 
WG Wearne Proprietary Limited

Other directorships held by the directors of the Investment Manager during the previous five years, not already set out 
in the Pre-Listing Statement, are set out below

Director Current directorships and partnerships

Past directorships and 
partnerships held in the last five 
years

Andre Lawrence 
Wepener

Kathu Solar Park (RF) Proprietary Limited N/A

Bronwen Kim 
Trower

Augusta Steel Proprietary Limited, Bud Rental Services 
Proprietary Limited, Rombus Proprietary Limited

N/A

Carla Linda 
Samaai

Lemon Zest Consulting Proprietary Limited Ocean Echo Properties 280 
Proprietary Limited, Spatial 
Intelligence Proprietary Limited, 
Ogeeze Proprietary Limited

Nkateko Patience 
Khoza

Acorncity Proprietary Limited, Angels View Graskop 
Proprietary Limited, Dzana Investments Proprietary 
Limited, Hlayisani Capital Proprietary Limited, Hoyohoyo 
Holdings Proprietary Limited, Ipopoeng Mala Proprietary 
Limited, Koeltehof Packers Proprietary Limited, 
Koeltehuis No 5 Proprietary Limited, Leadership Talent 
Proprietary Limited, Lean Enterprise Acceleration 
Programmes Proprietary Limited, Letela Capital 
Proprietary Limited, Phoenix Empowerment Equity 
Proprietary Limited, Procureworld Proprietary Limited, 
Rados Gold One Proprietary Limited

Letela Capital

Shelley Thomas Pembury Lifestyle Group Limited, Ukholo Holdings 
Proprietary Limited, Jarmat Proprietary Limited, RSVX 
Holdings Proprietary Limited, Allshe Proprietary Limited, 
Institution for Treatment of Substance Abuse Proprietary 
Limited, Intuthoko Solutions Proprietary Limited, BOE 
Link Nominees (RF) Proprietary Limited, BSI Steel 
Proprietary Limited, Indvest Group Proprietary Limited, 
Texton Property Fund Limited, Workforce Holdings 
Proprietary Limited, Tasmel Props 33 Proprietary 
Limited, Old Mutual Investment Services Nominees (RF), 
Isidima Hydroponics Proprietary Limited

Fortitude Assurance Consulting 
Proprietary Limited, Palabora Mining 
Company Proprietary Limited, 
Ubambo Investment Holdings 
Proprietary Limited, Cellsaf 
Proprietary Limited, 3C 
Telecommunications Proprietary 
Limited, Intsha Marketing Proprietary 
Limited, Matjar Investments 
Proprietary Limited, Arts 
Development Foundation Proprietary 
Limited, Rayburn Solutions 
Proprietary Limited, Rainbow Pepper 
Trading 26 Proprietary Limited, Eco 
Afrika Paving Proprietary Limited, 
Palabora BEE Investment Company 
(RF) Proprietary Limited, Shelley 
Thomas and Associates Proprietary 
Limited, Tumbulani Afrika Consultants 
Proprietary Limited, At Ease 
Relocations Proprietary Limited
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ANNEXURE 20 – KING CODE APPLICATION REGISTER

Applied Principle Comments

1 Applied The governing body should lead ethically and 
effectively.

As per the Board Charter, the Directors, overseen 
by the Chairperson of the Board, hold each another 
accountable for ethical behaviour and effective 
decision-making

2 Applied The governing body should govern the ethics of the 
organisation in a way that supports the establishment 
of an ethical culture.

As set out in the Board Charter, the Board is 
responsible for the monitoring and governance of 
the ethics of Revego. They are supported by the 
Social, Ethics and Transformation Committee and 
Advisory Board, which is empowered to manage 
and evaluate specific governance and ethical risks.

3 Applied The governing body should ensure that the 
organisation is and is seen to be a responsible 
corporate citizen.

The Board is responsible for monitoring the overall 
responsible corporate citizenship performance of 
Revego. The Board has further appointed a Social, 
Ethics and Transformation Committee to ensure 
that specific consideration is given to these factors.

4 Applied The governing body should appreciate that the 
organisation’s core purpose, its risks and 
opportunities, strategy, business model, 
performance and sustainable development are all 
inseparable elements of the value creation process.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board 
with the governance and monitoring of risk. Further, 
this committee is tasked with ensuring the 
implantation of various migrating controls. The 
specific roles and responsibilities of this Committee 
are contained in the Audit and Risk Committee 
charter.

5 Applied The governing body should ensure that reports 
issued by the organisation enable stakeholders to 
make informed assessments of the organisation’s 
performance, and its short, medium and long-term 
prospects.

Revego Integrated Annual Report will provide an 
assessment of its performance, measured against its 
objectives.

6 Applied The governing body should serve as the focal point 
and custodian of the corporate governance in the 
organisation.

The Board is the focal point and custodian of 
corporate governance of Revego, as outlined in the 
Board Charter. Further aspects of governance are 
addressed through the established Board sub-
committees i.e. Audit and Risk Committee, 
Advisory Board and Remuneration Committee.

7 Applied The governing body should comprise the 
appropriate balance of knowledge, skills, experience, 
diversity and independence for it to discharge its 
governance role and responsibilities objectively and 
effectively.

The Board and its sub-committees consider, on an 
annual basis, its composition in terms of balance of 
skills, experience, diversity, independence and 
knowledge and whether this enables it to effectively 
discharge its role and responsibilities. The Board 
has performed this evaluation and is satisfied.

Through the annual self-assessment of the Board 
and its sub-committees, the knowledge and skills 
set are evaluated and improved where required.

Furthermore, where necessary, the subject matter 
experts are available for matters requiring 
specialised guidance.
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8 Applied The governing body should ensure that its 
arrangements for delegation within its own 
structures promote independent judgement and 
assist with balance of power and the effective 
discharge of its duties.

The Board and its sub-committees comply with the 
applicable requirements of the King Code. There is 
a clear balance of power to ensure that no individuals 
have undue decision-making powers.

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that the 
auditor is independent, non-audit services are not 
performed and due process has been followed in 
the appointment of the audit firm with the 
designated audit partner having oversight of the 
audit.

The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the 
finance function.

9 Applied The governing body should ensure that the 
evaluation of its own performance and that of its 
committees, its chair and its individual members, 
support continued improvement in its performance 
and effectiveness.

The Board and all sub-committees’ charters include 
the onus of annual assessments. Assessments of the 
performance by the Board, its sub-committees and 
the company secretary are conducted annually by 
way of internal evaluation process.

10 Applied The governing body should ensure that the 
appointment of, and delegation to, management 
contribute to role clarity and effective exercise of 
authority and responsibilities.

The Board is satisfied that Revego is appropriately 
resourced. Save for the CEO who is employed on a 
part-time basis, Revego will not employ any staff.

11 Applied The governing body should govern risk in a way 
that supports the organisation in setting and 
achieving its strategic objectives.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board 
with the governance of risk. The Board is aware of 
the importance of risk management as it is linked to 
the strategy, performance and sustainability of the 
business. Risks are identified and managed within 
acceptable parameters.

The Audit and Risk Committee identifies, assesses, 
mitigates and manages risks within the existing 
operating environment. Mitigating controls are in 
place to address these risks which are considered 
material.

12 Applied The governing body should govern technology and 
information in a way that supports the organisation 
setting and achieving its strategic objectives.

The Board, together with the Audit and Risk 
Committee, oversees the governance of information 
technology. The Board is aware of the importance 
of technology and information in relation to 
Revego’s overarching strategy.

13 Applied The governing body should govern compliance with 
applicable laws and adopted, non-binding rules, 
codes and standards in a way that it supports the 
organisation being ethical and a good corporate 
citizen.

The Board is assisted by the company secretary to 
monitor compliance with the various laws and 
regulation that govern Revego’s business activities 
and conduct.

14 Applied The governing body should ensure that the 
organisation remunerates fairly, responsibly and 
transparently so as to promote the achievement of 
strategic objectives and positive outcomes in short-, 
medium- and long-term.

The Board, assisted by the Remuneration 
Committee, ensures that Directors are 
remunerated fairly, responsibly, transparently and in 
line with industry standards to promote the 
creation of value in a sustainable manner. This 
responsibility is contained in the Remuneration 
Committee’s charter. Save for the CEO who is 
employed on a part-time basis, Revego will not 
employ any staff.
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15 Applied The governing body should ensure that assurance 
services and functions enable an effective control 
environment, and that these support the integrity 
of information for internal decision-making and of 
the organisation’s external reports.

The Board is satisfied that the external audit results 
indicate an adequate and effective control 
environment and integrity of reports. The Board is 
therefore comfortable using the information 
generated by the business as the basis of decision 
making. The responsibility of management is 
contained in the Board Charter and the Audit and 
Risk Committee charter.

16 Applied In the execution of its governance roles and 
responsibilities, the governing body should adopt a 
stakeholder-inclusive approach that balances the 
needs, interests and expectations of material 
stakeholders in the best interests of the organisation 
over time.

Various stakeholder groups have been identified 
and the Board will balance their needs, interests 
and expectations in all decision making.

17 Applied The governing body of an institutional investor 
organisation should ensure that responsible 
investment is practiced by the organisation to 
promote the good governance and the creation of 
value by the companies in which it invests.

The Board, through Revego’s’ Investment Policy, 
ensures that responsible investment is practiced to 
promote good governance and the creation of 
value by the companies in which the Fund invests.
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ANNEXURE 21 – SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTIONS

Set out below is the list of shareholder resolutions passed on 5 March 2021 and 12 February 2021.

SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTIONS (5 March 2021)

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Special Resolution Number 1: Authority to issue shares in excess of 30% of the current issued share capital of Revego

Special Resolution Number 2: Control of and authority to issue authorised but unissued shares for cash

Special Resolution Number 3: Approval of non-executive directors’ remuneration

Special Resolution Number 4: Adoption of revised Memorandum of Incorporation

Special Resolution Number 5: Financial assistance

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

Ordinary Resolution Number 1: Election of Directors

Ordinary Resolution Number 2: Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee

Ordinary Resolution Number 3: Appointment of Social and Ethics Committee

Ordinary Resolution Number 4: Appointment of Remuneration Committee

Ordinary Resolution Number 5: Re-appointment of EY

Ordinary Resolution Number 6: General authority to issue shares for cash

Ordinary Resolution Number 7: Directors’ authority to take action in respect of the resolutions

SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTIONS (12 February 2021)

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

Special Resolution Number 1: Increase in the authorised share capital of Revego
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ANNEXURE 22 – ANNUAL ESG REPORT

Format of Fund Annual ESG Report

The following sample template is to be used for the Annual ESG Report on each Project Company:

Name of 
Project 
Company

Country Sector  
(and % of 
portfolio)

Rating of ESG risks Quality of ESG  
management  

systems
Environment Social Governance

South Africa Renewable 
energy ( xx 
– [xx]% of 
portfolio)

High/Medium/
Low

High/Medium/
Low

High/Medium/
Low

Good/Moderate/ 
Poor

Reporting 
period for 

data

Employee 
numbers (full 

time 
equivalents)

Reporting 
currency

Corporate 
income taxes 
paid1 (‘000)

Other taxes 
paid2 (‘000)

Turnover 
(‘000)

EBITDA 
(‘000)

Jan – Dec 
20[xx]

 [x,xxx] Rand xx - [xx] xx - [xx] xx - [xx] xx - [xx]

Name of 
Project 
Company

Employment • Workforce statistics, including breakdown of employee numbers by:

– Skilled vs unskilled

– Temporary vs permanent

– Male vs female

– Race (white, coloured, black, Indian, Asian, etc.)

– Disabled

• Union representation

• Does the company comply with International Labour Organisation core labour standards 
(freedom of association and right to collective bargaining; no forced, compulsory or child labour; 
no discrimination in respect of employment and occupation)

Health & Safety • Details of Health & Safety policy if in place

• Compliance with relevant local health & safety laws, standards and regulations

• Reportable incidents over the past year

Training and 
Development

• Training programmes (internal/external formal paid training) for staff

• Graduate and internship programmes (and if so BEE profile of candidates)

• Mentorship schemes

BEE 
Transformation

• BEE rating level and scorecard breakdown

• Initiatives/plans to further improve BEE rating

• Specifically, initiatives relating to enterprise development, equitable procurement

1. Sum of all corporate income taxes paid during reporting period in country of operation as shown in cash flow statement, not taxes expensed in 
income statement

2. Sum of all other taxes and fees paid to the government in the country of operation during the reporting period, including (i) sales taxes, (ii) net 
VAT, (iii) royalties, (iv) dividends and related taxes, (v) management and/or concession fees, (vi) license fees, (vii) tax on payment of interest, and 
(viii) other material payments from the cash-flow statement, but excluding corporate income or profit taxes reported above.  Subsidies or other 
cash transfers from the government should also be deducted
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Name of 
Project 
Company

Impact on 
Community 
(including social 
initiatives)

• Impact of activities on local communities and other stakeholders

• Corporate Social Investment (CSI) initiatives

• Compliance with consumer protection

Corporate 
Governance

• Board composition (exec vs non-exec, chairman vs CEO); number of board meetings held over 
past year

• Names of Fund observers/directors

• Director development (induction programme for new directors; regular briefings on industry 
changes)

• Audit committee

• Risk governance

• Remuneration committee

ESG issues/
opportunities 
for 
improvements 
at the time of 
investment

• Issue/opportunity 1

• Issue/opportunity 2

• Etc.

ESG 
improvements 
achieved

• Improvement 1

• Improvement 2

• Etc.

Status/further 
actions to be 
undertaken, 
with time frame

• Status/action 1

• Status/action 2

• Etc.

Other 
information

• Other info 1

• Other info 2

• Etc.
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